LONDON

Hillingdon
Planning
Committee

Date: WEDNESDAY, 15
JANUARY 2025

Time: 7.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -
CIVIC CENTRE

Meeting The public and press are welcome

Details: to attend and observe the meeting.

For safety and accessibility, security measures will
be conducted, including searches of individuals and
their belongings. Attendees must also provide
satisfactory proof of identity upon arrival. Refusal to
comply with these requirements will result in non-
admittance.

This meeting may be broadcast on the Council’s
YouTube channel. You can also view this agenda
online at www.hillingdon.gov.uk

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www.hillingdon.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

Councillors on the Committee

Councillor Henry Higgins (Chair)
Councillor Adam Bennett (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Keith Burrows

Councillor Roy Chamdal

Councillor Elizabeth Garelick
Councillor Gursharan Mand
Councillor Jagjit Singh

Published: 7 January 2025

Contact: Liz Penny
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk


http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/

Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking \/
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,

with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a U,b,,d
1ube and b

short walk away. Limited parking is available at pw..m

the Civic Centre. For details on availability and S“c‘:‘:‘?,l“ Sicscons intu'y

how to book a parking space, please contact -

Democratic Services. Please enter from the B T

Council’s main reception where you will be cae gurk
directed to the Committee Room. Crickechd Rea

Accessibility

An Induction Loop System is available for use
in the various meeting rooms. Please contact
us for further information.

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.
Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire

Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their
way to the signed refuge locations.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1

2
3
4
5

Apologies for absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in

Public and the items marked Part Il will be considered in Private

Planning Committee Report Part 1 Standard Information (pages
7-14)

Applications with a Petition

57533/APP/2023/3146

Recommendation: Approval

6 | 22 Belmont Close, Uxbridge Erection of a detached house with 4 15 - 58
Uxbridge — bedrooms and associated parking, 272-283
amenity and bin/cycle stores
79130/APP/2024/1864 (updated plans)
Recommendation: Approval
7 | 72 Harefield Road, Uxbridge Demolition of existing dwelling and 59 — 100
Uxbridge — erection of building to provide 3x 1- | 284-293
bed, 5 x 2-bed, 1 x 3 bed flats with
associated parking and amenity
25767/APP/2024/2484 space.
Recommendation: Approval
8 | Harrow and Wembley | Eastcote Part-retrospective provision of one 101-132
Society Model portacabin with paint-finished timber | 294-298
Engineers, Roxbourne cladding to provide aticket office
Park East’cote _ and community space.
Recommendation: Approval
22899/APP/2023/2219
9 | 140 Fairholme Belmore Creation of an extra unit in 6 unit 133-156
Crescent, Hayes — HMO (Class C4). 299-308




10 | 100 Exmouth Road, South Retention of a double storey rear 157-186

South Ruislip — Ruislip and side extension with 309-313
amendments to fenestration and

height of existing single storey rear

42576/APP[2024/2465 extension (retrospective)
Recommendation: Approval
11| 38 Varcoe Gardens, Wood End | Conversion of integral garage to 187-202
Hayes — habitable accommodation with 314-335
alterations to fenestration.
79116/APP/2024/2794

Recommendation: Approval

Applications without a Petition

12| Minet Junior School, Wood End | An application submitted under 203-230
Avondale Drive, Section 73 of the Town and Country 336-344
Hayes — Planning Act 1990 to vary Condition

2 (Approved Drawings) of planning
permission reference
2297IAPP[2024/2171 2297/APP/2021/2704, dated 17-09-
2021 (Extensions, remodelling and
refurbishment of the existing
Nursery, Infant and Junior Schools)
to make alterations, including
changes to hard and soft
landscaping, bin storage, and cycle
storage (Part Retrospective and Part
Proposed)

Recommendation: Approval

Planning Committee Report Part 3_Policy Appendices (pages
231-269)

Plans for the Hillingdon Planning Committee — pages 271-344




Minutes

HILLINGDON PLANNING COMMITTEE

Agenda Iltem 3

«
TR ORALS .

05 December 2024 <H*ILINGDO[\I

LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Henry Higgins (Chair),
Adam Bennett (Vice-Chair),

Keith Burrows

Roy Chamdal,

Elizabeth Garelick,

Barry Nelson-West, and

Jagjit Singh

Officers Present:

Ed Laughton — Area Planning Service Manager (Central & South)
Eoin Concannon — Planning Team Leader

Chris Brady — Planning Team Leader

Dr Alan Tilly — Transport & Aviation Team Manager

Natalie Fairclough — Legal Advisor

Ryan Dell — Democratic Services Officer

53.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies had been received from Councillor Gursharan Mand with Councillor Barry
Nelson-West substituting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

Councillor Barry Nelson-West declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 6 as he had
been in contact with the petitioners. He left the room for this item and did not take part
in the vote.

55.

TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes from the meeting on 05 November 2024 be
approved.

56.

MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
4)

None.

57.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART | WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THE ITEMS MARKED PART Il WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that all items would be heard in Part I.

Page 1




58.

16 HAYES END DRIVE, 9105/APP/2024/1760 (Agenda Item 6)
Councillor Nelson-West left the room for this item.

Officers introduced the item.

A written representation from the lead petitioner was read out:

There were no objections to a family extending their home as in the case of 31 and 33
Hayes End Drive.

This is not the case with this rented property. This was a landlord trying to increase the
income from as many tenants as he can.

This was based on all the applicant’s previous applications:

. 27 September 2023 — Erection of a three-bedroom dwelling to rear of existing
house — rejected.

. 17 January 2024 — Erection of a three-bedroom dwelling next to existing house
— rejected.

. 10 May 2024 — Erection of a two storey, two-bedroom house attached to 16

Hayes End Drive. Applicant was given an option to withdraw application or it
would be rejected.

. 15 July 2024 — Erection of a part single two storey side and rear extension. No
objection from petitioners.
. 22 August 2024 — Amended planning application with a larger footprint of the

two-storey side and rear extension, rear dormers, roof lights, two double back
doors and large windows side of extension. Applicant had to reduce the width of
the two-storey extension.

. 16 October 2024 — An extra-large widow added to the side extension. Making it
three large widows and side door. Already having two double back doors. So
potentially becoming a dwelling attached to 16 Hayes End Drive with entrance
from Wilma Close.

Petitioners strongly opposed the three large widows on the side elevation. None of the
other corner houses had been allowed such large windows, other than a single small
opaque window for the landing one per floor, due to the fact the end elevation over
looks neighbouring properties and will overlook a rear garden resulting in a lack of
privacy. And the door in the side elevation, again no other corner houses have been
allowed a side door.

The big concern was that this door will become a front door to a divided property i.e. 16
and 16a.

If the Council approves this application, petitioners requested conditions that the house
cannot be divided into two properties and no HMO.

Other considerations were Wilma Close was significantly narrower than other local
roads so potentially having an extra dwelling to the side of 16 Hayes End Drive or
turning it into an HMO would cause greater problems for parking on an already
congested Close.

This area was a medium flood plane and having this extra building footprint could
increase the runoff increasing the risk of flooding.

Page 2




Councillor Darran Davies addressed the Committee as Ward Councillor and made the
following points:

. This property risked overdevelopment and harm to the area's character.
The extensions were excessive for a prominent corner plot, disrupting the
open and uniform nature of the neighbourhood. This directly conflicted
with policy DMHB 11 and DMHD 1, which required developments to be in
keeping with the area.

. This site had a history of refused applications and overdevelopment. The
current proposal, while for the extension, raised similar concerns about
scale, scale, layout and intensification.

. The residential amenity was at risk despite revision and the scale of the
extension threatened neighbouring properties, particularly 14 Hayes End
Drive, with potential overshadowing and reduced privacy. These impacts
were significant and conflicted with the principles of protecting residential
living.

. Parking and traffic will be worsened. Wilma Close was already under
pressure due to the narrow layout and the large property could lead to
increased occupancy and parking demands, creating safety and
congestion issues, contrary to policy DMT 6.

. It was questioned if a drainage assessment had been carried out. This
area was prone to surface water issues and the lack of detailed
information on flooding raised concerns that the development could
exacerbate flooding risk, contravening policy DMEI 10.

. The removal of mature trees on the site was another concern. These
trees contributed to the area’s character and biodiversity, yet the proposal
did not include sufficient plans to protect or replace them, contrary to
policy DMHB 14.

. In summary, this proposal risked overdevelopment and harm to local
character and could negatively impact residential amenity.
. The Committee was requested to refuse this application. If approval was

considered, it was recommended to impose strict conditions to limit
occupancy, safeguard the trees, address the drainage and parking issues
and also the overshadowing on other properties.

Officers clarified that policy DMHD 1 and DMHB 11 were not breached as per revised
plans. This development, given its policy compliance, would not significantly harm the
character and appearance of the area. There were examples of this type of
development within the local area.

Condition Six ensured that the property cannot be converted into more than one
dwelling without the benefit of further planning permission. Officers had gone above
and beyond in order to ensure that any intensification of the site was addressed.

The site was not within a flood risk area, therefore adding a condition regarding surface
water drainage would not be justified.

While there was some planting and vegetation on the site, it was not within a TPO area
and so trees were not protected and therefore could be removed without consent.
There was a landscaping condition that required the details of landscaping to be
submitted.

Members noted that the footprint of this application site was one of the smallest

Page 3




compared to those in the surrounding area, and there was a similar development
opposite the site.

Members further asked about the footprint, and officers advised that policy DMHD 1 did
not require specific measurements but was based on certain parameters. This
application did conform with these parameters.

Members asked about parking and officers advised that as this application was for an
extension, it was not necessary to assess any additional parking need.

Officers’ recommendations were moved, seconded and when put to a vote, agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved

59. | YIEWSLEY COURT, 18928/APP/2024/2272 (Agenda ltem 7)
Officers introduced the application.
Members noted that this application seemed logical, noting the numbers of homeless
individuals and being a port authority.
Members noted that the report referred to a moderate PTAL rating and asked for the
precise rating. Officers noted that the site had a PTAL ranking of three, indicating that
access to public transport was reasonable to good compared to London as a whole.
Officers also advised that there was a bus stop outside of the site.
Members also asked if there was a time frame on ‘short-stay’. Officers advised that it
would be difficult to quantify this as it would be dependent on the individuals’
requirements. It would also be dependent on the availability of accommodation for the
individuals to move on to. Conditions on this would not be appropriate as this could
lead to individuals being made homeless again. Officers further noted that due to the
individuals being homeless, it was likely that they would not have a car and so there
was likely an over-provision of parking available.
Officers’ recommendations were moved, seconded and when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.
RESOLVED: That the application be approved

60. | 47 FAIRFIELD AVENUE, 78928/APP/2024/1952 (Agenda Item 8)

Officers introduced the application, which had been brought to Committee following a
Member call-in which raised concerns regarding potential loss of amenity to the garage
of neighbouring property with a new adjoining bedroom.

Members noted that all concerns from residents and the Councillor had been
addressed.

Officers’ recommendations were moved, seconded and when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved

Page 4




61. | 45 CAVENDISH AVENUE, 79111/APP/2024/2762 (Agenda ltem 9)
Officers introduced the application.
Officers noted that one representation had been received following publication of the
agenda which raised concerns over the property having been unoccupied for some
time; previous leakages at the property which have been addressed by Housing
officers; and noise, disturbance and antisocial behaviour due to the property not being
occupied.
Members noted that this was a good project. Members also highlighted that they were
happy with the condition about damage to the verge.
Officers’ recommendations were moved, seconded and when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.
RESOLVED: That the application be approved

62. | 35 BERBERIS WALK, 28236/APP/2024/2761 (Agenda Item 10)

Officers introduced the item.
Members noted that there was a need for properties for larger families.

Officers’ recommendations were moved, seconded and when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 7.50 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Ryan Dell on democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk. Circulation of
these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 5




This page is intentionally left blank



Planning
Committee Report
Part 1:

Standard Information for
Members - Applicable to All
Applications on the Agenda

www.hillingdon.gov.uk



Contents

Section Content Page

Ref.

1. Statutory Planning and Human Rights Considerations

1.1 Development Plan 3

1.2 Equality Act 3

1.3 Human Rights 4

1.4 Development in Conservation Areas 4

1.5 Development Affecting Listed Buildings 5

2. Other Relevant Information for Members

2.1 Five Year Housing Land Supply 5

2.2 Planning Appeals / Risk of Costs Award 5
Against the Council

2.3 Use of Planning Conditions 6

2.4 Planning Obligations 6

2.5 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 7

2.6 Environmental Impact Assessment 8

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press
Page 8




Part 1: Statutory Planning and Human Rights
Considerations

1.1

Development Plan

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.2

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and section
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, require that applications for
planning permission be determined in accordance with the development plan,
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The development plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon consists of the
following documents:

e Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1: Strateqgic Policies (2012)
e Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies

(2020)
e Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Site Allocations and Designations (2020)

e The West London Waste Plan (2015)
e The London Plan (2021)

Equality Act

1.2.1

1.2.2

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering
planning applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, advance equality of opportunities and foster good relations
between people who have different protected characteristics. The protected
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that Members
should consider whether persons with protected characteristics would be
affected by a proposal when compared to persons who do not share that
protected characteristic. Where equalities issues arise, Members should
weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals against the other material
considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities impacts are not
necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be
considered in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given
to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all
the circumstances.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 9


https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/local-plan
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/local-plan
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/local-plan
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/local-plan
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/west-london-waste-plan
https://www.london.gov.uk/programmes-strategies/planning/london-plan

1.3

Human Rights

1.3.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the key articles of the European

Convention on Human Rights into domestic law. These include:

o Article 8: Right to respect for private and family life.
Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his
home and his correspondence. This right embodies the right to a
name, the right to change one’s civil status and to acquire a new
identity, and protection against telephone tapping, collection of private
information by a State’s security services and publications infringing
privacy. This right also enables Members of a national minority to have

a traditional lifestyle.

. Article 1 of the First Protocol: Protection of property.
Every natural or legal person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of
his possessions. No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in
the public interest and subject to the conditions provided for by law and
by the general principles of international law.

o Article 14: Prohibition of discrimination.
The enjoyment of the rights and freedoms set forth in this Convention
shall be secured without discrimination on any ground such as sex,
race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion, national or
social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth, or
other status.

1.3.2 Members must be aware of the rights contained in the Convention
(particularly those set out above) when making any planning decisions.
However, most Convention rights are not absolute and set out circumstances
when an interference with a person's rights is permitted. Any interference with
any of the rights contained in the Convention must be sanctioned by law and
be aimed at pursuing a legitimate aim and must go no further than is
necessary and be proportionate. Members must, therefore, carefully consider
the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider public
interest.

1.4 Development in Conservation Areas

1.4.1

Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires the local planning authority, in determining applications
affecting conservation areas, to pay special attention to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area. This
statutory duty needs to be considered alongside relevant heritage policies
contained in the National Planning Policy Framework and local plan.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 10



1.5

Development Affecting Listed Buildings

1.5.1

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires the local planning authority, in determining applications
affecting a listed building or its setting, to “have special regard to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses”. This statutory duty needs
to be considered alongside relevant heritage policies contained in the
National Planning Policy Framework and local plan.

Part 1: Other Relevant Information for Members

2.1

Five Year Housing Land Supply

2.1.1

21.2

213

2.2

Land supply is a key part of planning and links plan policies and sites with
actual delivery. The need to demonstrate a 5yr rolling supply of sites, known
as 5yr housing land supply (5YHLS), is an embedded part of the planning
system.

When councils are unable to demonstrate a 5YHLS the National Planning
Policy Framework 2023 (NPPF) presumption in favour of sustainable
development - the so-called ‘tilted balance’ - is engaged. NPPF paragraph 11
(d) ii states that in these circumstances the development plan policies most
important for determining the application are to be treated as out-of-date.
Therefore, where the presumption applies, planning permission should be
granted unless:

1. The application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

2. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
Framework taken as a whole.

Hillingdon Council is currently able to demonstrate a Syr supply of deliverable
housing sites. Therefore, the ‘tilted balance’ is not engaged.

Planning Appeals / Risk of Costs Award Against the

2.21

Council

Members should be aware that in the event of an appeal, local planning
authorities are at risk of an award of costs if they behave unreasonably with
respect to the substance of the matter under appeal. For example, by

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 11



222

2.23

2.3

unreasonably refusing or failing to determine planning applications, or by
unreasonably defending appeals.

A further example includes imposing a condition that is not necessary,
relevant to planning and to the development, enforceable, nor precise or
reasonable in all other respects (and thus does not comply with NPPF
guidance on planning conditions and obligations). It should be noted that
planning conditions can be appealed.

Another example includes failing to substantiate each reason for refusal on
appeal. Therefore, should members determine to refuse an application
(contrary to officer recommendation for approval) planning reasons for refusal
should be provided.

Use of Planning Conditions

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.4

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions.
Planning consent should not be refused where planning conditions can
overcome a reason for refusal.

Planning conditions should only be imposed where members are satisfied that
imposing the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the
development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other
respects. Where conditions are imposed, the Council is required to provide
full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

2.4.1

242

Policy DMCI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states that whilst
infrastructure requirements will be predominantly addressed through the
Council's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), planning obligations will be
sought on a scheme-by-scheme basis. Applications that fail to secure an
appropriate Planning Obligation to make the proposal acceptable will be
refused.

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 2010 (Regulations issued
Pursuant to the 2008 Act) and the NPPF have put three tests on the use of
planning obligations into law. It is unlawful to request planning obligations that
do not meet the following tests:

i. necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms,
ii. directly related to the development, and

iii. fairly and reasonable related in scale and kind to the development.

2.4.3 The effect of the Regulations is that the Council must apply the tests much

more strictly and is only to ask for planning obligations that are genuinely

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 12



244

2.5

necessary and directly related to a development. Should planning obligations
be requested that do not meet the policy tests, the Council would have acted
unlawfully and could be subject to a High Court challenge.

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by
way of an agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 are necessary to make the development
acceptable in planning terms. The obligations must be directly related to the
development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind to the
development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

2.5.1

252

253

254

2.5.5

2.5.6

2.5.7

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) allows local authorities to raise
funds from developers undertaking new building projects in their area. The
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a charge collected from new
developments.

The CIL applies to all proposals that add 100 square metres of new
floorspace or an extra dwelling. This includes bringing a vacant building back
into use. The amount to pay is the increase in floorspace (m2) multiplied by
the rate in the CIL charging schedule plus indexation.

The money raised from the Community Infrastructure Levy pays for the
infrastructure required to support development. This includes transport
schemes, flood defences, schools, health and social care facilities, parks,
open spaces and leisure centres.

The London Borough of Hillingdon adopted its CIL Charging Schedule on 10
July 2014 and it is applied to new developments in the borough since 1
August 2014. The use types that are charged borough CIL is large format
retail development (greater than 1,000sqm) outside of designated town
centres; offices; hotels; residential dwellinghouses; and industrial storage and
distribution.

The Mayor’s CIL (MCIL)

The Mayor's CIL applies to all qualifying developments approved on or after 1
April 2012. Hillingdon Council is a CIL collecting authority for the Mayor of
London.

The Mayoral CIL 1 (MCIL 1) rate was £35 per sgm plus indexation and is used
by the Mayor of London to fund the delivery of Crossrail.

For planning permissions granted from 1 April 2019, the Mayoral CIL 2 (MCIL
2) rate of £60 per square metre plus indexation applies. This rate may also
apply to some phased planning permissions granted before then.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 13


https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/community-infrastructure-levy

2.6

Environmental Impact Assessment

2.6.1

2.6.2

2.6.3

264

The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment)
Regulations 2017 (as amended) requires that an Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) is undertaken, and an Environmental Statement (ES)
produced for certain developments.

ElAis a procedure which serves to provide information about the likely
significant effects of a proposed project to inform the decision-making process
and whether the project should be allowed to proceed, and if so on what
terms.

An overview of the EIA process is provided as part of government’s Planning
Practice Guidance. An EIA is normally only necessary for a small proportion of
projects.

An EIA Screening Opinion can be obtained from the council to determine
whether a proposed development needs an EIA. Once it has been determined
that an ElAis required, an EIA Scoping Opinion can be obtained from the
Local Planning Authority to provide advice on the scope and content of the
Environmental Statement (ES).

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 14


https://www.gov.uk/guidance/environmental-impact-assessment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/environmental-impact-assessment

Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report Part 2 — Application Report

Case Officer: Rhian Thomas 79130/APP/2024/1864

Date Application | 29.07.24 Statutory / Agreed | 17.01.25

Valid: Determination

Deadline:

Application Full Ward: Uxbridge

Type:

Applicant: Mr Gary Wynne

Site Address: 22 Belmont Close, Uxbridge

Proposal: Erection of a detached house with 4 bedrooms
and associated parking, amenity and bin/cycle
stores

Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to

Recommendation:

Reason Reported
to Committee:

LONDON

conditions

Required under Part 3 of the Planning Scheme of
Delegation (Petition received)

www.hillingdon.gov.uk



Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a detached house with 4
bedrooms and associated parking, amenity and bin/cycle stores.

1.2  The application site has been subject to two previous planning consents for the
construction of a 4 bedroom dwelling at the application site
(72006/APP/2023/1259 and 72006/APP/2023/2116). It is noted that the
comments raised recognise that planning permission has previously been
granted. It is also important to note that neither of the previously consented
applications were subject to a public objection or a petition.

1.3  Most recently planning permission was granted at the site for the ‘erection of a
detached house with 4 bedrooms and associated parking amenity and bin/cycle
stores.” under reference 72006/APP/2023/2116 dated 11-09-23. However, this
consent cannot be implemented as the neighbouring property No.24 Belmont
Close was incorrectly plotted on the submitted drawings.

1.4 The development is part retrospective as building works have commenced on site.

1.5 During the process of the application, a petition in objection to the development
was received.

1.6  While the previous consent cannot be implemented it does need to be afforded
weight in the assessment of this application. The principle of residential
intensification on this site is established by both previous consents. The design of
the development has been altered, but not substantially so and no further
intensification is proposed, therefore the principle remains acceptable.

1.7  The consented site layout plan illustrated No.24 to set further back within its plot
than has now been established through a site survey being undertaken. This has
resulted in amendments to the proposal.

1.8 Although the design has been revised these revisions are limited and would not
significantly differ from the design consented in both previous applications.
Officers therefore consider the design of the development to be in keeping with
the street scene and the North Uxbridge Area of Special Local Character.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 16



1.9 Finally in terms of neighbour amenity, the revised scheme illustrates the
neighbouring property at No.24 within its correct position. This has required minor
alterations to the design to ensure that the new dwelling does not extend
unacceptably beyond the rear elevation of either neighbouring property. Part of
the rear of the building has now been reduced to single storey therefore restricting
the potential overshadowing of neighbouring windows to the same level as
previously consented. As such Officers consider that there would be no additional
harm to neighbouring properties.

1.10 A more detailed assessment is set out within this Committee Report including a
response to the concerns raised within the petition and objections received where
they are material to the assessment of the application.

1.11 The Committee Report seeks to provide a comprehensive assessment of the full
application and supporting documentation. All material planning considerations
have been considered.

1.12 It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions
(Appendix 1) by virtue that the development would not have a significant impact
on the amenities of neighbouring properties, nor would it harm the character and
appearance of the Area of Special Local Character, and it would not have a
harmful impact on the highway network.

2 The Site and Locality

2.1 The proposed development site is located on the south side of Belmont Close. At
present the site comprises a partly built detached dwelling which is subject to this
application.

2.2 The surrounding area is predominantly residential and is characterised by
uniquely designed two storey, detached properties some of which have
accommodation in their roofs. Properties are set back from the main road, allowing
for off street parking and/or front gardens with landscaping.

2.3 The site has public transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 2 and is located within
the North Uxbridge Area of special local character.

Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 17



Figure 2: Street View Images of the Application Property

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 18



3 Proposal

3.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a detached house with 4
bedrooms and associated parking, amenity and bin/cycle stores.

3.2 It should be noted that the development is part retrospective, as seen in the above
photograph.

3.3  During the process of the application, updated drawings were sought and received
amending the red outline of the location plan, updating the landscape plan and
providing clarity on the roof height.

Figure 3: Proposed Plan (please note — larger version of plan can be found in
the Committee Plan Pack)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 19



Side Elevation (Tom 20 Beltmont Close)

Side Elevation {frem 24 Belmor

El

22 Belmant Close,
Uxbridge. UBB 1RF.

TIME

Proposed
New house

TOWERS ASSOCIATES

00 Twrmmal, Hareil i,

"Barariold, WO~ UHY &I
nr GLEGE AIAG84
01895 8126

I [
o i
i T k
il
Imort €l
. bk ™

"

™ "

ki

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025
PART 1 — Members, Public & Press




4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

Relevant Planning History

A list of the relevant planning history related to the property can be found in
Appendix 2.

It should be noted that the site has been subject to two approved applications
72006/APP/2023/1259 and the most recent under  reference
72006/APP/2023/2116 dated 11-09-23. Both applications proposed the ‘Erection
of a detached house with 4 bedrooms and associated parking amenity and
bin/cycle stores.’

However, this permission cannot be implemented due to the neighbouring
property being incorrectly plotted.

Planning Policy

A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

Consultations and Representations
28 neighbouring properties were consulted on the application by letter dated 02-

08-24. During the process of the application neighbouring properties were re-
consulted due to the red outline of the location plan being amended and the

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 21



address being updated to accurately reflect the subdivided plot. The final
consultation period expired 06-12-24.

6.2 Representations received in response to public consultation are summarised in
Table 1 (below). Consultee responses received are summarised in Table 2
(below). Full copies of the responses have also separately been made available
to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Representations Received

Representations | Summary of Issues Planning Officer

Raised Response
A petition of 42 1. The drawings are The drawings that are
valid signatures inaccurate and do not labelled as ‘existing’ are
has been accurately reflect what | the pre-existing
received against has been built arrangement at the site. As
the application. the development is part

retrospective (as the
previous application
cannot be built out) it is not
considered a reasonable
request to include the
partly built development.

Officers are determining
the application based on
the proposed plans.

During the process of the
application further
information in the form of a
roof level drawing was
sought and received,
undertaken by
professionals to establish
the building height of the
surrounding properties. It
is considered that the
submitted plans accurately
reflect the neighbouring

roof levels.
2. The plot is being The principle of
overdeveloped development has already

been established with the
previous planning
applications. Therefore, an
assessment of the design
of the development has

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 22



been made within section
7 of this report.

. The proposed building

line does not respect
the building line of
neighbouring
properties.

This matter is discussed in
section 7 of this report.

. Concerns over damp

course level of property
in relation to
neighbouring
properties.

This matter is discussed at
paragraphs 7.46 to 7.48

. Concerns over loss of

light.

This matter is discussed at
paragraphs 7.40 to 7.48

. Respect of planning

laws:

- No party wall
agreement issued to
adjacent neighbours

- Working on
Sundays

- Hoarding in places
not as agreed

- Pavement dug up

- Tree branches cut
off

- Delivery times

- Parking issues

Most of these matters are
not material to the
determination of this
planning application and
are covered under
separated legislation.

A construction
management plan has
been provided, a
compliance condition has
been added to ensure
these measures are
adhered to.

12 individual
letters of objection
have been
received from a
total of 8
households.

(Please note that
where multiple
letters of objection
have been
received from the
same person

. The rear building line

exceeds the
neighbouring property.
The submitted Design
and Access Statement
contravenes this

It is noted that the
submitted Design and
Access Statement appears
to be a copy of previous
statement submitted with
application reference
72006/APP/2023/2116.
The Council are assessing
the proposed plans and
will not include the Design
and Access Statement as
a consented document.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 23




during different
consultation
periods; this has
been counted as
one
representation. All
representations
have been taken

[I. The front bay window
exceeds the building
line of no.20 Belmont
Close and the rear
building lie exceeds the
building line of no.24
Belmont Close, causing

The proposed drawings
show that the front bay
window does not exceed
the front building line of
no.20 Belmont Close.

The matter of the rear
building line and its

neighbouring properties
causing a loss of
privacy.

into overlooking. impacts on the
consideration.) neighbouring property has
been discussed in
paragraphs
lll. The floor height of the This matter has been
proposed dwelling is discussed in section 7 of
higher than this report. A survey was

undertaken to clarify the
heights of the surrounding
buildings and the depth of
the building would not
breach the 45 degree line
of sight at either the front
at ground and first floor
level and first floor level to
the rear.

[\/. The proposed ground
floor side facing door
and window will cause
loss of privacy

This matter is discussed at
paragraphs 7.43 & 7.44

V. Concerns over loss of
light and loss of outlook
as the 45-degree angle
line is not being
followed

The proposed site layout
drawing reference 3309-03
Rev F show that the
proposed development
does not enter the 45-
degree angle line from the
front facing neighbouring
habitable room.

Although there is some
loss of outlook created.
This has been established
with the previously
approved application and
is considered acceptable.

\VI. Loss of light to
neighbour’s bathroom

A bathroom is not
considered a habitable
room. Therefore, refusal

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 24




for this reason is not
considered reasonable.

/1l. Dormer window will
cause loss of privacy

Discussed at paragraph
7.50

Ill. Overdevelopment of the
plot

The principle of
development has already
been established with the
previous planning
applications. The design is
assessed in section 7 of
this report.

|X. The proposed dwelling
will be higher than the
neighbouring properties

During the process of the
application further
information in the form of a
roof level drawing was
sought and received,
undertaken by
professionals to establish
the building height of the
surrounding properties. It
is considered that the
submitted plans accurately
reflect the neighbouring
roof levels.

An assessment of the
proposed height has been
made in para’s 7.29 & 7.30

X. Building works have
continued through the
planning process.

It has been established by
numerous site visits that
building works have
continued at site during the
process of this planning
application.

The planning enforcement
officer has instructed
building works to be
ceased at site.

X1. There will be hardly any
garden left and the

An assessment of the
proposed landscaping and
external amenity space

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 25




landscaping feels
unrealistic.

has been made within
paragraphs 7.58 & 7.59

KI1.

According to the plans,
rainwater is to be
managed by a
soakaway but is not
shown on the plans.

The proposed plans show
the provision of water buts.
In addition to this a surface
water management plan
has been submitted.
Should the application be
recommended for
approval, a suitable
compliance condition will
be added.

Too many plans are
uploaded to the
website, and it is
confusing for residents
to assess.

During the process of the
application revised
drawings have been
sought. The up-to-date
drawings are labelled as
‘REVISED’ on the website.

An in-person meeting was
held with the lead
petitioners on 05/12/24 to
show them the proposed
drawings.

[\/. Concerns over parking | Parking matters have been
stress discussed in paragraph
7.64
(V. Hillingdon Council This is acknowledged by

should be putting
residents first.

planning officers. The
primary considerations are
the alignment of the
proposal with local
planning policies, the
impact on the built and
natural environment and
the impact of the
development on
neighbouring properties
amenities.

The planning process
ensures that all
neighbouring
representations are taken
into consideration (where

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 26



they are material to the
development).

The below report has
assessed these elements

fully.
Table 2: Summary of Consultee Responses
Consultee and Summary of Comments Planning Officer
Response
Highway Authority: As assessment of the
highway impacts has
As this application is a reprise of an extant 2023 been made at
permission (72006/APP/2023/2116), the same paragraph 7.60-7.70
comments made previously by the Highway Authority
can be reapplied (no objection).
Updated comment:
For the scale of development, the Construction
Management Plan (CMP) is broadly fit for purpose.
Access Officer: The comments have
been noted and the
No accessibility concerns are raised subject to relevant condition
conditions to ensure the dwelling shall accord with added.
the requirements of Policy D7 of the London Plan
and shall not be occupied until certification of
compliance with the technical specifications for an
M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M
to the Building Regulations (2010) 2015, has been
submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority. All such provisions must remain
in place for the life of the building.

7 Planning Assessment

Principle of Development

7.1 The London Plan (2021) provides guidance on how applications for development
on garden land should be treated within the London Region. The thrust of the
guidance is that back gardens can contribute to the objectives of a significant
number of London Plan policies and these matters should be taken into account
when considering the principle of such developments. Policy D4 of the London
Plan supports development plan-led presumptions against development on back
gardens where locally justified by a sound local evidence base.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 27



7.2  The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, also provides further
guidance on the interpretation of existing policies within the London Plan as
regards garden development. Paragraph 1.2.44 advises that when considering
proposals which involve the loss of gardens, regard should be taken of the
degree to which gardens contribute to defining local context and character
(Policy D4 and D6), especially in outer London where gardens are often a key
component of an area's character. The contribution gardens make towards
biodiversity also needs to be considered as does their role in mitigating flood
risk.

7.3  Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic policies states that
a high quality design should be achieved in all new buildings, alterations and
extensions, and states that schemes should not result in the inappropriate
development of gardens and green spaces that erode the character and
biodiversity of suburban areas.

7.4  Policy DMH6: Garden and Backland Development advises there is a
presumption against the loss of gardens due to the need to maintain local
character, amenity space and biodiversity. In exceptional cases a limited scale of
backland development may be acceptable, subject to the following criteria:

i) Neighbouring residential amenity and privacy of existing homes and gardens
must be maintained

ii) Vehicular access or car parking should not have an adverse impact on
neighbours in terms of noise or light

iii) Development on backland sites must be more intimate in mass and scale;
and

iv) Features such as trees, shrubs and wildlife habitat must be retained or re-
provided

7.5 Policy H10 on the London Plan (2021) and Policy DMH2 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan (2020) relate to housing mix and the need for family sized housing. The
proposed development would provide a four-bed property and as such would
make a contribution towards the boroughs need for family sized housing.

7.6 The property is located within an established residential area; however, the
London Plan recognises the contribution of gardens (specifically rear gardens)
make towards the quality of living accommodation and suggests a presumption
against their loss where it can be locally justified. Local Plan Policy DMH 6 gives
a presumption against the loss of gardens due to the need to maintain local
character, amenity space and biodiversity. Only in exceptional cases will
backland, or garden land in this instance, development be acceptable.

7.7 ltis important to recognise the significance of the previous approved application
for the redevelopment of this site to provide a 4-bedroom detached dwelling
which is also the subject of this application. The decision for application ref
72006/APP/2023/2116 was made in assessment of the proposed plans
submitted to Officers. As these plans were not found to be accurate in terms of
the plotting of the adjacent property, the development could not be built out in
accordance with the approved plans. It is also important to note that a full

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 28



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

consultation was undertaken with residents, no objections were raised including
against the principle of development.

As set out within the delegated report, Officers considered the development to
comply with the garden land related development plan policies stating that “it is
in a residential area characterised by family housing with large gardens being a
prevailing characteristic. The proposal would cause no harm to neighbours, the
highways network, the character of the area, important trees or biodiversity. The
infill development would comply with Policy DMH 6.”

While the development cannot be constructed in accordance with the approved
plans the decision is a material planning consideration in the determination of
this application. An objection based on the principle of development would need
to be strongly justified, meaning that Officers and Members of the Planning
Committee would need to demonstrate a significant difference between the two
proposals in order to form a strong reason for refusal which finds there to be a
policy departure.

Turning to the assessment of this current proposal, in order to be considered
compliant with the above policies the scheme would need to integrate within the
street scene both in terms of appearance (scale bulk and massing) and the
established pattern of development (location).

The application site was formally part of the side garden for number 20 Belmont
Close, however recently the plot has been subdivided with a new address.

The surrounding area is characterised with family housing with large gardens
being a prevailing characteristic. The proposed development overall will not
significantly harm the amenity of neighbouring properties, will not cause harm to
the highway network, nor will it be significantly harmful to the character and
appearance of the surrounding area. As such, the infill development would comply
with Policy DMH 6.

It should also be noted that the principle of development was accepted within the
previous application reference 72006/APP/2023/2116. As such the main
assessment of the application will focus on the design of the development and its
impact on neighbouring properties amenities.

The design is assessed in more detail within the character and appearance
section of this report, however the dwelling does not extend beyond the
established front building line of No.20 and 18 Belmont Close. The scale, bulk
and massing is more intimate than the surrounding properties and fits well within
the site boundaries. As such the development complies with development plan
and the support for the principle of development is retained. Officers do not
consider there to be a justifiable reason to object to the principle of development
and one which could be defended in the event of an appeal against a refusal, or
an enforcement notice being served.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 29



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

Finally, the application retains the benefits confirmed by the Case Officer when
approving the two previous applications have been retained. Such as the
developments contribution towards local housing stock, the provision of family
sized units to help meet an identified demand for such accommodation and the
redevelopment of a small brownfield site to provide new housing. These benefits
are recognised and defined within the development plan.

Design / Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November
2012) states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design
in all new buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and
a sense of place.

Local Plan Policy DMHB 11 states that all development, including extensions,
alterations and new buildings will be required to be designed to the highest
standards and, incorporate principles of good design including harmonising with
the local context and considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent
structures. They should also ensure the use of high-quality building materials
and finishes, and ensure that the internal design and layout of development
maximises sustainability and is adaptable to different activities.

Policy DMHB 5 states within Areas of Special Local Character, new development
should reflect the character of the area and its original layout. Alterations should
respect the established scale, building lines, height, design and materials of the
area. Extensions to dwellings should be subservient to and respect the
architectural style of the original buildings and allow sufficient space for
appropriate landscaping, particularly between, and in front of, buildings. The
replacement of buildings which positively contribute to the character and local
importance of Areas of Special Local Character will normally be resisted.

Policy DMHB 12 advises that development should be well integrated with the
surrounding area. It should ensure public realm design takes account of the
established townscape character and quality of the surrounding area.

Policy DMHB 14 advises that all development will be expected to retain or
enhance existing landscaping, trees, biodiversity or other features of merit.

The proposed development site is located on the south side of Belmont Close,
Uxbridge and is located within the North Uxbridge Area of Special Local Character
(ASLC). The site has been partly developed and hosts a partially built detached
property, this is due to the previously approved permission being made invalid due
to the neighbouring property being incorrectly positioned. The surrounding area is
predominantly residential in character characterised by uniquely designed
properties, some of which having accommodation within the roof space. Properties
are set back from the main road, allowing off street parking and/or front gardens
with landscaping.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 30



7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

1.27

7.28

7.29

As Belmont Close is a cul-de-sac there is no strongly established set of front and
rear building lines. For instance, No.20 & No.18 feature front elevations which
are in line with one another, however No.24 which is closer to the end of the cul-
de-sac sits much further back within its plot as it borders the curved end to the
road.

Furthermore, a lot of the properties within Belmont Close benefit from some form
of extension which has resulted in a deterioration of the side and rear buildings
lines.

Based on the above it is appropriate to consider the relationship between the
development and the adjacent properties as the most relevant when assessing
the impact, the development may have on the character and appearance of the
area.

The proposed site layout plan illustrates the new dwelling set within the context
of No.20 and No.24. The front building line does not extend beyond the front
building line of No.20 which aligns with No.18 as discussed above. In fact, the
front bay window which is the closest and most extensive part of the front
elevation to No.20 is set slightly behind the neighbouring front elevation.

Turning to No.24, firstly No.20 sits considerably further forward of the front
elevation of No.24. While the new dwelling infills the generous gap between No.20
and No.24 the front elevation is staggered which means that there is form of
transition between the front elevation of No.20 and the recessed front elevation of
No.24.

It is evident to Officers that the development has been designed to integrate with
the established pattern of development within this corner of the road and to fit
the sites constraints.

With regard to scale, bulk and massing, the proposed development involves the
erection of a two storey detached property with habitable roof accommodation set
within a rear dormer extension. It would measure approx. 17.8m deep, 7.6m wide
and 9.05m in height characterised with a hipped roof profile and front bay feature.
It would be set back from the highway with off street parking and landscaping
accommodated to the front. The property would be finished in red brick with brown
concrete roof tiles, which is considered to fit in with the surrounding properties. As
mentioned within the above paragraph, Belmont Close is made up of uniquely
designed properties and the proposed development would not detract from this. A
street scene elevation drawing has been submitted which shows that the
development would not appear cramped within its plot, retaining a separation
distance of approx. 1m both side boundaries.

During the process of the application revised drawings and additional information
were sought to clarify the roof height levels of neighbouring properties. A suitable
assessor has surveyed the roof heights and provided drawing number
200924/lev titled ‘Level Survey’ along with written confirmation to establish its
credibility. The maximum roof height level is shown to be approx. 9.05m which

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 31



would be closely matched to the roof height of the adjacent property No.22
Belmont Close (shown as approx. 8.96m). It should also be acknowledged that
a small increase in height would not be noticeable to a pedestrian at street level.
A site visit has confirmed that properties along Belmont Close are of differing
heights and as such there is no clear building height that should be adhered to. It
is not considered that the proposed development would be excessively over
dominating in terms of its height within the street scene.

7.30 Comments have been received during the assessment of the application
regarding the accuracy of the street scene elevations and in particular the eaves
line which are shown to be in line with No.20 and No.24. While Officers must
assess the plans submitted by the applicant for consideration, the comments
within the objections referring to the accuracy of the plans in comparison to what
has been built are noted. It is important to note that the street scene elevation
cannot be illustrated 100% accurately as the 2D plan cannot accurately present
the location and relationship of the buildings. For example, the eaves line of the
new dwelling may well appear in line with the eaves line of No.24 on the
proposed drawings as this drawing is illustrated from a view looking directly at
the two properties from the other side of the street. Whereas the two properties
are not located side by side. The drawing does satisfactorily demonstrate that
the eaves line would not appear awkwardly out of line, and this is supported by
Officers.

7.31 As established within the above sections of this report, the application is a
resubmission of a previous scheme where the neighbouring property No.24 was
incorrectly plotted. As such, the proposed dwelling would be sited approx. 0.7m
deeper than No.24. As this is located to the rear it would not be visible from the
street scene and is not considered to harmfully break the building line to a
degree that is unacceptable. It should also be noted that this is at ground floor
level only and single storey rear extensions are common in the surrounding area
where the rear buildings lines are not uniform.

Figure 4 — showing the front building line of the property in relation to
No.20 Belmont Close

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 32



7.32

7.33

A large rectangular rear garden would be provided for new residents similar to
other properties in the area. A hard and soft landscaping plan has been submitted
and shows a good balance between hard and soft landscaping to compliment the
areas suburban appearance. As mentioned further within the neighbouring
amenity section of this repot, a revised landscaping drawing was sought and
received increasing the height of the boundary fence along the shared boundary
with No.24. the fence would measure 2.2m in height and as this is solely along
one boundary this is considered acceptable within design terms to reduce any
harmful impact to the neighbouring property.

Concern has been raised in the public consultation responses regarding the
proposal for a rear dormer and whether this in keeping with the character and
appearance of the area. No.14 benefits from a modest rear dormer similar in scale
to the proposed rear dormer. The rear dormer itself would meet the guidance set
out within DMHD 1 of the Local Plan which states that extensions within the roof
space should be located to the rear and measure no more than two thirds of the
width of the roof. Finally, the properties within this street benefit from permitted

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 33



7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

7.39

7.40

development rights, with a number utilising them to construct extensions of their
own. The scale of the dormer would comply with the General Permitted
Development Order and in fact is more modest in scale, therefore Officers
consider the rear dormer to be acceptable.

It is not considered that the proposed development would cause harm to the
Area of Special Local Character. It is acknowledged that the plot size is narrower
than the neighbouring properties, however a sufficient separation distance is
retained and as such the development would not appear cramped within the plot.

Taking into consideration the above, it is considered that the proposal would
respect the character and appearance of the surrounding area in compliance
with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies and
Policies DMHB 5, DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHB 14 of the Local Plan: Part
Two - Development Management Policies (2020), as well as relevant design
guidance contained within the London Plan (2021) and NPPF (2024).

Residential Amenity

Local Plan Policy DMHB 11 sets out design guidance for all new development in
the borough. Part B of the policy states 'development proposals should not
adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties
and open space'.

Guidance for Policy DMHB 11 states "The Council will aim to ensure that there is
sufficient privacy for residents, and it will resist proposals where there is an
unreasonable level of overlooking between habitable rooms of adjacent
residential properties, schools or onto private open spaces. A minimum of 21
metres separation distance between windows of habitable rooms will be required
to maintain levels of privacy and to prevent the possibility of overlooking. In
some locations where there is a significant difference in ground levels between
dwellings, a greater separation distance may be necessary'.

Guidance for Policy DMHB 11 also states ' For the purposes of this policy,
outlook is defined as the visual amenity enjoyed by occupants when looking out
of their windows or from their garden. The Council will expect new development
proposals to carefully consider layout and massing in order to ensure
development does not result in an increased sense of enclosure and loss of
outlook. Single aspect dwellings should be avoided'.

Paragraph 135 (f) of the NPPF (2024) states that new development should seek
to 'create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote
health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future
users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine
the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience’.

Number 24 Belmont Close is located east of the application site. The proposed
development would involve the erection of a two-storey property with habitable
roof accommodation. It is acknowledged that the development would result in

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 34



some harm to the views which this neighbouring property would have benefitted
from given that there would have been no building within 13 metres of the side
and front elevations. Furthermore, given that this neighbouring property is set
further behind the existing dwelling at No.20, the application needs to
demonstrate that the new dwelling has been designed to limit any potential harm
to the front and rear facing primary habitable room windows.

7.41 This neighbouring property has been shown on the existing and proposed plan
with a pink outline to accurately show the correct position of the dwelling. The
proposed development would be located 1m away from the boundary line with
this neighbouring property and the rear building line would extend approx. 0.7m
further (at ground floor level only) than the rear building line of this neighbour.
This modest projection would not cause significant harm to the amenities of this
neighbouring property as it would not extend into the 45-degree line of sight from
the closest neighbouring habitable room window from the front or rear of the
property.

7.42 The proposed site layout drawing reference 3309-03- Rev F, shows that the
proposed development does not extend into the 45-degree line of sight from the
closest front neighbouring habitable room window which is located within the
front elevation of No.24 (see figure 5 below). It is acknowledged that the
development would restrict some views as the existing plot was empty. However,
this depicts that there would be not a substantial loss of light or overshadowing
to this room.

Figure 5 plan indicating the 45 degree line of site and location of the
neighbouring property

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 35



7.43

7.44

eI

=

13687

17m r 8

12.4m

Actual position as built on site.
(Dims sighted from scafold on
adjacent sight as no access to
No 24 Garden.)

/-

ol

144

Please note: This house is built at
an dngle when compared with No 20

It is noted by Officers upon visiting site and well documented within the
objections raised during the public consultation, that there is a ground floor side
facing window within the flank elevation of No.24 which directly faces the new
dwelling. However, this window serves a bathroom and bathrooms are not
recognised as habitable rooms within the description contained within the
development plan. Therefore they would not be safeguarded in terms of outlook
or daylight/sunlight. Furthermore, they are commonly obscurely glazed and non-
openable up to 1.7 metres above finished floor levels, to provide a level of
privacy for occupiers.

The new dwelling features a door and window opening which is within a similar
location to the opposing bathroom window. These openings would serve a utility
and plant room thus not serving habitable rooms and would be used infrequently

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 36



and for short periods of time. In addition, as they are non-habitable, they are to
be obscurely glazed to diminish the very limited level of overlooking which may
occur.

7.45 A further point noted within the objections received is regarding the finished floor
and external levels for the new dwelling in comparison with the neighbouring
levels, in particular No.24.

7.46 Upon visiting site, Officers viewed the internal levels which had been constructed
up to damp proof course at the time of the most recent visit. Further observations
were made of the ground levels around the new dwelling in comparison with the
levels at No.24. It is clear that there is a difference in levels between the two
sites irrespective of the construction of the new dwelling as the levels lower
towards No.24. As such any new building would naturally be formed on
marginally higher ground level than the neighbouring property.

7.47 Measurements were taken from the existing ground level which indicated that
the land around the new dwelling had been excavated. Internal measurements
were taken which indicated that the finished floor levels are likely to be set 0.2 m
(20cm) above the existing ground level. While Officers consider that any
potential overlooking from the external areas and the side facing opening would
be limited, the landscaping plan indicates that a 2.2 m high fence is proposed
along the shared boundary with No.24 which would further reduce any potential
for overlooking or loss of privacy. As illustrated on the proposed drawings a
small ramp is to be provided to facilitate level access from the rear facing doors
as the finished floor levels are set approximately 20 cm above the natural ground
level within the rear garden.

7.48 It is acknowledged that this could give rise to potential loss of light to the
neighbouring bathroom, however as stated above this is a non-habitable room
as defined within the development plan. There is no sound policy basis which
would require this window to be safeguarded from potential loss of light or
outlook, the level of potential harm would be limited given that a fence of 2m in
height could be constructed without the benefit of permission. As such there
would be no justifiable reason for refusal which could be formed on this point
alone.

7.49 There would be one new upper floor bathroom window facing this neighbour, this
can be conditioned to be obscurely glazed and non-opening to prevent
overlooking and loss of privacy.

7.50 The rear dormer would not face this neighbour and would therefore not overlook
habitable rooms, there would be some views over the rear garden, however this
arrangement is not unusual within residential areas and there would be mutual
overlooking of garden areas. As such it is considered acceptable. The side
facing rooflights would provide upwards views and would not cause a harmful
loss of privacy.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 37



7.51

7.92

7.53

7.54

7.55

7.56

7.57

Regarding the access levels of the rear doors into the garden, level access
would be provided from one set of doors via a ramped access and the door
closest to No. 24 would be stepped access. It is not considered there would be
any harmful overlooking from this patio area due to this, combined with the 2.2m
high fence.

Number 20 Belmont Close is located west of the application site. The development
would not project past the front building line of this neighbouring property. The
new dwelling would be positioned approx. 2.39m away from this neighbour. It
would extend approx. 6.61m beyond the rear building line, however this at first
floor level this would not project into the 45-degree line of sight from the closest
neighbouring habitable room window. Furthermore circa 3.5 m of this depth would
be single storey in height which would further limit any potential overshadowing.
Given the separation distance it is not considered there would be a significant
amount of loss of light or overshadowing to warrant refusal.

There would be two new ground floor windows facing this neighbour. These can
be conditioned to be obscurely glazed and non-opening to prevent any overlooking
or loss of privacy. The proposed rear dormer would not overlook this neighbour
and the proposed rooflights would provide upwards views and as such there would
be no loss of privacy.

Given the separation distance to other neighbouring properties. It is not
considered there would be any harm to their amenities in terms of loss of light,
overshadowing, loss of outlook, nor would it be overbearing.

As such, the proposed development would have an acceptable impact on the
neighbouring properties amenities complying with Policies DMHD 1 and DMHB
11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan, Part 2 (2020).

Quality of Residential Accommodation (Internal and External)

Internal

Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) requires that 130sgm of internal floor space
be provided for 4 bed, 8 person properties set over 3 floors.

The proposed dwelling would provide approx. 207sgm of internal floor space for
future residents and therefore would comply with the relevant policy and space
standards. The section drawings provided show that the floor to ceiling height
would be 2.5m for at least 75% of the dwelling which would comply with Policy D6
of the London Plan (2021). The dwelling would be dual aspect and would provide
all habitable rooms with an adequate source of light and outlook. As such, the
proposed dwelling would provide a high standard of internal amenity space for
future occupiers complying with Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) and Policy
DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2020).

External

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 38



7.58

7.59

7.60

7.61

7.62

7.63

7.64

7.65

Policy DMHB 18 of the Local Plan (2020) states that new residential developments
should provide an adequate level of private amenity space for occupiers that is
good quality and usable. 4-bedroom properties are required to provide 100sgm of
amenity space.

The proposed dwelling would provide in excess of this area within the rear garden.
As such, the proposal would have adequate external private amenity space in
compliance with Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Highways and Parking

Policy DMT 2 states that proposals must ensure that safe and efficient vehicular
access to the highway network is provided; they do not contribute to the
deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity; have safe, secure and
convenient access and facilities for cyclists and pedestrian; that impacts on local
amenity and congestion are minimised; and there are suitable mitigation
measures to address any traffic impacts.

Policy DMT 6 states 'Development proposals must comply with the parking
standards outlined in Appendix C Table 1 in order to facilitate sustainable
development and address issues relating to congestion and amenity. The
Council may agree to vary these requirements when the variance would not lead
to a deleterious impact on street parking provision, congestion or local amenity.'

Similarly, the London Plan (2021) seeks to provide adequate parking for new
residential development and to avoid harm to highways networks.

Parking Provision:

The maximum parking requirement for the new 4-bedroom residential unit would
be in the order of 2 on-plot spaces which should be provided on-site to comply
with the adopted Hillingdon parking standard whilst, by contrast, for a PTAL rating
of 3, the London Plan (2021) parking standard demands up to 1 space. Two
spaces located on the frontage are presented.

Although the regional maximum standard is exceeded, it is considered that this
level of proposed provision is acceptable particularly as it reduces the likelihood
for untoward on-street parking displacement on the adjacent roadways resulting
from a higher dependency on the private motor car due to the average PTAL
rating.

Vehicular Trip Generation:

In general terms, the proposal would clearly raise the level of vehicular activity to
and from the site. However, peak period traffic movement into and out of the site
is not expected to exceed 1-2 additional vehicle movements during the most

sensitive and therefore crucial peak morning and evening hours hence this uplift
is considered marginal in generation terms and therefore can be absorbed within

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 39



7.66

7.67

7.68

7.69

7.70

7.71

7.72

the local road network without notable detriment to traffic congestion and road
safety.

Vehicle Crossing:

The proposed development involves the installation of a new carriageway
crossing, the details of this have been previously approved under reference
72006/APP/2023/2396. The dimensions of this are the same as previously
approved and as such are considered acceptable

Construction Management Plan:

The applicant has submitted a Construction Logistics Plan due to the sensitivities
of the site. The Councils highway officer has reviewed this and considered the
measures acceptable given the limited scale of development (one new dwelling).
A compliance condition has been added to ensure the development is built on in
accordance with this document.

Cycle Parking:

A bike store is located within the rear garden of the site. This would be accessed
by the 1m side access path. This is considered a suitable level of cycle storage,
in compliance with Policy DMT 5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Electric vehicle Charging Points (EVCP’s):

One active and one passive EVCP is shown on the propose landscaping plan.
This is considered sufficient.

Conclusion

The application has been reviewed by the Councils Highway Officer who is
satisfied that the proposal would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or
parking stress, and would not raise any measurable highway safety concerns, in
accordance with Local Plan: Part 2 Development Plan (2020) Policies DMT 1,
DMT 2 & DMT 6 and Policies T4, T5 and T6 of the London Plan (2021).

Noise

The site would be used in an exclusively residential capacity. As such, in terms of
the operational phase of the proposed development, no significant issues are
considered to be raised by the proposal, in respect to noise.

An air source heat pump is provided as part of this application. It is not considered

that this would cause an adverse impact in terms of noise to warrant refusal, and
it is not considered necessary to add further conditions relating to noise.

Air Quality

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 40



7.73

7.74

7.75

7.76

7.77

7.78

7.79

7.80

The site is located within an Air Quality Management Area and part of the rear of
the site lies within an Air Quality Focus Area. Given the proposed development is
for one new dwelling, it is not considered that the proposal would cause
unacceptable levels of dust and disturbance during the construction phase. A
construction logistics plan has been provided which has provided mitigation
measures to prevent the sped of dust. As such, no further information is required.

Accessibility

Policy D5 of the London Plan (2021) seeks to ensure development proposals
achieve the highest standards of accessible and inclusive design. Policy D7 of the
London Plan (2021) requires at least ten percent of dwellings to meet Building
Regulation requirement M4(3) 'wheelchair user dwellings', with all other dwellings
meeting Category M4(2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings'

The Council’'s Access Officer has been consulted on the application and has no
concerns regarding accessibility subject to conditions which will be added to the
decision should planning permission be granted. Level access would be
provided from the front entranceway. Level access would be provided from one
set of rear doors into the garden and the other door would have a small, stepped
access. This is considered acceptable given step free access is provided into
and out of the property.

Trees and Landscaping

Policy DMHB 14 advises that all development will be expected to retain or
enhance existing landscaping, trees, biodiversity or other features of merit.

The applicant has provided a hard landscaping drawing, a soft landscaping
drawing, a proposed landscaping notes drawing and a planting index. The
proposed drawings demonstrate that there will be a good balance of hard and soft
landscaping incorporated into the scheme to compliment the areas suburban
appearance. As such the proposed landscaping at the site would make a positive
contribution to the character and appearance of the street scene.

The applicant has provided details of refuge storage, cycle storage and boundary
treatments which are all considered to be acceptable in terms of their design and
impact to neighbouring properties.

The below section of this committee report has detailed the Biodiversity Net Gain
at the site.

Overall, the proposed development would comply with Policy DMHB 14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan, Part 2 (2020) and a compliance condition will be added to
ensure the details are built out and maintained accordingly.

Biodiversity Net gain

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 41



7.81

7.82

7.83

7.84

7.85

7.86

7.87

In England, Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) is mandatory under Schedule 7A of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by Schedule 14 of the
Environment Act 2021). It became mandatory for major developments on 12
February 2024 and small sites on 2 April 2024. Developers must deliver a BNG
of at least 10%. This means a development will result in more or better-quality
natural habitat than there was before development. The landowner is legally
responsible for creating or enhancing the habitat and managing that habitat for at
least 30 years to achieve the target condition.

Chapter 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2024) states that
planning decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local
environment by minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity.

Paragraph 8.6.6 of Policy G6 of The London Plan (2021) states that biodiversity
net gain is an approach to development that leaves biodiversity in a better state
than before. Losses should be avoided, and biodiversity offsetting is the option of
last resort.

Policy EM7 of Hillingdon Council's Local Plan Part One Strategic Policies (2012)
states that Hillingdon's biodiversity and geological conservation will be preserved
and enhanced, with particular attention given to improving biodiversity from all
development.

Paragraph 6.28 of Policy DMEI 7 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) of
Hillingdon Council's Local Plan Part Two Development Management Policies
(2020) states it is important that planning decisions are appropriately informed by
the right level of survey and information on ecology features. The Council will
apply Natural England's standing advice at the validation stage. Applications will
only be validated if they have the appropriate information. Where initial
assessments recommend further surveys, these will be expected to be provided
as part of a planning submission. All ecological reports or information submitted
should adhere to nationally accepted best practice survey standards and be
consistent with the British Standard BS 42020: 2013 Biodiversity - Code of
Practice for Planning and Development or an updated variation. Where
appropriate, the Council will require the use of the approved DEFRA biodiversity
impact calculator (as updated) to inform decisions on no net loss and net gain.

During the process of the application the Statutory Biodiversity Net Gain Metric
was requested and provided. The document shows that there will be a 64.65%
increase in BNG at the site by provided vegetated garden to the rear of the site
that would see the introduction of a grassed area and/or flower beds along with
shrubs and the retention of existing tree.

As such, a Biodiversity Net Gain is capable of being secured for the
development and therefore reverting to the statutory habitat management
scheme condition would be acceptable. As such, the site would be able to
provide a 10% increase in biodiversity, therefore the statutory habitat
management condition has been added to the decision notice.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 42



Flooding and Drainage

7.88 The proposed development site is not located in Flood Zones 2 or 3. Nor is it
located within a critical drainage area or an area known for surface water flooding.
The applicant has submitted a Sustainable Water Management Plan with SUDS
mitigation measures. A suitable compliance condition has been added to ensure
these measures are incorporated.

Waste Management

7.89 Policy DMHB 11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2020) states that
development proposals should make sufficient provision for well-designed internal
and external storage space for general, recycling and organic waste, with suitable
access for collection. External bins should be located and screened to avoid
nuisance and adverse visual impacts to occupiers and neighbours.

7.90 The proposed landscaping plan shows the provision of ensure and enclosed
refuge storage to the front of the dwelling. This is considered an acceptable
arrangement as occupiers would drag the bins to the kerbside on collection days.

8 Other Matters

Human Rights

8.1  The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

8.2 Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

Local Finance Considerations and CIL

8.3  The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on 1st August
2014. The Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square
metre of additional floor space. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of
£60 per square metre. CIL rates are index linked. The proposal involves the
erection of new dwellings and is therefore CIL liable if planning permission is
granted.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 43



9 Conclusion / Planning Balance

9.1  The site has been subject to two previous consents for the same development, as
such the principle of development remains established. The design has been
amended to address the concerns with the potential harm to neighbouring
properties to a satisfactory degree. The development would provide additional
housing on a brownfield site and a housing type for which there is an identified
need. The potential harm would be limited and would be outweighed by the
benefits of the scheme. Appropriate weight has been afforded to the previous
consents and Officers find there to be no departure from the Development Plan
which would be significant enough to warrant refusal.

9.2 The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and no material
considerations indicate that a contrary decision should be taken. Consequently,
the application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

10 Background Papers

10.1 Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's
website here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this
report and using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to
inspect electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 44



APPENDICES
Planning Application

79130/APP/2024/1864

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 45 1 0of 14



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2. RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:

3367-01 (location plan)

3367-LS-02 (proposed hard landscaping layout)

3367-LS-03 (proposed soft landscaping layout)

3309-03 Rev F (proposed site layout)

3367-05 (existing and proposed street scene elevations)
3309-04 Rev G (proposed floor plans and elevations)
3367-LS-04 (proposed landscaping notes)

3367-VS-02 (proposed vehicle crossover and visibility splays)

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1
(2012), Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. HO6 Obscure Glazing

The ground floor utility door and window, in addition to the upper floor bathroom window
facing number 24 Belmont Close shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass to at least
scale 4 on the Pilkington scale and the windows shall be non-opening below a height of 1.8
metres taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

4. NONSC Habitat Management Condition

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS  Page 46 2 of 14



Within three months of the date of permission being granted the applicant shall submit to the
Local Planning Authority a written 30-year Habitat Management Plan (HMP) for the site.
These details shall be fully implemented prior to first occupation of the dwelling.

The approved HMP shall be strictly adhered to, and development shall commence and
operate in accordance with it.

The HMP should, as a minimum, include:

a) Description and evaluation of the features to be managed.

b) Aims, objectives and targets for management.

c) Description of the management operations necessary to achieving aims and objectives.
d) Prescriptions for management actions.

e) Preparation of a works schedule, including an annual works schedule.

f) Details of the monitoring needed to measure the effectiveness of management.

g) Details of the timetable for each element of the monitoring programme and;

h) Details of the persons responsible for the implementation and monitoring.

i) Report to the Council routinely regarding the state of the Biodiversity Net Gain
requirements for development in years 1 (post-completion), 3, 5, 10, 20, and 30, with
biodiversity reconciliation calculations at each stage.

REASON

To ensure the development delivers a Biodiversity Net Gain within the borough and secures
the protection and effective management of the remaining habitat on site in accordance with
Chapter 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy G6 of The London Plan, and
Policy DMEI 7 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) of Hillingdon Council's Local Plan
Part 2 Development Management Policies.

5. NONSC SUDs Compliance

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the submitted Surface Water Management Plan Reference FD140, dated August 2023.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding and is to be handled as close to its source as possible and
Conserve water supplies in compliance with: Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies
Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in (2012), Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Development
Management Policies Policy DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality (2020), as
well as relevant SuDs guidance contained within the London Plan (2021) and NPPF (2021).

6. RES5 Construction Management Plan Compliance

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the submitted Construction Logistics Plan dated July 2023

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 47 3 of 14



REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

7. RES5 Materials Compliance

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the materials specified within the submitted Materials documents named 'Release of
conditions: Condition 5' and tile specification sheet reference

RED_TDS 2203 10201B1E1AHEP

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of
the locality in compliance with Policies DMHB 5, DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

8. RES5 Landscaping Compliance

The proposed landscaping scheme (including cycle storage, bin storage, boundary
treatments and shed facility details) shall be implemented, retained and maintained
throughout the lifetime of the development in accordance with submitted plan numbers:

3367-LS-02 (proposed hard landscaping layout)
3367-LS-03 (proposed soft landscaping layout)
3367-LS-04 (proposed landscaping notes)
Planting details ref 3309

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of
the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies DMHB 11, DMHB 12,
DMHB 14, DMEI 1 and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policy G5 of
the London Plan (2021).

9. NONSC M4(2) Compliance

The dwelling hereby approved shall accord with the requirements of Policy D7 of the London
Plan and shall not be occupied until certification of compliance with the technical
specifications for an M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building
Regulations (2010) 2015, has been submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority. All such provisions must remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON

To not only allow the Building Control body to require the development to comply with the
optional Building Regulations standards, but to also ensure the appropriate quantity and
standard of accessible and adaptable housing is constructed and maintained in accordance
with Policy D7 of the London Plan.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 438 4 of 14



10. RES14  Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or roof
alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) subject of this permission shall be erected without the
grant of further specific permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers in
accordance with Policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

11. RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed
in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Informatives

1.

The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 is
that planning permission granted for the development of land in England is deemed to have
been granted subject to the condition "(the biodiversity gain condition") that development
may not begin unless:

(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and

(b) the planning authority has approved the plan.

The planning authority, for the purposes of determining whether to approve a Biodiversity
Gain Plan if one is required in respect of this permission would be the London Borough of
Hillingdon.

There are statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements which mean that the
biodiversity gain condition does not always apply. These are listed below.

Based on the information available this permission is considered to be one which will require
the approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun because none of the
statutory exemptions or transitional arrangements listed below are considered to apply.

Statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements in respect of the biodiversity gain

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 49 5 of 14



condition.

1. The application for planning permission was made before 12 February 2024.

2. The planning permission relates to development to which section 73A of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (planning permission for development already carried out)
applies.

3. The planning permission was granted on an application made under section 73 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and

(i) the original planning permission to which the section 73 planning permission relates* was
granted before 12 February 2024; or

(i) the application for the original planning permission* to which the section 73 planning
permission relates was made before 12 February 2024.

4. The permission which has been granted is for development which is exempt being:

4.1 Development which is not 'major development' (within the meaning of article 2(1) of the
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015)
where:

i) the application for planning permission was made before 2 April 2024;

ii) planning permission is granted which has effect before 2 April 2024; or

iii) planning permission is granted on an application made under section 73 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 where the original permission to which the section 73 permission
relates* was exempt by virtue of (i) or (ii).

4.2 Development below the de minimis threshold, meaning development which:

i) does not impact an onsite priority habitat (a habitat specified in a list published under
section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006); and

i) impacts less than 25 square metres of onsite habitat that has biodiversity value greater
than zero and less than 5 metres in length of onsite linear habitat (as defined in the statutory
metric).

4.3 Development which is subject of a householder application within the meaning of article
2(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2015. A "householder application" means an application for planning permission for
development for an existing dwellinghouse, or development within the curtilage of such a
dwellinghouse for any purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse which is not
an application for change of use or an application to change the number of dwellings in a
building.

4.4 Development of a biodiversity gain site, meaning development which is undertaken solely
or mainly for the purpose of fulfilling, in whole or in part, the Biodiversity Gain Planning
condition which applies in relation to another development, (no account is to be taken of any
facility for the public to access or to use the site for educational or recreational purposes, if
that access or use is permitted without the payment of a fee).

4.5 Self and Custom Build Development, meaning development which:

i) consists of no more than 9 dwellings;

ii) is carried out on a site which has an area no larger than 0.5 hectares; and

iii) consists exclusively of dwellings which are self-build or custom housebuilding (as defined
in section 1(A1) of the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015).

4.5 Development forming part of, or ancillary to, the high speed railway transport network
(High Speed 2) comprising connections between all or any of the places or parts of the

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 50 6 of 14



transport network specified in section 1(2) of the High Speed Rail (Preparation) Act 2013.

* "original planning permission means the permission to which the section 73 planning
permission relates" means a planning permission which is the first in a sequence of two or
more planning permissions, where the second and any subsequent planning permissions are
section 73 planning permissions.

Irreplaceable habitat

If the onsite habitat includes irreplaceable habitat (within the meaning of the Biodiversity
Gain Requirements (Irreplaceable Habitat) Regulations 2024) there are additional
requirements for the content and approval of Biodiversity Gain Plans.

The Biodiversity Gain Plan must include, in addition to information about steps taken or to be
taken to minimise any adverse effect of the development on the habitat, information on
arrangements for compensation for any impact the development has on the biodiversity of
the irreplaceable habitat.

The planning authority can only approve a Biodiversity Gain Plan if satisfied that the adverse
effect of the development on the biodiversity of the irreplaceable habitat is minimised and
appropriate arrangements have been made for the purpose of compensating for any impact
which do not include the use of biodiversity credits.

The effect of section 73D of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

If planning permission is granted on an application made under section 73 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (application to develop land without compliance with conditions
previously attached) and a Biodiversity Gain Plan was approved in relation to the previous
planning permission ("the earlier Biodiversity Gain Plan") there are circumstances when the
earlier Biodiversity Gain Plan is regarded as approved for the purpose of discharging the
biodiversity gain condition subject to which the section 73 planning permission is granted.

Those circumstances are that the conditions subject to which the section 73 permission is
granted:

i) do not affect the post-development value of the onsite habitat as specified in the earlier
Biodiversity Gain Plan, and

ii) in the case of planning permission for a development where all or any part of the onsite
habitat is irreplaceable habitat the conditions do not change the effect of the development on
the biodiversity of that onsite habitat (including any arrangements made to compensate for
any such effect) as specified in the earlier Biodiversity Gain Plan.

2. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 51 7 of 14



3. 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section 61
of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other
than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise
disturbance to adjoining premises.

4. 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction.
Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a
private road and where possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads.
The applicant may be required to make good any damage caused.

5. 173 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Granting Consent)

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 52 8 of 14



Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London Borough of
Hillingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will be calculated in accordance with the London Borough of
Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL Charging Schedule
2012. Before commencement of works the development parties must notify the London
Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the construction works (by submitting a
Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by submitting an Assumption of
Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk. The Council will then issue a
Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL that is payable. Failure to submit
a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and Commencement Notice prior to commencement of
the development may result in surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability
perspective as a scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement
conditions have been discharged/complied with.

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan and national guidance.

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMH 6 Garden and Backland Development
DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMHB 5 Areas of Special Local Character

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 53 9 of 14



LPP D7 (2021) Accessible housing

LPP T4 (2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

NPPF11-23 NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 -23 NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS  Page 54 10 of 14



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

72006/APP/2016/2394 20 Belmont Close Uxbridge
Part single, part two storey side extension involving demolition of conservatory and garage
Decision: 06-10-2016 Approved

72006/APP/2016/4433 20 Belmont Close Uxbridge

Application for a non-material amendment to planning permission Ref:
72006/APP/2016/2394 dated 6/10/2016 to allow for amendments to reduce the size of the
side extension (Part single, part two storey side extension involving demolition of
conservatory and garage)

Decision: 16-01-2017 Approved

72006/APP/2023/1259 20 Belmont Close Uxbridge

Erection of a detached house with 4 bedrooms and associated parking, amenity and
bin/cycle stores.

Decision: 05-07-2023 Approved

72006/APP/2023/2116 20 Belmont Close Uxbridge

Erection of a detached house with 4 bedrooms and associated parking amenity and
bin/cycle stores.

Decision: 11-09-2023 Approved

72006/APP/2023/2396 20 Belmont Close Uxbridge

Details pursuant to the discharge of Conditions 5 (Materials), 6 (Ground Levels), 7
(Electrical charging points), 8 (Step free access) and 11 (Vehicular crossover) of planning
permission ref. 72006/APP/2023/1259 dated 05-07-2023 (Erection of a detached house
with 4 bedrooms and associated parking, amenity and bin/cycle stores.)

Decision: 04-10-2023 Approved

72006/APP/2023/2468 20 Belmont Close Uxbridge

Details pursuant to the discharge of Condition 4 (Water Management) of planning
permission ref. 72006/APP/2023/1259, dated 05-07-23 (Erection of a detached house with
4 bedrooms and associated parking, amenity and bin/cycle stores)

Decision: 29-11-2023 Approved

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 55 11 of 14



72006/APP/2023/2969 20 Belmont Close Uxbridge

Details pursuant to the discharge of Conditions 4 (SUDS Management), 5 (Materials), 6
(Ground Levels), 7 (Electrical charging points), 8 (Step free access), 11 (Vehicular
crossover) of planning permission ref. 72006/APP/2023/2116, dated 11-09-23 (Erection of a
detached house with 4 bedrooms and associated parking amenity and bin/cycle stores.)

Decision: 18-12-2023 Approved

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 56 12 of 14



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMH 6 Garden and Backland Development

DMHB 5 Areas of Special Local Character

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

LPP D7 (2021) Accessible housing

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

LPP T4 (2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts

NPPF11 -23 NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 57 13 of 14



NPPF12 -23 NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 58 14 of 14



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report Part 2 — Application Report

Case Officer: Michael Kemp 25767/APP/2024/2484

Date Application
Valid:

16.09.2024 Statutory / Agreed | 24.01.2025
Determination

Deadline:

Application Full Ward: Uxbridge

Type:

Applicant: Mr Chris Barrett

Site Address: 72 Harefield Road, Uxbridge, UB8 1PL

Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of
building to provide 3 x 1-bed, 5 x 2-bed, 1 x 3 bed
flats with associated parking and amenity space.

Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to section

Recommendation:

Reason Reported
to Committee:

LONDON

106 legal agreement and conditions

Required under Part 3 of the Planning Scheme of
Delegation (Petition received)

www.hillingdon.gov.uk



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2

Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

Approval is subject to the applicants entering into a unilateral undertaking to
remove future occupiers’ ability to obtain parking permits to park private
vehicles in the streets surrounding the site.

Executive Summary

The application proposes the demolition of the existing dwelling at No.74 Harefield
Road and the erection of a building containing 9 apartments over four floor levels.
The apartments would consist of 1x3 bed, 5x2 bed and 3x1 bed units.

Planning approval (25767/APP/2023/2805) was granted at appeal in 2024 for the
demolition of the existing building and erection of two five-bedroom semi-detached
dwellings. The design and scale of the building proposed within the planning
application currently under consideration is identical to the scheme allowed at
appeal, albeit that the quantum of units has increased from two dwellings to nine.

There is a clear policy presumption, where considering applications for new
housing in favour of ensuring that land is developed effectively to achieve an
optimum density of development as set out within Paragraph 129 of the NPPF
2024; Policies GG2, D1 and H1 of the London Plan; and Policy DMHB17 of the
Local Plan Part 2. The proposed development would align with these aims, whilst
the mix of housing units would ensure that a three bedroom is provided leading to
no loss of family sized units.

The increased quantum of units and resulting amendments to the site plan, which
include an increase in car parking would not impact negatively on the amenity of
adjoining residential occupiers or highway safety and amenity. The proposals also
provide adequate living accommodation and outdoor amenity space for future
occupiers, would deliver biodiversity net gain equivalent to 12.66% and retain the
vast majority of the existing trees on the site, thereby preserving the verdant
character and appearance of the site.

For the reasons set out in this Committee Report, it is considered that the proposal
would comply with the objectives of national, regional and local planning policies
and guidance. It is therefore recommended that the application be approved,
subject to the imposition of the conditions set out in Appendix 1.

The Site and Locality

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 60



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

The site is formed of a large, sloped plot occupied by a two-storey, detached
house, set back from the highway (from which the site is most apparent). This
house is set within an established garden which is set back from Harefield Road
on the east side, opposite Fairlight Drive. The site is situated in a particularly
verdant part of the road and its modest scale, together with its front garden and
spacing between buildings on either side, contributes to this. The site has a large
rear garden which adjoins the rear garden of No.2 Cambridge Road.

Two pairs of period properties exist to the immediate north of the site which are
four storeys in scale. The adjoining property, No.74 Harefield Road has been
converted into apartments and has parking to the rear of the property.

A three storey, mid-20th century block of flats is located to the south of the site,
there is an area of parking to the rear of the flats, which includes two rows of low-
rise garages which are accessed via Fairfield Road. Views of the flats from
Harefield Road are obscured by dense vegetation cover to the front of the site.

The side and rear boundaries of the application site are tree-lined. There are no
TPO's or Conservation Area designations affecting the site itself, however there
is an area TPO (ref TPO 75) on land to the south, and North Uxbridge Area of
Special Local Character is located to the east.

The site has a PTAL rating of 1a.

Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 61



Figure 2: Street View Image of the Application Property

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 62



3 Proposal

3.1 The proposals involve the demolition of the existing dwelling at No.72 Harefield
Road and the erection of a building containing 9 apartments over four floor levels.
The apartments would consist of 1x3 bed, 5x2 bed and 3x1 bed units. Communal
amenity space is provided to the rear of the site, as well as 11 car parking spaces.
1 disabled parking space is provided to the front of the property. The parking would
be accessed via a driveway located to the north of the apartment building. Access
would be provided from Harefield Road. The site plan is included in Figure 3
below, the red dashed line indicates the footprint of the existing building on site.

3.2  Minor amendments have been made to the approved plans to alter the proposed
landscaping and treatment of communal amenity areas. These amendments have
been made to improve the useability of the amenity areas and to enhance habitat
creation to improve delivery of on-site biodiversity net gain.

Figure 3: Proposed Plan (please note — larger version of plan can be found in
the Committee Plan Pack)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 63



Communal Green Amenity Space: 176 sqm
Private Patio Amenity Space: 38 sqm

Private Balcony Amenity Space: 52 sqm

[ ’

Harefield
Road

L Culgren DTS

LR L
Oxbridge Design
& DETAILING SERVICES

Figure 4: Proposed Plan for 25767/APP/2023/2805 - Allowed Appeal

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 64



i

AUy,
T,
Rive
-"1‘41?5-95{
§ o b ROy b E
i

Garden P

HESID wamm

NESID o

~ 3 "
B 4 Oxbridge Design
& DETAILING SERVICES
o
s

4 Relevant Planning History

4.1 A list of the relevant planning history related to the property can be found in
Appendix 2.

4.2  Four planning applications have been submitted for residential development on
the site since 2021, all of which have been subject of appeals, three of which were
dismissed, however most recently permission was granted on appeal in August
2024 for two dwellings submitted under planning application
25767/APP/2023/2805. The recent appeal decisions are discussed in further
detail in the relevant sections of this report. The recently allowed appeal decision
should be afforded significant weight in considering the present proposals, given
that the scale and siting of the proposed building is identical to the development
permitted under this recent appeal decision. Notwithstanding this, the additional
quantum of development proposed under the current application, which relates to
the provision of 9 dwellings must be afforded due consideration in terms of impact,
compared with the consented scheme for 2 dwellings. Further commentary on this
is set out in the relevant sections of the report below. The previous appeal
decisions are also discussed further in relation to relevant material planning
considerations including highways impacts and the impact of the development on
the amenity of adjoining residential occupiers.

5 Planning Policy
Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 65



5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

Consultations and Representations

A total of 19 neighbouring properties were consulted directly regarding the
proposed development. The North Uxbridge Residents Association was also
consulted.

The consultation period of the planning application expired on 14t October 2024.
Representations received in response to public consultation are summarised in
Table 1 (below). Consultee responses received are summarised in Table 2
(below). Full copies of the responses have also separately been made available
to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Representations Received

Representations | Summary of Issues Planning Officer
Raised Response

A petition with 30 | 1. One and two bedroom | This matter is addressed in

signatures has dwellings are prioritised | paragraphs 7.8 and 7.9 of
been received in over delivery of family the report below.
objection to the accommodation.

development.

2. The size of the roof of This matter is addressed in
the building would be in paragraphs 7.15 to 7.26
too large in relation to | of the report below.
the surrounding area
and neighbourhood.

3. There would be a This matter is addressed in
significant impact on in paragraphs 7.31 to 7.39
the neighbouring of the report below.

properties by reason of
the reduction of the
existing open aspect
and increased noise
and air pollution.

4. There would be a This matter is addressed in
significant increase in in paragraphs 7.46 to 7.47
traffic compared with of the report below.

the consented scheme
and a resulting increase

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 66



in noise and air
pollution.

5. The green space and

amenity areas would be
reduced compared with
the consented scheme.

This matter is addressed in
in paragraphs 7.58 to 7.63
of the report below.

6. There would be an

inadequate number of
car parking spaces (12
as opposed to 14
recommended in the
Hillingdon Local Plan.

This matter is addressed in
in paragraphs 7.43 to 7.44
of the report below. It must
be noted that the
maximum parking
standards outlined in the
London Plan have
superseded the residential
parking standards set out
in Policy DMT®6 of the
Local Plan Part 2
Development Management
Policies.

7. The introduction of

balconies would impact
on the privacy of
surrounding residents.

This matter is addressed in
in paragraphs 7.31 to 7.33
of the report below.

North Uxbridge
Residents
Association

Proposed roof plan is not
compatible with 2nd floor
plan and elevations. Tree
report removes T27, but

plan shows it can remain.

COMMENTS: The 2x5 bed
(2023/2805) appeal
inspector's report was
accepting (wrongly in our
Association's view) that the
streetscene would
accomodate the proposal
without reference to the
detailed commentary on
"the poor and somewhat
contrived design" in the
previous Inspector’s report
(2022/3190). The present
proposal is essentially a
rerun of the previous
appeal scheme with minor
tweaking and relies upon

Matters relating to the
design approach, impact
on residential amenity for
existing and future
occupiers, traffic
generation and car parking
are all addressed in the
relevant sections of the
report below. From
reviewing the second floor
and roof plans it is not
apparent that there are any
compatibility issues
between the roof plan,
floor plans and elevation
drawings.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 67




2x5bed houses decision
for the mass and bulk of
building. The use of the
rear garden area for 11 car
spaces denies realistic
external amenity space -
any green on the block
plan are merely areas left
over after construction!
The difference of some 2
metres in level from the
highway will accentuate
the amenity loss, car noise
and visual intrusion to the
adjacent properties. we
ask that in considering this
application, you maintain
your previous over-
development reasons for
refusing permission.

A total of 6
individual letters
of objection have
been received in
relation to the
development.

[. One and two bedroom
dwellings are prioritised
over delivery of family
accommodation.

This matter is addressed in
paragraphs 7.8 and 7.9 of
the report below.

[I. The size of the roof of
the building would be
too large in relation to
the surrounding area
and neighbourhood.

This matter is addressed in
in paragraphs 7.15 to 7.26
of the report below.

lll. There would be a
significant impact on the
neighbouring properties
by reason of the
reduction of the existing
open aspect and
increased noise and air
pollution.

This matter is addressed in
in paragraphs 7.31 to 7.39
of the report below.

V. There would be a
significant increase in
traffic compared with
the consented scheme.

This matter is addressed in
in paragraphs 7.46 to 7.47
of the report below.

V. The green space and
amenity areas would be

This matter is addressed in
in paragraphs 7.58 to 7.63
of the report below.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 68




reduced compared with
the consented scheme.

V1. There would be an This matter is addressed in
inadequate number of in paragraphs 7.43 to 7.44
car parking spaces. of the report below. It must

be noted that the
maximum parking
standards outlined in the
London Plan have
superseded the residential
parking standards set out
in Policy DMT®6 of the
Local Plan Part 2
Development Management
Policies.

II. Objection to the loss of | This matter is addressed in
the existing building. in paragraphs 7.15to 7.17

of the report below.

[ll. Objection to the loss of | This matter is addressed in
the Yew Tree to the in paragraph 7.66 of the
front of the site. report below.

X. The building work is The proposed site plan
close to the boundary indicates the retention of
wall of 56-60 Harefield | the boundary wall.

Road and the wall is an
old and a significant
feature.

X. The scale of the This matter is addressed in
development would not | in paragraphs 7.15 to 7.17
be appropriate for the of the report below.
plot size.

Table 2: Summary of Consultee Responses

Consultee and Summary of Comments

Planning Officer
Response

Highways

Due to the relatively isolated nature of this location
from public transport facilities, the site exhibits a low
public transport accessibility level (PTAL) rating of 1a
and therefore potentially raises dependency on the
ownership and use of private motor transport.

The comments have
been reviewed and
are addressed in the
relevant section of
the committee report
relating to highways
and parking. Officers
agree with the
suggested conditions

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 69




A most recent & comparable flatted application was | which have been
submitted in 2022 (25767/APP/2022/3190) and | added to the list of
appealed/dismissed thereafter in 2023 on the basis of | suggested conditions.
non-determination. Transport & Highway related
matters did not raise issue with the inspectorate.

Parking Provision

In line with the overriding regional standard, the
maximum total parking requirement for whole scheme
would be in the order of up to 14 spaces and 12 are
proposed (inclusive of one disabled compliant). The
allocation of all 12 spaces would benefit from a
parking allocation plan secured by way of planning
condition.

There is a requirement for a minimum 20% 'active'
EVCP provision with all remaining spaces being
designated as 'passive' provisions which would
equate to 2 'active’ and 10 ‘passive’ spaces. This may
be secured by planning condition.

Cycle Parking

A communal cycle store is indicated to the side of the
build but without a specified quantum. Details of cycle
parking should be secured by planning condition.

Vehicular Trip Generation

Clearly the proposal would raise the level of vehicular
activity to and from the site as compared to the
existing single dwelling unit. However peak period
traffic movement into and out of the site would be
expected to rise to approximately 2-3 vehicle
movements during the most sensitive and therefore
crucial peak morning and late afternoon/evening
hours. Hence, this uplift is considered marginal in
generation terms and therefore can be absorbed
within the local road network without notable
detriment to traffic congestion and road safety.

Internal Roadway Arrangements & Vehicular Access
There is no objection in principle to the proposed
internal layout.

In highway impact terms, it is noted that the principle
of vehicular crossing provision is well established by
surrounding properties in Harefield Road and there is
no objection in principle to a reconstructed & revised
single access.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 70



As Harefield Road is a major thoroughfare, it is crucial
that there is conformity to the relevant mutual inter-
visibility sight-line requirements. To assist with
maintaining satisfactory sight-lines at the new site
entrance for both vehicles and pedestrians entering
and leaving the site envelope, it is recommended that
a lower height of frontage wall is applied throughout
or for at least 2.4 metres on the southern side of the
entrance. ldeally the height would not exceed 0.6m to
achieve the aim of satisfactory visibility.

Access for Emergency Services

Given the internal road widths, fire tenders may not be
able to achieve fully unfettered access into and out of
the site. However, in circumstances where a fire
tender cannot, for whatever reason, gain access to a
specific location, Building Regulations (Fire Safety:
Document B) make allowance for this scenario by
stipulating that fire appliances should be able to be
positioned within 45m of the source of an emergency
in order to execute their duty. In line with the
aforementioned Building Regulations, if this distance
is exceeded (unlikely in this case) then alternative
solutions such as hydrants, fire
detection/alarm/internal water sprinkler systems can
be applied in lieu of a fire tender accessing a location
thereby covering most, if not all, eventualities. There
are no further observations.

Refuse Bin Store Provision
Refuse collection will continue via the roadway
(Harefield Road) and is considered acceptable.

Construction Management Plan (CMP)
Request that this is secured by planning condition.

Conclusion

The application has been reviewed by the Highway
Authority who are satisfied that the proposal would not
discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress,
and would not raise any measurable highway safety
concerns, in accordance with Local Plan: Part 2
Development Management Policies (2020) - Policy
DMT 1, DMT 2 & DMT 6 and Policies T4, T5 and T6
of the London Plan (2021).

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 71



Access Officer The suggested
conditions have been

This proposal for the erection of a flatted added to the list of
development comprising 9 units has been reviewed | recommended

with reference to London Plan Policy D7. No conditions listed at
accessibility concerns are raised subject to Appendix 1 of this

conditions outlining step free access and certification | report.
of compliance with M4(2) building regulations
standards for accessible dwellings.

7 Planning Assessment

Principle of Development

7.1 Policy H1 of the Local Plan indicates that the Council will meet and exceed its
minimum strategic dwelling requirement in accordance with other Local Plan
policies.

7.2 Policy H2 of the London Plan (2021) states that Boroughs should pro-actively
support well-designed new homes on small sites (below 0.25 hectares in size)
through both planning decisions and planmaking in order to:

7.3 1) significantly increase the contribution of small sites to meeting London's
housing needs
2) diversify the sources, locations, type and mix of housing supply
3) support small and medium-sized housebuilders
4) support those wishing to bring forward custom, self-build and community-led
housing
5) achieve the minimum targets for small sites set out in Table 4.2 as a component
of the overall
housing targets set out in Table 4.1.

7.4  The site is within the settlement limits within an established residential area and
the provision of new housing on the site is acceptable in principle, subject to
consideration of other factors. The provision of nine dwellings would represent a
net increase of eight units that would provide a valuable contribution towards
meeting local housing need. The proposed quantum of units would also represent
an uplift of 7 dwellings compared with the proposals consented under planning
application 25767/APP/2023/2805. Matters relating to the appropriateness of the
additional increase in units on the site is addressed in the relevant sections of the
report below. As addressed in the design section of the report it must be noted
that there is a clear policy directive in favour of making effective use of sites and
achieving optimum density of development to deliver additional housing which is
set out in Paragraphs 129 of the NPPF 2024, Policy GG2 of the London Plan; and
Policy DMBH17 of the Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020).

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 72



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

Housing Mix

Policy H10 of the London Plan (2021) states that applicants and decision-makers
should have regard to the need for additional family housing. Family housing is
defined within the glossary of the London Plan (2021) and advises that it must
generally be of a size that has three or more bedrooms.

Policy DMH 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that the net loss of existing self-contained housing, including
affordable housing, will be resisted unless the housing is replaced with at least
equivalent residential floorspace.

Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that the Council will require the provision of a mix of housing
units of different sizes in schemes of residential development to reflect the
Council's latest information on housing need.

The proposal would result in demolition of the existing dwelling which is a four-
bedroom home. Whilst regrettable, family sized housing is described as three
bedrooms and above. One three-bedroom unit would be provided meaning that
that the development would not result in the loss of a family sized unit. As such it
is considered that there would be no conflict with regard to Policy DMH 1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two.

As noted above there is established policy in favour of making effective use of
sites and optimising the density of development. The proposals ensure that a
family sized home would be retained, whilst providing an additional 8 homes.
There is limited capacity to provide additional homes of 3 or more bedrooms whilst
providing a significant uplift in units on the site and providing appropriate
standards of internal living space and external amenity space. This is without
increasing the footprint or scale of the building compared with the recently
consented development. On balance, the proposed mix of homes is considered
acceptable as this retains a family sized home and allows for an appropriate
increase in the density of development.

Design, Scale and Impact on Streetscene

Paragraph 135 of the NPPF (2024) states 'Planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and
distinctive places to live, work and visit;

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 73



e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of
life or community cohesion and resilience.'

7.11 Policies D1, D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) require development proposals
to be of high quality and to enhance the local context by delivering buildings and
spaces that positively respond to local distinctiveness.

7.12 Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1: Strategic Policies (2012) Policy BE1 states 'The
Council will require all new development to improve and maintain the quality of
the built environment in order to create successful and sustainable
neighbourhoods, where people enjoy living and working and that serve the long-
term needs of all residents. All new developments should achieve a high quality
of design in all new buildings, alterations, extensions and the public realm which
enhances the local distinctiveness of the area, contributes to community cohesion
and a sense of place.

7.13 Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states: 'All development, including extensions, alterations and new
buildings will be required to be designed to the highest standards and, incorporate
principles of good design including: i) harmonising with the local context by taking
into account the surrounding scale of development, height, mass and bulk of
adjacent structures; building plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and established
street patterns; building lines and setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for
example, gaps between structures and other streetscape elements, such as
degree of enclosure; architectural composition and quality of detailing; local
topography, views both from and to the site; and impact on neighbouring open
spaces and their environment.'

7.14 Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) re-emphasises the need for new development to be well integrated
with the surrounding area and provides design criteria as to how this would be
achieved.

7.15 The scale and footprint of the proposed building would be very similar to the
proposal for two dwellings that was allowed at appeal. The proposed building
would measure 11.6 metres to the roof ridge, with the ridge line of the building
sitting level with the adjoining block of flats to the south (56-60 Harefield Road)
and below that of the adjacent building to the north (74 Harefield Road). The scale
of the building is commensurate with the adjoining buildings in the street scene in
Harefield Road. When considering this matter in the most recent appeal on the
site for two dwelling, the inspector noted that the proposal's height would be lower
than the adjacent property to the north and similar to the flats to the south, thereby
successfully managing the transition between both neighbouring properties.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 74



7.16 Officers note that the previous planning application on the site
(25767/APP/2023/2805) was refused for the following reason:

The proposed development, by reason of its excessive size, scale, bulk, design
and significant site excavation would result in a cramped, unduly intrusive, visually
prominent, over-development of the site, which would also lead to a loss of the
site and areas green, open and verdant character. The proposal would therefore
be detrimental to the character, appearance and visual amenities of the street
scene and the wider area in general. Therefore the proposal is contrary to Policy
BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012),
Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020), Policies D3 and D4 of the London
Plan (2021) and the National Planning Policy Framework (2021).

7.17 This matter was considered in detail by the inspector during the subsequent
appeal (APP/R5510/W/23/2805) which was allowed. In respect of the impact of
the development on the street scene the inspector commented that the proposed
development would replace the modest house by a four-storey pair of semi-
detached dwellings of a greater scale. However, the proposal would have
reasonable gaps to the side plot boundaries and to the adjacent buildings. Despite
being wider than the existing dwelling, the proposal would nonetheless provide
views towards the retained greenery within the site, therefore maintaining an
acceptable relief from built form on this part of the road. Further, the width of the
pair of semis would be similar to that of the buildings to the north, so it would
respect the rhythm of buildings and spaces in the street scene. The appeal
decision notes that although the dwellings would be bulkier and taller than other
pairs of semi-detached properties within the road, the streetscape is tolerable to
new design due to its varied nature and lack of homogeneity in style. As such, the
proposal would sit comfortably within its receiving context. Regarding the height
of the building, the inspector commented that the proposal’s height would be lower
than the adjacent property to the north and similar to the flats to the south, thereby
successfully managing the transition between both neighbouring properties. The
appeal inspector concluded that the proposal would not detract from the character
of the area in its own terms. In giving significant weight to the inspector's
comments and noting that the appearance of the building is fundamentally
unchanged, notwithstanding the increase in dwellings proposed on the site
compared with the consented plans, it is considered that the design approach is
acceptable.

7.18 The provision of 9 dwellings would be a relatively significant intensification of
development on the site and the additional impact of this uplift in units must be
afforded due consideration. It must be noted that both local, regional and national
policy clearly outlines the importance of ensuring that development makes
efficient use of land to meet local housing need.

7.19 Paragraph 129 of the NPPF (2024) states that planning decisions should support
development that makes efficient use of land, taking into account: the identified
need for different types of housing and other forms of development, and the
availability of land suitable for accommodating it; local market conditions and

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 75



7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

viability; the availability and capacity of infrastructure and services — both existing
and proposed — as well as their potential for further improvement and the scope
to promote sustainable travel modes that limit future car use; the desirability of
maintaining an area’s prevailing character and setting (including residential
gardens), or of promoting regeneration and change; and the importance of
securing well-designed, attractive and healthy places.

The importance of making the best use of land is heavily emphasised within
London Plan. Policy GG2 states that those involved in planning and development
must proactively explore the potential to intensify the use of land to support
additional homes and workspaces, promoting higher density development,
particularly in locations that are well-connected to jobs, services, infrastructure
and amenities by public transport, walking and cycling. Policy D3 emphasises that
all development must make the best use of land by following a design-led
approach that optimises the capacity of sites. Policy H1 of the London Plan states
boroughs should optimise the potential for housing delivery on all suitable and
available brownfield sites through their Development Plans and planning
decisions proactively explore the potential to intensify the use of land to support
additional homes and workspaces, promoting higher density development,
particularly in locations that are well-connected to jobs, services, infrastructure
and amenities by public transport, walking and cycling.

Policy DMHB 17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that all new residential development should take account of
the Residential Density Matrix contained in Table 5.3 of the plan.

The application site is 0.11ha in area and is located within 800 metres of Uxbridge
Town Centre. Whilst accounting for the character of the area, a development of
mostly flats would be expected to provide between 50 - 110 units per hectare, this
would equate to between 5.5 and 12.1 units. On this basis the proposed density
of development would align with Policy DMHB 17 of the Local Plan.

Where accounting for the minimum density requirements set out in Table 5.3, the
development of 2 dwellings recently allowed at appeal fails to make effective use
of the site. For a development of detached or linked houses the density per
hectare in this location should be 35 - 50 units per hectare, which would equate
to between 3.85 and 5.5 houses.

Where accounting for the increased density of the proposed scheme compared
with the consented plans, it is considered that this would not be harmful to the
character and appearance of the area. The building adjoins two other properties
which are both used as flats. The building to the south is a purpose-built block of
flats whilst No.74 Harefield Road to the north has been subdivided into
apartments.

Compared with the consented plans for the two houses which featured only
gardens to the rear, the proposed plans include the provision of parking to the
rear, which would be accessed via a driveway to the side of the property. This
arrangement is very similar to the adjoining property to the north which similarly

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 76



7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

has rear parking accessed to the side of the property and such an arrangement
would not therefore appear out of place. The proposals include the retention of a
shared area of communal space as well as retention of the trees to the front and
rear which contribute to the verdant character of the street scene.

Where considering the above matters, the development is therefore considered to
be acceptable, where assessed against Policies DMHB 1; DMHB 11; DMHB12;
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020);
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1: Strategic Policies (2012) Policy BE1; Policies D1, D3
and D4 of the London Plan (2021); and the relevant provisions of the NPPF.

Neighbouring Amenity

DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) seeks to ensure a satisfactory relationship with adjacent dwellings and no
unacceptable loss of outlook, amenity, daylight and sunlight to neighbouring
occupiers. Part B of the policy states that development proposals should not
adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and
open space.

Guidance for Policy DMHB 11 states 'The Council will aim to ensure that there is
sufficient privacy for residents, and it will resist proposals where there is an
unreasonable level of overlooking between habitable rooms of adjacent residential
properties, schools or onto private open spaces.

Guidance for Policy DMHB 11 also states ' For the purposes of this policy, outlook
is defined as the visual amenity enjoyed by occupants when looking out of their
windows or from their garden. The Council will expect new development proposals
to carefully consider layout and massing to ensure development does not result
in an increased sense of enclosure and loss of outlook. Single aspect dwellings
should be avoided.

It is noted that officers did not recommend that the previous planning application
25767/APP/2023/2805 for two dwellings should be refused on amenity grounds
and the appeal inspector also considered there to be no significant harm to the
amenity of adjoining occupiers.

The side gable of the block of flats to the south of the site (56 to 60 Harefield
Road) faces the site. It is noted that there are no side windows facing the
application site. Except for a second-floor window which serves a kitchen/dining
room all the windows on this elevation would serve bathrooms. A condition should
be applied were planning permission to be granted to ensure that all obscure
glazing is fitted to all side facing windows located above ground floor level. There
is the potential for overlooking of the front and rear facing windows serving 56 to
60 Harefield Road as well as communal amenity areas from the proposed front
and rear facing balconies. The balconies are shown to be fitted with obscured
screening up to a height of 1.8 metres. A condition should be attached requiring
that details of privacy screening to the balconies is submitted for approval in

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 77



writing prior to first occupation of the flats in order to prevent overlooking and loss
of privacy.

7.32 In relation to the windows located along the north facing side elevation of the
property, it would be required that all windows above ground floor level are fitted
with obscure glazing to prevent overlooking of the adjoining flats at No.74
Harefield Road. The windows along this elevation above ground floor level all
serve bathrooms and conditioning that the windows are fitted with obscured
glazing would not impact on the internal amenity standard of the flats. It would be
a requirement that the side facing balconies facing these properties are fitted with
obscured screening as shown on the proposed plans to prevent overlooking.

7.33 No.2 Cambridge Road is located to the rear of the site, the relatively large rear
garden of this property extends along the boundary of the site. There would be a
distance of 28.3 metres between the rear facing first floor balcony, which is the
closest of the rear balconies facing this site and the garden of this property. The
balconies would not overlook the house itself directly which is located to the north
east of the site. Given the significant separation distance between the rear facing
balconies and rear facing windows and the garden of this property it is considered
that the development would not result in unacceptable loss of privacy or
overlooking of this property.

7.34 Another property 24A Fairfield Road adjoins the site, however accounting for the
siting and orientation of the proposed building it is considered that there would be
no significant impact on the amenity of this property.

7.35 Accounting for the siting of the of the new building and its alignment in relation to
Nos.56 to 60 Harefield Road, the development is unlikely to result in
overshadowing or loss of light to the front or rear windows of the adjacent flats.
The submitted site plan demonstrates that the siting of the building would not
breach the 45-degree rule applied from the nearest windows serving these flats.

7.36 The building would also not breach the 45-degree rule, where this is applied to the
rear facing windows serving No.74 Harefield Road. It is noted that there are a
range of windows located on the side (south) elevation of this building facing the
site. A number of these windows serve bathrooms which are not classed as
habitable rooms. Some of the windows do serve habitable rooms. A distance of
5.8 metres is proposed between the side elevation of the building and No.74
Harefield Road. Officers note the comments from the previous appeal inspectors
in relation to the recent appeals in 2022 and 2023. Within the 2023 appeal
decision, the inspector concluded that both proposed schemes, considered jointly
at appeal would not have a significantly adverse impact on daylight and sunlight
in respect of the apartments located at No.74. The 2022 and 2023 appeals both
related to buildings of a larger scale than the present proposals.

7.37 The most recent application in 2023 (25767/APP/2023/2805) for a building of an
equivalent size to the proposed building was not refused by the Council on
amenity grounds. The appeal inspector considered that the siting of the building
would not have an overbearing impact on the apartments at No.74 Harefield Road

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 78



7.38

7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

and would not result in unacceptable loss of light of these dwellings. Given that
the scale and siting of the proposed building would be the same as the building
allowed at appeal in 2024, officers would similarly conclude that the building would
not have an oppressive and overbearing impact on the amenity of the adjoining
occupiers at No.74Harfield Road and would not result in an unacceptable loss of
light or overshadowing. This is accounting for the position of the building, its scale
and the separation between the proposed building and No.74 Harefield Road.

In relation to the proposed vehicular access, a similar arrangement was proposed
under planning application 25767/APP/2022/3190 which provided access to 11
parking spaces to the rear of the proposed apartment building. The impact of
vehicles accessing the rear of the site was considered by the appeal inspector in
the 2023 appeal decision. The impact of noise and general disturbance resulting
from the positioning of the access on the adjacent neighbours was considered to
not be significantly harmful given that the access would be lower than the access
leading to the rear of No.74 and a 1.4 metre wall was to be retained between the
two properties. The boundary wall would be retained and 1.8-metre-high close
board fence erected between Nos.72 and 74 Harefield Road which would
appropriately attenuate noise, such that there would not have a harmful impact on
the amenity of the adjoining occupiers at No.74 Harefield Road.

In summary, accounting for the above assessment it can be concluded that the
development would not have an adverse impact on the amenity of any adjoining
properties and the development would comply with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020).

Highways and Parking Provision

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management
Policies (2020) requires that proposals ensure that safe and efficient vehicular
access to the highway network is provided, they do not contribute to the
deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity or safety of all road users and
residents; safe, secure and convenient access and facilities for cyclists and
pedestrians are provided; impacts on local amenity and congestion are minimised;
and there are suitable mitigation measures to address any traffic impacts in terms
of capacity and functions of existing and committed roads.

Policy DMT 5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management
Policies (2020) requires that proposals will ensure that safe, direct and inclusive
access for pedestrians and cyclists is provided on the site, including the retention
and, where appropriate, enhancement of any existing pedestrian and cycle routes;
the provision of a high quality and safe public realm or interface with the public
realm; the provision of well signposted, attractive pedestrian and cycle routes
separated from vehicular traffic where possible; and the provision of cycle parking
and changing facilities.

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management
Policies (2020) states:

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 79



'Development proposals must comply with the parking standards outlined in
Appendix C Table 1 in order to facilitate sustainable development and address
issues relating to congestion and amenity. The Council may agree to vary these
requirements when:

i) the variance would not lead to a deleterious impact on street parking provision,
congestion or local amenity; and/or

ii) a transport appraisal and travel plan has been approved and parking provision
is in accordance with its recommendations.

7.43 The Mayor of London adopted a new and revised London Plan in March 2021,
consequently the car parking standards set out in the London Plan take
precedence over those in the Local Development Plan, except where the Local
Plan specifies lower local maximum standards. For residential developments this
is outlined in Policy T6.1 (Residential parking). The site has a PTAL of 1a. Based
on the proposed housing mix a maximum of 1.5 parking spaces may be allocated
for all units on the site which equates to a maximum of 13.5 spaces. A total of 12
parking spaces is proposed, which is below the maximum standards outlined in
the London Plan and is acceptable. 10% of parking spaces should be for disabled
occupiers this would equate to 1 space. One space is provided to the front of the
building. A car park management plan would be required by condition to set out
the appropriate allocation of parking spaces to the units and to ensure that the
spaces are leased to future occupiers and not sold.

7.44 Harefield Road is an important thoroughfare and is subject to parking restrictions
in the form of double yellow line markings on either side of the road. Surrounding
side roads including Fairfield Road and Cambridge Road benefit from on-street
resident parking bays. To prevent overspill parking within these surrounding
streets it is necessary that the applicant enters into a Unilateral Undertaking with
the Council which would prevent future occupants of the new dwellings from
obtaining parking permits to park vehicles in the surrounding streets. The
applicant has agreed to enter into an agreement to this effect. Accounting for these
restrictions and the adequacy of the proposed parking on site, it is considered that
the development would not result in an accumulation of parking within the vicinity
of the site.

7.45 The published London Plan (2021) requires that an active 7kw EVCP is provided
for 20% car parking spaces with 80% spaces being provided with 7Kw passive
EVCPS. Details of the requisite EV charging spaces, including the location and
specification of this infrastructure would be required by planning condition.

7.46 Local Plan: Part 2 Policies DMT 1 and DMT 2 require the council to consider
whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of
the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general
highway or pedestrian safety.

7.47 The proposal would raise the level of vehicular activity to and from the site as
compared to the existing single dwelling unit. Peak period traffic movement into
and out of the site would be expected to rise to approximately 2-3 vehicle
movements during the most sensitive crucial peak morning and late

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 80



afternoon/evening hours. This uplift is considered marginal in generation terms
and therefore can be absorbed within the local road network without notable
detriment to traffic congestion and road safety. Where considered in the context
of Paragraph 116 of the NPPF (2024) the residual cumulative impact of this uplift
in vehicular movements cannot be considered to be severe. The two planning
applications submitted on the site in 2022 are comparable developments in terms
of highway impact with both schemes comprising 9 apartments and 13 car parking
spaces. The appeal inspector in both instances considered that refusal on
highway amenity grounds would not be justified. The Councils Highways Officer
has similarly raised no objection to the development on highway safety grounds.

7.48 The Councils Highways Officer has advised that the proposed internal layout
conforms to best practice design standards and allows for passenger vehicles
using the site to enter and leave in a forward gear. In highway impact terms, it is
noted that the principle of vehicular crossing provision is well established by
surrounding properties in Harefield Road and a reconstructed & revised single
access which conforms with the council's 'Domestic Vehicle Footway Crossover'
Policy (2022) would be appropriate.

7.49 The site's ground level is currently elevated in comparison with the existing
adopted footway fronting the address. As the site is to be levelled, there are no
anticipated issues with rainwater discharging onto the highway which is not
permitted. The crossing proportions as shown on plan broadly comply with the
above policy and should read a maximum width of 5m at the back of footway and
6.2m at the edge of kerb. Finalised detail would be required post-permission, and
it should be noted that the new crossing would need to be constructed to the
relevant council standard executed under S184 of the Highways Act 1980 (or
suitable alternative arrangement).

7.50 As Harefield Road is a major thoroughfare, it is crucial that there is conformity to
the relevant mutual inter-visibility sight-line requirements, as per DfT (Manual for
Streets (MfS) circa 2007) best practice for new development road and parking
layouts guidance, between vehicles leaving the site and extraneous
vehicles/pedestrians on Harefield Road. To assist with maintaining satisfactory
sightlines at the new site entrance for both vehicles and pedestrians entering and
leaving the site envelope, it is recommended that a lower height of frontage wall
is applied throughout or for at least 2.4 metres on the southern side of the
entrance. ldeally the height would not exceed 0.6m to achieve the aim of
satisfactory visibility. Details should be secured by planning condition.

7.51 Given the internal road widths, fire tenders may not be able to achieve fully
unfettered access into and out of the site. However, in circumstances where a fire
tender cannot, for whatever reason, gain access to a specific location, Building
Regulations (Fire Safety: Document B) make allowance for this scenario by
stipulating that fire appliances should be able to be positioned within 45m of the
source of an emergency to execute their duty. In line with Building Regulations, if
this distance is exceeded (unlikely in this case) then alternative solutions such as
hydrants, fire detection/alarm/internal water sprinkler systems can be applied in

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 81



7.52

7.53

7.54

7.55

7.56

7.57

lieu of a fire tender accessing a location thereby covering most, if not all,
eventualities.

Refuse collection would continue via the roadway (Harefield Road). The bin
storage positioning should allow for conformity with the accepted 'waste distance'
collection standards which encourage waste collection distances to be within 10m
from the point of collection on the public highway. A store is proposed on the
property frontage which is in relative proximity of the highway in adherence to the
standard.

The published London Plan (2021) Table 10.2 - Minimum Cycle Parking
Standards would require provision 1 secure and accessible space for each 1/2-
bedroom flat with 2 spaces for the 3-bedroom unit to accord with the council's
adopted cycle parking standard. This would total a requirement of 10 new suitably
located spaces. A communal cycle store is indicated to the side of the build but
without a specified quantum hence this aspect needs to be secured by way of
planning condition.

In summary the proposals are considered acceptable from a highway safety and
amenity perspective and comply with Policies Policy DMT 2, DMT 5 and DMT 6
of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020)
and Policies T4, T5, T6.1 of the London Plan (2021).

Accessibility

London Plan (2021) Policy D7 states: "To provide suitable housing and genuine
choice for London's diverse population, including disabled people, older people
and families with young children, residential development must ensure that:

1) at least 10 per cent of dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M
volume 1 of the Building Regulations applies) meet Building Regulation
requirement M4(3) 'wheelchair user dwellings'

2) all other dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M volume 1 of
the Building Regulations applies) meet Building Regulation requirement M4(2)
‘accessible and adaptable dwellings'.

The application has been reviewed by the Council’s Access Officer who has
confirmed that the proposals are acceptable from an accessibility perspective
subject to conditions requiring the submission of details of step free access to
the units and certification of compliance with the technical specifications for an
M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations
(2010). Subject to the submission of appropriate details to satisfy these
conditions, the development would comply with Policy D7 of the London Plan.

Internal Living Accommodation

London Plan Policy D6 (F) states: Housing developments are required to meet the
minimum floor space standards which apply to all tenures and all residential
accommodation that is self-contained. This requirement is replicated under Policy
Policy DMHB 16 of the Local Plan Part 2. The new flats would each exceed the

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 82



7.58

7.59

7.60

7.61

7.62

7.63

minimum requirements set out under London Plan Policy DMHB 16 in relation to
the size of the flats and individual bedrooms and living spaces. Each of the flats
would be dual aspect and the accommodation would benefit from appropriate
outlook and natural light. On this basis the development would comply with Policy
D6 of the London Plan and Policy DMHB 16 of the Local Plan Part 2.

External Amenity Space

Policy DMHB 18 of the Local Plan Part 2 states that new residential developments
should provide an adequate level of private amenity space for occupiers that is of
good quality and usable. The policy advises that 1 bed flats should provide 20sgm
of amenity space, 2 bed flats should provide 25sgm and 3 bed flats should provide
at least 30sgm of private amenity space. Balconies should have a depth of not
less than 1.5 metres and a width of not less than 2 metres.

Except for Flat 8, which is a 1-bedroom unit and Flat 9 which is a 2-bedroom unit,
both of which are located on the second floor of the building, all the proposed flats
would be served by private amenity areas in the form of balconies in the case of
the upper floor flats and patios in the case of the ground floor flats. There would
also be an area of communal amenity space located to the rear of the flats.

The patio serving the three-bedroom flat (Flat 1) measures approximately
27.4sgm in area and has direct access to the communal amenity space. The
private amenity spaces serving the remaining flats would be as follows:

-Flat 2 - 12.6sgm (patio)
-Flat 3 - 13.9sgm (balcony)
-Flat 4 - 9.2sgm (balcony)
-Flat 5 - 9.2sgm (balcony)
-Flat 6 - 6sgm (balcony)
-Flat 7 - 6sgm (balcony)

Each of the balconies exceed the minimum depth and width required under Policy
DMHB 18 of the Local Plan.

There are various spaces surrounding the building, however many of these areas
cannot be classed as serving a practical amenity function as various parcels
include dense planting to supplement habitat enhancement contributing towards
delivery of on-site biodiversity net gain. The spaces immediately to the rear of the
building are largely free of planting and serve a more practical function as amenity
space and cumulatively measure 104 sgm in area. Accounting for the proposed
mix of units, there would be a requirement to provide 215 sqm of amenity space.
Cumulatively the balconies and external areas to the rear of the building would
provide 188.3 sqm of external amenity space within a combination of private and
communal spaces. This would fall slightly short of the requirements set out under
Local Plan Policy DMHB 18, however on balance the amenity space provided is
considered acceptable given the proximity of the site to areas of public open
space, namely Uxbridge Common which is located within 500 metres of the site.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 83



Trees

7.64 Policy DMHB 14: 'Trees and Landscaping' of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2:
Development Management Policies (2020) requires:
A) All developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping,
trees, biodiversity or other natural features of merit.
B) Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that
includes hard and soft landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which
supports and enhances biodiversity and amenity particularly in areas deficient in
green infrastructure.
C) Where space for ground level planting is limited, such as high-rise buildings,
the inclusion of living walls and roofs will be expected where feasible.
D) Planning applications for proposals that would affect existing trees will be
required to provide an accurate tree survey showing the location, height, spread
and species of trees. Where the tree survey identifies trees of merit, tree root
protection areas and an arboricultural method statement will be required to show
how the trees will be protected. Where trees are to be removed, proposals for
replanting of new trees on-site must be provided or include contributions to offsite
provision.

7.65 The side and rear boundaries of the application site are tree-lined. There are no
TPO's or Conservation Area designations within the site, although TPO 75
protects trees on the neighbouring property (to the south), including T28, a mature
lime tree located on the front boundary.

7.66 ltis proposed that 7 trees and 2 shrubs would be removed, with works to a further
9 trees proposed involving lifting the canopy of 8 trees and reducing the crown of
1 tree. Tree T28, a large mature lime tree, provides an important contribution to
the street scene and would be retained. The trees that would be removed are all
rated as Category C trees of low amenity value and the removal of these trees
would be necessary to allow for the proposed development to proceed given that
the trees encroach on the footprint of the building or are located on accesses or
parking areas. It should be noted that the previous applications were considered
to be acceptable in relation to their impact on the existing trees. It was noted that
Tree T27, a yew tree in the front garden would be removed. This tree is a relatively
small early-mature tree classed as a Category C tree of relatively low value. The
removal of this tree was proposed within the previous planning application and
was determined to be acceptable. Given the relative value of the tree and its
limited contribution to the character of the area, the removal of the tree of the tree
is considered to be acceptable and would not impact negatively on the verdant
character of the site.

7.67 The submitted Arboricultural Report contains a series of suggested protection
measures that should be implemented during the course of the construction
operations, and protection measures to be implemented where hardstanding is to
be introduced in the parking areas to the front and rear. This includes the addition
of a geo-textile membrane within the root zones of the retained trees to ensure
their long-term preservation. In addition to requiring that the development is
carried out in accordance with the measures set out within the Arboricultural

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 84



Report, a comprehensive hard and soft landscaping scheme would be required
by condition.

7.68 Accounting for the above it is considered that the development would not conflict
with Policy DMHB 14 of the Local Plan.

Ecology

7.69 From 2nd April 2024 delivery of mandatory 10% biodiversity net gain (BNG) on all
small developments (except householder planning applications) is required
except where specific exemptions apply as set out in the NPPG.

7.70 A biodiversity net gain assessment and metric has been submitted in support of
the planning application. This has undergone revisions as officers had observed
inaccuracies in relation to the habitat classifications for existing and proposed
habitats set out in the metric. The revised biodiversity net gain report sets out that
the development would achieve an uplift of 0.11 biodiversity units compared with
the existing baseline. This would equate to a 12.66% net gain in biodiversity units
which exceeds the minimum requirement to deliver a 10% uplift. Primarily this
would be achieved through a substantial increase in shrub planting across the
site. A 30-year Habitat Management Plan will be required which sets out
measures to ensure that the habitats created on site would be appropriately
managed.

Drainage

7.71 Policy Sl 13 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should
aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure that surface water run-off is
managed as close to its source as possible. Policy DMEI 10 of the Local Plan
states that developments are required to include a drainage assessment
demonstrating that appropriate sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) have been
incorporated. There are no immediate concerns with the scheme on drainage
grounds and a full drainage scheme could be secured via condition.

8 Other Matters

Human Rights

8.1  The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 85



8.2

8.3

9.1

10

Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

Local Finance Considerations and CIL

The proposed development would be liable for CIL.
Conclusion / Planning Balance

For the reasons set out in this Committee Report, it is considered that the proposal
would comply with the objectives of national, regional and local planning policies
and guidance. It is therefore recommended that the application be approved,
subject to the imposition of the conditions set out in Appendix 1.

Background Papers

Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's website
here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this report and
using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to inspect
electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 86



APPENDICES
Planning Application

25767/APP/2024/2484

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 87 10f13



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:

PP-13383304v1

19 01_00

24 49 01

24 49 02

24 49 03

24 49 04

24 49 06 Rev C

24 49 07 RevA

Design and Access Statement - August 2024
Biodiversity Net Gain Metric Plan
Biodiversity Net Gain Report 13-11-24

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1
(2012) and Part 2 (2020), and the London Plan (2021).

3. COMm7 Materials (Submission)

Prior to the commencement of above ground work details of all materials and external
surfaces, including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance
with the approved details and be retained as such. Details should include information
relating to make, product/type, colour and photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

4. COM6 Levels

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 88 20f 13



No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

5. COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants (including pollution absorbing planting) giving species, plant sizes,
and proposed numbers/densities where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.c Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that 5% of all parking spaces are served
by electrical charging points)

2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 89 30f13



the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies DMHB 11, DMHB 14,
DMEI 1 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2021).

6. HH-RPD2 Obscured Glazing and Non-Opening Windows (a)

All windows located on either side elevation of the building at first and second floor level
shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass to at least scale 4 on the Pilkington scale
and be non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor level for
so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management Policies.

7. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, details of the proposed
privacy screening to be located on the side sections of all balconies shall be submitted to,
and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

The privacy screens shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved
details prior to the first occupation of any of the flats retain as such in perpetuity.

REASON

To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Strategic Policies (2012) and Policy DMHB 11 of the Local Plan Part 2
- Development Management Policies.

8. NONSC Non Standard Condition

No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied until a Parking Design and
Management Plan ensuring that all car parking spaces are allocated and leased, not sold, to
the dwellings to which they relate including drawings/documents addressing the demarcation
of the shared surface have been prepared, submitted to and approved in writing by the
Highway Authority. The measures shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the
approved Parking Design and Management Plan for the lifetime of the development.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will provide appropriate levels of parking and to
be in accordance with the London Plan 2021 Policy T6 Residential Parking.

9. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, details of the provision of
active electric vehicle charging points shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until the approved electric
vehicle charging points have been implemented. These shall be retained as such thereafter.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS  Page 90 40f 13



REASON
To support carbon-free travel and more sustainable modes of transport, in accordance with
Policy T6 of the London Plan (2021).

10. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the first occupation of the development, details of covered and secure cycle storage
for a minimum of 10 bicycles, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall not be occupied or brought into use
until the approved cycling facilities have been implemented in accordance with the approved
plan, with the facilities being permanently retained for use by cyclists.

REASON

To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and hence
the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with Part 2
Development Management Policies (2020) - Policy DMT 1, DMT 2 & DMT 6 and Policies T4
and T6 of the London Plan (2021).

11. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a Demolition and Construction
Management Plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works

(i) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative 115 for
maximum permitted working hours).

(iii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.

(iv) Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads (including
wheel washing facilities).

(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking
provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce
the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust through
minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

12. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 91 50f 13



Prior to any works on site above damp proof course level, details of step free access via all
points of entry and exit shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning
Authority. The measures implemented as approved shall be retained thereafter.

REASON
To ensure housing of an inclusive design is achieved and maintained in accordance with
Policies D5 and D7 of the London Plan (2021).

13. NONSC Non Standard Condition

The dwellings hereby approved shall not be occupied until certification of compliance with
the technical specifications for an M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the
Building Regulations (2010) 2015, has been submitted to, and approved in writing, by the
Local Planning Authority. All such provisions must remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON

To not only allow the Building Control body to require the development to comply with the
optional Building Regulations standards, but to also ensure the appropriate quantity and
standard of accessible and adaptable housing is constructed and maintained in accordance
with Policy D7 of the London Plan (2021).

14. NONSC Non Standard Condition

No development shall take place until a written 30 year Habitat Management Plan (HMP)
for the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning

Authority. The approved HMP shall be strictly adhered to and development commenced and
operated in accordance with it. The HMP should, as a minimum, include;

a) Description and evaluation of the features to be managed;

b) Aims, objectives and targets for management

c) Description of the management operations necessary to achieving aims and objectives;
d) Prescriptions for management actions;

e) Preparation of a works schedule, including annual works schedule;

f) Details of the monitoring needed to measure the effectiveness of management;

g) Details of the timetable for each element of the monitoring programme; and

h) Details of the persons responsible for the implementation and monitoring;

i) Reporting to the Council routinely as to the state of the Biodiversity Net Gain requirements
of the development on years 1 (post completion), 3, 5, 10, 20 and 30, with biodiversity
reconciliation calculations at each stage.

REASON

To ensure the development delivers a biodiversity net gain within the borough and secures
the protection and effective management of the remaining habitat on site in accordance with
Policy EM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1, Policies DMEI 7 and DMHB 14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two, Policy G6 of the London Plan and Schedule 7A of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Environment Act 2021.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 92 6 of 13



15. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to commencement of the hereby approved development, (excluding demolition and site
clearance) a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management shall be submitted
to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly
demonstrate how the approved development will incorporate sustainable urban drainage
(SuDs) in accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.13 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information on all SuDs features including the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and:

ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water
through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iii. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater; and how water
usage will be reduced in the development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding and is to be handled as close to its source as possible and
Conserve water supplies in compliance with: Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies
Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in (2012), Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Development
Management Policies Policy DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality (2020), as
well as relevant SuDs guidance contained within the London Plan (2021) and NPPF (2024).

16. NONSC Non Standard Condition

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out fully in accordance with the tree
protection measures specified in the Arboricultural Report reference 190603-PD-11 dated
10th December 2020.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of
the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policy DMHB 14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

17. NONSC Non Standard Condition

Pedestrian visibility splays measuring 2.4m by 2.4m shall be provided and maintained for the
lifetime of the dropped kerb. Fences, walls, and shrubs within these areas shall not exceed a
maximum height of 0.6m.

REASON

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 93 7 of 13



In the interests of highway safety in compliance with Policies DMT 1 and DMT 2 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Informatives

1. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2. 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:20009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section 61
of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other
than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise
disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 94 8 of 13



occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction.
Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a
private road and where possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads.
The applicant may be required to make good any damage caused.

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

DMEI 14 Air Quality
DMH 2 Housing Mix
DMH 6 Garden and Backland Development

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places
DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D1 (2021) London's form, character and capacity for growth

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 95 90f13



LPP D6
LPP D7
LPP H1

LPP H2
LPP SI13
LPP T5
LPP T6

LPP T6.1
NPPF11 -23
NPPF12 -23
NPPF5 -23

(2021) Housing quality and standards

(2021) Accessible housing

(2021) Increasing housing supply

(2021) Small sites

(2021) Sustainable drainage

(2021) Cycling

(2021) Car parking

(2021) Residential parking

NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
NPPF5 23 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 96

10 of 13



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

25767/APP/2021/491 72 Harefield Road Uxbridge

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of building to provide 6 x 2-bed and 3 x 3-bed
flats with associated parking and amenity space

Decision: 04-08-2021 Refused Appeal: 11-02-2022 Dismissed

25767/APP/2022/1400 72 Harefield Road Uxbridge

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of building to provide 3 x 1-bed and 6 x 2-bed
flats with associated parking and amenity space

Decision: 15-07-2022 Refused Appeal: 27-07-2023 Dismissed

25767/APP/2022/3190 72 Harefield Road Uxbridge

Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of building to provide 2 x 1-bed, 6 x 2-bed, 1 x
3-bed flats with associated parking and amenity space

Decision: 24-04-2023 Not Determined Appeal: 27-07-2023 Dismissed

25767/APP/2023/2805 72 Harefield Road Uxbridge

Erection of two 5 bedroom semi-detached dwellings with associated parking and amenity
space following demolition of existing dwelling.

Decision: 16-11-2023 Refused Appeal: 01-08-2024 Allowed

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 97 11 of 13



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.H1 (2012) Housing Growth

Part 2 Policies:

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMH 6 Garden and Backland Development
DMEI 14 Air Quality

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 15 Planning for Safer Places

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space
DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D1 (2021) London's form, character and capacity for growth
LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D4 (2021) Delivering good design

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 98

12 of 13



LPP D5
LPP D6
LPP D7
LPP H1

LPP H2
LPP SI13
LPP T5
LPP T6
LPP T6.1
NPPF11 -23
NPPF12 -23

NPPF5 -23

(2021) Inclusive design

(2021) Housing quality and standards
(2021) Accessible housing

(2021) Increasing housing supply

(2021) Small sites

(2021) Sustainable drainage

(2021) Cycling

(2021) Car parking

(2021) Residential parking

NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land
NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places

NPPF5 23 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 99

13 of 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report Part 2 — Application Report

Case Officer: Mitchell Heaven 22899/APP/2023/2219
Date Application | 29.08.2023 Statutory / Agreed | 01.02.2025
Valid: Determination

Deadline:
Application Type: | Full Ward: Eastcote
Applicant: Mr Chris Hall
Site Address: Harrow & Wembley Society of Model Engineers,

Roxbourne Park, Field End Road, Eastcote

Proposal: Part-retrospective and relocation within the site
of one portacabin with paint-finished timber
cladding to provide a ticket office and
community space.

Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to
Recommendation: conditions

Reason Reported Required under Part 3 of the Planning Scheme
to Committee: of Delegation (Petition received)

www.hillingdon.gov.uk

LONDON




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in Appendix 1.

Executive Summary

Planning permission is sought for the part-retrospective provision of one
portacabin with paint-finished timber cladding to provide a ticket office and
community space for a not-for-profit community-based scale model railway club.
The application is part-retrospective as the portacabin is already placed on the
site.

The application site comprises land within the Harrow & Wembley Society of
Model Engineers which is a scale model railway club located within Roxbourne
Park. The society is a not-for-profit organisation run by volunteers. The wider site
development consists of the railway, associated carpark and clubhouse, as well
as vegetation and paths associated with the wider Roxbourne Park. The area to
which this application relates is to the southeast of the existing clubhouse located
between the clubhouse and the carpark.

The application is subject to a petition containing 25 signatures in objection to the
proposal. The concerns raised within the petition are set out in more detail in
Section 6 of this report, but in summary refer to neighbouring amenity impacts and
security concerns.

In response to Officers’ feedback during processing of the application, the
applicant has provided a revised scheme reducing the proposed number of cabins
from 3 to 1, amended the location of the portacabin, added proposed landscaping
to the scheme, and added paint-finished timber cladding to the portacabin.

The applicant has provided sufficient justification for the need for the portacabin
which would provide additional internal floor space to be used as both a ticket
office and adopted for additional social events associated with the club. The club
has been in Roxbourne Park since 1976 and the aim is to ensure the clubs survival
in the short and medium term by attracting more younger volunteers to the club
on a regular basis.

In principle the local planning authority (LPA) supports community uses that
provide a safe space for the wider local population who wish to participate.
Culturally and historically, there is a strong link with railways and trains within
Hillingdon Borough. Benefits include the provision of an outdoor activity available
to the local population which also provides education opportunities to the younger
population, and other groups such as schools and scout groups. Additional onsite
space would provide a more attractive indoor space to complement the existing
space. There are therefore some recognised benefits with maintaining this
attraction available to the wider population including an opportunity to be educated
on engineering of trains by a group of volunteers.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 102



1.7 It is acknowledged that a container unit does not represent an ideal long-term
solution to the club need for additional facilities. Notwithstanding this, the applicant
has worked cooperatively with the LPA in reducing the visual impact. In response
to Officer feedback, the applicant has provided a revised scheme reducing the
proposed number of cabins from 3 to 1, amended the location of the portacabin,
added proposed landscaping to the scheme, and added paint-finished timber
cladding to the portacabin. The portacabin would now be positioned in a less
sensitive location between the car park and the clubhouse, and not in the open
area of the park. Whilst the site is designated Metropolitan Open Land (MOL),
given the revised location and revisions to remove two of the containers, the LPA
are satisfied it would not impact on the openness of the MOL. A condition is also
recommended that the portacabin shall be removed from the site within one month
of the model train use ceasing to operate on the site or the cabin is no longer
needed for its proposed use. This would ensure that the land is restored to
previous condition.

1.8 The revised changes ensure that the portacabin would not cause significant
impact on the character and appearance of the local area. The cabin is modest in
scale and would be largely screened from the wider street scene. The use of green
cladding would ensure that the portacabin appears more like a temporary
outbuilding rather than a container unit. The overall leafy nature of the site would
also allow the structure to blend in with its environs.

1.9 Concerns have been raised in the representations received regarding the impact
on adjoining neighbours’ amenity as well as security issues. Whilst these matters
are acknowledged, the location and screening would ensure that any impact on
the wider neighbourhood is kept to a minimum. The very nature of the use is also
less frequent given it is based on volunteers. It therefore would not cause
significant amenity harm to the wider community.

1.10 It is considered that the proposed development would not have a detrimental
impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area and Metropolitan
Open Land, neighbouring residential amenity or on highway safety.

1.11 The Committee Report seeks to provide a comprehensive assessment of the
application with all material planning considerations considered. Due regard has
been given to local residents’ objections, including the petition against the
application. However, it is concluded, that the proposal complies with the broad
aims of the Development Plan and no material considerations indicate that a
contrary decision should be taken.

1.12 It should be noted that a corrected red-line site boundary plan and existing site
plan has been received, and at the time of publication and the committee meeting,
the re-consultation period had not yet expired (expires 17-01-24). It is important
to note that this red-line amendment sought only to include the area of the
proposed landscaping which have been shown on the previously consulted plans.
There are no changes to the proposal itself to consider. Any comments received

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 103



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

prior to the planning committee will be reported in the addendum report and/or at
the meeting. Should any materially significant comments be subsequently
received, then the application will be referred back to the planning committee for
consideration. The planning application is therefore recommended for approval
subject to the above and the conditions set out in Appendix 1.

The Site and Locality

The application site is located within Roxbourne Park and consists of a small area
of land for the placement of the proposed portacabin. The site is located between
the associated clubhouse and carpark (discussed below), within a group of trees.

The site is located on Metropolitan Open Land (MOL) and potentially has soil
contamination according to the Council GIS.

Two portacabins are currently located on the site without planning permission, that
is subject to an enforcement investigation (ref. ENF/636/23). This application
proposes to retain one of the cabins on the site and clad it in paint-finished timber
and undertake associated landscaping around the cabin. This application is
therefore, in-part, retrospective. It is noted that, being a portacabin, the building is
easily moveable and therefore the existence of the building on the site was not a
determining factor in this recommendation. Should planning permission be
granted, the second portacabin would be removed when the retained portacabin
is shifted into its proposed position on the site, due to the need for heavy
machinery to move the cabins. This would be secured by condition.

The wider site consists of the Harrow & Wembley Society of Model Engineers
which includes a model railway, clubhouse and carparking. The society is a not-
for-profit community-based organisation. Vehicular access to the site is via Field
End Road. The existing clubhouse is single storey with a pitched roof and contains
storage, tools and machinery associated with the society’s operations as well as
a control room for the model railway. The railway sits within the southern end of
Roxbourne Park, a large park that facilitates a variety of recreational activities.

To the north of the site, adjoining Roxbourne Park along their rear boundaries, are
residential properties located on Field End Road and Boleyn Drive. These
properties all front their respective road frontages with the end of their rear
gardens facing the site. These properties have a limited relationship with the site
due to changing ground levels and dense trees and vegetation located along
Roxbourne Park boundaries. To the west is the Tudor Luncheon Club which
cannot see the site due to intervening ground levels and vegetation, and to the
south and east continues Roxbourne Park.

Figures 1 and 2 overleaf include a site location plan and an aerial image of the
site. The following Figures 3-6 provide site photos.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 104



Figure 1: Site Location Plan

Mose! Passenger Rallway

Figure 2: Contextual Aerial Imagery. Indicative location of proposed cabin
in red.

CRKL

K

(R0 o
RELBLIBKIDEK

s,
POOGIOOOOOCOOLC

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 105



Figure 3: Close up of the portacabin railway facing elevation to be
relocated and cladded

Figure 4: Existing Container Location in the context of Roxbourne Park

Figure 5: Portacabin from across the park. Cabin is located under the
trees. Clubhouse right.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 106



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Figure 6: Clearest view between a residential property and the site,

Proposal

The application proposes retrospective placement of one portacabin on the site,
to clad the cabin in green paint finished feather board and undertake associated
landscaping. The cabin would be relocated from its existing location slightly west,
closer to the existing clubhouse. Landscaping would consist of the creation of a
footpath to the cabin and planting of a Hawthorn Hedge around the rear of the
portacabin area to delineate between the public park walkway and the railway site.

While temporary buildings are generally considered to result in poorer outcomes,
a portacabin is proposed due to the limited resources of the not-for-profit
community organisation and the ecological environment of the park that would be
more impacted by construction of a permanent building.

Due to the need for heavy machinery and for efficiency purposes, should planning
permission be granted, the existing second portacabin would be removed from the
site at the same time as the retained cabin is shifted into its proposed position.

No tree removal has occurred or would occur as part of the application.

During the processing of the application the applicant has proactively worked with
the LPA to amend the scheme, including the following:
- reducing the proposed number of cabins from 3 to 1 to reduce the bulk;
- shifting the location of the cabin to a better position to surrounding features;
- adding landscaping to the scheme to provide delineation between the public
park walking areas and semi-private railway site; and
- cladding the cabin in green paint-finished feather board to improve the visual
appearance of the cabin.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 107



Figure 7: Amended Site Plan

Clubhous

Clubhouse

- - @
- a @
b L Foat path
O/r y
3 - 1 /
;. Portacahin
&
1m high by 0.6m wide
Hawthorn Hedge
N
D
L/
PROJECT OWG ND. | SCALE DETAIL 12112024 A e
ROXBOURNE PARK, FIELD END ROAD.RUISLIP, HAS(R®) B 1.100 SITE PLANS 'FE::FD :—."FN]:;U‘N ?ézjgﬁfs
PLANNING @Al e e

om

PROJECT NO.

24.32

Foot path

&) Fostpan

10m 15m

Sm

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

PR Architecture Itd.
Chartered Architect

320, Bner Roas, Mamow, WAL

Figure 8: Amended Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations

ooao
urpos eqpom |0 7 FLAT ROOF
O o000 Fameigean
ROOF PLAN

i E\NJJRY

PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN

Ticket office

Metal Window Window Metal Door
Painted groem, Painled grean Timber Feather
2 [m m ﬁ m ;,m; board Painted gn
LEFT ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION RIGHT ELEVATION
Metal Door
Fainted green
Timber
;\E Painted green
b N
ol
FEATHER BOARD REAR ELEVATION @  — e
s U S i Ja o P Y
ROXBOURME PARK, FIELD END ROAD RUTSLIP, HAASPE. 03 A ’:'3:‘5'2? Eagﬁgs;mca PLAN AND gfg&;gu I\.;;:m 0432 :r"ti:'m(tﬂe“cmtllt:‘e t
FLANMING @ 120, l\n-v.‘:;;u 1 4m.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 108




41

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

Relevant Planning History

A list of the relevant planning history related to the property can be found in
Appendix 2.

The site is subject to the following planning history:

- Approved, 1989: Erection of a single storey extension to existing model rail
(ref:22899/A/88/2756)

- Approved, 2011: Single storey side extension (ref:22899/APP/2011/266)

- Withdrawn, 2016: Single storey detached building to be used a club
house/meet (ref: 22899/APP/2015/464)

The most recent application at the site was in 2016 for the erection of a single
storey detached building to be used as a club house/meeting room associated
with the railway. This proposal was not progressed and the application withdrawn
for reasons unknown.

Enforcement Investigation, 2023: Related to this proposal where the portacabins
were shifted onto the site without planning permission. Planning enforcement
officers will be updated on the determination of this planning application following
the planning committee (ref: ENF/636/23).

Planning Policy

A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

Consultations and Representations

16 neighbouring properties and the Eastcote Residents Association were
consulted by letter dated 30-08-23. A site notice was displayed and a press notice
published on 04-10-23.

During this first round of consultation, one representation was received from a
neighbouring resident in support of the application and a resident’s petition with
25 signatures was received opposing the application. A Ward Councillor also
requested that the application be called in to the planning committee.

A second round of consultation was initiated on 27-11-24, after receipt of an
amended proposal from the applicant, and expired on 18-12-24. No comments
were received at the time the report went to publication.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 109



6.4

6.5

6.6

A final round of consultation was carried out on 03-01-24 and had not concluded
at the time this committee report was published (expires 17-01-24). This 14-day
re-consultation was carried out primarily due to an amendment to the red-lined
site boundary to include not just the proposed portacabin, but also the area of
proposed landscaping. There are no changes to the proposal, but for
completeness it was considered necessary to re-consult on the amended, red-
lined site boundary. Any comments received prior to the planning committee will
be reported in the addendum report and/or at the meeting.

Internal consultations were also sent out and a summary of the comments
received are noted below in Table 2 of this Committee Report.

Representations received in response to public consultation are summarised in
Table 1 (below). Consultee responses received are summarised in Table 2
(below). Full copies of the responses have also separately been made available

to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Representations Received

Representations

Summary of Issues
Raised

Planning Officer
Response

A petition of 25
valid signatures in
objection has
been received

[.  The buildings will
attract anti-social
behaviour including
graffiti.

This is discussed at
paragraphs 7.51-7.54 of
this report.

[I. The metal containers
will visually impact the
area and are not
appropriate for the
site.

The visual impact on the
character of the area is

discussed at paragraphs
7.15 —7.27 of this report.

Ill. The increased
intensity of use of the
site, including
increased vehicle
movements, facilitated
by the new buildings
would be
unacceptable.

The intensity of the use is
discussed at paragraphs
7.8 -7.14; and 7.22 -7.23.

Highways matters are
discussed at paragraphs
7.33 -7.35.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 110




. The height and

proximity of the
containers will harm
the amenity of
surrounding residential
properties in terms of
overlooking, noise and
disturbance.

The impact on
neighbouring properties is
discussed at paragraph
7.28 -7.32 of this report.

The application
was called in by a
Ward Councillor

Size and appearance

Discussed at paragraph
7.19 -7.27 of this report.

Detrimental effect to
the area

It is not specified the
detrimental effect however
the effect of the
portacabins on the
character of the area are
discussed in paragraphs
7.19-7.27.

The effect on neighbours’
amenity is also discussed
in paragraphs 7.28 -7.32.
The potential for crime and
anti-social behaviour are
also discussed in
paragraphs 7.51-7.54.

1 letter of support
has been
received.

The proposal will
support the ongoing
viability and
operations, which is a
service used by the
wider community.

The comments from the
representation received in
support of the application
are noted. Further detail on
the use for the railway
society use are discussed
at paragraphs 7.08-7.14.

. The proposal will

improve the quality of
the facilities for use by
the society and
visitors.

Further details are
discussed at paragraphs
7.8 -7.14.

Table 2: Summary of Consultee Responses

Consultee and Summary of Comments

Planning Officer
Response

Access Officer:

current access

standards.

Acceptable from an accessibility standpoint. There is
no planning requirement for the proposal to meet
Recommended

The comments from
the Access Officer
an | are noted. The

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 111




7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

informative relating to the Equality Act 2010 to be | suggested

attached to any approval. informative is
recommended to be
added to the decision
notice.

Highways Officer:
Recommendation to grant the application. As the | The comments from

adjustment of internal site access arrangements | the Highways Officer
together with the proposed temporary building is | @re noted.
considered purely as a rationalisation of operations
ancillary to established on-site communal activities,
there is no specific comment made, or demand raised
on transport/highway grounds.

Urban Design Officer
Broadly supportive of the application given the limited | The comments from
scale and single-storey design but noted concerns | the Urban Design
regarding the impact on neighbouring trees, average | Officer are noted.
quality of the portable building, convoluted access | These matters have
and potential for overgrowth of the proposed | been considered and
landscaping. addressed within the
revisions, this report
and conditions.

Planning Assessment

Principle of Development

The principle for the model railway use on the site is established through the
existing use. However as the site is located on Metropolitan Open Land, the
principle of erecting a new building on the site must be tested.

Policy DMEI 4: Development in the Green Belt or on Metropolitan Open Land of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states that ‘inappropriate development in
Metropolitan Open Land will not be permitted unless there are very special
circumstances’ and ‘redevelopment would only be permitted where it would not
have a greater impact on the openness of the Metropolitan Open Land, and the
purposes of including land within it, than the existing development’.

Policy EM2: Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) states that ‘Any proposals for development in
Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will be assessed against national and
London Plan policies, including the very special circumstances test.’

Paragraph 8.21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) states the purposes of
the Metropolitan Open Land is to:

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 112



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

- providing a clear break in the urban fabric and contributing to the green
character of London;

- including open air facilities serving the leisure, recreational, sports, arts and
cultural needs of Londoners outside their local area;

- and containing a feature or landscape of historic recreational or biodiversity
value of national or regional significance.

Policy G3 of the London Plan (2021) requires that Metropolitan Open Land be
afforded the same status and protections as Green Belt land. Inappropriate
development should be avoided but boroughs must also work to enhance the
quality and range of uses of Metropolitan Open Land.

Paragraph 154 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2024) relates
specifically to development in the Green Belt however Policy G3 and Policy EM2
refer to the NPPF (2024) for assessment of development on Metropolitan Open
Land. Specifically, Policy G3 states that: ‘MOL should be protected from
inappropriate development in accordance with national planning policy tests that
apply to the Green Belt'.

Paragraph 154(b) of the NPPF therefore states that development is inappropriate
unless it is for ‘the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing
use of land or a change of use), including buildings, for outdoor sport, outdoor
recreation, cemeteries and burial grounds and allotments; as long as the facilities
preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of
including land within it

The proposed portacabin would be multi-purpose to support the model railway
activities but would be used primarily as a ticket office and for events such as
hosting children's birthdays. The portacabin would therefore be ancillary to the
existing model railway, an established outdoor recreation activity on the
Metropolitan Open Land, and therefore erection of the building on the site is not
considered ‘inappropriate development’.

The railway currently operates these uses under gazebos due to a lack of floor
space on the site causing the operations of the railway to be highly weather
dependent and severely impacted during bad weather. The planning officer
undertook a site visit and noted the existing clubhouse is not suitable for hosting
such uses as the space is used entirely for the storage of trains and related tools
and machinery which is not suitable for general public access. To accommodate
the natural growth of the not-for-profit community-based railway society and to
enhance the quality of the community facility, additional floorspace is required on
the site. In this regard, the modified portacabin is considered an appropriate facility
required for the ongoing viable operations of the railway that will enhance the
quality of the land use.

It is also considered that the openness of the Metropolitan Open Land will be
maintained. In particular, the portacabin is small in size, subordinate to the existing

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 113



clubhouse, will be clad in recessive paint-finished feather board, and has been
purposefully located under a stand of trees behind the clubhouse, minimising the
visibility of the cabin from any one location. Any visual impact on the openness of
Roxbourne Park would therefore be minimal and is considered acceptable.

7.11  Community and recreational use policies are also a factor within this current
application. Paragraph 98 of NPPF (2024) cites the need to provide social,
recreational and cultural facilities and services that serves community needs.
Shared spaces and community facilities should aim to provide facilities to enhance
the sustainability of communities and residential environments. Part B of S5 of the
London Plan 2021 places emphasis on decision makers need to increase or
enhance the provision of accessible facilities, suitable for multiple use. While the
Local Hillingdon Policy DMCI2 promotes the improvement of entertainment
facilities located within the catchment area they serve, provide buildings that are
inclusive, flexible and meet the needs of intended occupants.

7.12  This facility does provide a service to the local community with a local volunteer
group having been established within Roxbourne Park since 1976. Harrow and
Wembley Society of Model Train Engineers traces its historical routes further back
to the 1930s and as such, the club provides a historical and cultural significance
to the local catchment area. In recent times, membership of the society has been
in decline, however the club’s aims are to ensure the club attracts new members
in the coming years to ensure its long-term future. By providing additional facilities
on-site which cater for all, it is hoped it would become more attractive to local
community members. Part of the entertainment facilities on offer include the Rox
Bourne Miniature Railway which provide railway rides around Roxbourne Park. It
also caters for a model railway club for young people 5-13 years old, Sunday
morning club for teenagers under the supervision of experienced engineers. The
group also opens its doors to the wider community, with scout clubs, children with
special needs and school visits, as well as children’s birthday events and special
events.

7.13  The portacabin on site would aim to provide a multi-functional space that could be
used for parties, ticket sales and meetings associated with the existing use. Based
on the engagement across the wider local catchment area, as well as providing a
much needed cultural and historical form of service locally, the expansion of these
facilities would conform with the broad aims of the community use policies above.

7.14  Overall, the principle of the proposed development is accepted and complies with
the National Planning Policy Framework (2024), Policy S5 of the London Plan
(2021), Policies EM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One (2012) and Policies
DMCI2 and DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two (2020).

Design / Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

7.15  Chapter 13 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2024) seeks to prevent
inappropriate development and ensure the openness of the land is not harmed.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 114



7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021) requires development proposals to be of high
quality and to enhance the local context by delivering buildings and spaces that
positively respond to local distinctiveness. Policy G3 of the London Plan (2021)
requires inappropriate development on Metropolitan Open Land to be avoided but
also requires boroughs to work to enhance the quality and range of uses of
Metropolitan Open Land.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 — Strategic Policies (2012), and
policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 —
Development Management Policies (2020) in summary seek to secure a high
quality of design that enhances and contributes to the area in terms of form, scale
and materials, is appropriate to the identity and context of the townscape and
would improve the quality of the public realm and respect local character. These
aims are also supported by Chapter 12 of the NPPF (2024).

Policy DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 — Strategic Policies (2012) seeks
to ensure development does not impact the openness of Metropolitan Open Land
with regard to height, bulk, location and character of the site and development.

During the process of the application, revised drawings were provided in response
to Council Planning Officer feedback. These revisions reduced the number of
proposed buildings from 3 to 1, added paint-finished feather board cladding to the
portacabin, and added additional landscaping. These amendments addressed
concerns of overdevelopment of the MOL and poor visual amenity outcomes.

Overall, it is considered that the amended scheme with the single portacabin is
acceptable and is supported. The proposed location of the portacabin underneath
the existing stand of mature trees and beside the existing clubhouse would
minimise visual impacts on the surrounding Metropolitan Open Land, providing
visual screening of the building from most of Roxbourne Park and ensuring it is
not visually prominent within the open area of the park. This can be seen from site
visit photo Figure 5 where the existing portacabins (without cladding) are barely
visible from across the model railway site, let alone from any further views across
Roxbourne Park. As such, it is considered the openness of the Metropolitan Open
Land would be maintained with the placement of the building.

The limited scale, single-storey height and addition of paint-finished cladding
would ensure the portacabin sits comfortably in the surrounding environment. The
small size would ensure the building is not visually prominent. The new cladding
would acceptably alter the appearance of the portacabin such that it does not
immediately portray as a portable building, and the green paint finished timber
would integrate well with the greenery/trees of Roxbourne Park. Where the cabin
might still be viewed as a temporary/portable building, it is considered the benefits
of supporting the not-for-profit community-based organisation and the carbon
emission reduction benefits of building reuse (rather than construction of a new
permanent building) would offset any visual harm.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 115



7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

The building itself would be of an acceptable quality and functionality for the
intended use and has the added benefit of being easily removed from the site in
the future should it no longer be required. The building would support the growth
of the model railway and enhance the existing recreational use on the site. There
is no evidence that the new structure would encourage anti-social behaviour, and
the society operates/meets multiple times a week which would discourage any
such behaviour.

The building is designed to accommodate existing activities (ticket office/kids’
birthdays) that are currently being held under gazebos, and therefore the new
building would not notably increase the intensity of use of the site. Should the
building enable some greater intensity of the railway operations, this increase
would likely be acceptable and the site is located over 20 metres from the nearest
residential neighbour with buildings and vegetation located between the railway
operations and the neighbouring properties.

The proposed access is designed to relate to the existing operation of the railway
site and would be functional. While the access appears convoluted on the plans,
the existing site operates with a footpath located around the fenced off rail track
area between the clubhouse and the carpark. As the main entrance to the
portacabin is designed to face the rail track area, the access is therefore functional
and fit for use.

The proposed landscaping of low 1m high hedging along the rear of the site
location would provide a barrier between the fenced off section of the railway site
and the public walkway that runs to the west of the railway site. It would help
provide additional delineation of the public walkway and model railway site and
would also provide some low-level soft landscaped screening/enhancement of the
portacabin. This hedging would be secured by way of condition.

Overall, the proposed portacabin would sit comfortably on the Metropolitan Open
Land and would not unduly harm the openness, appearance or character of the
area. The proposed massing has been minimised and the portacabin has been
optimally located to minimise visibility of the building from any wider viewpoints.
The proposed cladding would ensure an acceptable external finish that is
reasonably visually attractive and considered acceptable in the context of meeting
the needs of the not-for-profit community organisation, minimising the costs to the
organisation, and reducing carbon emissions from reuse of an existing building.

It is considered that the proposed development would comply with the overarching
aims of the NPPF (2024), Policies D3 and G3 of the London Plan (2021), Policy
BE1 and DMEI 4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (2012),
and Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020).

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 116



Neighbouring Residential Amenity

7.28  Policy DHMB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that development
proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of
adjacent properties and open space. An assessment of the potential impact on
neighbouring residential amenity of neighbouring residential properties along
Boleyn Drive and Field End Road is discussed as follows.

7.29  The portacabin would not introduce any bulk, shading or visual dominance effects
over the neighbouring residential properties. While the portacabin would sit at a
higher ground level than the neighbouring residential properties, it would be
located a minimum of approximately 22 metres from the rear boundaries of these
properties. In addition, there is extensive mature vegetation along the shared
boundary providing a high level of visual screening as depicted in the site visit
photos. These factors in combination with the small scale of the cabin and single-
storey height, would ensure there would not be any bulk, shading or visual
dominance impacts on neighbouring residential properties.

Figure 9: Minimum approximate separation from adjacent residential
properties.

Maodel Passenger Railway

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 117



7.30  With regard to potential impacts on neighbouring privacy, one window in the
western end of the cabin is proposed to face the residential neighbours. However,
due to the significant separation distance from the adjacent residential properties
and high level of visual screening along the shared boundary, any overlooking
would be wholly minimal, infrequent and brief. Any overlooking from parking
vehicles would be fleeting and minimal for the same reasons identified above. It is
therefore considered there would be no undue harm to neighbouring privacy.

7.31  With regard to the potential impacts on the quality of neighbouring outlook, the
portacabin would be located a minimum of approximately 22 metres from the rear
boundaries of the residential neighbours along Boleyn Drive and Field End Road.
There is extensive mature vegetation creating a high level of screening along the
shared boundary as depicted in the site visit photos. The portacabin is relatively
small in scale for a building, single-storey in height, would be clad in a visually
recessive paint-finished feather board cladding and is to be located underneath a
crop of mature trees. Due to the separation distance and existing boundary
vegetation screening, any views of the portacabin from neighbouring residential
dwellings would be limited and would not create undue impacts on neighbouring
residential outlook or amenity.

7.32  Having regard to the above, it is considered that the proposed development would
not unduly impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers and there
would be no undue harm to the residential amenity of neighbouring properties by
the development. It would therefore comply with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020).

Highways and Parking

7.33 The application has been reviewed by the Highways Officer as per below
comments.

Appraisal

7.34  Asthe adjustment of internal site access arrangements together with the proposed
temporary buildings are considered purely as a rationalisation of operations
ancillary to established on-site communal activities, there is no specific comment
made or demand raised on transport/highway grounds. It is not envisaged that the
proposed portacabin would lead to a significant intensification of the site that
would lead to any significant increase in highway disturbance or car parking
concerns. There is already a considerable amount of parking spaces available on
this site and the nature of the use would not result in an increase in traffic that
would raise concerns.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 118



7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

7.39

7.40

Conclusion

The application has been reviewed by the Highway Authority who are satisfied
that the proposal would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress,
and would not raise any measurable highway safety concerns, in accordance with
Local Plan: Part 2 Development Plan (2020) Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 and DMT 6
and Policy T4 and T6 of the London Plan (2021).

Accessibility

The application has been reviewed by the Access Officer as per below comments.

This application is for the provision of one portacabin which has been purchased
from another organisation with the intention to repurpose them to include a ticket
office, community space to host children's parties and club events. Having
reviewed this application and the accompanying photos, it would seem that level
access to the small step up could be eliminated by re-grading the ground levels to
achieve step free entry.

The Harrow and Wembley Society Model Engineers as an organisation is legally
obliged to ensure equality of opportunity for people with a protective characteristic
within the ambit of the Equality Act 2010, and the following informative should
therefore be attached to any grant of planning permission: The Equality Act 2010
seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those
with a disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access
to and within the structure of their building, particularly in situations where
reasonable adjustment can be incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that
service providers should think ahead to take steps to address barriers that impede
disabled people.

Conclusion
The Access Officer has raised no objections subject an informative reminding the
applicant of the requirements within the Equality Act. This informative has been

included in the recommendation for approval.

Trees and Landscaping

Policy DMHB 14: Trees and Landscaping of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two
(2020) states that all developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing
landscaping, trees, biodiversity or other natural features of merit, and will be
required to provide tree surveys and protection plans where proposals might affect
existing trees. It also states that development proposals will be required to provide
a landscape scheme that includes hard and soft landscaping appropriate to the
character of the area, which supports and enhances biodiversity and amenity.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 119



7.41

7.42

7.43

7.44

7.45

7.46

7.47

The site is not subject to specific tree protections. However, it is a public park and
Metropolitan Open Land, and the stand of trees under which the proposed is
located are considered to be of high value.

No Tree Survey or Tree Protection Plan have been submitted with the proposal to
ensure the safety and protection of the onsite trees during the shifting of the
portacabins and installation of the new footpath. As such, it is recommended that
a tree protection plan is secured by condition. It is important to recognise that the
portacabin would not include any foundations or additional excavation works that
would lead to any potential damage to existing roots. Similarly, the footpath to the
cabin would have minimal impact. As such, Officers are satisfied the existing trees
on site would not be harmed with the repositioning of the structure. With the
inclusion of a condition to secure a tree protection plan and given the portable
nature of the portacabin that does not require construction of foundations, it is
expected any harm to surrounding trees can be avoided or minimised to be
acceptable.

Biodiversity Net Gain

As this application was submitted prior to February 12t 2024, it is not subject to
Biodiversity Net Gain requirements.

Sustainability

Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2020) requires all developments to
make the fullest contribution to minimising carbon dioxide emissions in
accordance with the London Plan targets.

The proposed development is of a minor scale therefore whilst the principle of Sl
2 (carbon reduction) is applicable, this London Plan Policy applies more
specifically to major scale applications. The applicant is therefore not required to
submit an energy statement with the application or demonstrate a policy level of
on-site savings. However, given that the proposal makes reuse of a portable
building, rather than construction of a new building, it is considered to be a
sufficiently sustainable form of development.

The proposal would therefore be compliant with Policy Sl 2 of the London Plan
(2021) and Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020).

Land Contamination

Policy DMEI 12 of the Local Plan (2020) states that for sites which are identified
as being at potential risk of land contamination a contaminated land report
detailing the history of contamination on site, relevant survey work and findings
should be submitted in support of the application.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 120



7.48

7.49

7.50

7.51

7.92

7.53

7.54

The application site is located on potentially contaminated land. However no
habitable dwellings nor earthworks are proposed as the building is a portable
structure that would sit on-top of the land, rather than constructed with foundations
that would disturb the soil. Therefore, a survey is not required nor are conditions
pertaining to the submission of further information.

Fire Safety

Policy D12 of the London Plan states that all developments must achieve the
highest standards of fire safety.

The application is situated within an area of open space and the multi-purpose
room would be served by two external doors on two elevations. The building is
modest in overall size and scale. As it is a single storey, one room building with
two external access points, the LPA are satisfied, it would not lead to any fire
safety and access/escape route concerns.

Anti-social Behaviour

It is noted that a large number of representations have been received which raise
concerns regarding anti-social behaviour, potential crime and community safety.
Both previous legal and appeal decisions have confirmed that the fear of crime and
anti-social behaviour should only be considered a material planning consideration in
cases where evidence exists that the associated development would likely increase
crime.

Whilst Officers do not dismiss the concerns raised by local residents on the potential
impact in regard to anti-social behaviour and crime, there is no evidence to suggest
that this would potentially take place. Furthermore, the applicant has made efforts to
address such concerns with an Anti-Social Behaviour Management Plan. Mitigation
measures have also been sought with the reduction of the number of portacabins,
the location of hedging along the southern boundary which would provide a physical
buffer.

The site is also gated which further deters potential crime within out-of-hours. The
portacabin would also be cladded in a timber cladding painted green which subtly
will act as a deterrent from Graffiti crime. Currently there does not appear to have
been any graffiti and anti-social behaviour with the existing portacabins on site.

Whilst there is no guarantee that these mitigations would prevent any future anti-
social activity within the site, they do provide some organic security measures
without compromising the design. As such, the proposed development is not
considered to compromise the security of the application site, adjoining sites or the
wider community.

Other Matters

Human Rights

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 121



8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3

10

10.1

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

Local Finance Considerations and CIL

The proposal is for less than 100sgm of gross internal floor area and is therefore
not CIL liable.

Conclusion / Planning Balance

On balance, the proposed development would have an acceptable impact on the
character and appearance of the area and would not give rise to any undue harm
to neighbouring residential amenities or the local highway network.

The principle of the erection of the portacabin on the Metropolitan Open Land is
supported as it would be ancillary to an established outdoor recreational use on
the site and has been designed to minimise its impact on the openness and
amenity of the Metropolitan Open Land through design and siting. It would provide
additional facilities for a local volunteer club which provide a valuable service to
the wider catchment area.

The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and no material
considerations indicate that a contrary decision should be taken. Consequently,
the application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

Background Papers

Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's website
here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this report and
using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to inspect
electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 122



APPENDICES
Planning Application

22899/APP/2023/2219

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 123 1 of 10



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers

Site Location Plan, dated 02/01/2025
02B (Site Plans), dated 02/01/2025
03A (Proposed floor plan and elevations) dated 12/11/2024

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. COM7 Timeframe (Relocating portacabin 4 months)

The hereby approved portacabin as identified on the proposed site plan drawing number
02B (Site Plans) dated 02/01/2025 shall be relocated from its existing position as identified
on the existing site plan (same drawing number) within 4 months of the date of this decision
and shall remain in situ and maintained as such until the use ceases or the portacabin is no
longer required.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenity of the Metropolitan Open Land, in compliance with policy
EM2 of the Local Plan Part 1 (2012), policies DMEI 4 and DMEI 6 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2- Development Management Policies (2020), Policy G2 of the London Plan
(2021) and the NPPF.

4. NONSC Timeframe (Installation of cladding 4 months)

The cladding materials as shown on the hereby approved drawing 03A (Proposed floor plan
and elevations) dated 12/11/2024 shall be a feather boarded timber cladded material with a

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 124 2 0f 10



green painted finish.

The hereby approved materials shall be installed on the portacabin within 4 months of the
date of this decision and shall be maintained as such until the use ceases and the
portacabin is removed from the site.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

5. NONSC Removal of second portacabin (Removal within 4 months)

The second existing portacabin on site and as shown on the existing site plan drawing
number 02B (Site Plans) dated 02/01/2025 shall be removed from the site in its entirety
within 4 months of the date of this decision and the land restored to its former condition.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenity of the Metropolitan Open Land, in compliance with policy
EM2 of the Local Plan Part 1 (2012), policies DMEI 4 and DMEI 6 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2- Development Management Policies (2020), Policy G2 of the London Plan
(2021) and the NPPF (2024).

6. NONSC Removal of portacabin(Removal within 1 month of use ceasing)

The hereby approved portacabin as identified on the proposed site plan drawing number
02B (Site Plans) dated 02/01/2025 shall only be used for the purpose stated in the
application, ancillary to the model train use. It shall be removed from the site with the land
restored to it former condition, when the portacabin is no longer required for its function. Its
removal shall take place within 1 month of its ceasing to be used for its approved function.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenity of the Metropolitan Open Land, in compliance with policy
EM2 of the Local Plan Part 1 (2012), policies DMEI 4 and DMEI 6 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2- Development Management Policies (2020), Policy G2 of the London Plan
(2021) and the National Planning Policy Framework (2024).

7. COMS8 Tree Protection

No relocation of the portacabin shall take place until the details have been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including any
demolition, building works/relocation, footpath implementation and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 125 30f 10



to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall
be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.
The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course
of the works and in particular in these areas:

a. No materials or plant shall be stored;

b. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed;

c. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and

d. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior written
consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not damaged

during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with Policy DMHB 14
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020).

8. A5 New Hedging

The hereby approved Hawthorn Hedging shall be completed within eight months of the
development commencing (or such period as agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority) or prior to occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier period. The new
planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirement specified in BS 3936
(1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs' and in BS4428 (1989)
'‘Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'.
Thereafter, areas of amenity space shall be permanently retained and any trees or other
planting which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased within a period
of 5 years from the completion of development, shall be replaced in the next planting
season with others of similar size and species in accordance with the details approved by
the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development makes a satisfactory contribution to the
preservation and enhancement of the visual amenities of the locality.

9. NONSC Contaminated Land

No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported soils for
landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination. All imported soils shall be
inspected and tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 126 4 0f 10



REASON

To ensure that staff and visitors to the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with Policy DMEI 13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (January 2020).

Informatives

1. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2. 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:20009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section 61
of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other
than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise
disturbance to adjoining premises.

3.

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 127 5 of 10



disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within

the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be
incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to
take steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from Local Plan Part
1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal
written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure
that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which is likely to
be considered favourably.

DMCI 2 New Community Infrastructure

DME 4 Visitor Attractions

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

DMEI 4 Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land
DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP E10 (2021) Visitor infrastructure

LPP G2 (2021) London's Green Belt

LPP G4 (2021) Open space

LPP G6 (2021) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP G7 (2021) Trees and woodlands

LPP S5 (2021) Sports and recreation facilities

LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP T4 (2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
NPPF11-24 NPPF11 2024 - Making effective use of land
NPPF12-24 NPPF12 2024 - Achieving well-designed places
NPPF13 -24 NPPF13 2024 - Protecting Green Belt land
NPPF15-24 NPPF15 2024 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 128 6 of 10



NPPF2 -24 NPPF2 2024 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF4 -24 NPPF4 2024 - Decision making
NPPF8 -24 NPPF8 2024 - Promoting healthy and safe communities

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 129 7 of 10



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

22899/A/88/2756 Roxbourne Park Field End Road Ruislip
Erection of a single storey extension to existing model railway shed
Decision: 27-02-1989 Approved

22899/APP/2011/266 Carriage Shed, Roxbourne Park Field End Road Ruislip
Single storey side extension
Decision: 13-04-2011 Approved

22899/APP/2015/464 Harrow & Wembley Society Model Engineers, Roxbourne Park Field
End Road Eastcote

Single storey detached building to be used a club house/meeting room
Decision: 03-05-2016 Withdrawn

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 130 8 of 10



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

Part 2 Policies:

DME 4 Visitor Attractions

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality
DMEI 4 Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land
DMCI 2 New Community Infrastructure

DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP E10 (2021) Visitor infrastructure

LPP G2 (2021) London's Green Belt

LPP G4 (2021) Open space

LPP S5 (2021) Sports and recreation facilities

LPP G6 (2021) Biodiversity and access to nature

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 131

90f 10



LPP G7
LPP SI12
LPP SI13
LPP T4
NPPF11 -24
NPPF12 -24
NPPF13 -24
NPPF15 -24
NPPF2 -24
NPPF4 -24

NPPF8 -24

(2021) Trees and woodlands

(2021) Flood risk management

(2021) Sustainable drainage

(2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts

NPPF11 2024 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 2024 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF13 2024 - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF15 2024 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
NPPF2 2024 - Achieving sustainable development

NPPF4 2024 - Decision making

NPPF8 2024 - Promoting healthy and safe communities

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 132

10 of 10



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report Part 2 — Application Report

Case Officer: Haydon Richardson 57533/APP/2023/3146
Date Application | 31.10.23 Statutory / Agreed | 17.01.25
Valid: Determination
Deadline:
Application Full Ward: Belmore
Type:
Applicant: Mr Hersch Sternlicht
Site Address: 140 Fairholme Crescent
Proposal: Creation of an extra bedroom to a 6 unit HMO

(Class C4) to create 7 bedrooms (Sui Generis).

Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to
Recommendation: conditions

Reason Reported Required under Part 3 of the Planning Scheme of
to Committee: Delegation (Petition received)

www.hillingdon.gov.uk

LONDON




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

Executive Summary

Planning permission is sought for the conversion of an existing 6 person (Use
Class C4) house in multiple occupation (HMO) to a 7 person (Sui Generis) HMO.

The proposed development includes no alterations to the height, depth, width or
design of the host dwelling. Furthermore, the sites layout, access and parking
provisions would remain as existing. It is therefore considered that the proposal
would have no adverse impact on the character and appearance of the area.

At present two parking spaces, exist at the site serving 6 occupants. The two
parking spaces would be retained at the site to serve 7 occupants. Due to the
minor increase in residential occupancy at the site and the fact that the London
Plan encourages car free development, the provision of two car parking spaces is
considered to be sufficient.

Furthermore, a Transport Assessment has been submitted in support of the
development outlining how sustainable means of transport will be promoted at the
site through the provision of cycle parking. The assessment also advises that like
many surrounding roads, Fairholme Crescent has no parking restrictions in terms
of double yellow lines. As such, if the development were to result in the need for
an additional parking space, the vehicle could be parked at the roadside, like other
vehicles.

The sites parking situation would remain as existing, as such it would be
unreasonable to request that the dropped kerb to the front of the site be extended.

Taking into consideration these points, the development is considered to cause
no harm to the local highways network or its users.

Residents of the HMO would be provided with acceptable internal and external
living accommodation and would also be within a short distance of public open
space, shops and services.

Further to the above, the existing dwelling is being used as a 6 person HMO
lawfully (57533/APP/2024/2226). Taking into consideration that the proposed
development would simply result in one additional person residing within an

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 134



1.9

2.1

2.2

2.3

existing HMO. The development would not cause any harmful increases in noise,
disturbance or activity at the site, which would harm the amenities of neighbours.

It is concluded that the proposal complies with the Development Plan and no
material considerations indicate that a contrary decision should be taken. The
planning application is therefore recommended for approval subject to the
conditions set out in Appendix 1.

The Site and Locality

The development site is located on the north side of Fairholme Crescent. The site
comprises a semi-detached bungalow finished in brick and pebble dash. The
building is set back from the road and has a front garden providing off street
parking space. The rear garden of the site is a mixture of soft and hard
landscaping.

The surrounding area is predominantly residential comprising single and two
storey semi-detached properties. Properties vary in external materials but
predominantly have pitched roofs and are set back from the road with off street
parking.

The development site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) rating of
2 (low).

Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 135



1:1250

Figure 2: Street View Image of the Application Property

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 136



3 Proposal

3.1 Planning permission is sought for the conversion of an existing 6 person (Class
C4) HMO to a 7 person (Sui Generis) HMO. This would be facilitated by the
converting an existing first floor storage space into a bedroom and providing extra
bins at the site.

Figure 3: Existing and Proposed Floorplans — (please note — larger version of
plan can be found in the Committee Plan Pack)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15", 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 137



Lo — o —

EXISTING GROUND FLOCR

Existing Floor Plan

|
i
i
I
i
1
|
1
i
i
i
i
[
[
|
i
1
'
i
|
i
i
|

Proposed Floor Plan

Relevant Planning History

4.1

A list of the relevant planning history related to the property can be found in
Appendix 2.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025
PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 138



4.2

5.1

6.1

6.2

As noted in Appendix 2, the site was subject to an application
(57533/APP/2023/1305) for the change of use of the dwelling house to a 7 bed
HMO which was withdrawn. A subsequent certificate of lawfulness application
57533/APP/2024/2226 was submitted for the retention of an existing HMO which
was approved dated 26/09/2024.

Planning Policy

A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

Consultations and Representations

Four neighbouring properties were consulted on 71" November 2023. A notice was
displayed at the site on 16" November 2023.

Representations received in response to public consultation are summarised in
Table 1 (below). Consultee responses received are summarised in Table 2
(below). Full copies of the responses have also separately been made available
to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Representations Received

Representations

Summary of Issues Raised

Planning Officer
Response

A petition with 25
signatures was
received on
05/12/23
objecting to the
proposed
development.

To oppose the creation of an
extra unit (to make a7
bedroom and 7 bathroom) in
an existing 6 Bed HMO

The rationale behind
why the application
should be approved is
set out within this report
and its summary.

3 individual letters
of objection have
been received

Permission was recently
refused at the site for a
similar development on the
grounds of over
intensification.

No application has been
refused at the site for a
similar development.
The site’s planning
history is set out in
section 4 of this report.

The site notice went up on
29/11/23.

The site notice was
placed on 16/11/23.

The existing HMO is under
construction and does not yet
exist.

The existing HMO is
lawful and was in
operation on the day of
the Case Officer’s visit
in February 2024.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 139




Only neighbours nearest to
the development site were
consulted on the application.

The LPA’s statutory
consultation
requirements were
carried out for this
application. Additionally,
a site notice was placed
at the site so statutory
requirements have been
exceeded. There is no
statutory requirement to
consult more broadly
than actioned.

7-14 people within the
property and/or within its
garden would cause
excessive activity, noise
pollution and disturbance
harming neighbouring
amenities.

Issues regarding the
developments impact on
neighbouring amenities
have been discussed at
paragraphs 7.13-7.20 of
this report.

Each tenant will have a friend
resulting in 14 people at the
property. It was not designed
for this level of occupation.

The number of guests
which may visit any
property is not a
material planning
consideration.
Furthermore, a condition
has been recommended
to restrict the permanent
occupation of the
building to 7 tenants.

The proposed development is
an overdevelopment of the
site and is out of character.

Issues regarding the
developments visual
impact have been
discussed at paragraphs
7.13-7.20 of this report.
of this report.

The presence of an upstairs
kitchen is a fire hazard.

The fire safety of the
kitchen is a building
control matter and not a
material planning
consideration.
Furthermore, the kitchen
already exists at the site
and does not form part
of the proposed
development.

The level of amenity provided
for future residents would be
poor due to no communal

Issues regarding the
standard of
accommodation which

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 140



living area and a kitchen with | would be provided for
no access to natural light future residents has
been discussed at
paragraphs 7.34-7.39 of

this report.
The existing area has parking | Issues regarding the
issues, this would be developments impact on

exacerbated by the proposed | parking and the local
development, which provides | highways network have
insufficient parking for 7-14 been discussed at
people. paragraphs 7.26 -7.28
of this report.

Table 2: Summary of Consultee Responses

Consultee and Summary of Comments Planning Officer
Response

Access Officer
Noted and included in
This proposal has been reviewed against the the assessment of
requirements of the 2021 London Plan policy D7 the application.

which is not applicable to this application for an extra
unit within the existing HMO. Conclusion: no
objections raised from an accessibility perspective.

Highways Officer

The site is located in a PTAL 2 rated area meaning Noted, the relevant

that there would be some reliance on the car to conditions are
travel to and from the site. The proposal would proposed to be
require an extension to the existing crossover to added to the decision

provide access to 2 parking spaces. On the provision | notice
that the applicant applies to the local highway
authority to extend the existing crossover, the 2
parking spaces to be provided are considered
acceptable to serve the development.

7 cycle spaces would be provided however their
current location is not considered to be acceptable.
As such a condition pertaining to the submission of
revised cycle parking details and the provision of 1
EVCP should be added to the decision notice.

7 Planning Assessment

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 141



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Principle of Development

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) Policy
DMH 1 seeks to safeguard existing housing stock including affordable housing
and in particular family sized dwellings (3 bed dwellings and above). More
specifically the policy states that the Council will grant planning permission for the
subdivision of dwellings only where it would not result in detrimental harm to the
local highway network, neighbour amenity and street scene and where adequate
internal and external living standards can be achieved for future occupants.

The supporting text and specifically paragraph 4.3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 (2020) provides guidance for the implementation of Policy DMH 1 and
recognises Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs), student accommodation and
other uses falling into Use Classes C3 and C4 as providing a contribution towards
local housing stock.

The site benefits from C4 use and therefore is an established HMO already. As
the proposal involves the conversion of an existing HMO (up to 6 persons) to a
larger HMO for up to 7 persons, there would be no net loss of the Borough's
housing stock.

Policy DMHS5 of the Local Plan Part Two includes 2 sets of criteria, for the purposes
of this application only Part A is relevant as Part B refers to sites which are located
within an area where the conversion to a HMO irrespective of whether they meet
the definition of small or large, are restricted by an Article 4 Direction. The
application site is not located in an area covered by an Article 4 Direction, therefore
Part B is not relevant.

In relation to criterion A)(i) of Policy DMH 5, despite a relatively low PTAL rating
of 2 the site is approximately 6 minutes walk from shops, services and bus routes
on Kingshill Avenue. Additionally, Grange Park is located behind the site providing
public open space for future residents (See Figure 4). Taking into consideration
these points, the site is considered to have adequate accessibility to local
amenities and public transport in the context of Policy DMH 5.

Furthermore, Officers and Members of the Committee need to consider the sites
established use as an existing HMO which has been confirmed by Officers when
visiting the site. As such it is only the one additional bedroom which is subject to
the assessment of this application. The addition of 1 bedroom would not give rise
to a significant increase in pressure on local services and occupiers will have
access to the necessary infrastructure to meet every day living needs.

The detailed consideration in respect of criteria A)(ii) and A)(iii) is set out in
relevant sections of this Committee Report (below). Subject to compliance with
these matters, it is considered that the principle of the development can be
supported.

Figure 4: Accessibility to Grange Park and Shops on Kingshill Avenue

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 142



The Brook House @ @ %

_CHINA CHEF (@) R
IR B © Your Move Now
.......
- 277-293 g9® ®
Kingshill Avenue (=) [ ]
° [e]
bies o}
.' ”
Vel
M& © rastaNourish [e] S
o
[
[
. ”

0.3 miles
o
Joginder enterprise o g & x
'%" @ﬁ Grange
2"
9

(o]

Rapid Homes o Q(‘?
& ®
Church of St
= N\chc-!asfHaves o ..
}Z%p, [¢)
o, & Angel's Nest childcare{(Q)
webuild4you o V.
0. 00000 Yy,
e} 4 &
.. 0
The Vicarage
©) The vicarage Paint and
(SQ Engineerir
&
S e
M &

Design / Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

7.8 Policies D1, D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) require development proposals
to be of high quality and to enhance the local context by delivering buildings and
spaces that positively respond to local distinctiveness.

7.9 Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November
2012) states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in
all new buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a
sense of place.

7.10 Local Plan Policy DMHB 11 states that all development, including extensions,
alterations and new buildings will be required to be designed to the highest
standards and, incorporate principles of good design including harmonising with
the local context and considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures.
They should also ensure the use of high-quality building materials and finishes,
and ensure that the internal design and layout of development maximises
sustainability and is adaptable to different activities.

7.11 Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) re-emphasises the need for new development to be well integrated
with the surrounding area and provides design criteria as to how this would be
achieved.

7.12 The proposed development includes no alterations to the height, depth and width
of 140 Fairholme Crescent. No alterations are proposed to the front or rear
elevations of the property and minor changes are proposed to the rear fenestration
of the property. In terms of site layout, two parking spaces currently exist at the

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 143



7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

front of the property. Two spaces, alongside bin storage, would be provided as
part of the proposed development. Taking into consideration that there would be
no alterations to the general size, scale and design of the host dwelling, that there
would be no alterations to the site layout and that many properties store their bins
close to the road, it is considered that the proposed development would cause no
harm to the character and appearance of the host dwelling or surrounding area.

The proposal would therefore accord with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part One - Strategic Policies (2012), Policies DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHD 1
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two- Development Management Policies (2020),
Policy D3 of the London Plan and National Planning Policy Framework (2023).

Residential Amenity

Policies DMH 5, DMHD 1 and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020) seek to ensure a satisfactory
relationship with adjacent dwellings with no unacceptable loss of outlook, amenity,
daylight and sunlight to neighbouring occupiers.

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) requires that proposals minimise noise
pollution and Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
(2012) promotes the maximum possible reduction in noise levels and seeks to
ensure that noise impacts can be adequately controlled and mitigated.

As mentioned above, there are no major physical changes proposed to the
existing building as part of this planning application. By their limited nature, the
proposed landscaping changes would not give rise to concerns of overlooking,
overbearing or loss of light.

When compared with the existing 6 person HMO, the proposal represents an
increase of one resident. The intensification of the site will bring about limited
additional comings and goings of people and associated impacts that arise with
people living independently from one another. The increase of 1 additional person
is considered to be modest and the total occupancy of seven residents is not too
dissimilar to many of the large family dwelling houses in the area.

If planning permission is approved, a condition is recommended to ensure that no
more than 7 occupants reside at the property.

For these reasons, it is considered that the addition of 1 additional occupant would
not give rise to impacts upon neighbouring residential amenity that would warrant
a refusal of the planning permission.

Therefore, given the proposal and site context, it is considered it would not unduly
impact the residential amenity of the adjoining properties, in terms of
daylight/sunlight, outlook and overbearing effect, in accordance with Policies
DMHD 1 and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020).

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 144



7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

Highways and Parking

Policy DMT 2 states that proposals must ensure that safe and efficient vehicular
access to the highway network is provided; they do not contribute to the
deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity; have safe, secure and
convenient access and facilities for cyclists and pedestrian; that impacts on local
amenity and congestion are minimised; and there are suitable mitigation measures
to address any traffic impacts.

Policy DMT 6 states 'Development proposals must comply with the parking
standards outlined in Appendix C Table 1 in order to facilitate sustainable
development and address issues relating to congestion and amenity. The Council
may agree to vary these requirements when the variance would not lead to a
deleterious impact on street parking provision, congestion or local amenity.'

For a HMO with up to 6 occupants, this would be 1 space per 2 occupants. For
HMOs over 6 occupants, car parking requirements will be assessed through a
transport appraisal.

There are no specific parking requirements for HMQO's set out in the London Plan
(2021).

Parking

At present two parking spaces, exist at the site serving 6 occupants. The parking
spaces are accessed via an existing crossover and the site’s parking forecourt is
open. The two parking spaces would be retained at the site to serve 7 occupants,
and the parking forecourt would remain open as existing. As the sites parking
situation would be unaltered it is considered unreasonable to recommend a
condition be added requiring that the drop kerb be extended at the front of the site.

Additionally, due to the minor increase in residential occupancy at the site (1
additional resident) and the fact that the London Plan encourages car free
development, the provision of 2 car parking spaces is considered to be sufficient.

Furthermore, a Transport Assessment has been submitted in support of the
proposed development. The statement outlines how sustainable means of
transportation to and from the site would be supported by the provision of 7 secure
cycle stores. Furthermore, like many surrounding roads, Fairholme Crescent has
no parking restrictions in terms of double yellow lines, as such if the development
were to result in the need for an additional parking space, the vehicle could be
parked at the roadside, like other vehicles.

Taking into consideration the above the proposed parking provision is considered
to be acceptable.

Electrical Vehicle Charging

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 145



7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

London Plan (2021) Policy T6 states 'Where car parking is provided in new
developments, provision should be made for infrastructure for electric or other
Ultra-Low Emission vehicles in line with Policy T6 .1 Residential parking, Policy
T6 .2 Office Parking, Policy T6.3 Retail parking, and Policy T6.4 Hotel and leisure
uses parking'.

A condition securing the provision of 1 EV charging point is recommended should
planning permission be granted.

Cycle Parking

7 cycle parking spaces (1 per occupant) are proposed within an enclosed and
secure cycle storage unit to be located to the rear of the site. The provision and
location of the facility is considered to be acceptable.

Waste Collection

The submitted plans show that waste storage facilities would be sited next to the
road, like other dwellings in the area. The location of the facilities is considered to
be acceptable. Nevertheless, the London borough of Hillingdon does not operate
a bin collection service. If planning permission is granted, a condition is
recommended requiring full details of the design, location and sizes of all refuse
and recycling storage facilities to be used at HMO. The applicant would be
required to provide waste storage of an appropriate size for the service.

Access

2 parking spaces exist at the site at present. The 2 spaces would be retained post
development. As vehicles and people would access the site in the same way as
existing and no changes are proposed to the site's access or parking
arrangements, it is considered unreasonable to recommend a condition requiring
that the drop kerb be extended at the front of the site.

Quality of Internal accommodation for future residents

The proposed HMO comprises 7 bedrooms, the GIA of the internal
accommodation within the building is set out below:

Bedroom 1: 10.6m2 (single bedspace)
Bedroom 2: 10.6m2 (single bedspace)
Bedroom 3: 10.7m2 (single bedspace)
Bedroom 4: 12.1m2 (double bedspace)
Bedroom 5: 11.3m2 (single bedspace)
Bedroom 6: 12.1m2 (double bedspace)
Bedroom 7: 10.8m2 (single bedspace)
Communal Kitchen: 9.5m2

Communal Kitchen: 12.7m2

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 146



7.36

7.37

7.38

7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

At ground floor the internal layout of proposed HMO would be identical to the
existing HMO. As such the ground floor layout of the HMO is considered to be
acceptable.

One additional room would be added at first floor level. The resident of the room
would have windows providing access to natural light and outlook, as well as
access to communal kitchens and an en-suite (providing sanitary facilities). The
resident is considered to be provided with an acceptable level of living
accommodation.

Residents within the wider property would have large single bedrooms or double
bedrooms (with individual en-suites). They would have windows with reasonable
access to outlook, light and privacy. Two communal kitchens exist within the HMO
and provide communal space for residents. One of the kitchens is large enough
for a table and chairs. Itis therefore considered that future residents of the building
would have satisfactory internal living accommodation.

Quality of external accommodation for future residents

Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Part 2: Development Management
Policies (2020) requires a minimum of 100sgm of outdoor amenity space for a
dwelling house with 4 or more bedrooms. It is required to be well located, well
designed and usable for the private enjoyment of the occupiers.

The existing 6 bed HMO has approximately 140sgm of communal external
amenity space for 6 occupants. This would remain the same post development
with 1 additional occupant. The amenity space provision is considered to be
sufficient for the minor occupancy increase. It should also be noted that Grange
Park is located within 5 minutes’ walk of the site providing accessible, outdoor
space for any new or existing resident of the proposed HMO. It is therefore
considered that future residents of the building would have satisfactory external
living accommodation

Accessibility

Policy D5 of the London Plan (2021) seeks to ensure development proposals
achieve the highest standards of accessible and inclusive design. Policy D7 of the
London Plan (2021) requires at least ten percent of dwellings to meet Building
Regulation requirement M4(3) 'wheelchair user dwellings', with all other dwellings
meeting Category M4(2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings'.

The proposal seeks to add one additional bedroom to an existing HMO, as the
property has already been converted, remains as residential accommodation and
does not propose additional extensions, the above policies would not be relevant.
Notwithstanding this point the application has been reviewed by the Councils
Accessibility Officer who has raised no objection.

Trees and Landscaping

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 147



7.43

7.44

7.45

7.45

7.46

7.47

7.48

7.49

7.50

7.51

Policy DMHB 14 advises that all development will be expected to retain or
enhance existing landscaping, trees, biodiversity or other features of merit.

The proposed development would result in no loss of trees and would therefore
have no adverse tree impact.

Landscaping on the site would remain as existing (a mix of hard and soft
landscaping). The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable.

Ecology and Biodiversity

Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that if development is proposed on or near to a site
considered to have features of ecological or geological value, applicants must
submit appropriate surveys and assessments to demonstrate that the proposed
development will not have unacceptable effects. The development must provide a
positive contribution to the protection and enhancement of the site or feature of
ecological value.

In England, Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) is mandatory under Schedule 7A of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by Schedule 14 of the
Environment Act 2021). It became mandatory for major developments on 12
February 2024 and small sites on 2 April 2024. Developers must deliver a BNG of
at least 10%. This means a development will result in more or better-quality natural
habitat than there was before development. The landowner is legally responsible
for creating or enhancing the habitat and managing that habitat for at least 30
years to achieve the target condition.

Chapter 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2024) states that planning
decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by
minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity.

Paragraph 8.6.6 of Policy G6 of The London Plan (2021) states that biodiversity
net gain is an approach to development that leaves biodiversity in a better state
than before. Losses should be avoided, and biodiversity offsetting is the option of
last resort.

The site is does not contain any significant trees, ponds, open woodland, dense
scrub or shrubbery. There are no protected sites of ecological interest adjacent to
or near to the site. It is therefore considered that the likelihood of protected species
being present at the site is low. The sites existing mix of hard and soft landscaping
would be retained at the site, as such the ecological value of the site would remain
as existing.

As no additional extensions are proposed the development would meet the de-
minimis exemption referenced within the National Planning Policy Framework
2024. As such no further BNG or ecological information is required.

The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 148



7.52

7.593

7.54

7.55

8.1

8.2

8.3

Air Quality

The application site is located within Hillingdon Air Quality Management Area and
Planning permission is sought to change a 6bed HMO into a 7bed HMO.

The sites car parking provisions would remain as existing, as such there would be
no additional vehicle movements to and from the site. Sustainable means of
transport would be supported by new cycle parking provisions, discouraging the
use emission generating transportation. The development would therefore have
no adverse air quality impact.

Drainage

The application site is located in Flood Zone 1 where there is a low probability of
risk of flooding from rivers or seas. As such, all forms of development including
residential development (which is classified as a 'more vulnerable use') are
acceptable in this location, in terms of fluvial flood risk.

Planning permission is sought to change a 6bed HMO into a 7bed HMO. No
extensions are proposed, and the site is not located within an area identified as
being vulnerable to flooding therefore the development would not result in an
increase of flood risk within the site or to those properties surrounding the site.
The additional occupant would have no adverse drainage impact at the site. The
proposed development is acceptable from a drainage perspective.

Other Matters

Human Rights

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

Local Finance Considerations and CIL

Not applicable. The proposed development is not CIL liable.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 149



9 Conclusion / Planning Balance

9.1 The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and no material
considerations indicate that a contrary decision should be taken. Consequently,
the application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1 (below).

10 Background Papers

10.1 Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's
website here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this
report and using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to
inspect electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — January 15, 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 150



APPENDICES
Planning Application

57533/APP/2023/3146

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 151



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. HO2 Accordance with Approved Details

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans numbered:

01 RVOO - LOCATION AND SITE PLAN

05 RV0O - PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS

06 RVO0 - PROPOSED FRONT AND REAR ELEVATIONS
07 RV0OO - PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION AND SECTION
08 RV00 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1
(2012) and Part 2 (2020), and the London Plan (2021).

3. NONSC Number of occupants

The property shall only be used as a house in multiple occupation for no more than seven
(7) individuals at any one time.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the adjoining property is not adversely
affected in accordance with Policy DMH 5 and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2
(2020).

4. HO5 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order
with or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 152 20f6



Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).
5. H14 Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until details of covered and
secure cycle storage have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The cycle store(s) must provide storage for 7 cycles. Thereafter, the cycling
facilities shall be implemented and retained in accordance with the approved details for the
lifetime of the development.

REASON

To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and hence
the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with Policy DMT 5
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

6. NONSC Ev Charging

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until details of a single active
electrical vehicle charging point (to be installed at the front of the site) has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the EV charging point
shall be installed and retained in accordance with the approved details for the lifetime of the
development.

REASON
To ensure sustainable transport is promoted at the site and the adequate EV charging is
provided in accordance with Policy T6 of the London Plan (2021).

7. NONSC Waste

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until full details of the design,
dimensions and material finish of the proposed waste and recycling storage facilities have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the
waste and recycling storage facilities shall be implemented and retained in accordance with
the approved details for the lifetime of the development.

REASON

To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for waste and recycling, and to safeguard
the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 (2020).

Informatives
1. 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 153 30f6



Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from Local Plan Part
1, Local Plan Part 2, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal
written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure
that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which is likely to
be considered favourably.

2. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant

planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan (2021) and national guidance.

DMH 1 Safeguarding Existing Housing

DMH 5 Houses in Multiple Occupation

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D14 (2021) Noise

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

LPP H9 (2021) Ensuring the best use of stock

NPPF11-23 NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 -23 NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
NPPF9 -23 NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 154

4 0of 6



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

57533/APP/2002/1782 140 Fairholme Crescent Hayes

INSTALLATION OF A REAR DORMER WINDOW (APPLICATION FOR A CERTIFICATE
OF LAWFULNESS FOR A PROPOSED USE OR DEVELOPMENT)

Decision: 10-09-2002 General
Perm.Devt.

57533/APP/2022/1236 140 Fairholme Crescent Hayes
Erection of a single storey rear extension
Decision: 30-06-2022 Approved

57533/APP/2023/1305 140 Fairholme Crescent Hayes

Change of use from a single dwelling house to a 7 unit HMO (Sui Generis) for up to 7
people

Decision: 17-10-2023 Withdrawn

57533/APP/2024/2226 140 Fairholme Crescent Hayes

Retention of existing use as a HMO (Class C4)(Application for a Certificate of Lawful
Development for a Existing Development).

Decision: 26-09-2024 Approved

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 155 50f 6



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

DMH 1 Safeguarding Existing Housing

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMH 5 Houses in Multiple Occupation
DMHB 11 Design of New Development

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards
LPP D14 (2021) Noise

LPP H9 (2021) Ensuring the best use of stock

NPPF11 -23 NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land
NPPF12 -23 NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places

NPPF9 -23 NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 156 6 0f 6



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report — Application Report

Case Officer: Emilie Bateman 42576/APP/2024/2465
Date Application | 13.09.24 Statutory / Agreed | 17.01.25
Valid: Determination
Deadline:
Application Householder | Ward: South Ruislip
Type:
Applicant: Mr T McCabe
Site Address: 100 Exmouth Road, Ruislip
Proposal: Retention of a double storey rear and side
extension with amendments to fenestration and
height of existing single storey rear extension
Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to
Recommendation: conditions

Reason Reported
to Committee:

LONDON

Required under Part 3 of the Planning Scheme of
Delegation (Petition received)

www.hillingdon.gov.uk




Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Planning permission is sought for the retention of a double-storey rear and side
extension, along with amendments to the fenestration and the height of the
existing single-storey rear extension.

1.2 Planning permission had previously been granted in April 2024
(42576/APP/2024/413) for the erection of a two-storey side/ rear extension which
is of a similar design, scale and bulk to the as-built extensions. The main
discrepancy from the previously approved scheme was the positioning of the
neighbour dwelling at No. 102 Exmouth Road which did not reflect the positioning
on-site, as well as modest discrepancies in the measurements. This current
application seeks to regularise the proposed development with the neighbouring
property footprint now accurately represented on the plans.

1.3  During the course of the assessment, site inspections were carried out at both the
application site and the adjoining neighbouring property at No. 102 Exmouth Road,
where Officers carried out detailed measurements and survey of the extension as-
built and its relationship with the neighbouring property. The amended plans
received now represents an accurate reflection of the development “as built” in the
context of the neighbours.

1.4  The application is subject to a petition containing 22 signatures in objection to the
proposal. The concerns raised within the petition are set out in more detail in
Section 6 of this report, but in summary refer to neighbouring amenity impacts.

1.5 Cumulatively, the proposed side and rear extensions are considered acceptable
from a design perspective and would continue to appear subordinate in the context
of the existing dwelling house and the wider street scene. Whilst it is recognised
that the two-storey extension is not set in 1m in from the application site boundary,
this was considered acceptable under the original permission granted in April
2024. From surveying the character of the local area, it is evident that several
extensions have extended out to the boundary of the site. The prevailing character
along the street scene is quite varied and recent appeal decisions have also been
allowed against this policy. Overall, the scheme is finished to a quality design, with
matching materials and would not cause harm to the street scene. On this basis,
the slight departure from the policy is considered acceptable.

1.6 The proposal would not cause significant harm to neighbouring amenity. The
accurate footprint plans show that there would be a marginal breach of the 45-
degree sightline of the nearest window serving the kitchen at ground floor of No.
102 Exmouth Road. However, this room is served by 2 additional windows which

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 158



1.7

1.8

2.1

2.2

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

do not breach the 45-degree sightline, and which ensure outlook is maintained to
the rear garden. A Daylight and Sunlight Report was requested during the
assessment stage and the findings of this report demonstrate full compliance with
the BRE Daylight Sunlight standards for Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing.
Privacy is protected with obscure glazing to side windows, and rear windows
would not result in undue overlooking. In addition, the extension would not create
a sense of enclosure for neighbouring properties. Consequently, the proposal
does not result in harm to neighbouring residential amenity that would warrant a
reason for refusal.

It is considered that the proposed development would not have a detrimental
impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area or on highway
safety.

Due regard has been given to local residents’ objections, including the petition
against the application. However, it is concluded, that the proposal complies with
the broad aims of the Development Plan and no material considerations indicate
that a contrary decision should be taken. The planning application is therefore
recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out in Appendix 1.

The Site and Locality

The application site comprises an end of terrace house situated on the north-
eastern side of Exmouth Road. The house is a two-storey dwellinghouse with a
single-storey, flat roof rear extension. The existing property has an existing rear
extension and a partially constructed two-storey side/rear extension, subject to
this application.

The street scene is residential in character and appearance comprising terraced
properties. No. 102 Exmouth Road is located to the North of the application site
and forms part of the adjacent terrace. No. 98 Exmouth Road is located to the
South of the application site and forms part of the adjoining terrace.

Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 159



Figure 2: Street View Image of the Application Property

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 160



Figure 4: Extension as built taken from rear garden of 102 Exmouth Road

3 Proposal

3.1 Planning permission is sought for the retention of a double storey rear and side
extension with amendments to fenestration and the height of existing single storey
rear extension.

3.2  Planning permission had previously been granted in April 2024 for a similar scaled
development. However, following an investigation from the Planning Enforcement
Team, it was noted that the footprint of the neighbouring property at No.102 had
been misrepresented on the previously approved drawings. Under the previous
application, the projection of the two-storey element to the rear of No. 102 had
measured approximately 1.6m; however, the actual depth is 2.38m beyond this
adjoining neighbouring property. This current application seeks retrospective
permission to regularise the dwelling as-built. The neighbour’s footprint is now
accurately depicted on the block plan and proposed plans. There are also minor
changes to the footprint which have been depicted in the revised plans.

3.3 The two-storey side extension measures 2.63m in width (at ground and first floor
level) and extends a depth of 9.3m, of which 3.330m is situated beyond the original
rear wall of the dwelling. The first-floor side element is set back 0.5m from the
existing front wall and is served by a hipped roof that is stepped down 0.5m from
the main ridge line. As noted, the two storey rear extension projects 3.330m
beyond the original building line and measures 5.2m in width. It is served by a
hipped roof set down which again is set down from the main ridge line by 0.5m.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 161



The existing single storey rear extension includes a flat roof and roof light with a
maximum height of 3m.

3.4 The two-storey side extension is set from the site boundary by approximately
0.48m to the rear of the site which slightly increases to the front to approximately
0.6m. Approximately 1.130m is maintained between the flank wall serving the
single storey side element of No. 102 Exmouth Road and the flank wall of the two-
storey element to the front. The two-storey extension is treated with brick work to
the front and render to the rear, both matching the existing arrangement.

Figure 5: Existing ‘As Built’ Floorplans (please note — larger version of plan
can be found in the Committee Plan Pack)

Kitchar

g

Figure 6: Existing ‘As Built’ Elevations (please note — larger version of plan can
be found in the Committee Plan Pack)

E /'f
\;I
:I

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION EXISTING REAR ELEVATION
1:100 1100 1:100

4 Relevant Planning History

4.1 A list of the relevant planning history related to the property can be found in
Appendix 2.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 162



4.2

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

Planning permission was granted in 2024 (ref. 42576/APP/2024/413) for the
erection of a two-storey side/ rear extension which is of a similar footprint, scale
and bulk to the as-built extensions. However, there was a discrepancy in position
and measurements of the neighbour dwelling (No.102) on the approved plan,
including the location of the 45-degree sight lines. Given the discrepancies, the
current application was submitted to regularise the development as-built.

Planning Policy
A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

Consultations and Representations

The adjoining neighbouring properties and South Ruislip Residents Association
were consulted on 30t of September 2024.

Following revised plans and additional information (Daylight and Sunlight
Assessment) a reconsultation took place which expired on 28" of November 2024.

Representations received in response to public consultation are summarised in
Table 1 (below). Full copies of the responses have also separately been made
available to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Representations Received

Representations | Summary of Issues Planning Officer

Raised Response
A petition of 22 1. The petition received The revised application
signatures has wanted the Committee | subject of this assessment
been received to fully consider is an accurate reflection of
against the overshadowing effects | the proposed development
application on the neighbour’s in the context of the

neighbouring properties.
Site surveys have been
misinterpretation of the gr;ﬁs;zk\zﬂ ob% aF\’/I:nnlng
plans on the original measured the extension
application as-built and its relationship
with the common boundary
at No.102 Exmouth Road.
A site inspection has also
been undertaken by
Planning Officers at No.
102 Exmouth Road and

amenity, exacerbated
by the original

measurements have been

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 163



taken to correlate the plans
and ensure the built form is
an accurate reflection of
the site circumstances.

This impact on daylight,
sunlight and
overshadowing are
discussed in detail at
paragraphs 7.27— 7.52 of
this report

Over 19 letters of
objection

have been
received from a
total of 4
individual
households

. Inaccurate plans

(dimensions, no north
arrow etc.).

Discussed at paragraphs
7.10 of this report.

. Error in drawing of rear

building line of No. 102
previously approved
plans. Disputes the
claim that this was due
to inaccurate OS site
plan data. The error
was not a result of
misleading OS data but
was at least in part due
to failed decision
making when preparing
the plans in the most
sensitive of areas.

The current application
aims to regularise the
misrepresentation of the
neighbouring property
under the original
approved application.
Under this current
application, Planning
Officers have undertaken a
detailed survey of the
application site, measuring
the extension as-built and
its relationship with the
neighbours’ boundary.
Measurements have also
been undertaken at No.
102 Exmouth Road and
the resultant plans depict
an accurate reflection of
the development as-built in
the context of the
neighbouring properties.

Not in accordance with
Local Policy (side
extensions and 45-
degree rule).

Discussed at paragraphs
7.18 and 7.24-7.26 of this
report.

I\V. Overshadowing/ loss of | Discussed at paragraphs
light. 7.27—7.52 of this report.
V. Overlooked / loss of Discussed at paragraphs

privacy.

7.53 -7.56 of this report.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 164




VI. Overdevelopment — the
development is too
large as built.

Discussed at paragraphs
7.9-7.20.

VII. The development does
not comply with policy
DMHD1 where two
storey side extensions
should be set in a
minimum of 1m from the
side boundary.

Discussed at paragraphs
7.13-7.16.

VIll.Concerns regarding
bathroom window
having clear
windowpane.

Discussed at paragraph
7.55.

IX. Boundary line dispute.

This is not a material
planning consideration and
would be a civil matter
between both neighbouring
properties. Officers are
satisfied that a site location
plan has been submitted
indicating the ownership of
the site in red. Certificate A
has been completed on the
application form which
confirms that the applicant
has sole ownership of the
part of land in question.
There is no reason to
doubt that the
development is within the
ownership of the applicant.

X. Sense of enclosure.

Discussed at paragraphs
7.24 —7.26.

XI. Guttering/Drainage
concerns

Drainage and guttering
issues would not be
material planning
considerations as part of
this assessment. Drainage
matters would be captured
within a Building
Regulations application.
Notwithstanding this, it is
noted that the
development is set in from
the site boundary with

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 165



sufficient space for
guttering and drainage
within the site curtilage
itself.

A letter was also
received from a
Daylight and
Sunlight
Consultant
(Daylight Lab) on
behalf of
residents of a
neighbouring
property.

The letter did not dispute
the findings within the
Daylight Sunlight report. It
wished to make further
observations which are
summarised below:

e Previous planning
application was
granted based on
inaccurate drawing
information - error in
drawing the rear
building line of
No.102 on the
previously approved
plans, which is in
fact set back by
approximately 2.4m
from the as-built
extension at No.100
rather than the 1.6m
originally
suggested.

e Loss of amenity to
No 102 through
reductions in
sunlight exposure
and increased
sense of enclosure.

o Expressed their
view that all rear
facing windows at
No. 102 should be
deemed a material
consideration for
sunlight testing
(even windows
facing slightly
northern of due east
or west) — based on
their interpretation
these windows would

These matters are
discussed further within
the amenity section of the
report in paras 7.47-7.52.

Importantly, it is noted from
the letter that the Daylight
Sunlight Professional does
not disagree with the
findings which confirm full
compliance with the BRE
Daylight and Sunlight
guidance.

The letter respectfully asks
that the APSH should be
considered for all windows.
However, the BRE
guidance is clear that only
windows 90-degrees due
south should be tested for
sunlight. As the
neighbouring property is
situated to the north of the
site, there is no
requirement for this APSH
test to take place.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 166




7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

fail the Annual
Probably Sunlight
Hours and suffer
greater losses in
Winter Probable
Sunlight Hours.

e Also note that the
overshadowing
extends over the area
of garden closest to
the rear fagade of No.
102 which is an
important amenity.

e Provided a shadow
analysis.

Planning Assessment

Principle of Development

The proposal is for an extension to an existing residential dwelling. As such, the
principle of development is supported by national, regional, and local planning
policies, subject to the considerations set out below.

Design / Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

Paragraph 135 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2023) states
that planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments will function
well and add to the overall quality of the area.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (2012)
requires that new developments achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings, alterations, extensions and the public realm which enhances the local
distinctiveness of the area, contributes to community cohesion and a sense of
place.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) requires all development to be designed to the
highest standards and incorporate principles of good design, either
complementing or improving the character and appearance of the area.

Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) seeks to protect and improve the public realm.

Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) requires that alterations and extension of dwellings would not have
an adverse cumulative impact on the character and appearance of the streetscene
and should appear subordinate to the main dwelling.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 167



7.7  With regard to rear extensions, Policy DMHD 1 requires:

i) single storey rear extensions on terraced or semi-detached houses with a plot
width of 5 metres or less should not exceed 3.3 metres in depth or 3.6 metres
where the plot width is 5 metres or more;

ii) single storey rear extensions to detached houses with a plot width of 5 metres
or more should not exceed 4.0 metres in depth;

iii) flat roofed single storey extensions should not exceed 3.0 metres in height
and any pitched or sloping roofs should not exceed 3.4 metres in height,
measured from ground level;

iv) in Conservation Areas and Areas of Special Local Character, flat roofed single
storey extensions will be expected to be finished with a parapet;

v) balconies or access to flat roofs which result in loss of privacy to nearby
dwellings or gardens will not be permitted;

vi) two storey extensions should not extend into an area provided by a 45-degree
line of sight drawn from the centre of the nearest ground or first floor habitable
room window of an adjacent property and should not contain windows or other
openings that overlook other houses at a distance of less than 21 metres;

vii) flat roofed two storey extensions will not be acceptable unless the design is in
keeping with the particular character of the existing house;

viii)pitched roofs on extensions should be of a similar pitch and materials to that
of the original roof and subordinate to it in design. Large crown roofs on detached
houses will not be supported; and

ix) full width two storey rear extensions are not considered acceptable in
designated areas or as extensions to Listed Buildings or Locally Listed Buildings.

7.8 With regard to side extensions, Policy DMHD 1 requires:
i) side extensions should not exceed half the width of the original property;
i) extensions to corner plots should ensure that the openness of the area is
maintained and the return building line is not exceeded;
iii) garages should reflect the size guidelines set out in Appendix C Parking
standards;
iv) two storey side extensions should be set in a minimum of 1 metre
from the side boundary or in the case of properties in the Copse Wood and Gatehill
Estates, at least 1.5 metres, but more if on a wider than average plot, in order to
maintain adequate visual separation and views between houses;
v) two storey side extensions to detached and semi-detached properties should
be set back a minimum of 1 metre behind the main front elevation;
vi) where hip to gable roof extensions exist, a two-storey side extension will not be
supported; and
vii) in Conservation Areas, single storey side extensions may be required to be set
back.

7.9 The application proposes the retention of a two storey rear and side extension,
including amendments to fenestration and height of the existing single storey
extension. A similar scheme was recently approved on the application site (ref:
42576/APP/2024/413 dated 9™ April 2024). The scheme was subsequently built
out. However, the approved plans were inaccurate with the footprint of the

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 168



7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

neighbouring property not accurately depicted on the drawings and a slight
variation in the footprint. This application seeks to regularise the as-built scheme.

It is noted that the Planning Officer has been to site and the neighbouring
dwelling. The Officer has confirmed that the measurements on the proposed
plans, as well as the positioning of the neighbours’ extension at No. 102
Exmouth Road are accurately reflected within this revised application.

The double storey side extension has a maximum width of 2.630m, which results
in a 1.13m gap between the wall of the side extension and the wall of the
neighbouring side extension. The side extension marginally steps in and extends
back to the depth of the rear wall of the pre-existing single storey rear extension,
at both ground and first floor. The extension would not exceed half of the width of
the original dwelling and would therefore conform in principle with policy
requirements in terms of scale and width.

At first floor, the side extension is set in by 0.5m and is set down from the ridge by
0.5m. It is noted that the existing dwelling is a terraced property and as a result
does not require to be set back by 1m from the front elevation, unlike two storey
side extensions to detached and semi-detached properties as required by policy
DMHD 1.

The two-storey side extension is not set in 1m from the side boundary. However,
the immediate area has a plethora of examples whereby side extensions (both
single and two storey) have been built-up to the mutual boundary. A survey of
properties along the street shows that there is a variety of side extensions that
have been completed over time. The following properties also have two storey
side extensions that do not maintain a 1 metre set in from the side boundary.
These include property Nos. 48, 56, 120, 142 and 160 Exmouth Road, along on
the same side of the street as the application site. On the opposite side of the
street, Nos. 47, 49, 97, 115, 129 and 135 all have two storey side elements that
also do not strictly conform with the policy guidance.

Furthermore, there has been two allowed appeals in recent years at Nos. 48 and
129 Exmouth Road. Within paragraph 6 of the appeal decision ref.
APP/R5510/D/19/3232054 (48 Exmouth Road), the Planning Inspector
commented that although the scheme was not technically compliant with the 1
metre set in, the overall design of the extension allowed the scheme to maintain
an openness between the neighbouring property at No. 50 Exmouth Road. The
Planning Inspector also noted that a large proportion of properties on the street
had extensions close to the boundary, stating the following:

“However, in this case, the design of the first floor element, including
the pitched roof design, the position 1m from the side boundary,; and
the set back from the main front wall, would ensure that a sufficient
gap would be provided to No 50 to preserve the visual break between
these neighbouring properties. Consequently, the buildings would
continue to be viewed in the street scene as separate, distinct
entities. Whilst the ground floor element would be close to the side

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 169



boundary, a large proportion of properties in the street scene have
side extensions or garages that are close to the side boundary. The
proposed development would not, therefore, lead to a significant
terracing effect or appear cramped or out of place in the street
scene.” (Appeal Decision 48 Exmouth Road
APP/R5510/D/19/3232054)

7.15 Unlike neighbouring examples, the application does retain an adequate gap
between the site itself and the neighbouring dwelling, retaining side access. It is
therefore considered that given the multitude of examples, a refusal on this basis
would not hold up at appeal. In addition to this, application reference
42576/APP/2024/413 does hold some weight and is a material planning
consideration given the marginal discrepancies between the previous application
and that currently under consideration. The previous application considered the
extensions to be subservient and acceptable in terms of set in from the side
boundary.

7.16 As such, it is considered that the proposed development would respect the
architectural composition of the host dwelling, and it would not have a
detrimental impact on the existing dwelling house and street scene. The overall
design and scale would be sympathetic to the existing dwelling. It is considered,
given its modest size and design, the proposed two storey side extension would
not cause harm to the character and appearance of the dwelling, nor would it
lead to a cramped form of development along the street scene. Given the
prevailing character, the slight departure from the policy on two storey side
extensions is therefore acceptable in this instance.

7.17 Tothe rear, the roof of the existing single storey rear extension has been amended
and raised in height, with a flat roof and centralised roof light. The eaves of the flat
roof measures 2.7m. At first floor the dwelling benefits from a 3.3m deep rear
extension which measures 5.2m wide, where it integrates with the single storey
element which extends the remaining width of the property to the southern
boundary with No. 98 Exmouth Road.

7.18 It is acknowledged that at ground floor the side/rear extension breaches the 45-
degree sight line from the nearest kitchen window at No. 102 Exmouth Road. The
breach is marginal as demonstrated on the plans and in addition to this, the kitchen
benefits from a large secondary window which would not be obstructed. On this
basis, it is acceptable in respect to design and impact on character and
appearance. The impact on sunlight and daylight is considered further in this
committee report.

7.19 Given the acceptable depth, height and overall massing, the extension appears
both proportionate and a subordinate addition to the original building. The set
down from the roof and the overall roof form would be sympathetic to its original
design. The two-storey rear extension would be a subservient addition that
would not appear as an incongruous or over-dominant form of development
when seen from the rear of the property.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 170



7.20 Overall, the proposal is considered to satisfactorily integrate with the appearance
of the original dwelling, and considering the surrounding context of neighbouring
development it would not unduly harm the character, appearance and visual
amenities of the host dwelling and the surrounding area. As such, the development
proposal would accord with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHD 1
of the Hillingdon Local plan - Part Two (2020).

Residential Amenity

7.21 Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) states that new developments should not result in
loss of privacy, overlooking and loss of sunlight and daylight.

7.22 Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) requires that alterations and extension of dwellings do not result in
an unacceptable loss of outlook to neighbouring occupiers.

7.23 The primary neighbours to consider in terms of amenity impacts are No. 102
Exmouth Road and No. 98 Exmouth Road, located to the North and South,
respectively.

45-degree sight line

7.24 As mentioned previously, it is acknowledged that at ground floor the extension
breaches the 45-degree sight line from the nearest ground floor window at No.
102 Exmouth Road, which serves the kitchen. The breach is marginal as
demonstrated on the plans and in addition to this, the kitchen benefits from a large
secondary window which would not be obstructed. These kitchen windows on the
rear elevation of No. 102 Exmouth Road can be seen in Figure 4. On this basis, it
is acceptable and would not lead to a sense of enclosure. The outlook from these
windows would remain onto the rear garden without being compromised. The
effect on sunlight and daylight is considered in the paragraphs below.

7.25 No. 98 Exmouth Road also benefits from a single storey extension which is sited
next to the existing single storey rear extension at the application site. There are
no concerns raised regarding the marginal increase in height of the adjacent single
storey rear extension.

7.26 At first floor the extensions clear the 45-degree sight lines from the nearest
habitable room windows at both Nos. 102 and 98 Exmouth Road.

Daylight/Sunlight Assessment

7.27 Objectors have raised concerns regarding the impact of the extensions on the
adjacent neighbouring property at No.102 Exmouth Road.

7.28 The applicants have provided a Daylight/Sunlight (DLSL) Assessment to support
the application. It is noted that an objection has been received in regards to the

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 171



accuracy of these measurements, however, to confirm, the DLSL Assessment is
based on the most recent drawing, of which the measurements were verified by
the Planning Officer through a site survey at both the application site and the
neighbouring property.

7.29 The Daylight/Sunlight Assessment has assessed the light impacts on the
neighbouring properties at Nos. 98 and 102 Exmouth Road and has used the
Building Research Establishmnet guide: Site Layout Planning for Daylight and
Sunlight: A Guide to Good Practice (2022) which is the recognised standard for
daylight and sunlight assessments. The BRE guidance provides numerical
guidelines although it is emphasised that advice given is not mandatory and the
guidance should not be seen as an instrument of planning policy, but these
(numerical guidelines) should be interpreted flexibly.

Figure 7: Windows tested at Nos. 98 and 102 Exmouth Road

-

o ' . sl > a :
]y 2B ExmoutiiRoad! &

w

b3

Daylight Impact

7.30 The daylight report has applied the Vertical Sky Component (VSC) to assess the
neighbouring windows against loss of daylight. The BRE Guidelines stipulate at
paragraph 2.2.23 that:

If any part of a new building or extension, measured in a vertical section
perpendicular to a main window wall of an existing building, from the centre of the
lower window, subtends an angle of more than 25 degrees to the horizonal, then

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 172



the diffuse daylighting of the existing building may be adversely affected. This will
be the case if either:
e The VSC measures at the centre of an existing main window is less than
27%, and less than 0.80 times its former value.
e The area of the working plane in a room which can received direct skylight
is reduced to less than 0.8 times its former value.

In simpler words, the BRE Guidance advises that a room with 27% VSC or at least
80% of the former value, will be adequately lit. In cases where rooms are lit by
more than one window, the average of their VSC should be taken.

Table 2: Daylight impact assessment on tested windows demonstrating
compliance with BRE guidance*

Vertical Sky Component
Building Name Window VsC VSsC or/E Meets BRE
Name Existing Proposed r/Ex Criteria
98 Exmouth Rd W1 39.62 38.99 98% YES
98 Exmouth Rd W2 39.62 3941 99% YES
102 Exmouth Rd w1 34.57 27.78 80% YES
102 Exmouth Rd W2 38.07 34 89% YES
102 Exmouth Rd W3 38.62 37.87 98% YES
102 Exmouth Rd W4 39.44 38.01 96% YES
| 102 Exmouth Rd W5 39.54 38.94 98% YES
102 Exmouth Rd W6 34,32 34.32 100% YES

* Extracted from pp. 7-8, ‘Analysis of Site Layout for Sunlight and Daylight - Neighbouring
Analysis’, dated November 2024, Stinton Jones Consulting Engineers.

7.31 The potentially affected windows of the neighbouring dwelling at No. 102 Exmouth
to the north, have been tested for reductions in light because of the two-storey
rear extension. A total of six windows were tested at this property and all six
windows have passed the VSC test.

7.32 The nearest ground floor window which is closest to the extension at W2 showed
a slight reduction in daylight values from 38.07% to 34%. As this would remain
over the 27% requirement under the BRE guidelines, it therefore meets the VSC
criteria. Similarly, the second ground floor window serving this kitchen (W3) was
also tested and the proposed VSC results demonstrate that the percentage light
is well above 27% threshold with a figure of 37.87%. These windows would retain
an acceptable 89 percent (W2) and 98 percent (W3) of their pre-development
daylight values.

7.33 The dining room window at No. 102 Exmouth Road (W86) is set further away from
the extension and no changes to the daylight provision has occurred, retaining
100 percent of the pre-development daylight. At first floor W4 serves a bathroom
(non-habitable room) and W5 serves the first-floor bedroom. This bedroom
window (W5) remains at a 38.94% daylight value, which is well above the 27%
requirement to be considered adequately lit. The impact to this bedroom would be

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 173



a 2 percent loss of daylight, retaining 98 percent of its pre-development value. The
assessment confirms that all potentially affected windows at No. 102 Exmouth
Road meet the BRE Criteria for daylight provision and is acceptable.

7.34 On the southern boundary is No. 98 Exmouth Road. Given the existence of a
single storey extension, only two windows on the first floor were identified for
testing. As this property already passed the 45-degree test, there were no
concerns regarding daylight and sunlight. Nevertheless, both windows tested
passed the VSC test and would retain sufficient daylight well above the 27% value.

7.35 Overall, the daylight assessment confirms that all windows tested meet the VSC
criteria set out in the BRE guide: Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight:
A Guide to Good Practice (2022). As such, Officers are satisfied that the two-
storey extension would not lead to an unacceptable loss of daylight to either
neighbouring property.

Sunlight Impact

7.36 The effect on sunlight has been evaluated through the Annual Probable Sunlight
Hours (APSH) test. This tests sunlight to windows of habitable rooms which fall
within 90-degrees due south of the development and calculates how many hours
in a year a window would receive direct sunlight. The BRE Guidelines state that
sunlight will be adversely affected if after the development, sunlight received in a
year is less than 25% of APSH (or less that 5% annual probable sunlight hours
between 21st September and 21st March). Where a development causes a
reduction below these values, the reduction should not be greater than 20% of its
former value.

7.37 Paragraph 3.2.3 of the BRE Guidelines is quite clear in the windows that need to
be assessed for loss of sunlight. It states

“To assess loss of sunlight to an existing building, it is suggested
that all main living rooms of dwellings and conservatories, should
be checked if they have a window facing within 90 degrees of due
south. Kitchens and bedrooms are less important, although care
should be taken not to block too much sun. Normally loss of sunlight
need not be analysed to kitchens and bedrooms.” (Quotation from
Building Research Establishment guide: Site Layout Planning for
Daylight and Sunlight: A Guide to Good Practice (2022) page 24)

7.38 As such, it is important to emphasise that there is no requirement within the BRE
Guidance to analyse North-facing windows for sunlight. It is only windows within
90 degrees of due south that should be tested. Therefore, the only window to be
assessed for sunlight impacts at No. 102 Exmouth Road is W1. This window is
situated at first floor level along the flank wall. Whilst this window most likely serves
the stairwell (non-habitable room), the results of the testing nevertheless
demonstrate that this window complies with the sunlight requirement. Specifically,
this window would still receive an APSH of greater than 25 percent for the whole
year (66 percent) and a Winter PSH of greater than 5 percent (16 percent).

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 174



7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

7.43

Table 3: Impact on sunlight to applicable neighbouring windows,
demonstrating compliance with BRE guidance*

Annual Probable Sunlight Hours
Building
. ) Meets ) . Meets
Name Window | Window | Annual | Annual Winter | Winter

. . Pr/Ex | BRE Pr/Ex | BRE

Name | Orientation Ex Pr . Ex Pr .
Criteria Criteria

102 E;dmou':h w1l 153° 76 66 87% YES 22 16 73% YES

* Extracted from p. 8, ‘Analysis of Site Layout for Sunlight and Daylight - Neighbouring Analysis’,
dated November 2024, Stinton Jones Consulting Engineers.

Further to this and as already noted, the window serves a hallway which is a non-
habitable room and as such, the impact on sunlight would not be assessed in the
same way as for example a living room space. On these findings, Officers are
satisfied that the proposed extension would comply with the BRE guidance and
not lead to an adverse loss of sunlight to the main habitable rooms of No. 102
Exmouth Road over and above the existing circumstances. This is largely due to
the neighbouring property site orientation.

With regards to No. 98 Exmouth Road, as the two-storey rear extension would be
outside the 45-degree line of the nearest windows of this neighbouring property,
there is no requirement for a sunlight analysis to be carried out for this
neighbouring property.

Therefore, the only window to be assessed for Sunlight is W1 at No. 102, which
passes the BRE guidance and therefore the impact of the development is
acceptable.

Sunlight to Garden

Another concern that has been raised from the representations received, is the
level of overshadowing to the rear garden at No. 102 Road from the proposed
development. The Daylight and Sunlight Assessment has also undertaken a
review of the level of sunlight received to both neighbouring properties.

In paragraph 3.3.17 of the BRE Daylight Sunlight Guidance document it states:

It is recommended that for it to appear adequately sunlit throughout
the year, at least half of a garden or amenity area should receive at
least two hours of sunlight on the 21 March. If as a result of new
development, an existing garden or amenity area does not meet the
above, and the area that can receive two hours of sun on 21 March is
less than 0.8 times its former value, then the loss of sunlight is likely
to be noticeable. (Quotation from Building Research Establishment
guide: Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight: A Guide to Good
Practice (2022) page 29)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 175



7.44

7.45

7.46

7.47

7.48

Table 4: Daylight impact assessment on tested windows demonstrating
compliance with BRE guidance*

Sunlight to Gardens
Building Name | ppenity Lit Lit Existing | Proposed Meets
Area Area Area % % Pr/Ex ?RE.
Ex Pr Criteria
98 Exmouth Rd 61.39 38.78 38.78 63% 63% 100% YES
102 Exmouth Rd 152.26 125.40 | 115.47 82% 76% 92% YES

* Extracted from p. 8, ‘Analysis of Site Layout for Sunlight and Daylight - Neighbouring Analysis’,
dated November 2024, Stinton Jones Consulting Engineers.

The submitted Daylight and Sunlight Assessment demonstrates that sunlight
amenity to both neighbouring gardens at Nos. 98 and 102 Exmouth Road would
retain adequate sunlight on March 215t For No. 98 Exmouth Road, the lit area
would not alter from the existing circumstance, meaning that the extension would
have no impact on sunlight to their garden.

The findings for No. 102 Exmouth Road show that prior to the extension, 82% of
the existing garden received at least 2 hours of sunlight on 215t March. This would
fall to 76% of the garden receiving sunlight on this day, with the extension built.
Whilst it is accepted that there would be a slight increase in overshadowing, this
would still be well within BRE guidance which advises at least 50% of the garden
to be acceptable. The level of sunlight value for the neighbour’s garden at No. 102
Exmouth Road would remain above 80% (0.8 times its former value) of their
original sunlight value (at 92%).

Whilst there is a slight increase in overshadowing from the pre-existing garden
conditions, this would not be uncommon for proposed development works of this
nature. Given that this overshadowing is modest and is within the guidelines set
out in the BRE guidance, the impacts of overshadowing to the garden at No. 102
Exmouth Road is acceptable and would not represent a justifiable ground to refuse
the application.

Representations from third parties and residents on Daylight Sunlight Assessment

Representations were received regarding the accuracy of the DLSL assessment
and if the assessment should have been based on a 3D model rather than the
plans. However, given the significant margins of compliance and taking into
account what rooms the windows serve, and if there are secondary windows
serving the rooms, the findings indicate that the results would not materially differ
with the use of such technologies. As such, requesting 3D analysis would not be
proportionate or reasonable.

A further letter was received during the consultation stage from The Daylight Lab
representing a neighbouring property as their “formal objection to the scheme”.
The Daylight Lab commented on the detail within the applicant’s Daylight Sunlight

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 176



report. The Daylight Lab letter confirmed that they “do not dispute the overall
findings of the submitted Daylight & Sunlight Assessment, in so much as the
overarching aims of the BRE guidance are met and daylight tests were found to
produce acceptable results”. However, they “wish to draw attention to the
limitations of sunlight testing, whereby any window that faces even slightly north
of due east or west and/or does not serve a living room is ignored.” Rather, they
“believe that sunlight test results to all the rear facing windows at No.102 should
be deemed a material consideration”. Were these windows to be assessed, the
Daylight Lab concluded that they would fall below the APSH criteria and winter
testing. Similarly, the letter highlighted the overshadowing of the garden area
closest the neighbour’s rear fagade as representing an important area of amenity
being closest to the garden access door and kitchen.

7.49 The points raised within the letter are duly noted. However , the Building Research
Establishment guide: Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight: A Guide to
Good Practice (2022) is the recognised standard for sunlight and daylight
assessments across most Local Planning Authorities in England and Wales. This
is also set out in the Local Plan.

7.50 Para 5.41 of of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) states that:

The Council will aim to minimise the impact of the loss of daylight
and sunlight and unacceptable overshadowing caused by new
development on habitable rooms, amenity space and public open
space. The Council will also seek to ensure that the design of new
development optimises the levels of daylight and sunlight. The
Council will expect the impact of the development to be assessed
following the methodology set out in the most recent version of the
Building Research Establishments (BRE) “Site layout planning for
daylight and sunlight: A guide to good practice”.

Consequently, there is no justification for departing from the established
and recognised methodology and testing (nationally and locally) for
assessing sunlight and daylight impacts of a development.

7.51 As the Daylight Sunlight report submitted by the Applicant is assessed against the
methodologies within the BRE Daylight Sunlight guidance and as outlined within
the Local Plan, it would not be reasonable to require the kitchen windows to be
tested for sunlight given they would not be positioned 90-degree due south.
Similarly, garden sunlight would meet the methodology and testing set out in the
BRE guidance which are not disputed by Daylight Lab. As such it would not lead
to a significant decrease in the outdoor amenity space to warrant a refusal, given
it meets the BRE tests.

7.52 In spite of the comments received from the third party Daylight Sunlight
professional, the Local Planning Authority are satisfied that the development
would not cause detrimental harm to either neighbouring amenities (Nos. 98 and
102 Exmouth Road) from a daylight and sunlight perspective.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 177



Privacy

7.53 Objectors also raised concerns regarding privacy resulting from the side elevation
windows and first floor rear elevation windows.

7.54 ltis noted that the side elevation windows serve a WC/shower room and ensuite
at the ground and first floors. These are obscurely glazed, as confirmed on the site
visit. Notwithstanding this, a condition will be added to ensure they remain as
obscured glazing and non-opening below 1.8 metres from floor level.

7.55 The first floor rear elevation window serves a bedroom and would have similar
views and outlook as the pre/existing first floor rear elevation and is acceptable. It
is noted that the other first floor rear elevation window serves a bathroom and is
shown to be obscurely glazed. Notwithstanding this, there would be no concerns
with undue overlooking should it be clear glazed, given that it overlooks the rear
garden of the application site. It is also noted that there is no policy to demand
obscured glazing specifically for bathrooms, where there would not be any
concerns with neighbouring amenity impacts. Consequently, it is not considered
necessary to condition this rear elevation window to be obscure glazed. In
addition, the adjacent neighbour to the rear of the site (No. 119 Queens Walk) has
a separation distance in excess of 38 metres, window to window.

7.56 For the reasons outlined above, it is concluded that the proposal would have an
acceptable impact on neighbouring residential amenity in compliance with policies
DMHD 1 and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020).

Living Conditions — Application Property

External Amenity Space

7.57 The property would retain over 100sq.m of private amenity space post
development to meet the standards set out in Table 5.3 of Policy DMHB 18
(Private Outdoor Amenity Space) of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development
Management Policies (2020). The proposal, therefore, would not undermine the
provision of external amenity space, in accordance with Policy DMHB 18 and
Policy DMHD 1 of the Development Plan.

Internal Amenity
7.58 It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms would maintain an
adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore complying with Policy D6

of the London Plan (2021).

Highways and Parking

7.59 Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) seeks to ensure that developments provide acceptable levels of
car parking in line with the Council's Parking Standards (Appendix C Table 1).

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 178



7.60 The former garage was converted to a habitable room under a previous planning
permission (ref. 42576/APP/2018/774 dated 9™ April 2024). As such, the parking
provision would remain unchanged by the proposals. The proposal would,
therefore, be in accordance with Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part
Two - Development Management Policies (2020).

8 Other Matters

8.1 Human Rights

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

8.2 Equality
Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

8.3 Local Finance Considerations and CIL

Not applicable. The proposed development is not CIL liable.

9 Conclusion / Planning Balance

9.1 Onbalance, itis considered that the proposed development would not cause harm
to the character and appearance of the host dwelling and the surrounding area or
adversely impact the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers. The proposal
would accord with the overarching objectives of the Development Plan.
Consequently, the application is recommended for approval subject to the
conditions set out in Appendix 1.

10 Background Papers

10.1 Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's
website here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this
report and using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 179



inspect electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15th January 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 180



APPENDICES
Planning Application

42576/APP/2024/2465

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 181



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on Drawing Numbers: 100ER/P101 Rev B and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1
(2012) and Part 2 (2020), and the London Plan (2021).

3. HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed development
does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building in accordance
with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

4, HO5 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order
with or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

5. HO6 Obscure Glazing

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 182 20f6



The side windows facing 102 Exmouth Road shall be glazed with permanently obscured
glass to at least scale 4 on the Pilkington scale and be non-opening below a height of 1.8
metres taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6. HO7 No roof gardens

Access to the flat roof over the extension hereby approved shall be for maintenance or
emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a roof garden, terrace,
balcony, patio or similar amenity area.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Informatives

1. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 183 30f6



LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards
NPPF12 -23 NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 184 4 0of 6



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

42576/APP/2018/774 100 Exmouth Road Ruislip

Conversion of garage to habitable use, single storey side/rear extension and alterations to
roof of existing single storey rear extension

Decision: 15-05-2018 Approved

42576/APP/2024/413 100 Exmouth Road Ruislip
Erection of a two storey side/ rear extension
Decision: 09-04-2024 Approved

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 185 50f 6



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1

Part 2 Policies:

DMHB 11
DMHB 12
DMHB 18
DMHD 1
DMT 6
LPP D3
LPP D6

NPPF12 -23

(2012) Built Environment

Design of New Development

Streets and Public Realm

Private Outdoor Amenity Space

Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings

Vehicle Parking

(2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
(2021) Housing quality and standards

NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 186

6 of 6



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report Part 2 — Application Report

Case Officer: Daniel Ambrose 79116/APP/2024/2794
Date Application | 21.10.2024 Statutory / Agreed | 24.01.2025
Valid: Determination
Deadline:
Application Householder | Ward: Hayes
Type:
Applicant: Mr Issacharof
Site Address: 38 Varcoe Gardens, Hayes
Proposal: Conversion of integral garage to habitable

accommodation with alterations to fenestration.

Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to
Recommendation: conditions

Reason Reported Required under Part 3 of the Planning Scheme of
to Committee: Delegation (Petition received)

www.hillingdon.gov.uk

LONDON




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

Executive Summary

This householder planning application proposes alterations to No. 38 Varcoe
Gardens in Hayes and includes the conversion of the garage to habitable use.

Cumulatively, the proposed conversion and alterations are considered to comply
with the objectives of the relevant planning policies and the proposal would not
give rise to any significant harm to the character and appearance of the host
dwelling or streetscene in which the site is situated.

The proposal would have an acceptable impact on neighbouring residential
amenity and would not adversely affect highway safety, or cause harm in other
respects.

Due regard has been given to local residents’ objections, however it is concluded
that the proposal complies with the Development Plan and no material
considerations indicate that a contrary decision should be taken.

The planning application is therefore recommended for approval subject to the
conditions set out in Appendix 1.

The Site and Locality

The application property is a three storey mid-terrace dwelling situated within the
new residential estate, Varcoe Gardens. In terms of its frontage, the property is
characterised by an entrance and garage door at ground floor level with a juliette
balcony and window to the upper floor levels (refer to figure 1 below).

The surrounding area is residential. Dwellings within this area are predominantly
of uniform design / appearance. The application dwelling is finished in render and
brick and has a tiled pitched roof, characteristic of the area.

The application property includes a front and rear garden, providing off street
parking accessed via a vehicular cross-over.

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Rating Level of 1 (poor).

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" of January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 188



Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)
& /

N
S
0 25m 50m 100m

SCALE 1:1250

C] Property Boundary

Property Boundary Area= 135.01 sqm

Internal G.1.A=126.49 sqm

& 174

—

SN

3 Proposal

3
Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15t of January 2025
PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 189



3.1 The application proposes the conversion of integral garage to habitable
accommodation with alterations to fenestration (proposed plan shown at Figure 4
and 6 below).

Figure 3: Existing Elevations (please note — larger version of plan can be found
in the Committee Plan Pack)

:j Rear ~, Front
1 1:100 <2/ 1:100

eﬁ’oﬂop o= — — | S
11013

eﬁw% il I il _ _ Il il - _
8013 = Fierre| | . ]

2SECOND
5323

1FIRST

2786

i)

e 0GROUND | =
@_E(;;/d Level o
0 — —

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" of January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 190



Figure 4: Proposed Elevations

< Rear (2) Front
\> 1:100 \%/ 1:100
L P-S001,
ROOF TOP = & . o E; | L
/11013 L
11 11Ad)
4ROOF M
L/ 8013
/I_2SECOND
5323
1FIRST.
2786
?ERCEND
é_ﬁ:oﬁe/dLevel
0

Figure 5: Existing Floor Plan

Figure 6: Proposed Floor Plan

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" of January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 191



4.1

5.1

6.1

6.2

Relevant Planning History

A list of the planning history related to the property can be found in Appendix 2.

Planning Policy

A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

Consultations and Representations

Five neighbouring properties were consulted on 29th October 2024.
Representations and a petition were received in response to public consultation
are summarised in Table 1 (below). Consultee responses received are
summarised in Table 2 (below). Full copies of the responses have been made

available to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Representations Received

Representations | Summary of Issues Planning Officer

Raised Response
4 individual letters | I. Concerns that the The use of the property as
of objection have property will be used as | an HMO is not part of the
been received. an HMO

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" of January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 192



current planning
application.

. Parking Stress

Discussed at paragraph
7.14 of this report.

. Disrupt the uniform

architecture and

Discussed at paragraphs
7.2 — 7.9 of this report.

overlooking to
neighbouring properties

streetscene

IVV. Lack of disability Discussed at paragraphs
justification 7.8 of this report.

V. Loss of privacy / Discussed at paragraphs

7.10 — 7.12 of this report.

property will be used as
an HMO

V1. Concern about Contractors will be
construction impact required to adhere to all
regulations to limit this
impact on neighbours.
A petition of [I. Parking Stress Discussed at paragraph
objection with 20 7.14 of this report.
signatures was
received.

[ll. Disrupt the uniform Discussed at paragraphs
architecture and 7.2 — 7.9 of this report.
streetscene

IX. Lack of disability Discussed at paragraph
justification 7.8 of this report.

X. Concerns that the The use of the property as

an HMO is not part of the
current planning
application.

Table 2: Summary of Consultee Responses

Consultee and Summary of Comments

Planning Officer
Response

Highways

The planning permission is sought for conversion of
integral garage to habitable accommodation. The
property is a terraced dwelling and benefits from a
driveway. In accordance with London Plan 2021
Policy T6.1 Residential Parking, if this was a new
development there would be 0.75 car parking space
be allocated. As this is an existing dwelling and on

Noted.

This matter is
discussed at
paragraph 7.14 of this
report.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" of January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 193




7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

the basis that when the development is built out
there would still be off street parking available, there
are no objections from the Highways Authority for
this proposal.

Planning Assessment

Principle of Development

The proposal is for conversions and alterations to an existing residential dwelling.
As such, the principle of development is supported by national, regional and local
planning policies, subject to the considerations set out below.

Character and Appearance

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policies (2012) seeks
a quality of design in all new development that enhances and contributes to the
area in terms of form, scale and materials; is appropriate to the identity and
context of the townscape; and would improve the quality of the public realm and
respect local character.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) advises that all development will be required to be
designed to the highest standards and incorporate principles of good design.
Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) states that development should be well integrated
with the surrounding area.

Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) states that alterations and extension of dwellings
should not have an adverse cumulative impact on the character and appearance
of the street scene and should appear subordinate to the main dwelling.

Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) states that development should be well integrated
with the surrounding area.

The proposed conversion of the integral garage to habitable accommodation
would involve replacing the existing garage door on the front elevation with a
window of a similar style to the existing windows on the property to facilitate the
use of the room as a step-free additional living space.

There is one other garage conversions within the Estate at no. 85. The Estate
itself is very uniform in its design with all the three storey terraced dwellings
including an integral garage at ground floor. This being the case the proposal
would cause some visual harm to the uniformity of the area, however given that

8

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" of January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 194



no.85 has benefited from conversion, officers do not see a reason to warrant
refusal due to its modest and architecturally sympathetic design.

7.8 The applicant has advised that there is a need for an additional living space on
ground floor level at the property on medical grounds. However, the proposals are
considered to be acceptable, as set out in this report, independently of that
assertion. A condition will be added to ensure that the building materials and
windows match the existing property.

7.9 Overall, the current proposal is considered to satisfactorily integrate with the
appearance of the original dwelling and taking into account the surrounding
context of neighbouring development it would not harm the character, appearance
and visual amenities of the area. As such, the development proposal would
accord with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012), Policies DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon
Local plan - Part Two (2020).

Residential Amenity

7.1  Policy DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development

0 Management Policies (2020) states that planning applications relating to
alterations and extensions of dwellings will be required to ensure that: ii) a
satisfactory relationship with adjacent dwellings is achieved; and v) there is no
unacceptable loss of outlook to neighbouring occupiers.

7.1 Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development

1 Management Policies (2020) seeks to ensure that development proposals do not
adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and
open space.

7.1 There would be no harm to the amenities of the neighbouring properties as no

2 overlooking would be created, and as no additional floorspace is created, there
would be no loss of light, loss of outlook, nor would it be overbearing. The host
would still retain their parking space to the front of the property, therefore no
additional parking strain would be created.

Highways and Parking

7.1 Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management

3 Policies (2020) states that development proposals must comply with the parking
standards outlined in Appendix C Table 1 in order to facilitate sustainable
development and address issues relating to congestion and amenity.

7.1 The existing driveway would be retained to accommodate at least 1 vehicle with
4 on street parking being available also, in accordance with adopted Council

9
Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" of January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 195



8.1

8.2

parking standards, additional parking provision would not be required as
adequate parking remains.

Trees and Landscaping

The proposal would maintain the existing use of the site frontage for parking
provision. As such, the 25% soft landscaping stipulation in Policy DMHD 1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) would not be appropriate to impose as a
planning condition in this case.

The existing site benefits from a large rear garden with mature vegetation and the
proposed extensions are being built upon existing hard standing areas with no
existing landscaping being affected. No other significant issues are raised in
respect of trees and / or landscaping.

Air Quality
The site does not lie within the Hillingdon Air Quality Management Area,

nevertheless the proposal raises no significant issues in this regard due to the
nature of the proposed development (householder development).

Drainage

The site is not identified as at particular risk from flooding or drainage issues.
Drainage will be satisfactorily controlled through the Building Regulations in this
case.

Other Matters

Human Rights

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

Local Finance Considerations and CIL

10

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" of January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 196



8.3

9.1

10

Not applicable. The proposed development is not CIL liable.

Conclusion / Planning Balance

The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and no material
considerations indicate that a contrary decision should be taken. Consequently,
the application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

Background Papers

Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's website
here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this report and
using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to inspect
electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

11

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" of January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 197



APPENDICES
Planning Application

79116/APP/2024/2794

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 198



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers: EX-L001, P-P001, P-P002, P-P003,
P-P004, P-E001, P-E002, P-E003 and P-S001.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1
(2012) and Part 2 (2020), and the London Plan (2021).

3. HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed development
does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building in accordance
with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Informatives

1. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 199 20f5



153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking
LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 200 30of5



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 201 4 0f 5



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies
The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHD 1 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 202 50f5



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report— Application Report

Case Officer: Becky Smith 2297/APP/2024/2171
Date Application | 12.08.2024 Statutory / Agreed | 17.01.2025
Valid: Determination

Deadline:
Application S73 Ward: Wood End
Type:
Applicant: Department for Education
Site Address: Minet Junior School, Avondale Drive, Hayes
Proposal: An application submitted under Section 73 of the

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to vary
Condition 2 (Approved Drawings) of planning
permission reference 2297/APP/2021/2704, dated
17-09-2021 (Extensions, remodelling and
refurbishment of the existing Nursery, Infant and
Junior Schools) to make alterations, including
changes to hard and soft landscaping, bin
storage, and cycle storage (Part Retrospective
and Part Proposed).

Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to
Recommendation: conditions

Reason Reported Required under Part 6 of the Planning Scheme of
to Committee: Delegation (the Council has a financial liability)

www.hillingdon.gov.uk

LONDON




1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

Executive Summary

Planning permission was granted for extensions, remodelling and refurbishment
of the existing Minet Nursery, Infant and Junior Schools under planning permission
reference 2297/APP/2021/2704, dated 17" September 2021. The current
planning application submitted under Section 73 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 seeks permission to vary Condition 2 (Approved Drawings) of
this permission to make alterations. These alterations involve changes to hard and
soft landscaping, bin storage, and cycle storage.

No neighbouring objections or comments were received during public consultation
on the application, which included letters, a site notice and a press notice.
Following receipt of revised plans to secure landscape enhancements, no
objections were received from any internal and external consultees, including
Sport England.

It is considered that the principle of these changes and the associated visual
impact when viewed from the street scene are acceptable. It is therefore
concluded, taking all matters into account, that planning permission should be
granted subject to conditions set out within Appendix 1.

The Site and Locality

Minet School is located on the north side of Avondale Drive and comprises one
and two storey buildings situated within large grounds largely comprised of open
playing fields. Please see Figure 1 which shows the extent of the site outlined in
red.

The school is surrounded by residential properties in Hughes Road to the north,
Avondale Drive to the south, Hitherbroom Road to the west and Abbotswood Way
to the east, which gives the area an overall residential character and appearance.

The site forms part of the designated Hillingdon Air Quality Management Area.
The Hitherbroom Park Nature Conservation Area of Grade 2 importance is located
immediately to the north of the site. A tree preservation area (TPO 320) is also
designated to the south of the site on land at Bourton Close and Avondale Drive.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 204



Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)

A plealInn
g

MBI
=il

!

2.4  Photographs of the site are show in Figures 2, 3 and 4 as follows.

Figure 2: Photograph of the Application Site — Bin Storage Area

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 205



Figure 3: Photograph of the Application Site — Fencing and Gates

1111
L J_.; ¥

Figure 4: Photograph of the Application Site — Previously removed pond

3 Proposal
Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 206



3.1 Planning permission was granted in 2021 for extensions, as well as the
remodelling and refurbishment of the nursery, infant and junior schools at the site
(ref. 2297/APP/2021/2704, dated 17-09-2021). This application seeks to make
minor material amendments to the hard and soft landscaping, bin storage and
cycle storage. This would require Condition 2 (approved drawings) to be varied
under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. A list of the
proposed alterations is contained in paragraph 7.11.

Figure 5: Proposed Site Plan (please note — larger version of plan can be found
in the Committee Plan Pack)

Figure 6: Proposed Bin Store Plan (please note — larger version of plan can be
found in the Committee Plan Pack)

' ' i
7 — ——n 1
\ L—ﬁmm" |

D] | Tl
. % s ~ et | f
+

\“‘7\ I

i T ~ < |
! : - Tay
BLATTETLTIETTIT ] | e

| i e aarecerag
b=
fo— y
N+

]
¥
-

4 Relevant Planning History
Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 207



41

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

6.2

Application ref. 2297/APP/2021/2704 - Full Planning permission was granted in
2021 for extensions, remodelling and refurbishment of the existing Nursery, Infant
and Junior Schools

Application ref. 2297/APP/2023/751 — An application submitted under Section
73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 was approved in 2023 to vary
Condition 2 (Approved Drawings) of planning permission reference
2297/APP/2021/2704, dated 17-09-2021, for extensions, remodelling and
refurbishment of the existing Nursery, Infant and Junior Schools, to allow the
existing hall roof to be replaced.

Application ref. 2297/APP/2024/1212 - Non-Material Amendment to planning
permission ref: 2297/APP/2021/2704 was refused in 2024 as it was considered
that there was insufficient information provided within the submission to establish
whether the proposed changes were non-material in order to comply with Section
96A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Planning Policy

A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

Consultations and Representations

A total of 236 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 28-08-2024.
The consultation period ended on 18-09-2024 and no neighbouring objections
were received during the consultation period.

Internal and statutory consultee responses received on the application are
summarised in Table 1 (below). Full copies of the responses have also separately
been made available to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Internal and Statutory Consultee Responses

Consultee and Summary of Comments Planning Officer
Response

Urban Design Officer Comments

26-09-2024

1. Rubber crumb is proposed within the root Comments taken into
protection zone (RPZ) of two trees along the consideration and
northern boundary, where previously it had been revisions sought to
'rough ground'. Concern is raised regarding address concerns.
excavating so close to the trunk where it could be Revised plans
avoided. Please revert to the original plan. received.

2. The existing pergola structure is to be relocated. It
is preferable to leave this structure in situ rather than

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 208



requiring additional footings within the green space.
3. The addition of a canopy needs to be explained
with a scaled drawing.

4. Both the location of the bin and cycle store
removes additional green space. It would be
preferable for the bin and cycle stores to be located
within existing hardscape. There is potential for
either the bin store or cycle spaces in the southwest
car park between the entrance and substation.

5. The addition of planting beds around the buildings
are accepted.

6. The removal of the pond is accepted.

7. The Tiger mulch around the existing trees is
accepted. However, concern is raised that the
existing trees grills and seating is a more practical
solution as the mulch may not stay in place.

Urban Design Officer Comments
06-11-2024

1.The proposal for the climbers up the revised railing
is welcomed, however, the depth of the troughs
needs to be minimum of 450mm to support these
plants. It is recommended that part of the surface is
cut away to deliver a planting bed 400mm in width to
allow the plants to be planted into the ground.

2.The drawing also seems to now show a fence
around the car park. Is this a new addition? There
should be an additional hedge to lessen the visual
impact of this. The location of the other hedge is
welcomed.

3. The omission of the rubber crumb is supported.

4. It is also noticed that the proposals include a 2.4m
boundary fence in front of the existing. This would
result in a fence that gradually declines and falls
apart as they won’t be able to maintain it. They
should remove the old fence.

In respect of point 1,
a revised plan was
provided increasing
the depth of the
proposed troughs to
450mm to address
the Urban Design
Officer’s concerns.

In respect of point 2,
the fence around the
car park is existing
and therefore no
additional hedging
was requested in
response to this.

In respect of point 3,
this is agreed and
considered to be
resolved.

In respect of point 4,
the planning agent
has confirmed the
pre-existing fence
was removed. This is
acceptable.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 209



To conclude, all
comments have been

addressed.
Sport England Comments
27-11-2024
The Proposal and its Impact on the Playing Field Comments noted

The proposed amendments to the approved scheme
that affect playing field land appear to be as follows:
e A new location of polytunnel on the eastern
playing field,
e Cycle parking provision on the western
playing field, and
o What appears to be three trees on the
western playing field (to the east of the
northern Football pitch shown).

Assessment against Sport England’s Playing Fields
Policy:

The proposed amendments highlighted above result
in less natural playing field land than originally
approved. However, all these elements are located
in areas that are unlikely to impact either playing
fields’ ability to accommodate playing pitches or
materially impact the usability of the playing field(s)
as a whole. Sport England is, therefore, satisfied that
there is limited, if any, material impact on the playing
field compared to the approved scheme.
Consequently it considers the scheme to still broadly
meet Exception 3 of its Playing Field Policy.

Sport England’s Position:

Given the above, Sport England raises no objection
to the application because it is considered to broadly
accord with Exception 3 of our Playing Fields Policy.
If this application is to be presented to a Planning
Committee, we would like to be notified in advance
of the publication of any committee agenda(s),
report(s) and committee date(s). Please notify Sport
England of the outcome of the planning application.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 210



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Planning Assessment

Principle of Development

Education

Paragraph 100 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2024) states that it is
important that a sufficient choice of early years, school and post-16 places are
available to meet the needs of existing and new communities. Local planning
authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to meeting
this requirement, and to development that will widen choice in education. The
current application will support the upgrade and refurbishment of an existing
school to bring it up to modern day needs for local residents.

Policy S3 of the London Plan (2021) seeks to ensure there is a sufficient supply
of good quality education facilities to meet demand and offer educational choice.

Policy CI1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) seeks to ensure that
community and social infrastructure is provided in Hillingdon to cater for the needs
of the existing community and future populations by supporting extensions to
existing schools and the development of new schools and youth facilities.

Policy DMCI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states that proposals for
the refurbishment and re-use of existing premises for community facilities will be
supported.

Under the original planning application (ref. 2297/APP/2021/2704) submission for
this site, it was noted that the school was in a poor state of repair with temporary
classrooms being used to support the main function of the school. Consent was
granted for comprehensive refurbishment, remodelling and extensions to the
school to provide a good quality learning environment for both the infants and
junior schools. Great weight was attached to the school improvements and the
principle of development was strongly supported.

The current application is submitted under Section 73 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 to vary Condition 2 (Approved Drawings) of planning
permission reference 2297/APP/2021/2704 to make alterations including changes
to hard and soft landscaping, bin storage and cycle storage. The principle of these
alterations is accepted, subject to the detailed consideration of all other material
planning considerations covered elsewhere within this report.

Impact on Playing Field

Sport England's Playing Field Policy and Guidance (2018) confirms that Sport
England will oppose the granting of planning permission for any development
which would lead to the loss of, or would prejudice the use of, all or part of a
playing field, unless one of five exceptions applies.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 211



7.8 The proposed relocation of the polytunnel would occupy a small area of land on
the edge of the school’s playing field. Accordingly, the proposal prejudices the use,
or leads to the loss of use, of land being used as a playing field or has been used
as a playing field in the last five years, as defined in The Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (Statutory
Instrument 2015 No. 595). Consultation with Sport England is therefore a statutory
requirement.

7.9 The proposed development results in encroachment onto the playing field.
However, having considered the nature of the playing field and its ability to
accommodate a range of pitches, it is not considered that the development would
reduce the overall sporting capability of the site. Consequently, Officers are of the
view that the proposal broadly meets exception E3 of the playing fields policy, in
that: “The proposed development affects only land incapable of forming part of a
playing pitch and does not: reduce the size of any playing pitch; result in the
inability to use any playing pitch (including the maintenance of adequate safety
margins and run-off areas); reduce the sporting capacity of the playing field to
accommodate playing pitches or the capability to rotate or reposition playing
pitches to maintain their quality; result in the loss of other sporting provision or
ancillary facilities on the site; or prejudice the use of any remaining areas of playing
field on the site.” This being the case, Sport England have not objected to the
application.

Design
Impact on Character and Appearance

7.10 Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One — Strategic Policies (2012) and
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two — Development
Management Policies (2020) aim to ensure development is designed to the
highest standard and incorporate principles of good design, with DMHB 11 setting
out specific guidelines for this.

7.11 As outlined above, this application is submitted under Section 73 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 to vary Condition 2 (Approved Drawings) of planning
permission reference 2297/APP/2021/2704. Specifically, the proposed alterations
to the school are as follows:

- Relocation of the Infant and Junior School bin store location.

- Installation of a single gate within Infant School leading to the bin store /
service yard.

- Installation of single and double gates within Junior School leading to the
bin store / service yard.

- Installation of new planting beds to the Infant and Junior School.

- Adaptation to the Infant School fence line and planters.

- Infant school area tarmac replaced.

- Stainless steel bollards installed within the car park.

- Installation of permeable asphalt to the car park.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 212



712

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

- Cycle hoops relocated within the Junior School playground.

- Installation of an additional canopy to the existing library building within
Junior School.

- Relocation of polytunnel within the playing field.

- Installation of additional fire escape with associated paving and removal of
pond.

The proposal also initially included the installation of rubber crumb to the north of
the application site. However, during the course of the application, it was
requested by the Urban Design Officer that the installation of rubber crumb to the
north of the application site be removed, due to the projection into the root
protection zone of several trees. This was agreed by the applicant and this part of
the proposal was removed.

Part of the proposal includes the relocation of the Infant and Junior School bin
stores from their existing location to the southeast of the site, located in front of
the existing grounds keeper’s house. The reason stated for this relocation of the
bin store is to improve the hygiene standards and improve fire safety, given the
current arrangement limits access from a number of classrooms in the event of a
fire.

Whilst the need for the relocation is recognised, it is considered that the proposed
location is not optimal given the loss of soft landscaping to the front of the existing
grounds keeper’s house, to be replaced with permeable tarmac. The fencing and
gates of the bin store are characterised with a natural wooden finish, enclosing the
bins so that they are not visible.

During the course of the application, following comments from the Council’s Urban
Design Officer comments, additional soft landscaping has been included on site
in order to offset the loss of soft landscaping to accommodate the bin store. This
additional soft landscaping includes the following:

- 35 linear metres of additional hedging

- 11 metres of climbing planters to the front fagade of the bin store

Following this inclusion of additional hedging and climbing planters to mitigate the
loss of soft landscaping, the proposed new bin store would be considered
acceptable on balance. Given the bin store is located within the site, it is not visible
from the street scene along Avondale Drive or any other public vantage points
outside of the school. It is therefore considered that the proposed bin store would
not result in any significant harm to the character or appearance of the street
scene or wider area.

The installation of the single gate within the Infant School and the single and
double gates within the Junior School would provide new access to the proposed
bin store. The materials of the proposed new gates would match the existing metal
fencing and would therefore be considered acceptable in design terms and would

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 213



7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

not result in any significant harm to the character or appearance of the site or wider
street scene.

The installation of new planting beds to the Infant and Junior School, adaptation
to the Infant School fence line, installation of a new canopy to the library and
planters and relocation of the cycle hoops would also be considered acceptable in
design terms.

The replacement of the tarmac within the Infant School and the installation of
permeable asphalt to the car park is considered acceptable in design terms, given
the similar nature to the existing materials. The replacement of this hard standing
would therefore not result in any harm to the character or appearance of the site
or wider area.

The proposal also includes the addition of stainless-steel bollards to the car park.
The reason for this is to meet Building Control requirements and provide an
enhanced level of protection to pedestrians. The reason for the inclusion of the
stainless-steel bollards is supported and it is considered that their inclusion would
not result in any significant harm to the character or appearance of the site and
would be acceptable in design terms.

The proposal includes the provision of an additional fire escape with associated
paving and removal of the existing pond. Given the location and nature of the
existing pond, which is not visible from any public vantage points, its removal
would be considered acceptable. Another reason for the removal of the pond has
been stated as due to concerns around safety. This reasoning is accepted.

Finally, the proposal also includes the relocation of the polytunnel within the
playing field. Given the siting within the playing field, Sport England were
consulted on the proposal and raised no objection, given that it is considered to
comply with Exception 3 of Sport England’s Playing Fields Policy. Their comments
state that the proposed amendment would result in less natural playing field.
However, the element affected would be in areas that are unlikely to impact either
playing fields ability to accommodate playing pitches or materially impact the
usability of the playing field as a whole. On this basis, the relocation of the
polytunnel is considered acceptable in design terms.

Overall, the external soft and hard landscaping amendments set out within this
application are considered minor alterations and would not be significant changes
when viewed from the street scene. Given the inclusion of the additional hedging
and planters which offset the loss of soft landscaping resulting from the proposal
and specifically the relocation of the bin store, the proposal overall would be
accepted in design terms and is not considered to result in any significant harm in
terms of character or appearance. The proposed development is considered to
accord with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012) and Policy
DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

Access

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 214



7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

Matters relating to access have already been established by grant of the original
permission. There has been no material change in site circumstances to suggest
that the previous assessment is no longer valid.

Security

Matters relating to security have already been established by grant of the original
permission. There has been no material change in site circumstances to suggest
that the previous assessment is no longer valid.

Sustainable Waste Management

Matters relating to sustainable waste management have already been established
by grant of the original permission. There has been no material change in policy
and/or site circumstances to suggest that the previous assessment is no longer
valid.

Fire Safety

Policy D12 of the London Plan (2021) states that all major development proposals
should be submitted with a Fire Statement, which is an independent fire strategy,
produced by a third party, suitably qualified assessor. The statement should detail
how the development proposal will function in fire safety terms.

As changes have been made for a fire safety reason, an amended Fire Statement
needs to be submitted for consideration. This is proposed to be secured by
Condition 10. Subject to this condition, the proposed would accord with the
requirements of Policy D12 of the London Plan (2021).

Residential Amenity

Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two — Development
Management Policies (2020) ensures that proposals do not adversely impact on
the amenity, daylight, sunlight of adjacent properties and open space. This policy
is supported by Paragraphs 5.38, 5.40 and 5.41 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two — Development Management Policies (2020) which sets out how
development should ensure that is does not impact neighbouring privacy, outlook
and daylight and sunlight.

The closest residential neighbours to the proposed new bin store are Nos. 21 and
23 Avondale Drive to the south of the application site. These neighbours are
situated approximately 50 metres away from the proposed bin store. Neighbouring
properties along Hitherbroom Road are situated approximately 80m away to the
west and neighbouring properties along Hughes Road are situated approximately
140m away to the north. Given the separation distance between the proposed bin
store and residential neighbours, it is not considered that there would be any harm
in terms of access to daylight, sunlight, outlook or overbearing effect.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 215



7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

The other soft and hard landscaping changes proposed within the site including
the planters, installation of gates, replacement of hard landscaping, removal of
pond, is not considered to have any impact on the amenity of any residential
neighbours, in terms of access to daylight, sunlight, outlook or overbearing effect.

Overall, given the nature and siting of the proposed works, it is not considered that
the proposal would have any significant impacts on the amenity of neighbouring
residents. The proposal therefore accords with the requirements of Policy DMHB
11, part B), of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

Transport

Highways, Parking and Pedestrian Safety

Policy DMT 2 of the Local Plan: Part Two (2020) notes development proposals
must ensure that safe and efficient vehicular access to the highways network is
provided to the Council's standards and Policy DMT 6 of the Local Plan: Part Two
(2020) states that development proposals must comply with the relevant parking
standards.

The application proposes minor changes including the replacement of the hard
landscaping within the car park and playground of the school. The application also
proposes the installation of new stainless-steel bollards which aim to improve
pedestrian safety on site.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal would not materially impact the vehicular
and highways network and would have no impact on parking. It is also considered
that the proposal would improve safety for pedestrians on site which would be
supported. Other matters relating to highways, car parking and pedestrian safety
have already been established by grant of the original permission and there has
been no material change in site circumstances to suggest that the previous
assessment is no longer valid.

The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with Policy DMT 2 and
DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two — Development Management
Policies (2020).

Environmental Issues

Noise

Matters relating to noise have already been established by grant of original
permission and there has been no material change in policy and/or site
circumstances to suggest that the previous assessment is no longer valid.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 216



7.38

7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

7.43

7.44

Air Quality

Matters relating to air quality have already been established by grant of original
permission and there has been no material change in policy and/or site
circumstances to suggest that the previous assessment is no longer valid.

Trees, and Landscaping

Policy DMHB 14 of the Local Plan: Part Two (2020) notes all developments will be
expected to retain or enhance the existing landscape, trees, biodiversity and
natural features of merit. Planning applications for proposals that would affect
existing trees will be required to provide an accurate tree survey showing the
location, height, spread and species of trees.

The application site benefits from trees around all boundaries, either on, or off site.
It is noted that these trees are not specifically protected under a Tree Preservation
Order or a Conservation Area, despite this, they are considered an asset to the
street scene and providing valuable visual amenity.

The proposals set out within this application are not considered to impact any trees
within the site or surrounding land, in accordance with Policy DMHB 14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two — Development Management Policies (2020). The
proposal does, however, result in the loss of some soft landscaping to
accommodate the proposed bin store to the front of the grounds keepers house,
which would not be preferable.

However, during the course of the application, amendments were sought to
include additional hedging and climbing planters, aiming to offset the loss of soft
landscaping to accommodate the bin stores. On the basis of this additional soft
landscaping to be provided on site, it is not considered that the loss of soft
landscaping would be a robust or reasonable reason for refusal of this application.

Condition 7 is proposed to secure the implementation of the submitted
landscaping details to ensure the proposed enhancement measures will be
sufficiently successful. Since the development has already commenced and is part
retrospective, Condition 1 requires the landscaping scheme to be fully
implemented within six months of the grant of permission. Subject to these
conditions, it is considered that the proposal would accord with Policy DMHB 14
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two — Development Management Policies
(2020).

Biodiversity

Biodiversity net gain does not apply to section 73 permissions where the original
permission which the section 73 relates to was granted before 12 February 2024.
The original permission was granted on 17th September 2021 and as such,
biodiversity net gain is not relevant to the consideration of this application.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 217



Flood and Water Management

7.45 Matters relating to flood and water management have already been established
by grant of the original permission. There has been no material change in policy
and/or site circumstances to suggest that the previous assessment is no longer
valid.
Sustainability

7.46 Matters relating to sustainability have already been established by grant of the
original permission. There has been no material change in policy and/or site
circumstances to suggest that the previous assessment is no longer valid.

8 Other Matters

Human Rights

8.1  The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

8.2 Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

Local Finance Considerations and CIL

8.3 Not applicable.

9 Conclusion / Planning Balance

9.1  This application is submitted under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 to vary Condition 2 (Approved Drawings) of planning permission
reference 2297/APP/2021/2704 to make alterations, including changes to hard
and soft landscaping, bin storage, and cycle storage. The principle of these
changes and the associated minimal visual impact when viewed from the street
scene are acceptable. The changes proposed are considered to constitute minor
material amendments and it is concluded, taking all matters into account, that
planning permission should be granted subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 218



10 Background Papers

10.1 Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's website
here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this report and
using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to inspect
electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 15" January 2025

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 219



APPENDICES
Planning Application

2297/APP/2024/2171

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 220 1 of 11



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the 17th September 2021. The landscaping scheme hereby permitted and pursuant to
condition 7, shall be implemented in its entirety within 6 months of the date of this planning
permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2. COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be retained in complete accordance with the details
shown on the submitted plan numbers:

MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-0001 Rev P01
MIN-JMA-00-GF-DP-A-PL11 S1 Rev. P01
MIN-JMA-00-01-DP-A-PL11 S1 Rev. P01
MIN-JMA-00-RL-DP-A-PL-11 S1 Rev. P04
MIN-JMA-00-GF-DP-A-PL12 SI Rev. P01
MIN-JMA-00-01-DP-A-PL12 Sl Rev. P01
MIN-JMA-00-RL-DP-A-PL-12 S1 Rev. P05
MIN-JMA-00-ZZ-DE-A-PL0O1 S1 Rev. P04
MIN-JMA-00-ZZ-DE-A-PL02 S1 Rev. P04
MIN-JMA-00-ZZ-DE-A-PL0O3 S1 Rev. P04
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-1000 Rev C13
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-2008 Rev C02
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-2009 Rev C02
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-3000 Rev C05
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-3004 Rev C0O7
BX47 - Semi Domed Sheffield Stainless Steel Bollard Specifications

REASON

To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Local Plan: Part One
Strategic Policies (2012), Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020)
and the London Plan (2021).

3. COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 221 2 of 11



Design & Access Statement;

Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan (CPHSP);
Arboricultural Impact Assessment dated May 2021;
Ecological Assessment dated January 2021;
Drainage Strategy dated March 2021;

Covering Letter dated July 2021;

Planning Statement dated July 2021;

Energy Statement dated March 2021;

Flood Risk Assessment dated April 2021;

Ambient Noise Assessment dated Dec 2020; and
Air Quality Assessment dated February 2021.

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details for
as long as the development remains in existence

REASON

To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Local Plan: Part One
Strategic Policies (2012), Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020)
and the London Plan (2021).

4. NONSC Accessibility

Details pertaining to inclusive accessibility were approved under application reference
2297/APP/2021/4551 (dated 21st July 2022). The development shall be retained/maintained
in accordance with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure an Accessible and Inclusive development for everyone in accordance with Policy
D5 of the London Plan (2021).

5. COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be damaged,
uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local Planning
Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during
construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall
be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new tree,
hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position to be first
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and species to be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting
season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works
necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall
be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS
3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs' Remedial work
should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 "Tree work - Recommendations' and BS 4428

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 222 3 of 11



(1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The
agreed work shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to the
amenity of the area in accordance with policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
(2020) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

6. COMS8 Tree Protection

Details pertaining to tree protection were approved under application reference
2297/APP/2022/556 (dated 3rd May 2023). The development shall be retained/maintained in
accordance with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not damaged
during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with Policy DMHB 14
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

7. COM9 Landscape Scheme

The landscaping scheme shall be carried out in complete accordance with the following
plans:

MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-1000 Rev C13 - Site Layout Plan
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-2008 Rev C02 - Bin Store Details
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-2009 Rev C02 - Planter Fence Details
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-3000 Rev C05 - Planting Plan
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-3004 Rev C07 - Planting Plan Two

The development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details for as long
as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of
the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11, DMHB 14
of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

8. NONSC Automatic Lighting

Measures shall be be put in place to ensure that lights, including car park lighting, are
automatically turned off when the buildings are not in use.

REASON
To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with policies DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 223 4 of 11



Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020) and to reduce energy
demands in accordance with Policy SI 2 of the London Plan (2021).

9. NONSC Boiler Plant

The development hereby approved, shall replace existing boiler plant with low NOX (<40
mg/kWh) boilers as part of the refurbishment works.

REASON

To improve air quality within the Air Quality Management Area in accordance with Policy
DMEI 1 and DME 14 of the Local Plan: Part Two (2021) and Policy Sl 1 of the London Plan
(2021).

10. NONSC Fire Strategy Report

Within 3 months of the date of this planning permission, an updated Fire Strategy Report
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the approved
details.

REASON:
To ensure that the development meets Fire Safety Standards in accordance with policy D12
of the London Plan (2021).

11. NONSC Construction Compound

Details pertaining to the construction compound were approved under application reference
2297/APP/2022/556 (dated 3rd May 2023). The approved details shall be implemented and
maintained throughout the duration of the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To protect the amenities of neighbouring residents in accordance with Policy DHMB 11 of
the Local Plan: Part Two (2020).

12. NONSC Materials to Match Existing

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed development
does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building in accordance
with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020)

13. NONSC Demolition and Construction Management Plan

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 224 5 of 11



Details pertaining to the Demolition and Construction Management Plan were approved
under application reference 2297/APP/2022/556 (dated 3rd May 2023). The approved
details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the demolition and
construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy DMHB11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

Informatives

1. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2. 163 Equality Act

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessinggoods, facilities and services from
discrimination on thebasis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes thosewith a
disability. As part of the Act, service providers areobliged to improve access to and within the
structure oftheir building, particularly in situations where reasonableadjustment can be
incorporated with relative ease. TheAct states that service providers should think ahead
totake steps to address barriers that impede disabledpeople.

3.

The following plans have been APPROVED:

MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-0001 Rev P01
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-1000 Rev C13
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-2008 Rev C02
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-2009 Rev C02
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-3000 Rev C05
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-3004 Rev CO7
BX47 - Semi Domed Sheffield Stainless Steel Bollard Specifications

4.

The following plans have been SUPERSEDED:

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 225 6 of 11



MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-1000 Rev C15
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-2009 Rev C01
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-0005 S1 Rev. P03
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-3000 D1 Rev. P03
MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-3001 D1 Rev. P03

5.

The Council is aware of the presence of land, situated approximately 270 metres from the
boundary of the subject site. The materials in the landfill had limited potential to emit gas.
However, the current risk of gas migration is considered minimal due to the age of the
landfill. It is recommended that the temporary structure/s are suitably placed to minimise the
possible entry of any migrating landfill gas/ground gas.

6.

Considerations in relation to gas pipeline/s identified on site: Cadent have identified
operational gas apparatus within the application site boundary. This may include a legal
interest (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts activity in proximity to Cadent
assets in private land. The Applicant must ensure that proposed works do not infringe on
Cadent's legal rights and any details of such restrictions should be obtained from the
landowner in the first instance. If buildings or structures are proposed directly above the gas
apparatus then development should only take place following a diversion of this apparatus.
The Applicant should contact Cadent's Plant Protection Team at the earliest opportunity to
discuss proposed diversions of apparatus to avoid any unnecessary delays. If any
construction traffic is likely to cross a Cadent pipeline then the Applicant must contact
Cadent's Plant Protection Team to see if any protection measures are required. All
developers are required to contact Cadent's Plant Protection Team for approval before
carrying out any works on site and ensuring requirements are adhered to. Email:
plantprotection@cadentgas.com Tel: 0800 688 588

7.

Given the nature of the proposed application, it is possible that a crane may be required. We
would, therefore, draw the applicant's attention to the requirement within the British Standard
Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult the aerodrome
before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is explained further in
Advice Note 4, 'Cranes' (available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf)

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012 and 2020) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including the
London Plan (2021) and national guidance.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 226 7 of 11



DMCI 1
DMCI 1A
DMEI 11
DMEI 12
DMEI 14
DMEI 2
DMEI 7
DMEI 9
DMHB 11
DMHB 12
DMHB 14
DMT 1
DMT 2
DMT 4
DMT 5
DMT 6
LPP D4
LPP D5
LPP S3
LPP S4
LPP S5
LPP SI13
LPP SI2
LPP SI8
LPP T2
LPP T4
LPP T5
LPP T6
NPPF12 -24
NPPF14 -24

NPPF15 -24
NPPF2 -24
NPPF4 -24
NPPF8 -24
NPPFQ -24

Retention of Existing Community Sport and Education Facilities
Development of New Education Floorspace
Protection of Ground Water Resources
Development of Land Affected by Contamination
Air Quality

Reducing Carbon Emissions

Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
Management of Flood Risk

Design of New Development

Streets and Public Realm

Trees and Landscaping

Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Public Transport

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Vehicle Parking

(2021) Delivering good design

(2021) Inclusive design

(2021) Education and childcare facilities

(2021) Play and informal recreation

(2021) Sports and recreation facilities

(2021) Sustainable drainage

(2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions
(2021) Waste capacity and net waste self-sufficiency
(2021) Healthy Streets

(2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
(2021) Cycling

(2021) Car parking

NPPF12 2024 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF14 2024 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flood and coastal

change

NPPF15 2024 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

NPPF2 2024 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF4 2024 - Decision making

NPPF8 2024 - Promoting healthy and safe communities
NPPF9 2024 - Promoting sustainable transport

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 227

8 of 11



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

2297/APP/2021/2704 Minet Junior School Avondale Drive Hayes

Extensions, remodeling and refurbishment of the existing Nursery, Infant and Junior
Schools

Decision: 16-09-2021 Approved

2297/APP/2023/751 Minet Junior School Avondale Drive Hayes

An application submitted under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to
vary Condition 2 (Approved Drawings) of planning permission reference
2297/APP/2021/2704, dated 17-09-2021, for extensions, remodeling and refurbishment of
the existing Nursery, Infant and Junior Schools, to allow the existing hall roof to be
replaced.

Decision: 09-08-2023 Approved

2297/APP/2024/1212 Minet Junior School Avondale Drive Hayes

Non-Material Amendment to planning permission ref: 2297/APP/2021/2704, dated 08-07-
2021 (Extensions, remodelling and refurbishment of the existing Nursery, Infant and Junior
Schools), in order to amend Condition 2 (Accordance with Approved Plans).

Decision: 18-07-2024 Refused

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 228 9 of 11



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1

PT1.C1

PT1.EMS

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM7

PT1.EM8

Part 2 Policies:

DMCI 1

DMCI 1A

DMEI 11

DMEI 12

DMEI 14

DMEI 2

DMEI 7

DMEI 9

DMHB 11

DMHB 12

DMHB 14

DMT 1

DMT 2

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Community Infrastructure Provision
(2012) Sport and Leisure

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

Retention of Existing Community Sport and Education Facilities
Development of New Education Floorspace
Protection of Ground Water Resources
Development of Land Affected by Contamination
Air Quality

Reducing Carbon Emissions

Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
Management of Flood Risk

Design of New Development

Streets and Public Realm

Trees and Landscaping

Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 229

10 of 11



DMT 4
DMT 5
DMT 6
LPP D4
LPP D5
LPP S3
LPP S4
LPP S5
LPP SI13
LPP SI2
LPP SI8
LPP T2
LPP T4
LPP T5
LPP T6
NPPF2 -24
NPPF4 -24
NPPF8 -24
NPPF9 -24
NPPF12 -24

NPPF14 -24

NPPF15 -24

Public Transport

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Vehicle Parking

(2021) Delivering good design

(2021) Inclusive design

(2021) Education and childcare facilities

(2021) Play and informal recreation

(2021) Sports and recreation facilities

(2021) Sustainable drainage

(2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions

(2021) Waste capacity and net waste self-sufficiency
(2021) Healthy Streets

(2021) Assessing and mitigating transport impacts
(2021) Cycling

(2021) Car parking

NPPF2 2024 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF4 2024 - Decision making

NPPF8 2024 - Promoting healthy and safe communities
NPPF9 2024 - Promoting sustainable transport
NPPF12 2024 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF14 2024 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flood and coastal
change

NPPF15 2024 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 230 11 of 11



Planning
Committee Report
Part 3:

Planning Policy Appendix -
Frequently Cited Policies

www.hillingdon.gov.uk



Frequently Cited Planning Policies

Abbreviations
LP — London Plan (2021)
LP1 — Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1: Strategic Policies (2012)

LP2 — Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020)

Topic Policy Page No.
Householder LP2 DMHD 1: Alterations and 4
Policies Extensions to Residential Dwellings

LP2 DMHD 2: Outbuildings 6

LP2 DMHD 3: Basement Development | 6
Standard of LP D6: Housing quality and standards | 7
Accommodation LP2 DMHB 16: Housing Standards 8

LP2 DMHB 18: Private Outdoor 8

Amenity Space

Housing LP H2: Small sites 9
LP H4: Delivering Affordable 9
Housing?
LP H10: Housing size mix 10
LP1 H1: Housing Growth 10
LP2 DMH 1: Safeguarding Existing 11
Housing
LP2 DMH 2: Housing Mix 11

LP2 DMH 4: Residential Conversions | 11
and Redevelopment

LP2 DMH 5: Houses in Multiple 11
Occupation
LP2 DMH 6: Garden and Backland 12

Development
LP2 DMH 7: Provision of Affordable 12

Housing
Design (Including LP D3: Optimising site capacity 13
Heritage, Trees / through the design-led approach
Landscaping and LP D5: Inclusive design 15
Accessibility) LP D7: Accessible housing 15
LP D8: Public realm 15
LP D12: Fire safety 17
LP HC1: Heritage conservation and 18
growth
LP G7: Trees and woodlands 19
LP1 BE1: Built Environment 19
LP2 DMHB 1: Heritage Assets 21

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 232



LP2 DMHB 2: Listed Buildings 22
LP2 DMHB 3: Locally Listed Buildings | 22
LP2 DMHB 4: Conservation Areas 23
LP2 DMHB 5: Areas of Special Local 23
Character
LP2 DMHB 11: Design of New 23
Development
LP2 DMHB 12: Streets and Public 24
Realm
LP2 DMHB 14: Trees and 25
Landscaping
LP2 DMHB 15: Planning for Safer 25
Places
Environmental LP D13: Agent of change 25
LP D14: Noise 26
LP SI2: Minimising greenhouse gas 27
emissions
LP SI12: Flood risk management 27
LP SI13: Sustainable drainage 28
LP1 EM6: Flood Risk Management 29
LP1 EM8: Land, Water, Air and Noise | 29
LP2 DMEI 2: Reducing Carbon 31
Emissions
LP2 DMEI 9: Management of Flood 31
Risk
LP2 DMEI 10: Water Management, 31
Efficiency and Quality
LP2 DMEI 12: Development of Land 33
Affected by Contamination
LP2 DMEI 14: Air Quality 33
Highways and LP T4: Assessing and mitigating 33
Parking transport impacts
LP T5: Cycling 34
LP T6: Car parking 35
LP T6.1: Residential parking 36
LP2 DMT 1: Managing Transport 37
Impacts
LP2 DMT 2: Highways Impacts 38
LP2 DMT 5: Pedestrians and Cyclists | 38
LP2 DMT 6: Vehicle Parking 39

Planning Committee
Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 233




LP2 DMHD 1: Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings

A) Planning applications relating to alterations and extensions of dwellings will be
required to ensure that:

i) there is no adverse cumulative impact of the proposal on the character,
appearance or quality of the existing street or wider area;

ii) a satisfactory relationship with adjacent dwellings is achieved,;

iii) new extensions appear subordinate to the main dwelling in their floor area, width,
depth and height;

iv) new extensions respect the design of the original house and be of matching
materials;

v) there is no unacceptable loss of outlook to neighbouring occupiers;

vi) adequate garden space is retained;

vii) adequate off-street parking is retained, as set out in Table 1: Parking Standards
in Appendix C;

viii) trees, hedges and other landscaping features are retained; and

ix) all extensions in Conservation Areas and Areas of Special Local Character, and
to Listed and Locally Listed Buildings, are designed in keeping with the original
house, in terms of layout, scale, proportions, roof form, window pattern, detailed
design and materials.

B) Rear Extensions

i) single storey rear extensions on terraced or semi-detached houses with a plot
width of 5 metres or less should not exceed 3.3 metres in depth or 3.6 metres where
the plot width is 5 metres or more;

ii) single storey rear extensions to detached houses with a plot width of 5 metres or
more should not exceed 4.0 metres in depth;

iii) flat roofed single storey extensions should not exceed 3.0 metres in height and
any pitched or sloping roofs should not exceed 3.4 metres in height, measured from
ground level;

iv) in Conservation Areas and Areas of Special Local Character, flat roofed single
storey extensions will be expected to be finished with a parapet;

v) balconies or access to flat roofs which result in loss of privacy to nearby dwellings
or gardens will not be permitted,;

vi) two storey extensions should not extend into an area provided by a 45-degree
line of sight drawn from the centre of the nearest ground or first floor habitable room
window of an adjacent property and should not contain windows or other openings
that overlook other houses at a distance of less than 21 metres;

vii) flat roofed two storey extensions will not be acceptable unless the design is in
keeping with the particular character of the existing house;

viii) pitched roofs on extensions should be of a similar pitch and materials to that of
the original roof and subordinate to it in design. Large crown roofs on detached
houses will not be supported; and

ix) full width two storey rear extensions are not considered acceptable in designated
areas or as extensions to Listed Buildings or Locally Listed Buildings.

C) Side Extensions

i) side extensions should not exceed half the width of the original property;
ii) extensions to corner plots should ensure that the openness of the area is
maintained and the return building line is not exceeded,;

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 234



iii) garages should reflect the size guidelines set out in Appendix C Parking
standards;

iv) two storey side extensions should be set in a minimum of 1 metre from the side
boundary or in the case of properties in the Copse Wood and Gatehill Estates, at
least 1.5 metres, but more if on a wider than average plot, in order to maintain
adequate visual separation and views between houses;

v) two storey side extensions to detached and semi-detached properties should be
set back a minimum of 1 metre behind the main front elevation;

vi) where hip to gable roof extensions exist, a two storey side extension will not be
supported; and

vii) in Conservation Areas, single storey side extensions may be required to be set
back.

D) Front Extensions

i) alterations and extensions to the front of a house must be minor and not alter the
overall appearance of the house or dominate the character of the street. Front
extensions extending across the entire frontage will be refused;

ii) porches should be subordinate in scale and individually designed to respect the
character and features of the original building; pastiche features will not be
supported; and

i) notwithstanding the above, at least 25% of the front garden must be retained.

E) Roof Extensions

i) roof extensions should be located on the rear elevation only, be subservient to the
scale of the existing roof and should not exceed more than two thirds the average
width of the original roof. They should be located below the ridge tiles of the existing
roof and retain a substantial element of the original roof slope above the eaves ling;
ii) the Council will not support poorly designed or over-large roof extensions including
proposals to convert an existing hipped roof to a gable;

iii) raising of a main roof above the existing ridgeline of a house will generally not be
supported;

iv) all roof extensions should employ appropriate external materials and architectural
details to match the existing dwelling; and

v) in Conservation Areas, Areas of Special Local Character and on Listed and
Locally Listed Buildings, roof extensions should take the form of traditional 'dormer’
windows, on the rear elevation, to harmonise with the existing building. The highest
point of the dormer should be kept well within the back roof slope, away from the
ridge, eaves or valleys, whilst each window should match the proportions, size and
glazing pattern of the first floor windows.

F) Front Gardens and Parking

i) new or replacement driveways should use permeable (porous) surfacing. Surfaces
of more than five square metres will need planning permission for laying traditional,
impermeable driveways; and

ii) the design, materials and height of any front boundary must be in keeping with the
character of the area to ensure harmonisation with the existing street scene.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 235



LP2 DMHD 2: Outbuildings

The Council will require residential outbuildings to meet the following criteria:

i) the building must be constructed to a high standard of design without
compromising the amenity of neighbouring occupiers;

ii) the developed footprint of the proposed building must be proportionate to the
footprint of the dwelling house and to the residential curtilage in which it stands and
have regard to existing trees;

i) the use shall be for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the dwelling house
and not capable for use as independent residential accommodation; and

iv) primary living accommodation such as a bedroom, bathroom, or kitchen will not
be permitted.

LP2 DMHD 3: Basement Development

A) When determining proposals for basement and other underground development,
the Council require an assessment of the scheme’s impact on drainage, flooding,
groundwater conditions and structural stability. The Council will only permit basement
and other underground development that does not cause harm to the built and
natural environment and local amenity and does not result in flooding or ground
instability. Developers will be required to demonstrate by methodologies appropriate
to the site that their proposals:

i) avoid adversely affecting drainage and run-off or causing other damage to the
water environment;

ii) avoid cumulative impacts upon structural stability or the water environment in the
local area;

B) Schemes should ensure that they:

i) do not harm the amenity of neighbours;

ii) do not lead to the loss of trees of townscape or amenity value;

i) do provide satisfactory landscaping, including adequate soil depth;

iv) do not harm the appearance or setting of the property or the established
character of the surrounding area, for example through the introduction of front
lightwells; and

v) do protect important archaeological remains.

C) The Council will not permit basement schemes which include habitable rooms
and other sensitive uses in areas prone to flooding.

D) The Council will not permit basement schemes in Listed Buildings and will not
permit them in Conservation Area locations where their introduction would harm the
special architectural or historic character of the area.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 236



LP D6: Housing Quality and Standards

A) Housing development should be of high quality design and provide adequately-
sized rooms (see Table 3.1) with comfortable and functional layouts which are fit for
purpose and meet the needs of Londoners without differentiating between tenures.
B) Qualitative aspects of a development are key to ensuring successful sustainable
housing. Table 3.2 sets out key qualitative aspects which should be addressed in the
design of housing developments.

C) Housing development should maximise the provision of dual aspect dwellings and
normally avoid the provision of single aspect dwellings. A single aspect dwelling
should only be provided where it is considered a more appropriate design solution to
meet the requirements of Part D in Policy D3 Optimising site capacity through the
design-led approach than a dual aspect dwelling, and it can be demonstrated that it
will have adequate passive ventilation, daylight and privacy, and avoid overheating.

D) The design of development should provide sufficient daylight and sunlight to new
and surrounding housing that is appropriate for its context, whilst avoiding
overheating, minimising overshadowing and maximising the usability of outside
amenity space.

E) Housing should be designed with adequate and easily accessible storage space
that supports the separate collection of dry recyclables (for at least card, paper,
mixed plastics, metals, glass) and food waste as well as residual waste

F) Housing developments are required to meet the minimum standards below which
apply to all tenures and all residential accommodation that is self-contained.

Private internal space

1. Dwellings must provide at least the gross internal floor area and built-in storage

area set out in Table 3.1.

2. A dwelling with two or more bedspaces must have at least one double (or twin)

bedroom that is at least 2.75m wide. Every other additional double (or twin) bedroom

must be at least 2.55m wide.

3. A one bedspace single bedroom must have a floor area of at least 7.5 sq.m. and

be at least 2.15m wide.

4. A two bedspace double (or twin) bedroom must have a floor area of at least 11.5

sq.m.

5. Any area with a headroom of less than 1.5m is not counted within the Gross

Internal Area unless used solely for storage (If the area under the stairs is to be used

for storage, assume a general floor area of 1 sq.m. within the Gross Internal Area).

6. Any other area that is used solely for storage and has a headroom of 0.9-1.5m

(such as under eaves) can only be counted up to 50 per cent of its floor area, and

any area lower than 0.9m is not counted at all.

7. A built-in wardrobe counts towards the Gross Internal Area and bedroom floor area

requirements, but should not reduce the effective width of the room below the

minimum widths set out above. Any built-in area in excess of 0.72 sq.m. in a double
7

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 237



bedroom and 0.36 sq.m. in a single bedroom counts towards the built-in storage
requirement.

8. The minimum floor to ceiling height must be 2.5m for at least 75 per cent of the
Gross Internal Area of each dwelling.

Private outside space

9. Where there are no higher local standards in the borough Development Plan
Documents, a minimum of 5 sq.m. of private outdoor space should be provided for 1-
2 person dwellings and an extra 1 sq.m. should be provided for each additional
occupant, and it must achieve a minimum depth and width of 1.5m. This does not
count towards the minimum Gross Internal Area space standards required in Table
3.1

G) The Mayor will produce guidance on the implementation of this policy for all
housing tenures.

LP2 DMHB 16: Housing Standards

All housing development should have an adequate provision of internal space in
order to provide an appropriate living environment. To achieve this all residential
development or conversions should:

i) meet or exceed the most up to date internal space standards, as set out in Table
5.1; and

i) in the case of major developments, provide at least 10% of new housing to be
accessible or easily adaptable for wheelchair users.

LP2 DMHB 18: Private Outdoor Amenity Space

A) All new residential development and conversions will be required to provide good
quality and useable private outdoor amenity space. Amenity space should be
provided in accordance with the standards set out in Table 5.3.

B) Balconies should have a depth of not less than 1.5 metres and a width of not less
than 2 metres.

C) Any ground floor and/or basement floor unit that is non-street facing should have
a defensible space of not less than 3 metres in depth in front of any window to a
bedroom or habitable room. However, for new developments in Conservation Areas,
Areas of Special Local Character or for developments, which include Listed
Buildings, the provision of private open space will be required to enhance the
streetscene and the character of the buildings on the site.

D) The design, materials and height of any front boundary must be in keeping with
the character of the area to ensure harmonisation with the existing street scene.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 238



LP H2: Small sites

A) Boroughs should pro-actively support well-designed new homes on small sites
(below 0.25 hectares in size) through both planning decisions and plan-making in
order to:

1. significantly increase the contribution of small sites to meeting London’s housing
needs

2. diversify the sources, locations, type and mix of housing supply

3. support small and medium-sized housebuilders

4. support those wishing to bring forward custom, self-build and community-led
housing

5. achieve the minimum targets for small sites set out in Table 4.2 as a component of
the overall housing targets set out in Table 4.1.

B Boroughs should:

1. recognise in their Development Plans that local character evolves over time and
will need to change in appropriate locations to accommodate additional housing on
small sites

2. where appropriate, prepare site-specific briefs, masterplans and housing design
codes for small sites

3. identify and allocate appropriate small sites for residential development

4. list these small sites on their brownfield registers

5. grant permission in principle on specific sites or prepare local development orders.

LP H4: Delivering Affordable Housing

A) The strategic target is for 50 per cent of all new homes delivered across London
to be genuinely affordable. Specific measures to achieve this aim include:

1. requiring major developments which trigger affordable housing requirements to
provide affordable housing through the threshold approach (Policy H5 Threshold
approach to applications)

2. using grant to increase affordable housing delivery beyond the level that would
otherwise be provided

3. all affordable housing providers with agreements with the Mayor delivering at least
50 per cent affordable housing across their development programme, and 60 per
cent in the case of strategic partners

4. public sector land delivering at least 50 per cent affordable housing on each site
and public sector landowners with agreements with the Mayor delivering at least 50
per cent affordable housing across their portfolio

5. industrial land appropriate for residential use in accordance with Policy E7
Industrial intensification, co-location and substitution, delivering at least 50 per cent
affordable housing where the scheme would result in a net loss of industrial capacity.

B) Affordable housing should be provided on site. Affordable housing must only be
provided off-site or as a cash in lieu contribution in exceptional circumstances.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 239



LP H10: Housing size mix

A) Schemes should generally consist of a range of unit sizes. To determine the
appropriate mix of unit sizes in relation to the number of bedrooms for a scheme,
applicants and decision-makers should have regard to:

1. robust local evidence of need where available or, where this is not available, the
range of housing need and demand identified by the 2017 London Strategic Housing
Market Assessment

2. the requirement to deliver mixed and inclusive neighbourhoods

3. the need to deliver a range of unit types at different price points across London

4. the mix of uses in the scheme

5. the range of tenures in the scheme

6. the nature and location of the site, with a higher proportion of one and two bed
units generally more appropriate in locations which are closer to a town centre or
station or with higher public transport access and connectivity

7. the aim to optimise housing potential on sites

8. the ability of new development to reduce pressure on conversion, sub-division and
amalgamation of existing stock

9. the need for additional family housing and the role of one and two bed units in
freeing up existing family housing.

B For low-cost rent, boroughs should provide guidance on the size of units required
(by number of bedrooms) to ensure affordable housing meets identified needs. This
guidance should take account of:

1. evidence of local housing needs, including the local housing register and the
numbers and types of overcrowded and under-occupying households

2. other criteria set out in Part A, including the strategic and local requirement for
affordable family accommodation

3. the impact of welfare reform

4. the cost of delivering larger units and the availability of grant.

LP1 H1: Housing Growth

The Council will meet and exceed its minimum strategic dwelling requirement, where
this can be achieved, in accordance with other Local Plan policies.

The borough’s current target is to provide an additional 4,250 dwellings, annualised
as 425 dwellings per year, for the ten year period between 2011 and 2021.

Rolled forward to 2026, this target equates to a minimum provision of 6,375
dwellings over the period of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies.
Sites that will contribute to the achievement of this target will be identified in the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2- Site Specific Allocations Local Development Document
(LDD).

10
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 240



LP2 DMH 1: Safeguarding Existing Housing

A) The net loss of existing self-contained3 housing, including affordable housing, will
be resisted unless the housing is replaced with at least equivalent residential
floorspace.

B) The Council will grant planning permission for the subdivision of dwellings only if:
i) car parking standards can be met within the curtilage of the site without being
detrimental to the street scene;

i) all units are self contained with exclusive use of sanitary and kitchen facilities and
provided with individual entrances and internal staircases to serve units above
ground floor level; iii) adequate amenity space is provided for the benefit of
residents; and iv) adequate living space standards are met.

LP2 DMH 2: Housing Mix

The Council will require the provision of a mix of housing units of different sizes in
schemes of residential development to reflect the Council’s latest information on
housing need.

LP2 DMH 4: Residential Conversions and Redevelopment

Residential conversions and the redevelopment of dwellings into new blocks of flats
will only be permitted where:

i) it is on a residential street where the proposal will not result in more than 10% of
properties being redeveloped into flats;

ii) On residential streets longer than 1km the proposed redevelopment site should be
taken as the midpoint of a 1km length of road for assessment purposes;

iii) the internal floor area of the original building to be converted is at least 120 sqm;
and

iv) units are limited to one unit per floor for residential conversions.

LP2 DMH 5: Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and Student
Accommodation

A) In all parts of the Borough

Proposals for the provision of large HMOs, residential hostels, student
accommodation and secure accommodation will be required to demonstrate that:

i) there is good accessibility to local amenities and public transport;

ii) they accord with the Accessible Homes standards and provide satisfactory living
conditions for the intended occupiers; and

iii) there will be no adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties or the
character of the area.

B) In wards covered by an Article 4 Direction for HMOs

11
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 241



Planning applications for the change of use from dwelling house (Use Class C3) to
HMO (Use Class C4 and Sui Generis) will only be permitted:

i) where it is in a neighbourhood area where less than 20% of properties are or
would be exempt from paying council tax (or in the case of Conservation Areas 10%)
because they are entirely occupied by full time students, recorded on the Council’s
database as a licensed HMO, benefit from C4/Sui Generis HMO planning consent
and are known to the Council to be HMOs;

ii) in Conservation Areas where less than 10% of properties are exempt from paying
council tax because they are entirely occupied by full time students, recorded on the
Council's database as a licensed HMO, benefit from C4/Sui Generis HMO planning
consent and are known to the Council to be HMOs and the change of use does not
form a consecutive HMO use in a street frontage;

iii) where less than 15% of properties within 100 metres of a street length either side
of an application property are exempt from paying council tax because they are
entirely occupied by full time students, recorded on the Council’s database as a
licensed HMO, benefit from C4/Sui Generis HMO planning consent and are known to
the Council to be HMOs; and iv) where the accommodation complies with all other
planning standards relating to car parking, waste storage, retention of amenity space
and garages and will not have a detrimental impact upon the residential amenity of
adjoining properties.

LP2 DMH 6: Garden and Backland Development

There is a presumption against the loss of gardens due to the need to maintain local
character, amenity space and biodiversity. In exceptional cases a limited scale of
backland development may be acceptable, subject to the following criteria:

i) neighbouring residential amenity and privacy of existing homes and gardens must
be maintained and unacceptable light spillage avoided;

ii) vehicular access or car parking should not have an adverse impact on neighbours
in terms of noise or light. Access roads between dwellings and unnecessarily long
access roads will not normally be acceptable;

iii) development on backland sites must be more intimate in mass and scale and
lower than frontage properties; and iv) features such as trees, shrubs and wildlife
habitat must be retained or re-provided.

LP2 DMH 7: Provision of Affordable Housing

A) In accordance with national policy:

i) developments with a capacity to provide 10 or more units will be required to
maximise the delivery of on-site affordable housing;

i) subject to viability and if appropriate in all circumstances, a minimum of 35% of all
new homes on sites of 10 or more units should be delivered as affordable housing,
with the tenure split 70% Social/Affordable Rent and 30% Intermediate as set out in
Policy H2: Affordable Housing of the Local Plan Part 1.

12
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 242



B) Affordable housing should be built to the same standards and should share the
same level of amenity as private housing.

C) Proposals that do not provide sufficient affordable housing will be resisted.

D) To ensure that Policy H2: Affordable Housing of the Local Plan Part 1 is applied
consistently and fairly on all proposed housing developments, the requirement for
affordable housing will apply to:

i) sites that are artificially sub-divided or partially developed;

i) phased developments where a housing development is part of a much larger
development of 10 or more units (gross), affordable housing will be required as part
of the overall scheme; and iii) additional units created through or subsequently
amended planning applications, whereby the amount of affordable housing required
will be calculated based on the new total number of units on the site. Affordable
housing will be required where a development under the 10 unit threshold is
amended to have 10 or more housing units in total (gross).

E) In exceptional circumstances, where on-site provision of affordable housing
cannot be delivered and as a last resort, a financial contribution will be required to
provide off-site affordable housing on other sites which may be more appropriate or
beneficial in meeting the Borough's identified affordable housing needs.

LP D3: Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach

The design-led approach

A) All development must make the best use of land by following a design-led
approach that optimises the capacity of sites, including site allocations. Optimising
site capacity means ensuring that development is of the most appropriate form and
land use for the site. The design-led approach requires consideration of design
options to determine the most appropriate form of development that responds to a
site’s context and capacity for growth, and existing and planned supporting
infrastructure capacity (as set out in Policy D2 Infrastructure requirements for
sustainable densities), and that best delivers the requirements set out in Part D.

B) Higher density developments should generally be promoted in locations that are
well connected to jobs, services, infrastructure and amenities by public transport,
walking and cycling, in accordance with Policy D2 Infrastructure requirements for
sustainable densities. Where these locations have existing areas of high density
buildings, expansion of the areas should be positively considered by Boroughs
where appropriate. This could also include expanding Opportunity Area boundaries
where appropriate.

C) In other areas, incremental densification should be actively encouraged by
Boroughs to achieve a change in densities in the most appropriate way. This should
be interpreted in the context of Policy H2 Small sites.

13
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 243



D) Development proposals should:

Form and layout

1. enhance local context by delivering buildings and spaces that positively respond
to local distinctiveness through their layout, orientation, scale, appearance and
shape, with due regard to existing and emerging street hierarchy, building types,
forms and proportions

2. encourage and facilitate active travel with convenient and inclusive pedestrian and
cycling routes, crossing points, cycle parking, and legible entrances to buildings, that
are aligned with peoples’ movement patterns and desire lines in the area

3. be street-based with clearly defined public and private environments

4. facilitate efficient servicing and maintenance of buildings and the public realm, as
well as deliveries, that minimise negative impacts on the environment, public realm
and vulnerable road users

Experience

1. achieve safe, secure and inclusive environments

2. provide active frontages and positive reciprocal relationships between what
happens inside the buildings and outside in the public realm to generate liveliness
and interest

3. deliver appropriate outlook, privacy and amenity

4. provide conveniently located green and open spaces for social interaction, play,
relaxation and physical activity

5. help prevent or mitigate the impacts of noise and poor air quality

6. achieve indoor and outdoor environments that are comfortable and inviting for
people to use

Quality and character

1. respond to the existing character of a place by identifying the special and valued
features and characteristics that are unique to the locality and respect, enhance and
utilise the heritage assets and architectural features that contribute towards the local
character

2. be of high quality, with architecture that pays attention to detail, and gives
thorough consideration to the practicality of use, flexibility, safety and building
lifespan through appropriate construction methods and the use of attractive, robust
materials which weather and mature well

3. aim for high sustainability standards (with reference to the policies within London
Plan Chapters 8 and 9) and take into account the principles of the circular economy
4. provide spaces and buildings that maximise opportunities for urban greening to
create attractive resilient places that can also help the management of surface water.

E) Where development parameters for allocated sites have been set out in a
Development Plan, development proposals that do not accord with the site capacity
in a site allocation can be refused for this reason.

14
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 244



LP D5: Inclusive Design

A) Boroughs, in preparing their Development Plans, should support the creation of
inclusive neighbourhoods by embedding inclusive design, and collaborating with
local communities in the development of planning policies that affect them.

B) Development proposal should achieve the highest standards of accessible and
inclusive design. They should:

1. be designed taking into account London’s diverse population

2. provide high quality people focused spaces that are designed to facilitate social
interaction and inclusion

3. be convenient and welcoming with no disabling barriers, providing independent
access without additional undue effort, separation or special treatment

4. be able to be entered, used and exited safely, easily and with dignity for all

5. be designed to incorporate safe and dignified emergency evacuation for all
building users. In all developments where lifts are installed, as a minimum at least
one lift per core (or more subject to capacity assessments) should be a suitably
sized fire evacuation lift suitable to be used to evacuate people who require level
access from the building.

C) Design and Access Statements, submitted as part of development proposals,
should include an inclusive design statement.

LP D7: Accessible Housing

A) To provide suitable housing and genuine choice for London’s diverse population,
including disabled people, older people and families with young children, residential
development must ensure that:

1. at least 10 per cent of dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M
volume 1 of the Building Regulations applies) meet Building Regulation requirement
M4(3) ‘wheelchair user dwellings’

2. all other dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M volume 1 of the
Building Regulations applies) meet Building Regulation requirement M4(2)
‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’.

LP D8: Public Realm

Development Plans and development proposals should:
A) encourage and explore opportunities to create new public realm where
appropriate

B) ensure the public realm is well-designed, safe, accessible, inclusive, attractive,
well-connected, related to the local and historic context, and easy to understand,
service and maintain. Landscape treatment, planting, street furniture and surface
materials should be of good quality, fit-for-purpose, durable and sustainable.
Lighting, including for advertisements, should be carefully considered and well-

15
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 245



designed in order to minimise intrusive lighting infrastructure and reduce light
pollution

C) maximise the contribution that the public realm makes to encourage active travel
and ensure its design discourages travel by car and excessive on-street parking,
which can obstruct people’s safe enjoyment of the space. This includes design that
reduces the impact of traffic noise and encourages appropriate vehicle speeds

D) be based on an understanding of how the public realm in an area functions and
creates a sense of place during different times of the day and night, days of the week
and times of the year. In particular, they should demonstrate an understanding of
how people use the public realm, and the types, location and relationship between
public spaces in an area, identifying where there are deficits for certain activities, or
barriers to movement that create severance for pedestrians and cyclists

E) ensure both the movement function of the public realm and its function as a place
are provided for and that the balance of space and time given to each reflects the
individual characteristics of the area. The priority modes of travel for the area should
be identified and catered for, as appropriate. Desire lines for people walking and
cycling should be a particular focus, including the placement of street crossings,
which should be regular, convenient and accessible

F) ensure there is a mutually supportive relationship between the space, surrounding
buildings and their uses, so that the public realm enhances the amenity and function
of buildings and the design of buildings contributes to a vibrant public realm

G) ensure buildings are of a design that activates and defines the public realm, and
provides natural surveillance. Consideration should also be given to the local
microclimate created by buildings, and the impact of service entrances and facades
on the public realm

H) ensure appropriate management and maintenance arrangements are in place for
the public realm, which maximise public access and minimise rules governing the
space to those required for its safe management in accordance with the Public
London Charter

) incorporate green infrastructure such as street trees and other vegetation into the
public realm to support rainwater management through sustainable drainage, reduce
exposure to air pollution, moderate surface and air temperature and increase
biodiversity

J) ensure that appropriate shade, shelter, seating and, where possible, areas of
direct sunlight are provided, with other microclimatic considerations, including
temperature and wind, taken into account in order to encourage people to spend
time in a place

16
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 246



K) ensure that street clutter, including street furniture that is poorly located, unsightly,
in poor condition or without a clear function is removed, to ensure that pedestrian
amenity is improved. Consideration should be given to the use, design and location
of street furniture so that it complements the use and function of the space.
Applications which seek to introduce unnecessary street furniture should be refused

L) explore opportunities for innovative approaches to improving the public realm
such as open street events and Play Streets

M) create an engaging public realm for people of all ages, with opportunities for
social activities, formal and informal play and social interaction during the daytime,
evening and at night. This should include identifying opportunities for the meanwhile
use of sites in early phases of development to create temporary public realm

N) ensure that any on-street parking is designed so that it is not dominant or
continuous, and that there is space for green infrastructure as well as cycle parking
in the carriageway. Parking should not obstruct pedestrian lines

O) ensure the provision and future management of free drinking water at appropriate
locations in the new or redeveloped public realm.

LP D12: Fire Safety

A) In the interests of fire safety and to ensure the safety of all building users, all
development proposals must achieve the highest standards of fire safety and ensure
that they:

1. identify suitably positioned unobstructed outside space:

a - for fire appliances to be positioned on

b - appropriate for use as an evacuation assembly point

2. are designed to incorporate appropriate features which reduce the risk to life and
the risk of serious injury in the event of a fire; including appropriate fire alarm
systems and passive and active fire safety measures

3. are constructed in an appropriate way to minimise the risk of fire spread

4. provide suitable and convenient means of escape, and associated evacuation
strategy for all building users

5. develop a robust strategy for evacuation which can be periodically updated and
published, and which all building users can have confidence in

6. provide suitable access and equipment for firefighting which is appropriate for the
size and use of the development.

B) All major development proposals should be submitted with a Fire Statement,
which is an independent fire strategy, produced by a third party, suitably qualified
assessor.

The statement should detail how the development proposal will function in terms of:
1. the building’s construction: methods, products and materials used, including
manufacturers’ details

17
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 247



2. the means of escape for all building users: suitably designed stair cores, escape
for building users who are disabled or require level access, and associated
evacuation strategy approach

3. features which reduce the risk to life: fire alarm systems, passive and active fire
safety measures and associated management and maintenance plans

4. access for fire service personnel and equipment: how this will be achieved in an
evacuation situation, water supplies, provision and positioning of equipment,
firefighting lifts, stairs and lobbies, any fire suppression and smoke ventilation
systems proposed, and the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of these

5. how provision will be made within the curtilage of the site to enable fire appliances
to gain access to the building

6. ensuring that any potential future modifications to the building will take into
account and not compromise the base build fire safety/protection measures.

LP HC1: Heritage Conservation and Growth

A) Boroughs should, in consultation with Historic England, local communities and
other statutory and relevant organisations, develop evidence that demonstrates a
clear understanding of London’s historic environment. This evidence should be used
for identifying, understanding, conserving, and enhancing the historic environment
and heritage assets, and improving access to, and interpretation of, the heritage
assets, landscapes and archaeology within their area.

B) Development Plans and strategies should demonstrate a clear understanding of
the historic environment and the heritage values of sites or areas and their
relationship with their surroundings. This knowledge should be used to inform the
effective integration of London’s heritage in regenerative change by:

1. setting out a clear vision that recognises and embeds the role of heritage in place-
making

2. utilising the heritage significance of a site or area in the planning and design
process

3. integrating the conservation and enhancement of heritage assets and their
settings with innovative and creative contextual architectural responses that
contribute to their significance and sense of place

4. delivering positive benefits that conserve and enhance the historic environment,
as well as contributing to the economic viability, accessibility and environmental
quality of a place, and to social wellbeing.

C) Development proposals affecting heritage assets, and their settings, should
conserve their significance, by being sympathetic to the assets’ significance and
appreciation within their surroundings. The cumulative impacts of incremental
change from development on heritage assets and their settings should also be
actively managed. Development proposals should avoid harm and identify
enhancement opportunities by integrating heritage considerations early on in the
design process.

18
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 248



D) Development proposals should identify assets of archaeological significance and
use this information to avoid harm or minimise it through design and appropriate
mitigation. Where applicable, development should make provision for the protection
of significant archaeological assets and landscapes. The protection of undesignated
heritage assets of archaeological interest equivalent to a scheduled monument
should be given equivalent weight to designated heritage assets.

E) Where heritage assets have been identified as being At Risk, boroughs should
identify specific opportunities for them to contribute to regeneration and place-
making, and they should set out strategies for their repair and re-use.

LP G7: Trees and Woodlands

A) London’s urban forest and woodlands should be protected and maintained,
and new trees and woodlands should be planted in appropriate locations in
order to increase the extent of London’s urban forest — the area of London
under the canopy of trees.

B) In their Development Plans, boroughs should:

1. protect ‘veteran’ trees and ancient woodland where these are not already
part of a protected site139

2. identify opportunities for tree planting in strategic locations.

C) Development proposals should ensure that, wherever possible, existing trees
of value are retained.140 If planning permission is granted that necessitates

the removal of trees there should be adequate replacement based on the
existing value of the benefits of the trees removed, determined by, for

example, i-tree or CAVAT or another appropriate valuation system. The

planting of additional trees should generally be included in new developments

— particularly large-canopied species which provide a wider range of benefits
because of the larger surface area of their canopy.

LP 1 BE1: Built Environment

The Council will require all new development to improve and maintain the quality of
the built environment in order to create successful and sustainable neighbourhoods,
where people enjoy living and working and that serve the long-term needs of all
residents. All new developments should:

1. Achieve a high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations, extensions and
the public realm which enhances the local distinctiveness of the area, contributes to
community cohesion and a sense of place;

2. Be designed to be appropriate to the identity and context of Hillingdon's buildings,
townscapes, landscapes and views, and make a positive contribution to the local

19
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 249



area in terms of layout, form, scale and materials and seek to protect the amenity of
surrounding land and buildings, particularly residential properties;

3. Be designed to include “Lifetime Homes” principles so that they can be readily
adapted to meet the needs of those with disabilities and the elderly, 10% of these
should be wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable to wheelchair accessibility
encouraging places of work and leisure, streets, neighbourhoods, parks and open
spaces to be designed to meet the needs of the community at all stages of people’s
lives;

4. In the case of 10 dwellings or over, achieve a satisfactory assessment rating in
terms of the latest Building for Life standards (as amended or replaced from time to
time);

5. Improve areas of poorer environmental quality, including within the areas of
relative disadvantage of Hayes, Yiewsley and West Drayton. All regeneration
schemes should ensure that they are appropriate to their historic context, make use
of heritage assets and reinforce their significance;

6. Incorporate a clear network of routes that are easy to understand, inclusive, safe,
secure and connect positively with interchanges, public transport, community
facilities and services;

7. Improve the quality of the public realm and provide for public and private spaces
that are attractive, safe, functional, diverse, sustainable, accessible to all, respect the
local character and landscape, integrate with the development, enhance and protect
biodiversity through the inclusion of living walls, roofs and areas for wildlife,
encourage physical activity and where appropriate introduce public art;

8. Create safe and secure environments that reduce crime and fear of crime, anti-
social behaviour and risks from fire and arson having regard to Secure by Design
standards and address resilience to terrorism in major development proposals;

9. Not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and green spaces that
erode the character and biodiversity of suburban areas and increase the risk of
flooding through the loss of permeable areas;

10. Maximise the opportunities for all new homes to contribute to tackling and
adapting to climate change and reducing emissions of local air quality pollutants. The
Council will require all new development to achieve reductions in carbon dioxide
emission in line with the London Plan targets through energy efficient design and
effective use of low and zero carbon technologies. Where the required reduction
from on-site renewable energy is not feasible within major developments,
contributions off-site will be sought. The Council will seek to merge a suite of
sustainable design goals, such as the use of SUDS, water efficiency, lifetime homes,
and energy efficiency into a requirement measured against the Code for Sustainable

20
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 250



Homes and BREEAM. These will be set out within the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2-
Development Management Policies Local Development Document (LDD). Al
developments should be designed to make the most efficient use of natural
resources whilst safeguarding historic assets, their settings and local amenity and
include sustainable design and construction techniques to increase the re-use and
recycling of construction, demolition and excavation waste and reduce the amount
disposed to landfill;

11. In the case of tall buildings, not adversely affect their surroundings including the
local character, cause harm to the significance of heritage assets or impact on
important views. Appropriate locations for tall buildings will be defined on a Character
Study and may include parts of Uxbridge and Hayes subject to considering the
Obstacle Limitation Surfaces for Heathrow Airport. Outside of Uxbridge and Hayes
town centres, tall buildings will not be supported. The height of all buildings should
be based upon an understanding of the local character and be appropriate to the
positive qualities of the surrounding townscape. Support will be given for proposals
that are consistent with local strategies, guidelines, supplementary planning
documents and Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2- Development Management Policies.

LP2 DMHB 1: Heritage Assets

A) The Council will expect development proposals to avoid harm to the historic
environment. Development that has an effect on heritage assets will only be
supported where:

i) it sustains and enhances the significance of the heritage asset and puts them into
viable uses consistent with their conservation;

i) it will not lead to a loss of significance or harm to an asset, unless it can be
demonstrated that it will provide public benefit that would outweigh the harm or loss,
in accordance with the NPPF;

iii) it makes a positive contribution to the local character and distinctiveness of the
area;

iv) any extensions or alterations are designed in sympathy, without detracting from or
competing with the heritage asset;

v) the proposal would relate appropriately in terms of siting, style, scale, massing,
height, design and materials;

vi) buildings and structures within the curtilage of a heritage asset, or in close
proximity to it, do not compromise its setting; and

vii) opportunities are taken to conserve or enhance the setting, so that the
significance of the asset can be appreciated more readily.

B) Development proposals affecting designated heritage assets need to take
account of the effects of climate change and renewable energy without impacting
negatively on the heritage asset. The Council may require an alternative solution
which will protect the asset yet meet the sustainability objectives of the Local Plan.

21
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 251



C) The Council will seek to secure the repair and reuse of Listed Buildings and
monuments and improvements to Conservation Areas on the Heritage at Risk
Register, through negotiations with owners, the provision of advice and guidance, the
use of appropriate legal action, and through bids for external funding for
improvement works.

LP2 DMHB 2: Listed Buildings

A) Applications for Listed Building Consent and planning permission to alter, extend,
or change the use of a statutorily Listed Building will only be permitted if they are
considered to retain its significance and value and are appropriate in terms of the
fabric, historic integrity, spatial quality and layout of the building. Any additions or
alterations to a Listed Building should be sympathetic in terms of scale, proportion,
detailed design, materials and workmanship.

B) Applications should include a Heritage Statement that demonstrates a clear
understanding of the importance of the building and the impact of the proposals on
its significance.

C) The substantial harm to or total loss of significance of a statutory Listed Building
will only be permitted in exceptional circumstances when the nature of the heritage
asset prevents all reasonable use of the building, no viable use can be found through
marketing, grant-funding or charitable or public ownership and the loss is outweighed
by bringing the site back into use. In such circumstances, full archaeological
recording of the building will be required.

D) Planning permission will not be granted for proposals which are considered
detrimental to the setting of a Listed Building.

LP2 DMHB 3: Locally Listed Buildings

A) There is a general presumption in favour of the retention of buildings, structures
and features included in the Local List. The Council will take into account the effect
of a proposal on the building's significance and the scale of any harm of loss when
considering planning applications, including those for major alterations and
extensions. Proposals will be permitted where they retain the significance,
appearance, character or setting of a Locally Listed Building.

B) Applications should include a Heritage Statement that demonstrates a clear
understanding of the importance of the structure and the impact of the proposals on
the significance of the Locally Listed Building.

C) Replacement will only be considered if it can be demonstrated that the community
benefits of such a proposal significantly outweigh those of retaining the Locally
Listed Building.

22
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 252



LP2 DMHB 4: Conservation Areas

New development, including alterations and extensions to existing buildings, within a
Conservation Area or on its fringes, will be expected to preserve or enhance the
character or appearance of the area. It should sustain and enhance its significance
and make a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness. In order to
achieve this, the Council will:

A) Require proposals for new development, including any signage or advertisement,
to be of a high quality contextual design. Proposals should exploit opportunities to
restore any lost features and/or introduce new ones that would enhance the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

B) Resist the loss of buildings, historic street patterns, important views, landscape
and open spaces or other features that make a positive contribution to the character
or appearance of the Conservation Area; any such loss will need to be supported
with a robust justification.

C) Proposals will be required to support the implementation of improvement actions
set out in relevant Conservation Area Appraisals and Management Plans.

LP2 DMHB 5: Areas of Special Local Character

A) Within Areas of Special Local Character, new development should reflect the
character of the area and its original layout. Alterations should respect the
established scale, building lines, height, design and materials of the area.

B) Extensions to dwellings should be subservient to, and respect the architectural
style of the original buildings and allow sufficient space for appropriate landscaping,
particularly between, and in front of, buildings.

C) The replacement of buildings which positively contribute to the character and local
importance of Areas of Special Local Character will normally be resisted.

LP2 DMHB 11: Design of New Development

A) All development, including extensions, alterations and new buildings will be
required to be designed to the highest standards and, incorporate principles of good
design including:

i) harmonising with the local context by taking into account the surrounding:

- scale of development, considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures;
- building plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and established street patterns;

- building lines and setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for example, gaps
between structures and other streetscape elements, such as degree of enclosure;

- architectural composition and quality of detailing;

- local topography, views both from and to the site; and

23
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 253



- impact on neighbouring open spaces and their environment.

i) ensuring the use of high quality building materials and finishes;

iii) ensuring that the internal design and layout of development maximises
sustainability and is adaptable to different activities;

iv) protecting features of positive value within and adjacent to the site, including the
safeguarding of heritage assets, designated and un-designated, and their settings;
and

v) landscaping and tree planting to protect and enhance amenity, biodiversity and
green infrastructure.

B) Development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and
sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

C) Development will be required to ensure that the design safeguards the
satisfactory re-development of any adjoining sites which have development potential.
In the case of proposals for major development5 sites, the Council will expect
developers to prepare master plans and design codes and to agree these with the
Council before developing detailed designs.

D) Development proposals should make sufficient provision for well designed
internal and external storage space for general, recycling and organic waste, with
suitable access for collection. External bins should be located and screened to avoid
nuisance and adverse visual impacts to occupiers and neighbours.

LP2 DMHB 12: Streets and Public Realm

A) Development should be well integrated with the surrounding area and accessible.
It should:

i) improve legibility and promote routes and wayfinding between the development
and local amenities;

ii) ensure public realm design takes account of the established townscape character
and quality of the surrounding area;

iii) include landscaping treatment that is suitable for the location, serves a purpose,
contributes to local green infrastructure, the appearance of the area and ease of
movement through the space;

iv) provide safe and direct pedestrian and cycle movement through the space;

v) incorporate appropriate and robust hard landscaping, using good quality materials,
undertaken to a high standard;

vi) where appropriate, include the installation of public art; and

vii) deliver proposals which incorporate the principles of inclusive design. Proposals
for gated developments will be resisted.

B) Public realm improvements will be sought from developments located close to
transport interchanges and community facilities to ensure easy access between
different transport modes and into local community facilities.

24
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 254



LP2 DMHB 14: Trees and Landscaping

A) All developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping,
trees, biodiversity or other natural features of merit.

B) Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that
includes hard and soft landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which
supports and enhances biodiversity and amenity particularly in areas deficient in
green infrastructure.

C) Where space for ground level planting is limited, such as high rise buildings, the
inclusion of living walls and roofs will be expected where feasible.

D) Planning applications for proposals that would affect existing trees will be required
to provide an accurate tree survey showing the location, height, spread and species
of trees. Where the tree survey identifies trees of merit, tree root protection areas
and an arboricultural method statement will be required to show how the trees will be
protected. Where trees are to be removed, proposals for replanting of new trees on-
site must be provided or include contributions to offsite provision.

LP2 DMHB 15: Planning for Safer Places

The Council will require all new development to ensure safe and attractive public and
private spaces by referring to the Council's latest guidance on Secured by Design
principles. Where relevant, these should be included in the Design and Access
Statement. Development will be required to comprise good design and create
inclusive environments whilst improving safety and security by incorporating the
following specific measures:

i) providing entrances in visible, safe and accessible locations;

il) maximising natural surveillance;

iii) ensuring adequate defensible space is provided;

iv) providing clear delineations between public and private spaces; and

v) providing appropriate lighting and CCTV.

LP D13: Agent of Change

A) The Agent of Change principle places the responsibility for mitigating impacts
from existing noise and other nuisance-generating activities or uses on the proposed
new noise-sensitive development. Boroughs should ensure that Development Plans
and planning decisions reflect the Agent of Change principle and take account of
existing noise and other nuisance-generating uses in a sensitive manner when new
development is proposed nearby.

B) Development should be designed to ensure that established noise and other
nuisance-generating uses remain viable and can continue or grow without
unreasonable restrictions being placed on them.

25
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 255



C) New noise and other nuisance-generating development proposed close to
residential and other noise-sensitive uses should put in place measures to mitigate
and manage any noise impacts for neighbouring residents and businesses.

D) Development proposals should manage noise and other potential nuisances by:
1. ensuring good design mitigates and minimises existing and potential nuisances
generated by existing uses and activities located in the area

2. exploring mitigation measures early in the design stage, with necessary and
appropriate provisions including ongoing and future management of mitigation
measures secured through planning obligations

3. separating new noise-sensitive development where possible from existing noise-
generating businesses and uses through distance, screening, internal layout, sound-
proofing, insulation and other acoustic design measures.

E) Boroughs should not normally permit development proposals that have not clearly
demonstrated how noise and other nuisances will be mitigated and managed.

LP D14: Noise

A) In order to reduce, manage and mitigate noise to improve health and quality of
life, residential and other non-aviation development proposals should manage noise
by:

1. avoiding significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life

2. reflecting the Agent of Change principle as set out in Policy D13 Agent of Change
3. mitigating and minimising the existing and potential adverse impacts of noise on,
from, within, as a result of, or in the vicinity of new development without placing
unreasonable restrictions on existing noise-generating uses

4. improving and enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate

5. separating new noise-sensitive development from major noise sources (such as
road, rail, air transport and some types of industrial use) through the use of distance,
screening, layout, orientation, uses and materials — in preference to sole reliance on
sound insulation

6. where it is not possible to achieve separation of noise-sensitive development and
noise sources without undue impact on other sustainable development objectives,
then any potential adverse effects should be controlled and mitigated through
applying good acoustic design principles

7. promoting new technologies and improved practices to reduce noise at source,
and on the transmission path from source to receiver.

B) Boroughs, and others with relevant responsibilities, should identify and nominate
new Quiet Areas and protect existing Quiet Areas in line with the procedure in
Defra’s Noise Action Plan for Agglomerations.

26
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 256



LP Sl 2: Minimising Greenhouse Gas Emissions

A) Major development should be net zero-carbon.151 This means reducing
greenhouse gas emissions in operation and minimising both annual and peak energy
demand in accordance with the following energy hierarchy:

1. be lean: use less energy and manage demand during operation

2. be clean: exploit local energy resources (such as secondary heat) and supply
energy efficiently and cleanly

3. be green: maximise opportunities for renewable energy by producing, storing and
using renewable energy on-site

4. be seen: monitor, verify and report on energy performance.

B) Major development proposals should include a detailed energy strategy to
demonstrate how the zero-carbon target will be met within the framework of the
energy hierarchy.

C) A minimum on-site reduction of at least 35 per cent beyond Building
Regulations152 is required for major development. Residential development should
achieve 10 per cent, and non-residential development should achieve 15 per cent
through energy efficiency measures. Where it is clearly demonstrated that the zero-
carbon target cannot be fully achieved on-site, any shortfall should be provided, in
agreement with the borough, either:

1. through a cash in lieu contribution to the borough’s carbon offset fund, or

2. off-site provided that an alternative proposal is identified and delivery is certain.

D) Boroughs must establish and administer a carbon offset fund. Offset fund
payments must be ring-fenced to implement projects that deliver carbon reductions.
The operation of offset funds should be monitored and reported on annually.

E) Major development proposals should calculate and minimise carbon emissions
from any other part of the development, including plant or equipment, that are not
covered by Building Regulations, i.e. unregulated emissions.

F) Development proposals referable to the Mayor should calculate whole life-cycle
carbon emissions through a nationally recognised Whole Life-Cycle Carbon
Assessment and demonstrate actions taken to reduce life-cycle carbon emissions.

LP Sl 12: Flood Risk Management

A) Current and expected flood risk from all sources (as defined in paragraph 9.2.12)
across London should be managed in a sustainable and cost-effective way in
collaboration with the Environment Agency, the Lead Local Flood Authorities,
developers and infrastructure providers.

B) Development Plans should use the Mayor’s Regional Flood Risk Appraisal and
their Strategic Flood Risk Assessment as well as Local Flood Risk Management

27
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 257



Strategies, where necessary, to identify areas where particular and cumulative flood
risk issues exist and develop actions and policy approaches aimed at reducing these
risks. Boroughs should cooperate and jointly address cross-boundary flood risk
issues including with authorities outside London.

C) Development proposals should ensure that flood risk is minimised and mitigated,
and that residual risk is addressed. This should include, where possible, making
space for water and aiming for development to be set back from the banks of
watercourses.

D) Developments Plans and development proposals should contribute to the delivery
of the measures set out in Thames Estuary 2100 Plan. The Mayor will work with the
Environment Agency and relevant local planning authorities, including authorities
outside London, to safeguard an appropriate location for a new Thames Barrier.

E) Development proposals for utility services should be designed to remain
operational under flood conditions and buildings should be designed for quick
recovery following a flood.

F) Development proposals adjacent to flood defences will be required to protect the
integrity of flood defences and allow access for future maintenance and upgrading.
Unless exceptional circumstances are demonstrated for not doing so, development
proposals should be set back from flood defences to allow for any foreseeable future
maintenance and upgrades in a sustainable and cost-effective way.

G) Natural flood management methods should be employed in development
proposals due to their multiple benefits including increasing flood storage and
creating recreational areas and habitat.

LP Sl 13: Sustainable Drainage

A) Lead Local Flood Authorities should identify — through their Local Flood Risk
Management Strategies and Surface Water Management Plans — areas where there
are particular surface water management issues and aim to reduce these risks.
Increases in surface water run-off outside these areas also need to be identified and
addressed.

B) Development proposals should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure
that surface water run-off is managed as close to its source as possible. There
should also be a preference for green over grey features, in line with the following
drainage hierarchy:

1. rainwater use as a resource (for example rainwater harvesting, blue roofs for
irrigation)

2. rainwater infiltration to ground at or close to source

3. rainwater attenuation in green infrastructure features for gradual release (for
example green roofs, rain gardens)

28
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 258



4. rainwater discharge direct to a watercourse (unless not appropriate)
5. controlled rainwater discharge to a surface water sewer or drain
6. controlled rainwater discharge to a combined sewer.

C) Development proposals for impermeable surfacing should normally be resisted
unless they can be shown to be unavoidable, including on small surfaces such as
front gardens and driveways.

D) Drainage should be designed and implemented in ways that promote multiple
benefits including increased water use efficiency, improved water quality, and
enhanced biodiversity, urban greening, amenity and recreation.

LP1 EM6: Flood Risk Management

The Council will require new development to be directed away from Flood Zones 2
and 3 in accordance with the principles of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF).

The subsequent Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -Site Specific Allocations LDD will be
subjected to the Sequential Test in accordance with the NPPF. Sites will only be
allocated within Flood Zones 2 or 3 where there are overriding issues that outweigh
flood risk. In these instances, policy criteria will be set requiring future applicants of
these sites to demonstrate that flood risk can be suitably mitigated.

The Council will require all development across the borough to use sustainable
urban drainage systems (SUDS) unless demonstrated that it is not viable. The
Council will encourage SUDS to be linked to water efficiency methods. The Council
may require developer contributions to guarantee the long term maintenance and
performance of SUDS is to an appropriate standard.

LP1 EMS8: Land, Water, Air and Noise

Water Quality
The Council will seek to safeguard and improve all water quality, both ground and
surface. Principal Aquifers, and Source Protection Zones will be given priority along
with the:

- River Colne

- Grand Union Canal

- River Pinn

- Yeading Brook

- Porter Land Brook

- River Crane

- Ruislip Lido

29
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 259



Air Quality
All development should not cause deterioration in the local air quality levels and
should ensure the protection of both existing and new sensitive receptors.

All major development within the Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) should
demonstrate air quality neutrality (no worsening of impacts) where appropriate;
actively contribute to the promotion of sustainable transport measures such as
vehicle charging points and the increased provision for vehicles with cleaner
transport fuels; deliver increased planting through soft landscaping and living walls
and roofs; and provide a management plan for ensuring air quality impacts can be
kept to a minimum.

The Council seeks to reduce the levels of pollutants referred to in the Government’s
National Air Quality Strategy and will have regard to the Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy.
London Boroughs should also take account of the findings of the Air Quality Review
and Assessments and Actions plans, in particular where Air Quality Management
Areas have been designated.

The Council has a network of Air Quality Monitoring stations but recognises that this
can be widened to improve understanding of air quality impacts. The Council may
therefore require new major development in an AQMA to fund additional air quality
monitoring stations to assist in managing air quality improvements.

Noise

The Council will investigate Hillingdon's target areas identified in the Defra Noise
Action Plans, promote the maximum possible reduction in noise levels and will
minimise the number of people potentially affected.

The Council will seek to identify and protect Quiet Areas in accordance with
Government Policy on sustainable development and other Local Plan policies.

The Council will seek to ensure that noise sensitive development and noise
generating development are only permitted if noise impacts can be adequately
controlled and mitigated.

Land Contamination

The Council will expect proposals for development on contaminated land to provide
mitigation strategies that reduce the impacts on surrounding land uses. Major
development proposals will be expected to demonstrate a sustainable approach to
remediation that includes techniques to reduce the need to landfill.

Water Resources

The Council will require that all new development demonstrates the incorporation of
water efficiency measures within new development to reduce the rising demand on

potable water. All new development must incorporate water recycling and collection
facilities unless it can be demonstrated it is not appropriate. For residential

30
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 260



developments, the Council will require applicants to demonstrate that water
consumption will not surpass 105 litres per person per day.

LP2 DMEI 2: Reducing Carbon Emissions

A) All developments are required to make the fullest contribution to minimising
carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with London Plan targets.

B) All major development proposals must be accompanied by an energy assessment
showing how these reductions will be achieved.

C) Proposals that fail to take reasonable steps to achieve the required savings will
be resisted. However, where it is clearly demonstrated that the targets for carbon
emissions cannot be met onsite, the Council may approve the application and seek
an off-site contribution to make up for the shortfall.

LP2 DMEI 9: Management of Flood Risk

A) Development proposals in Flood Zones 2 and 3a will be required to demonstrate
that there are no suitable sites available in areas of lower flood risk. Where no
appropriate sites are available, development should be located on the areas of
lowest flood risk within the site. Flood defences should provide protection for the
lifetime of the development. Finished floor levels should reflect the Environment
Agency's latest guidance on climate change.

B) Development proposals in these areas will be required to submit an appropriate
level Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) to demonstrate that the development is resilient
to all sources of flooding.

C) Development in Flood Zone 3b will be refused in principle unless identified as an
appropriate development in Flood Risk Planning Policy Guidance. Development for
appropriate uses in Flood Zone 3b will only be approved if accompanied by an
appropriate FRA that demonstrates the development will be resistant and resilient to
flooding and suitable warning and evacuation methods are in place.

D) Developments may be required to make contributions (through legal agreements)
to previously identified flood improvement works that will benefit the development
site.

E) Proposals that fail to make appropriate provision for flood risk mitigation, or which
would increase the risk or consequences of flooding, will be refused.

LP2 DMEI 10: Water Management, Efficiency, and Quality

A) Applications for all new build developments (not conversions, change of use, or
refurbishment) are required to include a drainage assessment demonstrating that

31
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 261



appropriate sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) have been incorporated in
accordance with the London Plan Hierarchy (Policy 5.13: Sustainable drainage).

B) All major new build developments, as well as minor developments in Critical
Drainage Areas or an area identified at risk from surface water flooding must be
designed to reduce surface water run-off rates to no higher than the pre-
development greenfield run-off rate in a 1:100 year storm scenario, plus an
appropriate allowance for climate change for the worst storm duration. The
assessment is required regardless of the changes in impermeable areas and the fact
that a site has an existing high run-off rate will not constitute justification.

C) Rain Gardens and non householder development should be designed to reduce
surface water run-off rates to Greenfield run-off rates.

D) Schemes for the use of SuDS must be accompanied by adequate arrangements
for the management and maintenance of the measures used, with appropriate
contributions made to the Council where necessary.

E) Proposals that would fail to make adequate provision for the control and reduction
of surface water run-off rates will be refused.

F) Developments should be drained by a SuDs system and must include appropriate
methods to avoid pollution of the water environment. Preference should be given to
utilising the drainage options in the SuDS hierarchy which remove the key pollutants
that hinder improving water quality in Hillingdon. Major development should adopt a
'treatment train' approach where water flows through different SuDS to ensure
resilience in the system. Water Efficiency

G) All new development proposals (including refurbishments and conversions) will be
required to include water efficiency measures, including the collection and reuse of
rain water and grey water.

H) All new residential development should demonstrate water usage rates of no
more than 105 litres/person/day.

) It is expected that major development8 proposals will provide an integrated
approach to surface water run-off attenuation, water collection, recycling and reuse.
Water and Wastewater Infrastructure

J) All new development proposals will be required to demonstrate that there is
sufficient capacity in the water and wastewater infrastructure network to support the
proposed development. Where there is a capacity constraint the local planning
authority will require the developer to provide a detailed water and/or drainage
strategy to inform what infrastructure is required, where, when and how it will be
delivered.

32
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 262



LP2 DMEI 12: Development of Land Affected by Contamination

A) Proposals for development on potentially contaminated sites will be expected to
be accompanied by at least an initial study of the likely contaminants. The Council
will support planning permission for any development of land which is affected by
contamination where it can be demonstrated that contamination issues have been
adequately assessed and the site can be safely remediated so that the development
can be made suitable for the proposed use.

B) Conditions will be imposed where planning permission is given for development
on land affected by contamination to ensure all the necessary remedial works are
implemented, prior to commencement of development.

C) Where initial studies reveal potentially harmful levels of contamination, either to
human health or controlled waters and other environmental features, full intrusive
ground investigations and remediation proposals will be expected prior to any
approvals.

D) In some instances, where remedial works relate to an agreed set of measures
such as the management of ongoing remedial systems, or remediation of adjoining
or other affected land, a S106 planning obligation will be sought.

LP2 DMEI 14: Air Quality

A) Development proposals should demonstrate appropriate reductions in emissions
to sustain compliance with and contribute towards meeting EU limit values and
national air quality objectives for pollutants.

B) Development proposals should, as a minimum:

i) be at least “air quality neutral”;

i) include sufficient mitigation to ensure there is no unacceptable risk from air
pollution to sensitive receptors, both existing and new; and

iii) actively contribute towards the improvement of air quality, especially within the Air
Quality Management Area.

TP T4: Assessing and Mitigating Transport Impacts

A) Development Plans and development proposals should reflect and be integrated
with current and planned transport access, capacity and connectivity.

B) When required in accordance with national or local guidance, transport
assessments/statements should be submitted with development proposals to ensure
that impacts on the capacity of the transport network (including impacts on
pedestrians and the cycle network), at the local, network-wide and strategic level,
are fully assessed. Transport assessments should focus on embedding the Healthy
Streets Approach within, and in the vicinity of, new development. Travel Plans,

33

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 263



Parking Design and Management Plans, Construction Logistics Plans and Delivery
and Servicing Plans will be required having regard to Transport for London guidance.

C) Where appropriate, mitigation, either through direct provision of public transport,
walking and cycling facilities and highways improvements or through financial
contributions, will be required to address adverse transport impacts that are
identified.

D) Where the ability to absorb increased travel demand through active travel modes
has been exhausted, existing public transport capacity is insufficient to allow for the
travel generated by proposed developments, and no firm plans and funding exist for
an increase in capacity to cater for the increased demand, planning permission will
be contingent on the provision of necessary public transport and active travel
infrastructure.

E) The cumulative impacts of development on public transport and the road network
capacity including walking and cycling, as well as associated effects on public health,
should be taken into account and mitigated.

F) Development proposals should not increase road danger.
LP T5: Cycling

A) Development Plans and development proposals should help remove barriers to
cycling and create a healthy environment in which people choose to cycle. This will
be achieved through:

1. supporting the delivery of a London-wide network of cycle routes, with new routes
and improved infrastructure

2. securing the provision of appropriate levels of cycle parking which should be fit for
purpose, secure and well-located. Developments should provide cycle parking at
least in accordance with the minimum standards set out in Table 10.2 and Figure
10.3, ensuring that a minimum of two short-stay and two long-stay cycle parking
spaces are provided where the application of the minimum standards would result in
a lower provision.

B) Cycle parking should be designed and laid out in accordance with the guidance
contained in the London Cycling Design Standards. Development proposals should
demonstrate how cycle parking facilities will cater for larger cycles, including adapted
cycles for disabled people.

C) Development Plans requiring more generous provision of cycle parking based on
local evidence will be supported.

D) Where it is not possible to provide suitable short-stay cycle parking off the public
highway, the borough should work with stakeholders to identify an appropriate on-
street location for the required provision. This may mean the reallocation of space

34
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 264



from other uses such as on-street car parking. Alternatively, in town centres, adding
the required provision to general town centre cycle parking is also acceptable. In
such cases, a commuted sum should be paid to the local authority to secure
provision.

E) Where it is not possible to provide adequate cycle parking within residential
developments, boroughs must work with developers to propose alternative solutions
which meet the objectives of the standards. These may include options such as
providing spaces in secure, conveniently-located, on-street parking facilities such as
bicycle hangers.

F) Where the use class of a development is not fixed at the point of application, the
highest potential applicable cycle parking standard should be applied.

LP T6: Car Parking

A) Car parking should be restricted in line with levels of existing and future public
transport accessibility and connectivity.

B) Car-free development should be the starting point for all development proposals
in places that are (or are planned to be) well-connected by public transport, with
developments elsewhere designed to provide the minimum necessary parking (‘car-
lite’). Car-free development has no general parking but should still provide disabled
persons parking in line with Part E of this policy.

C) An absence of local on-street parking controls should not be a barrier to new
development, and boroughs should look to implement these controls wherever
necessary to allow existing residents to maintain safe and efficient use of their
streets.

D) The maximum car parking standards set out in Policy T6 .1 Residential parking to
Policy T6 .5 Non-residential disabled persons parking should be applied to
development proposals and used to set local standards within Development Plans.

E) Appropriate disabled persons parking for Blue Badge holders should be provided
as set out in Policy T6 .1 Residential parking to Policy T6 .5 Non-residential disabled
persons parking.

F) Where provided, each motorcycle parking space should count towards the
maximum for car parking spaces at all use classes.

G) Where car parking is provided in new developments, provision should be made
for infrastructure for electric or other Ultra-Low Emission vehicles in line with Policy
T6 .1 Residential parking, Policy T6 .2 Office Parking, Policy T6 .3 Retail parking,
and Policy T6 .4 Hotel and leisure uses parking.

35
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 265



All operational parking should make this provision, including offering rapid charging.
New or re-provided petrol filling stations should provide rapid charging hubs and/or
hydrogen refuelling facilities.

H) Where electric vehicle charging points are provided on-street, physical
infrastructure should not negatively affect pedestrian amenity and should ideally be
located off the footway. Where charging points are located on the footway, it must
remain accessible to all those using it including disabled people.

I) Adequate provision should be made for efficient deliveries and servicing and
emergency access.

J) A Parking Design and Management Plan should be submitted alongside all
applications which include car parking provision, indicating how the car parking will
be designed and managed, with reference to Transport for London guidance on
parking management and parking design.

K) Boroughs that have adopted or wish to adopt more restrictive general or
operational parking policies are supported, including borough-wide or other area-
based car-free policies. Outer London boroughs wishing to adopt minimum
residential parking standards through a Development Plan Document (within the
maximum standards set out in Policy T6 .1 Residential parking) must only do so for
parts of London that are PTAL 0-1. Inner London boroughs should not adopt
minimum standards. Minimum standards are not appropriate for non-residential use
classes in any part of London.

L) Where sites are redeveloped, parking provision should reflect the current
approach and not be re-provided at previous levels where this exceeds the
standards set out in this policy. Some flexibility may be applied where retail sites are
redeveloped outside of town centres in areas which are not well served by public
transport, particularly in outer London.

LP T6.1: Residential Parking

A) New residential development should not exceed the maximum parking standards
set out in Table 10.3. These standards are a hierarchy with the more restrictive
standard applying when a site falls into more than one category.

B) Parking spaces within communal car parking facilities (including basements)
should be leased rather than sold.

C) All residential car parking spaces must provide infrastructure for electric or Ultra-
Low Emission vehicles. At least 20 per cent of spaces should have active charging
facilities, with passive provision for all remaining spaces.

36
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 266



D) Outside of the CAZ, and to cater for infrequent trips, car club spaces may be
considered appropriate in lieu of private parking. Any car club spaces should have
active charging facilities.

E) Large-scale purpose-built shared living, student accommodation and other sui
generis residential uses should be car-free.

F) The provision of car parking should not be a reason for reducing the level of
affordable housing in a proposed development.

G) Disabled persons parking should be provided for new residential developments.
Residential development proposals delivering ten or more units must, as a minimum:
1. ensure that for three per cent of dwellings, at least one designated disabled
persons parking bay per dwelling is available from the outset

2. demonstrate as part of the Parking Design and Management Plan, how an
additional seven per cent of dwellings could be provided with one designated
disabled persons parking space per dwelling in future upon request as soon as
existing provision is insufficient. This should be secured at the planning stage.

H) All disabled persons parking bays associated with residential development must:
1. be for residents’ use only (whether M4(2) or M4(3) dwellings)

2. not be allocated to specific dwellings, unless provided within the curtilage of the
dwelling

3. be funded by the payment of a commuted sum by the applicant, if provided on-
street (this includes a requirement to fund provision of electric vehicle charging
infrastructure)

4. count towards the maximum parking provision for the development

5. be designed in accordance with the design guidance in BS8300vol.1

6. be located to minimise the distance between disabled persons parking bays and
the dwelling or the relevant block entrance or lift core, and the route should be
preferably level or where this is not possible, should be gently sloping (1:60-1:20) on
a suitable firm ground surface.

LP2 DMT 1: Managing Transport Impacts

A) Development proposals will be required to meet the transport needs of the
development and address its transport impacts in a sustainable manner. In order for
developments to be acceptable they are required to:

i) be accessible by public transport, walking and cycling either from the catchment
area that it is likely to draw its employees, customers or visitors from and/or the
services and facilities necessary to support the development;

ii) maximise safe, convenient and inclusive accessibility to, and from within
developments for pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users;

iii) provide equal access for all people, including inclusive access for disabled
people;

iv) adequately address delivery, servicing and drop-off requirements; and

37
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 267



v) have no significant adverse transport or associated air quality and noise impacts
on the local and wider environment, particularly on the strategic road network.

B) Development proposals will be required to undertake a satisfactory Transport
Assessment and Travel Plan if they meet or exceed the appropriate thresholds. All
major developments11 that fall below these thresholds will be required to produce a
satisfactory Transport Statement and Local Level Travel Plan. All these plans should
demonstrate how any potential impacts will be mitigated and how such measures will
be implemented.

LP2 DMT 2: Highways Impacts

Development proposals must ensure that:

i) safe and efficient vehicular access to the highway network is provided to the
Council’s standards;

ii) they do not contribute to the deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity or
safety of all road users and residents;

iii) safe, secure and convenient access and facilities for cyclists and pedestrian are
satisfactorily accommodated in the design of highway and traffic management
schemes;

iv) impacts on local amenity and congestion are minimised by routing through traffic
by the most direct means to the strategic road network, avoiding local distributor and
access roads; and

v) there are suitable mitigation measures to address any traffic impacts in terms of
capacity and functions of existing and committed roads, including along roads or
through junctions which are at capacity.

LP2 Policy DMT 5: Pedestrians and Cyclists

A) Development proposals will be required to ensure that safe, direct and inclusive
access for pedestrians and cyclists is provided on the site connecting it to the wider
network, including:

i) the retention and, where appropriate, enhancement of any existing pedestrian and
cycle routes;

ii) the provision of a high quality and safe public realm or interface with the public
realm, which facilitates convenient and direct access to the site for pedestrian and
cyclists;

iii) the provision of well signposted, attractive pedestrian and cycle routes separated
from vehicular traffic where possible; and

iv) the provision of cycle parking and changing facilities in accordance with Appendix
C, Table 1 or, in agreement with Council.

B) Development proposals located next to or along the Blue Ribbon Network will be
required to enhance and facilitate inclusive, safe and secure pedestrian and cycle
access to the network. Development proposals, by virtue of their design, will be

38
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 268



required to complement and enhance local amenity and include passive surveillance
to the network.

LP2 DMT 6: Vehicle Parking

A) Development proposals must comply with the parking standards outlined in
Appendix C Table 1 in order to facilitate sustainable development and address
issues relating to congestion and amenity. The Council may agree to vary these
requirements when:

i) the variance would not lead to a deleterious impact on street parking provision,
congestion or local amenity; and/or

ii) a transport appraisal and travel plan has been approved and parking provision is
in accordance with its recommendations.

B) All car parks provided for new development will be required to contain
conveniently located reserved spaces for wheelchair users and those with restricted
mobility in accordance with the Council’'s Accessible Hillingdon SPD.

39
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 269



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Hillingdon
Planning Committee
Wednesday 15th January 2025

HILLINGDON

ON

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

Page 271



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Address: 22 BELMONT CLOSE UXBRIDGE

Development: Erection of a detached house with 4 bedrooms and associated parking, amenity
and bin/cycle stores (updated plans)

LBH Ref Nos: 79130/APP/2024/1864

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 272



Page 273

REV. | DATE DESCRIPTION

o 22 Belmont Close,
Uxbridge. UB8 1RF.

TITEE
Existing
Block plan
RG. No. 3367—01 REV. —
SCALE1- 100 [ © copyiant 2022 [N BY JDS
DATE Dec 22
crecken PD N
DATE Dec 22

TOWERS ASSOCIATES

Hangfield 0il Terminal, Harvil Rd,
efield, MIDDX. ' UB9 6JL.

FAX. 01895 814664

L 01895 812822




Greenhouse /Outbuilding

Page 274

REV. | DATE DESCRIPTION

o 22 Belmont Close,

Uxbridge. UB8 1RF.
TITLE

Existing
Landscape

G o 3367 S—01 Rev —

SCAE 1 100 [ © copviont 2022 [ RN BY DS

DATE Dec 22
cweoesPDN|

DATEDec 22

TOWERS ASSOCIATES LTD
Harefield 0il Terminal, Harvil Rd,
Harefield, MIDDX. UB9 6JL.

. 01895 812822

wiB._www.towers—associates.com




1. Do not scale from this drawing.

2. All dimensions to be checked on site
before ordering materials or commencing
work.

3. In case of discrepancies in drawings,

dedisions by contractors wil not be
accepted.

4. For any Information not covered by
these dravings refer 1o TOWERS
ASSOCIATES. for clarification: Unilateral
decisions by contractors wil not be
accepted.

5. The contractor must
being corried out to the latest revisions of
all the working drawings.

6. It is the contractors responsibility to

stages of work. All to the District
Surveyors satisfaction.
. If work commences on site before full
\

~

any additional work or materiis that the
| District Surveyor may require.

i & This drawing ond all coples produced there

i ASSOCIATES if demanded.

|
|
|
[
» [
¢ Lo
m [
) [ i
= [
t i
O m Pl
< .
o
.
[
[
[
[ .
[
E
= _ _ "
1 o
|
Lt gaor oy 4 - “ _ > | “ ﬂ ”
= L I N s
[ [
o 0 e e v [ g
,,« ! S . _ _ |
o y | ,
§ i/ “ L
= m Lol
Ll L1 . »
- 2 , o= —
. 12.4m = _I—
_ 500mm 2M
\ Levels
! 5390 O et i loves.

Dana-275
rage€zZ7o

Sept 24Rear patio levels revised
Aug 24 [Boundary for no 22 added.

Actual position as built on site. _U Jul 24 of No 24 adjusted

(Dims sighted from scafold on
adjocent sight os no occess to
No 24 Garden.)

ition

Rear projection added and
1l 23| A3 internal alteration @s Concition 10

| Therefore Original Levels are all 6.1m below
i GPS altitude levels. to get a compasison.

REV. | DATE DESCRIPTION
I3
\ e T e P 22 Belmont Close,
w wi :
\ No 24 house layout Uxbridge. UB8 1RF.
\ Actual position as built on site. TITLE
Di ighted f) fold
! Coacont st ‘ae e “access o Proposed
__ No 24 Garden.) Site Layout
i wmaia_ position as shown on /
Map with black lines
_ Ot paiion o shown on pRe Mo 3309-03 Rev.
\ 0S Map with black lines
! SeAE1:100 [© oo 20 [muwrJDS
DATE Apr 23
cHECkeD P DN
DATE Apr 23

TOWERS ASSOCIATES
Harefield 0il Terminal, Harvil Rd,
Harefield, MIDDX. UB9 6JL.
Fax. 01895 814664
L 01895 812822




Q
8
8
o e
P = -
I3
_ i
_ 0 |
Level access patio. B e o \Level access romp | Level access patio.
Rear Elevation accommodate Heat pump unit Front Elevation Side Elevation (from 20 Belmont Close) level by door 60.18
. ) for mobility access
Side Elevation (from 24 Belmont Close) from this door

Belmont Close e \\ < \
I

— _—— —_—— —_ . A '
I/ # Yy, =28 N
7

Side fencing

min 2200mm _high

Max with gravel board
m 2400mm  high

e

i 1

step access from this doorway

-
h

Patio level 60.00.

N\ Ground  level
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. All dimensions to be checked on site
. before it
Section A—A before ordering matarils or commencing

3. In cose of discrepancies in drawings,
caleulations or detalls refer to TOWERS
ASSOCIATES. for clarification. Unilateral
decisions by contractors wil not be
accepted.

4. For any information not covered by
these dravings refer to TOWERS
ASSOCIATES. for dlarification: Unilateral
decisions by controctors will not be

occepted.

\\\\\\\\\\\ 5. The contractor must ensure that work is
being corried out to the latest revisions of
all the working drawings.

6. It Is the contractors responsibility to
inform the locd authority before work
‘commences on site, and ot all prescribed
stages of work. All to the District
Surveyors satisfaction.

7. If work commences on site before full

Dana 270

rage=zZ7o

jmin I

3577

|
'

2079

2879
|
I
I
T

plans approval has been given, TOWERS
ASSOCIATES accept no responsibity for
any additional work or materiale that the
Distnct Surveyor may require.

& This drawing and all coples produced there

11328

TOWERS ASSOCIATES it may only be
reproduced by TOWERS ASSOCIA
all_coples mist be retumed to TOWERS
ASSOCIATES if demanded.

?m 12425

|
153
po

Sept 24{Rear patio levels revised

Aug 24 |Title revised to no 22 Belmont Close
Jul 24 | Overlay no 24 as site dims

G
F
E
D |Mor 24| utiiity room revised. Info added.
C
B

Kitchen

k4
11803
12303

bathr

9462
I
I
)
3

Jul 23 |Rear projection added and
And Internal alteration as Concition 10

Jun 23| floor to ceiling heights revised

REV. | DATE TESCRIPTION

Section B—B

JOB
22 Belmont Close,
Uxbridge. UB8 1RF.

TITLE
3388 Proposed

New house
| Attic Floor Roof Layout
% pRe Mo 330004 RV G

=
g
H

[

seae 1: 100 [ © conriont 2023 [BRN.3Y JDS

DATE Apr 23

0 5M 10M oeckedPDN|

™

j —|— —|— DATE Apr 23
| E ) I | TOWERS ASSOCIATES
500mm 2M Harefield Oil Terminal, Harvil Rd,

Harefield, MIDDX. UB9 6JL.
Fax. 01895 814664

L 01895 812822




i Tiles

brick

brick

A _ “ |
| N i
i > _—_—_— =t —_——— — — — —
i AN | i
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
i R i i render 3
i B 1 8
| | |
| | |
, ! 00
” 1 =1
W Ea || 1 iz
24 Belmont Close 22 Belmont Close 20 Belmont Close
Existing Street Scene

M |
| N |
i N R e :
| ~ _ |
I ] I !
i Tiles I Z Tiles |
| _ les ,
| |

!
! N brick brick ! render ”
, 2 ! g
| [l o _ I8
| |
L “ !
|
|
|
L
f

brick _

=1 (00} [

24 Belmont Close

Front Elevation
Proposed Street Scene

20 Belmont Close

Do not scole from this drawing

. All dimensions to be checked on site
before ordering materials or commencing
work,

B

In case of discrep

cies in drawings,

decisions by contractors
accepted.

5. The contractor must ensure that work is
being carried out 1o the latest revisions of
all the working drawings.

6. It is the contractors respon:
inform the local authority before work

ite, ond ot all prescribed

District Surveyor may require.

8. This drawing ond

TOWERS ASSOCIATES it may only be
reproduced by TOWERS ASSOCIATES and
oll_copies must be returned to TOWERS
ASSOCIATES if demanded,

Page 277

0 M 5M 10M
O
I I

500mm 2M

REV. | DATE DESCRIPTION

o 22 Belmont Close,

Uxbridge. UB8 1RF.
TITLE

Existing & Proposed
Street Scene

RG. No. 3367 —05 REV. —

seae 1: 100

M © copyrignt 2023 | RN.3Y JDS

DATE Apr 23

ceoenPDN|

DATE Apr 23

TOWERS ASSOCIATES LTD
Harefield Oil Terminal, Harvil Rd,

Harefield, MIDDX. UB9 BJL.
L. 01895 812822

weB. www.towers—associates.com




20

006¢

Existing Tree

1
o
[ = O
1, %
O
1 O
L
H
L .I_ —+
T |
o =
| = & S
L & & c
f S - o
\ i > e L —
o S @ (D)
m 7 ”wam,m :mmrm%., w»,nu, vehicle
; o0 a8
2
N
©
v S AN
N o
(@]
c ©
= Activg electical vehicle - Dl
p=d chargjng poit (2 vehicles). Ducted m
< under| foot fatch to other vehjicle 9
3 space
X2 ) = I 2
. S = <
IER ® / H 2
3 L
[ ¢ ¢ Existing Hedgd\
New boundary fence 2.2m height New boundary fence 2.2m height New boundary fence 2.2m height AN TRIS TN
/
/ <+
/
/
/ QN
.
2.
REV. | DATE DESCRIPTION
E J0B
22 Belmont Close, Uxbridge,
UB8 1RF.
- TITLE
Proposed
< s Hard Landscaping layout
DG o 3367—LS—02 RV —
SCALE. 1: 50 [ © covriont 2023 [ bRN.B3Y JV
0 ™ 5M 10M 7 WE Apr 23
ceoePDN|
DATE Apr 23
ﬁ ¢ g raperty o TOWERS ASSOCIATES LTD
y only be mwﬂmmm;am.owr em—mwwwwr %mwméwuhma‘
all copies must be returned to arelield, - -
500mm 2M SSSOGATES i domanded 0 T . 01895 812822
WwEB._www.towers—associates.com




20

Plant type

New Closed Boarder
Timber Fence along this
side. 2m mox height

Plant type
(Tall shrubs)
No type 4
No type 5

Existing Tree o bpe 8

. , Plant type  Add 'Type 15° New Low Level Closed
Plant type  Add Mﬁm 15’ Plant type (Low shrubs) ground cover 1 Boarder Timber Fence
(Low shrubs) ground cover (Low shrubs)  1No type 18 along this side.

1100

1No type 20 gaps are ] 2No type 20

uapJng Hap

resent
AT |

J
SHsnIntAEs U tahat b |
e —

No type 19 where large i&No Type 15— 2ZNo tpe 1 /
=

1

¢ |
d
J
| ]
| ]

ol — add "Type 15
) —— || Plant type  Add 'Type 15" ground cover
- N % (Low shrubs) ground cover where large gaps
2No type 2 where large are present
- \ / 2No type 11 gops are
2No type 19  present
/ 2No_type 20
o ;_\“ N
(e
~ ! o
= o
Q
Vv =< ~ w
n @ 2% 2
~ = B
o x g — =! 1 f —
o q = @
Kl 5§ )
5
8
L %]
” ), i N b d \
New boundary fence 2.2m height New boundary fence 2.2m height New ¢ w:m;aﬂ\m.ai
nﬂi type Plont type
./ (Low shrubs) (Infill_hedging)
No type 18 ype 13
10x Plant type Plant type /" 2No tye 18 type 14
(Low shrubs) - 2No type 20
No type 18 . §
2No type 19 \ Add ‘Type 15’ ground cover 1No type 19
2No type 20 where large gops are 2No type 20
present
No type 17 Add "Type 15’ ground cover Add "Type 15’ ground cover
here large gaps are where large gaps are
present present

Do not scale from this drawing,

2

REV. | DATE DESCRIPTION

JOB

22 Belmont Close, Uxbridge,
UB8 1RF.

TITLE

Proposed

Soft Landscaping layout

X6 Mo 3367—LS—03 Rev.—

0 ™ 5M 10M SCALE. 1: 50 M © Copyright 2023 | IRN.BY J\/
j 7. TATE Apr 23
cexkesPDN
7’ TATE Apr 23
¢ TOWERS ASSOCIATES LTD

Harefield 0il Terminal, Harvil Rd,
Harefield, MIDDX. UB9 6JL.

500mm 2M

il Goples must be retumed to TOWERS
ASSOCIATES if demanded. . 01895 812822

wes.www.towers—associates.com




Low Shrubs Planting General specification Hedge Maintenance Up To 2000
Refer to 3309 Proposed New plants Up To 2000 ki 1
ndex Imported topsoil to be general purpose to BS3882. Weeding — Weed control for the first five years is essential for the hedge : m_
Z=Z to i oft of
Z=Z{Root condition cg... Density 3 No per Tree pits to be 750x750x700mm. establish properly. The cultivated strip should be kept completely free of 8 I mm_
m2... shrubs planting areas 350mm depth of so weeds to = H HI
Size 5L... Lawn area — 150mm depth of soi dllow the hedge to establish, and in addition check that growth to either =
ont sl Back side
side of the
Al lanting areas to be cultivated with incorporation of organic compost strip is not encroaching on the hedge. Key
P! 9 P 9 P P 9 9
) and slow release fertilizer. Pull up any visible weeds, to maintain the original planting strip bare of o
Tall Shrubs Plonting on Completi tol slanting bede to b lehed with 50 mﬂms»:? e hed Closed Boarder Timber Fence  5uq16 1100 M.onh“ Romber 250 Fonee gonie 1:100
n Completion, ornamental planting beds to be mulched wi mm other than the hedge.
mmﬁmﬁ to 3309 Proposed New plants depth ornamental grade forest bark.
fnaex — The mulch layer should entirely cover the surface of the o -
All trees to be double staked with 2 No. rubber trees ties per tree. cultivated strip 2 g m
Climber: to suppress weed growth and retain soil moisture by reducing evaporation. - b 2
. Works to be maintained for 24 months after practical completion. 1412 58
Refer to 3309 Proposed New plonts wﬁgma\%m:ma pruning of the young hedge plants is important to Ir%. Ew% R
Root condition cg... Density 3 No per Notes: development of lateral buds, which produce the dense bushy growth w142,
m2... required of FE] H AT
i - i hedges. Pruning also stimulates root growth, which helps the plant
Size 5L—-10L.. Proposed Shrub Planting mwﬂ%U ah. 1t wn 9 P P! PN Scole 1:100
Shrub plonting to be planted at o rote as shown in the plant schedule, to essential for the hedge plonts to be pruned in each of the early years to Plon
be planted in the first available planting season following the occupation ensure
E GRASS . o of the building or the completion of the development (whichever is strong, bushy growth. Bin Store H
wyouﬂmma. seed ‘%\Wzl n.a /turfing, 100 oot sooner), in @ minimum 450mm depth of clean topsoil, with a minimum of Hedging N
nting areas for seeding/turfing, mm min. depth; 5
1500 u‘wﬁm:ma of clean :mn oo wcn ol Good nsm ty in 50mm approved bark mulch applied. After planting, cut back the leading shoots and longer side—shoots by @@ § o se
accordance with BS3882:1994. wno.\ﬁ:ua. wzs e et . 4 . Repeat == 3
General purpose grade or better. Depths required: all Proposed Hedgerow Planting ?o: sides during the first summer to encourage dense growth. Repea H D
planting areas 400mm, top soiled areas to be 30mm higher m? nwonmwma ter to thick the b £ the hed 2
than footpath d patios. T | to b | ded . n the second winter to thicken up the base of the hedge.
than footpaths and patios. Top soil to be evenly grade Hedgerow planting to be plonted in double stoggered row ot o rote os v Sede 1250 aton  Sne 150

season following the occupation of the building or the completion of the
development (whichever is sooner), in a minimum 300mm depth of clean
topsoil, with a minimum of 50mm approved bark mulch applied.

Plants and Planting: Subsequent pru
All plant material to be supplied should comply with
requirements specified in BS3936:1992. Annually in June and again in August as required to maintain form, clip to
All landscape works to be in accordance with British a tapered

Standard BS428:1989 Code of Practice for General
Landscape Operations.

9

Proposed Seeding / Turfing Newly—planted hedges should be pruned or trimmed carefully for the first

To be planted within the first planting and seeding seasons i . ) ) . ) ) two to
following the completion of the development of the Seeding / turfing to be carried out in the first available seeding / turfing three years after planting, in order to promote dense, bushy growth,
9 P! P
oecupation of the building, whichever is the earlier period. season following  the occupation of the building or the completion of the particularly at
The position of services, paths, parking areas and so forth, development (whichever is sooner), in a minimum 150mm depth of clean the base of the developing hedge. Hand trimming is the best method of
P P P! 9
may affect and slightly alter the exact position of planting.c topsoil. trimming
and pruning newly planted hedges, which produce soft whippy growth that
con be
SPECIFICATION NOTES Londscape Implementation Guidelines. easily torn by o flail. Hond trimming allows selective pruning of growth, o
—All planting and landscape operations should comply R . and can be
with the requirements specified in BS 3936 (1992) All hard and soft landscoping shall be carried out in accordance with the combined with a careful check of the hedge for weeds, failed hedge plants o0
N approved landscape scheme and shall be completed within the first or other
—Nursery Stock Part One and BS 4428 (1989) Code of [q\]
s - planting and seeding seasons following the completion of the development
Practice for General Londscape Opera th i * the buildi hich is th Ji iod R
Existing levels to be preserved around existing trees and or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier period. Watering — The new hedge plants shall be watered throughout the spring Cycle Store/Shed 2 i5FEs Scole 1:100 (4§}
during construction to BS 5837.2012 . . - and (@)
—any necessary tree works to be carried out by on Allplanting and landscape operations should comply withm the summer following planting at regular intervals to field capacity to maintain
approved tree surgeon to BS 3998: 2010 requirements specified in BS 3936 (1992) Nursery Stock Part One and BS healthy ©
ZAll topsoiling work to comply with BS 3882: 2007 4428 (1989) Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (excluding growth. o
—Trees to be anchored with Platipus Anchors or similar hard surfaces) Any plant species shown on the approved landscape ) . . .
underground guy system scheme which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the Wind — Re—firm hedging at regular intervals
—All planting areas to recieve 50mm of premlum grade bark development dies, is removed or in the opinion of the LPA becomes o o )
mulch seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the same place in the Failures — Any plants that die in the first five years shall be replaced with
—Planting beds to recieve minimum 300mm of topso next planting season with identical species unless the LPA gives written identical . . ) .
—Lown areos to recieve minimum 200mm of topsoi consent to any variation. species of the same size the first following planting season.
~ N Litter — Remove litter and arising’s from in and around the hedge.

Proposed seeding/turfing: General Maintenance Notes.
All planting areas for seeding/turfing, 100mm min. depth;
150mm preferred of clean top soi — All planted areas to be forked through regularly to keep soil loose and Tree Works Notes
Top soil: Good quality in accordance with BS3882:1994 aerated.
General purpose grade or better. Depths required: all ) All tree works to be undertaken in accordance with BS 3998:2010 Treework —
planting areas 400mm, top soiled areas to be 30mm higher — All litter and debris to be removed from landscaped areas and carted Recommendations’,
than footpaths and patios. Top soil to be evenly graded off site. All pruning cuts to be made at suitable growing points, in line with the principles
and free from subsoil, contamination and debris. of notural target pruning.

— Plonts re—firmed ond straightened as required. (In accordance to the current proposed design layout provided).
Plants and Planting:
All plant material to be supplied should comply with — Plants shall be pruned to promote healthy growth and to remove dead
requirements specified in BS3936:1992. and diseased wood.
All landscape works to be in accordance with British Passive electrical vehicle chargi .

) : : . . ging point
Stondord 85425,1888 Cads of Practios for Ganerd - Watering as required to maintain heaithy growth. (5 vehicles). " Second vehiels conneetion
To be planted within the first planting and seeding seasons ducted under foot path. 2 A1 dmensions to be checked en site
following the completion of the development of the Additional Notes. work. N N
occupation of the building, whichever is the earlier period. 3. In case of discrepancies in drawings,
on of services, paths, parking areas and so forth, — Existing levels to be preserved around existing trees and vegetation to colaulations or detofls refer lo TONERS
may affect and slightly alter the exact position of planting. be retained. H Air source heat pump. unmmwm‘wﬂw M”Fw%aﬁ: REV. | DATE DESCRIPTION
accepted. )
Mc:mﬂwcn:rmo%zmmmmM:Wm%MW%Vo: to be retained ore to be protected during 4. ﬂﬂmwua&nﬂn‘“uﬁ;ﬂﬁ,ﬂﬁw by 22 Belmont Close, CxUln_@m.
. ASSOCIATES. for clarification: Unilateral UB8 1RF.
decisions by contractors wil not be .
— Any necessary tree works to be carried out by an approved tree aceepted
[RRQ Marshalls Brindle Porous block paviours wcsmw; e v PP 5 e contractor must ensure ot ok s TILE
[ on Granular Fill over Terram ) e g drowinge Proposed

Permeable membrane. — Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan 6. 1t Is the contractors responsiolity to

shall not be damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior

n ing N
written consent of the local planning authority. = Landscaping Notes

Marshalls Indian Sndstone, Grey Multi 0 M 5M oM 1 e ommaness. o site before fu DRG. No. 3367 —|.S—04 REV.— ;
O plans approval has been given, TOWERS
IATES accept no for
| I any oddil fols that the SAE 1100 [ © copriant 2025 [ vy Jy/
500mm 2M District Surveyor may require. Pr——
8. This drawing and all copies produced there
from remain the copyright and property of cHecked PDN
TOWERS ASSOGIATES it may only be
reproduced by TOWERS ASSOCIATES and ATE APR 23|
all copies must be retumed to TOWERS
ASSOCIATES if demanded. TOWERS ASSOCIATES LTD
By using this drawing the user and his or her Harefield 0il Terminal, Harvil Rd,
mans«! S u.mxn: agreement of the cbove Harefield, MIDDX. UB9 6JL.
e e cendltens L 01895 812822
WwEB. www.towers—associates.com




28

Existing tree

Belmont Close

Page 281

30M

6¢

REV. | ATE DESCRIPTION

"B 20 Belmont Close,

Uxbridge. UB8 1RF.

TITI

PROPOSED

VEHICLE CROSSOVER &

VISIBILITY SPLAY

DRG. No. 3367 —VS—02 ReV.—

scAE 1: 200 [ ©copyrignt 2023 [ mn BY JV/
DATEAPR 23
CHECKED PDN
DATEAPR 23

TOWERS ASSOCIATES LTD
Harefield Oil Terminal, Harvil Rd,
Harefield, MIDDX. UB9 6JL.

. 01895 812822
weB. www.towers—associates.com




e T o o coved Sakrs o o oo e e

s conrancton ¢ beves on e Survey Niona O

ABBREVIATION KEY — TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

3

282

Co—ordinate Table

ID |Easting |Northing

Pa%g

Survey and Engineering Services Ltd $

et

Towers Associates

22 Belmont Close
Uzbridge
Middlesex
UB8 1RF

Level Survey

184664mN

k

506000mE
S06010mE
506020mE.
506030mE

505970mE
505980mE.

200924

200924/t

00 (A1 sheet) 20-09-2024




Waadstagk

PARK ROAD

KEY :

=3 Site Boundary

DISCLAIIMER :
For identification purpases only
This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Commitiee
Services pursuant ta section 47 of the
Copynaght, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides 3 relevant
exception to copynght

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey
AC0000810857

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON

RESIDENTS SERVICES
PLANNING SECTION

CIVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, UB8 1UW

ADDRESS :
22 Belmont Close
Uxbridge
PLANNING APPLICATION SCALE :
REFERENCE :
1:1,250
79130/APP/2024/1864
PLANNING COMMITTEE : DATE :
Page 283 15/01/2025

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Address: 72 HAREFIELD ROAD UXBRIDGE

Development: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of building to provide 3 x 1-bed, 5 x
2-bed, 1 x 3 bed flats with associated parking and amenity space.

LBH Ref Nos: 25767/APP/2024/2484

Delegated -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 284



| planting and
bojindary treatments \

ured dimensions are

tg/ be a maximum of

e
by or to ony unauthorised

be

discrepancies
3 Services Lid. p

preference to scaled dimensions and
etres unless otherwise stated.

600mm _high

74 Communal Green Amenity Space: 176 sqm

Harefield

Road Private Patio Amenity Space: 38 sqm

Private Balcony Amenity Space: 52 sqm

Landscaping to be|
agreed

9,
oqm

Cypress 13mH

/
Sim [Shrubs]
7% Lime 20mH
\ Cherry
property
e to be
/ demolished
.\ Bay 11mH / Ash 15mH
7
/ g
/ 56 - 60 7 s
/ Harefield / Close board
ose boar
/ Road bmw\:v@ fence 1.8mH
—

Page 285

REVISE SOFT LANDSCAPING & PARKING

REVISE SOFT LANDSCAPING

REVISE PARKING

DESCRIPTION

8m
|

C NOV 2024 KH
B NOV 2024 KH
A AUG 2024 KH
REV DATE DRAWN BY
Oxbridge Design &
geDesign iy

=| & DETAILING SERVICES

E—]  Thestudio, at 114 High Street, Chalgrove, OX44 7T >_:—
A T 185255791 é
No excavation in — € info@oxoridgedesign co.uk J
this area. See - W. vy couk i
i — cLent
?mm”.,onsmma, T TWIGLETS DEVELOPMENTS
Report prepared byl =
Tim Moya E PROJECT
Associates £ 72 HAREFIELD ROAD, UXBRIDGE,
3 VIDDY, UB8 1PL
—me
e 7 GFLATS
S PROPOSED SITE PLAN
8
I foae SCALE DRN  [DRGNO Rev [ size
w AUG 2024 1:100 KH 24 49 06 C AL




M e

— — — —— ————
— nn
ga0
o [ |
L1L1
EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION EXISTING REAR ELEVATION EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION
SCALE - 1:100 SCALE - 1:100 SCALE - 1:100 SCALE - 1:100
N 7 S — :
e i
I I
I I
CONSERVATORY ” | | ”
I I
Il Il
\: I I
i I ©
= 1 1 = P sl q o0
AN
(O]
(@]
¥ ©
(al
BEDROOM 4
LOUNGE L BEDROOM 2
e —
| rT T T T T T T T T T T T T
[ |1
we J1
el H_= | E—
ﬂ Il
:/ [ M
B I
Do | i \ S I | lh_/ - T
KITCHEN M
H BATHROOM f M
g/ RECEPTION m = BEDROOM 1 m
I BEDROOM 5 REV| OATE | DRAWNBY DESCRIPTION
L= : : S~
NG eoroons 7 Uxbridge Design G
e " " &DETAILING SERVICES ,‘|1r
E—] 218 Windsor Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex, UB8 1AB ’ L—
q 7 owsesasser é
— & info@uidridgedesign.couk J
= W. ww i ign.co.uk -~
£ clent
E TWIGLETS DEVELOPMENTS
M PROJECT
E 72 HAREFIELD ROAD, UXBRIDGE,
E VIDDY, UB8 1P
EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN T Ime
SCALE-150 SCALE-150 m“ EXISTING PROPERTY TO BE DEMOLISHED
< PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
Slow  JmE  [ow [oem R
S oo | 1100 KH 19,0100 Al




[Bed]1]

3

| —

Up to
Garden

 —

1

(1

Flat 1

| 3b 6p /
:| J1425am,

82sqm

—J cuent
41— w

N~
o]
[qV}
()
(@)
[
o
REV| DATE | DRAWNBY DESCRIPTION
E i i =
 Oxbridge Design )
-] & DETAILING SERVICES WV
llu ﬁ,w ww_%w_om mmwﬁ» High Street, Chalgrove, OX44 75T >, Aw
A« fo@odrdgesesgncouk A&
E AT ou

TS DEVELOPMENTS

R TILE

SCALE 1:50

—J PROJECT

72 HAREFIELD ROAD, UXBRIDGE,
1IDDX, UBS 1PL

9FLATS
PROPOSED LOWER GROUND FLOOR PLAN
DATE SCALE DRN | DRGNO REV [ SiZE
hUG 2023 | 1:50 ki | 244901 M




the property of Oxbridge Design and Detoliny

Balcony

=

ollo

12000

ml

Bed

offo
T T
]
|

©)

em and is issued on the
d by or to ony unouthorised

o undertaking

preference
res unless o

m
|

3m

2m

im

Page 288

REV DATE DRAWN BY DESCRIPTION

Oxbridge Design

—=| & DETAILING SERVICES

—  The Studio, at 114 High Street, Chalgrove, OX44 75T
T 01895255791

couk

E. info@oxbridgedesign.co.uk
W, v oxbridgedesi

— cuent
= TWIGLETS DEVELOPMENTS

o proect

= 72 HAREFIELD ROAD, UXBRIDGE,

3 MIDDY, U8 1PL

—{me

E 9FLATS

| PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

I foate SCALE DRN | DRGNO REV [ SiZE
3 Jrue203 |10 Ko |24.49.02 AL




A=

4m

3m

2m

im

Page 289

REV DATE DRAWN BY DESCRIPTION

Oxbridge Design

& DETAILING SERVICES

The Studio, at 114 High Street, Chalgrove, OX44 75T
T. 01895 255791

E. info@oxbridgedesign.co.uk

W, www. ok

3
{1
/4

Vd

CLEENT
—  TWIGLETS DEVELOPMENTS

PROJECT

72 HAREFIELD ROAD, UXBRIDGE,
MIDDX, UBS 1PL

TLE
9FLATS
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
DATE SCALE DRN | DRGNO REV [ SiZE
hUG 2023 | 1:50 ki | 244903 M




—
Page 290

[]

[

A
3 »}M
]
REV| DATE | DRAWNBY DESCRIPTION
p | T >
A4 1 Oxbridge Design <Gy
— =\
53 A
ﬁ A & info@oxbridgedesign.co.ck d&
il 4 Wowww. 0.uk d
E— cuent
4 TWIGLETS DEVELOPMENTS
M PROJECT
E 72 HAREFIELD ROAD, UXBRIDGE,
E MIDD, UB8 19L
e
e 9FLATS
< PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN
Sl T o [oew [ERER
S 23 | 150 KH 24504 Al




dm
|

im
|

m
|

im

—
N
()
©
REV | DATE DRAWN BY DESCRIPTION

1 Oxbridge Design <Gy

" &DETAILING SERVICES 4v

—]  The Studio, at 114 High Street, Chalgrove, 0X44 75T »&,,

A T o895 255791 4

— & info@oxbridgedesign.co.uk “

= W. www. 0.uk rd

—4 CLENT

= TWIGLETS DEVELOPMENTS

— prOKECT

= 72 HAREFIELD ROAD, UXBRIDGE,

3 MIDDX, UBS 1PL

—me

E 9FLATS

7 ROOF PLAN

3 [oare SCALE DRN | DRGNO REV [ SiZE

3 Jrucao3 |10 KH 24,45 04 Al

the proporty of Oxbridge Design and Detallin
reserved by them and is issued on the
d by or to any unauthorised

ust b
o undertoking

copied or discl

any discrepan
ge Design Detailing Services L34,
o,

preference to scaled
res unless otherwise




Front Elevation Side FElevation

Scale — 1:100 Scale — 1:100

W e/m m=E ﬂ “““ ﬂ ““““ BH ﬁ
_Second floor | I S H L S Secondfloor | Sm i - T, J
“““““ w,w Tim e .
T i@ B g
i { 1.8m_High - -
- First floor W === — i -Firstfloor Lﬂsf\/\/u — -~ FEaial———
N H H 3 H 8 8 8 o
1= 5 I_ 1= 5 m AL | | | (@]
_Ground floor B e | L e e e | Groundfloor Al R R - B = N
\\\\\\\ (R — —— i = ——1 5 — — [ — )
| H H H B HB =
= = ©
‘_u@%mm@%m\#&\ . — = = S | = _Lowergroundfloory & " (al
1
Rear Elevation Side Elevation
Scale — 1:100 Scale — 1:100
Existing property]
outline to be
demolished
- —
i
A AUG 2024 KH REVISE FRONT PLANTING
REV DATE DRAWN BY DESCRIPTION
c . T
& | >
7 Oxbridge Design '@y
o &DETAILING SERVICES ﬂv
,mllu &}
E p
£ clent
E TWIGLETS DEVELOPMENTS
Mvzogmna
£ T2 HARI 0AD, UXBRIDGE,
E MIDDX,
e
= 3 9FLATS
s PROPOSED ELEVATIONS AND STREET SCENE
St Scen g
Street Scene 5 TR o TR Ty T
Scale 1:100 S Jrue 204 | 1100 KH 24.49 07 A A




.7
’ /I
P
P
\\ /’
A Ppg Sta
W 3
\ )
Y B Sluice
o /
AN g
[ y ~
v ~
» N
/ / )

KEY :

=3 Site Boundary

ADDRESS :

72 Harefield Road,

Uxbridge

DISCLAIIMER :
For identification purposes only
This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Commitiee
Services pursuant ta section 47 of the
Copynght, Designs and Patents
Act 1928 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides 3 relevant
exception to copynaht

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey
AC0000810857

PLANNING APPLICATION
REFERENCE :

25767/APP/2024/2484

SCALE :

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON

RESIDENTS SERVICES
PLANNING SECTION

CIVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, UB8 1UW

PLANNING COMMITTEE :

Page 293

DATE :

15/01/2025

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: HARROW & WEMBLEY SOCIETY MODEL ENGINEERS, ROXBOURNE PARK
FIELD END ROAD EASTCOTE

Development: Part-retrospective provision of one portacabin with paint-finished timber
cladding to provide a ticket office and community space.

LBH Ref Nos: 22899/APP/2023/2219

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 294



>
@
z
3
o
5
)
=
ﬂl
@
8
o
3
3
=

20 0
I

20

> Shelter

3

|40

60

80

100

PROJECT DWG NO. | SCALE  [DETAIL L2.11.20249 20249y 2024 [02.01. 2025 PROJECT NO|
ROXBOURNE PARK, FIELD END ROAD,RUISLIP, HA49P PR Architecture ltd.
. ! , %)18 11250 |LOCATION PLAN ISSUED FOR| GENERAL | GENERAL| GENERAL Chortered aroniieet
@ A4 DISCUSSION ISSUE ISSUE ISSUE 24.32
PLANNING 120 Py ot 141400




/ Foot path

footpath_

d |/

EXISTING SITE PLAN

PROJECT [DWG NO. | SCALE DETAIL 12.11.2024 | A 8 I
<ITE PLANS 1SSUED 14.11.2024 |02/01/2025
ROXBOURNE PARK, FIELD END ROAD,RUISLIP, HAJGR®) B 1.100 o GENERAL | GENERAL
ISSUE ISSUE
PLANNING @Al

n

O
c
Fom

yhouse

@
P [le)
v b}
N
Foot path Q
)
©
_>_ Dl
-
\ @
7 Foot path
/
1m high by 0.6m wide
Hawthorn Hedge
N
om 5m 10m 15m

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

FROECINGY b o Architecture Itd.

Chartered Architect

24.32

120, Pinner Road, Harrow, HA1

4D



00UdO

ultipurpos u-__.ﬁ@ FLAT ROOF
Timber Featherboard

Painted green

ROOF PLAN

Timber Feather
board Painted gr

\

. N~

Metal Window ._._m_ﬁ.x office Metal Door m

- Window -

Painted green / Painted green )
(@]
©
o

LEFT ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION RIGHT ELEVATION

Metal Door
Painted green

‘Timber Featherboard
Painted green

\

N

FEATHER BOARD mm>x m_lm<>|_|_oz Om m 2m 3m 4m 5m

PROJECT DWG NO. | SCALE DETAIL 12.11.2024 A 14.11.2024 PROJECT NO.

ROXBOURNE PARK, FIELD END ROAD,RUISLIP, HA49PB 150 PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN AND | SSUED FOR | S5 FERAL 0430 PR >o—.3mﬂqm" “ me,wo”__wm”.»m Itd.
O3 A" ELEVATIONS .
PLANNING @ A2 120, Pinner Road, Harow, HAT 4JD.
Tel: 0208 357 2304




1
Model Passenger Railway //”\

|
|
1
|

I

J

NN NS
w 3
\)\\Shelter N

”
@o\"‘/z
N

KEY : ADDRESS :
. LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON
=3 Site Boundary Harrow and Wembley Society Model Engineers,
Roxbourne Park RESIDENTS SERVICES
PLANNING SECTION
DISCLAIIMER : PLANNING APPLICATION SCALE : CIVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, UB8 1UW
REFERENCE :
1:1,250
22899/APP/2023/2219
PLANNING COMMITTEE : DATE :
1:1,250
© Crown copyright and database 15/01/2025
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey
AC0000810857 Page 298




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: 140 FAIRHOLME CRESCENT HAYES
Development: Creation of an extra unit in 6 unit HMO (Class C4).
LBH Ref Nos: 57533/APP/2023/3146

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 299



i

7 :\\

SIGNATURE PLANS

SIGNATURE PLANS LTD.

45 STAMFORD HILL, LONDON N16 5SR

07491265532

INFO@SIGNATUREPLANS.CO.UK

Page 300

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

140 FAIRHOLME CRES UB4
8QY

PROJECT TITLE:

PROPOSED HMO PLANS

SHEET TITLE:

LOCATION AND SITE PLAN

DATE 26 October 2023
REVISION RV00

1:200
SCALE 1:20011:1250 @A3

DESIGN DRAWINGS ARE LIMITED TO THE DESIGN INTENT OF THE AESTHETICS ONLY AND SHALL NOT BE CONSTRUED TO INCLUDE BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: STRUCTURAL, FIRE PROTECTION, ENERGY EFFICIENCY, FUNCTIONALITY, OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS. THESE PLANS ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE RELEVANT LICENSED DESIGN PROFESSIONALS

PAGE NO: 01 OF 08




UNIT6
12.1 sam

UNIT 5
11.3 saQM

UNIT 4
12.1 sQM

©

©

OMMUNAL
KITCHEN
9.5 sQMm

UNIT 1
10.6 sQm

N

. .
A A
Il Il
T
wmmmmmn
FEEECEEN
COMMUNAL ERm=Som=Ca\l
STORAGE BSESscEa=z=a
108gaM sESSscZS=zzaa
EEEs=S=s=a====
E=SSE=soE=saE==
EEES=sSz=szz=w
EEE e
e e e
! PR
i ESESS=as==Sa==s
! ; EESSm=cam=cams
___ FemEr e P e
COMMUNAL B e
KITCHEN SESSSESSSa=cSsscSoEciast
1278 e e
© sESSsSSS==22-=SesSt
dEEsEEsIIessnneies
SE=SSs=zSa=ssa=z=d
B e e
SE=S=m=c=a=c=p
EesaEcsa=c=a
SmESSm=coe® A
EEscsa=cn =ss
EEs=a=c= ! mES==sS!
EE=E2z i Mz
228 e
F SmES=mEc=cEcccacs
| e =SESasEg=steesERessoisd
SeSsSecsoescsiesss
B sam=cam==cgm=con
EXISTING LOFT FLOOR _ EXISTING ROOF PLAN _
A N
l ' <t |
CUA A

SIGNATURE PLANS LTD.

45 STAMFORD HILL, LONDON N16 5SR

07491265532

INFO@SIGNATUREPLANS.CO.UK

Page 301

5m

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

140 FAIRHOLME CRES UB4
8QY

PROJECT TITLE:

PROPOSED HMO PLANS

SHEET TITLE:

EXISTING FLOOR PLANS

i R
- EXISTING GROUND FLOOR DATE: 26 October 2023

REVISION: RV00

SCALE: 1:100 @A3

DESIGH DRAWINGS ARE LIMITED TQ THE DESIGH INTENT OF THE AESTHETICE QHLY AND SHALL HOT BE CONSTRUED TO INCLUDE BUILDING TODE REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: STRUCTJRAL, FIRE PROTECTION, EMERIZY EFFICIENCY FUNCTIOMALITY. OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION REQUIRSM=NTE. THESE P_ANMS 4RE SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND &PPRTVAL BY THE RELEVANT L CENS=D DESIGH PROFESSIONALS PAGE NO: 02 OF 08




T

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION EXISTING REAR ELEVATION

(

SIGNATURE PLANS

SIGNATURE PLANS LTD.

45 STAMFORD HILL, LONDON N16 5SR

07491265532

INFO@SIGNATUREPLANS.CO.UK

Page 302

0 m 5m

e

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

140 FAIRHOLME CRES UB4
8QY

PROJECT TITLE:

PROPOSED HMO PLANS

SHEET TITLE:

EXISTING FRONT AND REAR

ELEVATIONS
DATE: 26 October 2023
REVISION: RV0O
SCALE: 1:100 @A3

DESIGN DRAWINGS ARE LIMITED TO THE DESIGN INTENT OF THE AESTHETICS ONLY AND SHALL NOT BE CONSTRUED TO INCLUDE BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: STRUCTURAL, FIRE PROTECTION, ENERGY EFFICIENCY, FUNCTIONALITY, OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS. THESE PLANS ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE RELEVANT LICENSED DESIGN PROFESSIONALS

PAGE NO: 03 OF 08




EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION

BEDROOM BEDROOM

KITCHEN DINING LIVING ROOM

EXISTING SECTION

\

SIGNATURE PLANS

SIGNATURE PLANS LTD.

45 STAMFORD HILL, LONDON N16 5SR

07491265532

INFO@SIGNATUREPLANS.CO.UK

Page 303

0 m 5m

e

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

140 FAIRHOLME CRES UB4
8QY

PROJECT TITLE:

PROPOSED HMO PLANS

SHEET TITLE:

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION AND

SECTION
DATE: 26 October 2023
REVISION: RV0O
SCALE: 1:100 @A3

DESIGN DRAWINGS ARE LIMITED TO THE DESIGN INTENT OF THE AESTHETICS ONLY AND SHALL NOT BE CONSTRUED TO INCLUDE BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: STRUCTURAL, FIRE PROTECTION, ENERGY EFFICIENCY, FUNCTIONALITY, OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS. THESE PLANS ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE RELEVANT LICENSED DESIGN PROFESSIONALS

PAGE NO: 04 OF 08




'YCLE STORAGE X7

COVERED AND RAINPROOF

GrA GHA

UNIT 6 UNIT 5 UNIT 4
12.1'5QM 11.35aM 12.1 5QM
© ©
& TIT
<
f===gesny =
OMMUNAL UNIT7 ES=SSS=2S ™
KITCHEN 10.8 SQM ==SS==Sl==S
UNIT3 ___l95saMm Py Sass=a=c=a==a <)
10.7 5QM EESSsSSSs=ssa:
e =2
© fESSmEseEes ©
o
! e
| ; f=EEs=szs=cess
COMMUNAL T fs=ESsscs=sssececs
KITCHEN RE=Se=ssa==sa===g
1278 EESS=ESasEostssacs:
© sESSs==S======cses
fEE=sEescEesstessn 0 1m Sm
e
e P ™
UNIT 1 ESs=Ssg==2S
10.6 SQM PR iHips
ESa=s==== paasss
e gEEeEEssy N
E===i PEEEFEE
B e N e =as,
FEA S cEnmcSsam==mas
| L e
_ _ PROPERTY ADDRESS:
PROPOSED LOFT FLOOR _ PROPOSED ROOF PLAN _ 140 _u>_xIOm_|w\_<m CRES UB4
.._ 1 ! PROJECT TITLE
A XN g
L >40L BIN STORAGE X5 PROPOSED HMO PLANS
SHEET TITLE:
PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS
DROP KER
) I —
e — — — — — DATE:
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR 26 October 2023
REVISION: RV0O
SCALE: 11100 @A3

SIGNATURE PLANS LTD.

45 STAMFORD HILL, LONDON N16 5SR

07491265532

INFO@SIGNATUREPLANS.CO.UK

DESIGH DRAWINGS ARE LIMITED TQ THE DESIGH INTENT OF THE AESTHETICS QHLY AND SHALL HOT BE CONSTRUED TO INCLUDE BUILDING CODE RECGUIREMENTS INCLUDI

3 BUT NOT LIMITED TO: STRUCTJRAL FIRE PROTECTION, EMERIY EFFICIENCY, FUNCTI

1ALITY. OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION REQUIRZMENTS. THESE P_3HS ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND APPRCVAL BY THE RELEVANT L CENS=D DESIGH PROFESSIONALS

PAGE NO: 05 OF 08




T

T

il il

i

N N
T
IEEEN N
NN I

i

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

A\Q&

SIGNATURE PLANS

SIGNATURE PLANS LTD.

45 STAMFORD HILL, LONDON N16 5SR

07491265532

INFO@SIGNATUREPLANS.CO.UK

Page 305

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

140 FAIRHOLME CRES UB4
8QY

PROJECT TITLE:

PROPOSED HMO PLANS

SHEET TITLE:

PROPOSED FRONT AND REAR

ELEVATIONS
DATE 26 October 2023
REVISION: RVOO
SCALE: 1:100 @A3

DESIGH DRAMINGS ARE LIMITED TQ THE DESIGH INTENT OF THE AESTHETICS QHLY AND SHALL HOT BE CONSTRUED TO INCLUDE BUILDING CODE REGUIREMENTS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: STRUCTURAL, FIRE PROTECTION, EMERI3Y EFFICIENCY, FUNCTIOMALITY. OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION REQUIRZMENTS. THESE P_AHS ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND APPRCVAL BY THE RELEVANT L CENSZD DESIGH PROFESSIONALS

PAGE NO: 06 OF 08




SIGNATURE PLANS

SIGNATURE PLANS LTD.

45 STAMFORD HILL, LONDON N16 5SR

07491265532

INFO@SIGNATUREPLANS.CO.UK

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

O
o
o
(D)
(@)]
S
a
—_— 0 1m 5m
] e e
I
I
I
I
“ PROPERTY ADDRESS:
COMMUNAL KITCHEN “ )
140 FAIRHOLME CRES UB4
8QY
PROJECT TITLE:
PROPOSED SECTION

PROPOSED HMO PLANS

SHEET TITLE:

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION AND

SECTION
DATE: 26 October 2023
REVISION: RV0O
SCALE: 1:100 @A3

DESIGN DRAWINGS ARE LIMITED TO THE DESIGN INTENT OF THE AESTHETICS ONLY AND SHALL NOT BE CONSTRUED TO INCLUDE BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: STRUCTURAL, FIRE PROTECTION, ENERGY EFFICIENCY, FUNCTIONALITY, OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS. THESE PLANS ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE RELEVANT LICENSED DESIGN PROFESSIONALS PAGE NO: 07 OF 08




QL O3LIAI LGN L8 SNIGNTON SINSWEHINDTH 3000 SNITINE JAMTN 0L 030 E1EN0D 38 LOH TIFHS ONy ATHD $0LL3HLETE SHL 40 LN3LNI MSIS30 3HL 0L A3LINN 36 SENIASTHT HOIS3T

STPNDISEIH0HC HDISIT 0Z5NI0 T INYAT 134 FHL AB TeATHddY ONY MIINTH 0L LOFNENS Juv 8He~d 353HL SLNEHEHINGTH HOILOMELSNGD d3HLG HO ALMTEHDILONMS AGNIIOI43 AS3HE NOLLOFLOH Jdld Teer LoNHLS

d0

/
/

~ Ny
2
Na
074 ANNOYD A3SOdOY o
—_ ==/

3N dOHJ ’7 —‘ M

J =~'1'1

=

NIHOLIM
IYNNIWNOD

WDS 901

©]
WDS £0L

WOS 1'2h
¥ LINN

|
|
|
Ao oo oo
|y
|
|
|

WOS €11

Wos 121

S 1INN 9 1INN

‘ON 39Vd

80 40 80

3OS

£V 004}

‘NOISINIY

00AY

-3aLva

£20T 1890500 92

NV1d 31IS d3SOdOdd

‘3L L33HS

‘30LL 103rodd
‘$S3¥AAY ALY¥3dO¥d

SNY1d ONH 3SOdO¥d
AD8
dN S3Y0 ANTOHAIVS ovL

&

wy

wg

Page 307

MN"0D'SNY1dIINLYNDISDOANI

2€659216¥.0

¥SS 9LN NOANO1 “T1IH QYO4NVLS §¥

‘a1 SNVY1d HNLYNOIS

2]
@
=
=
=
T —
m
S
Z
n



KEY :

=3 Site Boundary

ADDRESS :

140 Fairholme Crescent,
Hayes

DISCLAIIMER :
For [dentification purposes only
This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Commitiee
Services pursuant ta section 47 of the
Copynght, Designs and Patents
Act 1928 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides 3 relevant
exception to copynaht

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey
AC0000810857

PLANNING APPLICATION
REFERENCE :

57533/APP/2023/3146

SCALE :

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON

RESIDENTS SERVICES
PLANNING SECTION

CIVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, UB8 1UW

PLANNING COMMITTEE :

Pags

» 308

DATE :

15/01/2025

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Address: 100 Exmouth Road, Ruislip

Development: Retention of a double storey rear and side extension with

amendments to fenestration and height of existing single storey
rear extension (retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 42576/APP/2024/2465

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 309



SCALE 1:50

NEIGHBOURING Housg

OBSCURED_GLASS

00

0BSCURED
WINDOW

1:100 1:100

0 2 4 6 8 10
I I
SCALE 1:100

2370 5200
[ ¥ 7
|
Utility Kitchen | Bedroom g
R |
| \ijﬂ -
2 o ==
N
m 7 Ensuite
I
=1 Dining 7 Bathroom
|
———
| w Bedroom
g
— 3
Study — 7 o —
| £
— Lounge m —
I E Bedroom
I
| =
| S
722227 A 2630 3
2630

Page 310

B | AMENDED TO SUIT MEASUREMENT TAKEN BY 24/10/24
PLANNING OFFICER DATED 24/10/24

A | DIMENSIONS CORRECTED TO SUIT THOSE 16/10/24
TAKEN AT SITE MEETING DATED 16/10/24

Rev Description Dote

KDA Designs Ltd.
A

kevin@kdadesigns.co.uk

e PROPOSED TWO STOREY
SIDE & PART REAR WRAP
AROUND EXTENSION
100 EXMOUTH ROAD

LONDON
HA4 OUH
Drawing
EXISITING PLANS & ELEVATIONS
oan o Checked 0
Scole p1@1:50 Dot augusT 2024
Stoge | Drg. No. Rev

100ER/P101 B




NEIGHBOURING Hoyse:

Kitchen

_>_u_uwo<mc LINES DENOTED IN RED

Dining

Lounge

SRS

EXISTING LINES DENOTED IN GREEN

2
K
8
3
E

Jtility
Storage

Garage

B

Dining

Kitchen

Lounge

|

5200 o

3330

Bedroom

]‘\\\‘_HHH#\\

Bedroom

2630

500,

Bathroom

Bedroom

Page 311

B | AMENDED TO SUTT MEASUREMENT TAKEN BY |24/10/24
PLANNING OFFICER DATED 24/10/24

OVERLAY UPDATED & ELEVATION ADDED  (17/10/24
EXISTING OVER PRE-EXISTING ADDED

Rev Deseription Date

KDA Designs Ltd.

e PROPOSED TWO STOREY
SIDE & PART REAR WRAP
AROUND EXTENSION
100 EXMOUTH ROAD

LONDON
HA4 OUH

Drawing

OVERLAY OF APPROVED/EXISTING PLANS

Drawn Checked
KA

Seole Date

AUGUST 2024

Stoge | Dro. e, Rev

100ER/P102 B




SCALE 1:50

5200

2370

Bedroom

Kitchen

[T

Ensuite

WC/Shower

Bathroom

9300

h PRE—EXISTING GROUND FLOOR UC/ZW

1:100

Bedroom

Lounge
Bedroom

NEIGHBOURING House
NEIGHBOURING HOUSE

Bathroom

Bedroom

|

|

I

= = ﬁ
|

|
|

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

PRE—EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1:100

B | AMENDED TO SUIT MEASUREMENT TAKEN BY |24/10/24
PLANNING OFFICER DATED 24/10/24

DIMENSIONS CORRECTED T0 SUIT THOSE 16/10/24
TAKEN AT SITE MEETING DATED 16/10/24

OBSCURED
WINDOW

>

Date

Rev Description

OBSCURED_GLASS

2700

KDA Designs Ltd.

|
|
L= =

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION EXISTING REAR ELEVATION
00 100 1:100

Preiet PROPOSED TWO STOREY
SIDE & PART REAR WRAP
AROUND EXTENSION
100 EXMOUTH ROAD

LONDON
HA4 OUH

SITE_LOCATION PLAN Drawing
11250 EXISITING PLANS & ELEVATIONS

oo o Chesked 00

Sele 410150 Dote hucusT 2024

8 10 12 14 16
Stage | Drg. No.

1 I I ]
100ER/P101 B

!
SCALE 1:100




KEY :

=3 Site Boundary

ADDRESS :

100 Exmouth Road, Ruislip

DISCLAIIMER :
For identification purposes only

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Commitiee
Services pursuant ta section 47 of the
Copynght, Designs and Patents

Act 1928 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides 3 relevant
exception to cgpy[lglj\t

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey
AC0000810857

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON

RESIDENTS SERVICES
PLANNING SECTION

CIVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, UB8 1UW

PLANNING APPLICATION SCALE :
REFERENCE :
1:1,250
42576/APP/2024/2465
PLANNING COMMITTEE : DATE :
15/01/2025

Page 313




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: 28 Varcoe Gardens, Hayes

Development: Conversion of integral garage to habitable accommodation with
alterations to fenestration.

LBH Ref Nos: 79116/APP/2024/2794

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 314



0 25m 50m 100m

SCALE 1:1250

Property Boundary

Property Boundary Area= 135.01 sqm

Internal G.1.A=126.49 sqm

Neighbouring
property
A
«\0\,
eading ,
|
D TR K
Neighbouring
P property .\
Neighbouring
property
Zmasco:::@ \
Garden 2.
Neighbourind Neighbouring
Garden property
Rear
en .
Gard Zm.,mscoc::w

property

Lo
—
o™
Q
()]
@©
o

Neighbouring
property

isite before comencing any work. REV DATE | DESCRIPTION

BY

CH

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation

IAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline|

38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH Existing OS Map/ Location Plan

NeighoopFRY @emnbourind  10m
e —
SCALE 1:200
%Qmm.ﬁoa must verify all dimensions at the v-.OnmmO.n ZO. vxof_mo.—. .—._.—._lm U”><<-ZQ ._._.—._lm

;

PLANNING SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,

Fountayne Rd,
) . DATE Project No. DRAWING No. |SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 EX-L001 Aswathy




Garage
13

Kitchen
18 m*

|
(]

Bathroom
2m

5m

Page 316

Notes.

Project No.

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
site before comencing any work.

REV

DATE

DESCRIPTION

BY

CH

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation

PROJECT TITLE
38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Existing ground floor

[Any discrepancies to be reported to Gridiine| DATE Project No. DRAWING No. [SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N1548E
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 EX-P001 1:100 Aswathy

SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,
Fountayne Rd,




Bedroom
17 m?

Bathroom
3m

5m

Page 317

Notes.

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
site before comencing any work.

Project No.

REV DATE

DESCRIPTION

BY | CH

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation

fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline|

PROJECT TITLE
38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Existing First Floor Plan

Fountayne Rd,
) . DATE Project No. DRAWING No. |SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 EX-P002 1:100 Aswathy

SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,




Boiler
e

Bedroom

7 Bathroom

3m

Bedroom

Bathroom
3am

5m

Page 318

Notes.

Project No.

PROJECT TITLE

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the

REV DATE

DESCRIPTION

BY | CH

site before comencing any work.

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation
fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline|

All drawings are to be read in conjunction
with all relevant drawings and specifications.

38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE

Existing Second Floor Plan

DATE Project No.
Oct.2024 8720

DRAWING No.
EX-P003

SCALE @ A3
1:100

Drawn by:
Aswathy

SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,
Fountayne Rd,
N154BE

TEL: 020 8802 3480




No constrcution  work before Building Control

38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

Existing Roof Plan

P ING SERVICES
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation Unit ov.ﬂ_m .6: Qozwm Centre,
. . ‘ountayne Rd,
fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridiine, DATE Project No. DRAWING No. [SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 EX-P004 1:100 Aswathy

- = — o
= Shee—— —
o™
— Se o
= (@)
©
o
0 1m 5m 10m
Il[l[
%%%wgoa must verify all dimensions at th v-.OanO.n ZO. vxof_mo.—. .—._.—._lm _Ux><<_ZQ ._._.—._lm W
Isite before 83%9:&3 work. ¢ REV DATE | DESCRIPTION BY | CH




Rear
MU 1:100

G moomo_u
11013

@ AmOnH
8013

Front
1:100

X-S00

ey L e b oy e e e ey

@ 2SECOND
5323

G :u__NmH
2786

_7_ o :

Tt |
|
TS T e

TESRIRSEALS LTEdneRianaEaTaY

e e | ST mm e

ﬁw oowgz_u
Wn>a Level
0

—

0 m 5m

Page 320

10m

_t -

Notes.
(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
isite before comencing any work.

No constrcution work before Building ¢
approval and structuralengineer confirr

Project No.

REV DATE | DESCRIPTION

BY

CH

PROJECT TITLE
38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Existing Front & Rear Elevations

fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridiine, DATE Project No. DRAWING No. [SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N1548E
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 EX-E001 1:100 Aswathy

2) NN

PLANNING SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,
Fountayne Rd,




G..xomarmﬁ| e
0

M\' ROOF TOP
11013

M\' 4ROOF
8013

‘\w 2SECOND
5323

‘\w 1FIRST

2786
OGROUND
280

Page 321

Notes

Project No.

PROJECT TITLE

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
site before comencing any work.

REV_ | DATE | DESCRIPTION 38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation

DRAWING TITLE

Existing Side Elevation 1

PLANNING SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,
Fountayne Rd,

fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline| DRAWING No. | SCALE @ A3 N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. EX-E002 1:100




ROOF TOP @
11013

4ROO0OF %
8013

~ 2SECOND “v
5323

Page 322

1FIRST

2786

OGROUND
2

Road Level
0

Notes.

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
site before comencing any work.

Project No.

PROJECT TITLE

REV DATE

DESCRIPTION

BY

CH

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation

fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline|

38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Existing Side Elevation 2

Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,

Fountayne Rd,
) . DATE Project No. DRAWING No. |SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 EX-E003 1:100 Aswathy




ROOF TOP a
11013

4ROOF %
8013

($2]
AN
o™
2SECOND )]
o o o o 5323 Q
5
o
1FIRST mj‘
2786
i O0GROUND
it 25
e e e T e e xomﬂ _IO<O_
0
0 1m 5m 10m
%%“M.M.soa must verify all dimensions at the —U—.O_QO.H ZO. vxoa._ mo._- ._-_._-_lm U”><<_Zo ._._.—._lm W
e before comencing any work, REV_ | DATE | DESCRIPTION BY | CH |38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH Existing Section AA
No constrcution work before Building Control — PLANNING SIRVICES
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation Unit #im:m :__m: QH_, Centre,
" . P ouniayne ,
fAny discrepancies 1o be reported to Gridiine DATE Project No. DRAWING No. [SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N184¢
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 EX-S001 1:100 Aswathy




‘*}. &
Ry

W
.

\

\
!

4
\

0 1m

5m

Page 324

10m

_t -

Notes.

Project No.

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the

REV DATE

DESCRIPTION

BY

CH

isite before comencing any work.
No constrcution  work before Building Control

PROJECT TITLE
38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Existing Perspective View

2) NN

PLANNING SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,
Fountayne Rd,

approval and structuralengineer confirmation

fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridiine, DATE Project No. DRAWING No. [SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 EX-PE001 Aswathy




0 25m 50m 100m

SCALE 1:1250

Property Boundary

Property Boundary Area= 135.01 sqm

Internal G.1.A=126.49 sqm

Neighbouring
property
A
«\0\,
eading ,
| g
{ TS [ OK
Neighbouring
P property .\
Neighbouring
property
Zmasco:::@ \
Garden 2.
Neighbourind Neighbouring
Garden property
Rear
en .
Gard Zm.,mscoc::w

property

zm_@s%ﬁﬁm Berhbouring 10m

Lo
N
o™
Q
()]
@©
o

Neighbouring
property

e ——

SCALE 1:200

Notes.

Proj No.
(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the On_mﬂ.n o

PROJECT TITLE

isite before comencing any work. REV DATE | DESCRIPTION

BY

DRAWING TITLE
CH

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation

IAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline|

38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH Proposed OS Map/ Location Plan

;

PLANNING SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,

Fountayne Rd,
) . DATE Project No. DRAWING No. |SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 P-L001 Aswathy




Li .:w room
13

Kitchen
18 m*

Bathroom
2m

5m

Page 326

Notes.

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
site before comencing any work.

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation
fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline|
All drawings are to be read in conjunction
with all relevant drawings and specifications.

Project No.

PROJECT TITLE

REV DATE

DESCRIPTION BY | CH

38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Proposed ground floor

DATE Project No.
Oct.2024 8720

DRAWING No.
P-P001

SCALE @ A3
1:100

Drawn by:
Aswathy

SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,
Fountayne Rd,
N154BE
TEL: 020 8802 3480




Bedroom
17 m?

Bathroom
3m

5m

Page 327

Notes.

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
site before comencing any work.

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation
fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline|
All drawings are to be read in conjunction
with all relevant drawings and specifications.

Project No.

REV DATE

DESCRIPTION

BY | CH

PROJECT TITLE
38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Proposed First Floor Plan

DATE Project No.
Oct.2024 8720

Drawn by:
Aswathy

SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,
Fountayne Rd,
N154BE
TEL: 020 8802 3480




1 00Q=
+005=d

Boiler
e

Bedroom

Bathroom

3m

Bedroom

Bathroom
3am

Page 328

Notes.

Project No.

PROJECT TITLE

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the

REV DATE

DESCRIPTION

BY | CH

site before comencing any work.

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation
fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline|
All drawings are to be read in conjunction
with all relevant drawings and specifications.

38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Proposed Second Floor Plan

Oct.2024 8720

DATE Project No.

DRAWING No.
P-P003

1:100

SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by:
Aswathy

SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,
Fountayne Rd,
N154BE

TEL: 020 8802 3480




No constrcution  work before Building Control

38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

Proposed Roof Plan

P ING SERVICES
approval and structuralengineer confirmation Unit ov.ﬂ_m .6: Qozwm Centre,
. . ‘ountayne Rd,
fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridiine, DATE Project No. DRAWING No. [SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 P-P004 1:100 Aswathy

\ — I
a — = m
— Se o
= (@)
©
o
0 1m 5m 10m
Il[l[
%%%wgoa must verify all dimensions at th v-.OanO.n ZO. vxof_mo.—. .—._.—._lm _Ux><<_ZQ ._._.—._lm W
Isite before 83%9:&3 work. ¢ REV DATE | DESCRIPTION BY | CH




Rear
MU 1:100

G moomo_u
11013

@ AmOnH
8013

Front
1:100

P-S001

ey L e b oy e e e ey

@ 2SECOND
5323

G :u__NmH
2786

ST

TESRERITALS

Il

ﬁw oowgz_u
Wn>a Level
0

0 m 5m

Page 330

10m

_t -

Notes.
(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
isite before comencing any work.

No constrcution work before Building ¢
approval and structuralengineer confirr

Project No.

REV DATE | DESCRIPTION

BY

CH

PROJECT TITLE
38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Proposed Front & Rear Elevations

fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridiine, DATE Project No. DRAWING No. [SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N1548E
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 P-E001 1:100 Aswathy

2) NN

PLANNING SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,
Fountayne Rd,




G..xomarmﬁ| e
0

M\' ROOF TOP
11013

M\' 4ROOF
8013

‘\w 2SECOND
5323

‘\w 1FIRST

2786
OGROUND
280

O 1 hm

Page 331

Notes

Project No.

PROJECT TITLE

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
site before comencing any work.

REV_ | DATE | DESCRIPTION 38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation

DRAWING TITLE

Proposed Side Elevation 1

PLANNING SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,
Fountayne Rd,

fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline| DRAWING No. | SCALE @ A3 N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction ) TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. P-E002 1:100




ROOF TOP @
11013

4ROO0OF %
8013

~ 2SECOND “v
5323

1FIRST
2786

OGROUND
2

Road Level
0

Page 332

Notes.

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
site before comencing any work.

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation

fAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline|

Project No.

PROJECT TITLE

REV

DATE

DESCRIPTION

BY

CH

38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Proposed Side Elevation 2

Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,

Fountayne Rd,
) . DATE Project No. DRAWING No. |SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 P-E003 1:100 Aswathy




ROOF TOP a
11013

4ROOF %
8013

[42]
™M
o™

2SECOND )]
o o o o 5323 Q
5
o
1FIRST MJ‘
2786
i O0GROUND
it 25
e e e T e e xomﬂ _IO<O_
0
0 1m 5m 10m
%%“M.M.soa must verify all dimensions at the —U—.O_QO.H ZO. vxoa._ mo._- ._-_._-_lm U”><<_Zo ._._.—._lm W
Kite before comencing any work. REV | DATE | DESCRIPTION BY | CH 38 varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH Proposed Section AA
No constrcution work before Building Control — PLANNING SIRVICES
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation Unit #im:m :__m: QH_, Centre,
" . P ouniayne ,
fAny discrepancies 1o be reported to Gridiine DATE Project No. DRAWING No. [SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N184¢
IAll drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and specifications. Oct.2024 8720 P-S001 1:100 Aswathy




Page 334

Notes.

(Contractors must verify all dimensions at the
isite before comencing any work.

No constrcution  work before Building Control
lapproval and structuralengineer confirmation

IAny discrepancies to be reported to Gridline|

Project No.

REV DATE

DESCRIPTION

BY

CH

PROJECT TITLE
38 Varcoe Gardens UB3 2FH

DRAWING TITLE
Proposed Perspective View

PLANNING SERVICES
Unit 9b,The High Cross Centre,

Fountayne Rd,
) . DATE Project No. DRAWING No. |SCALE @ A3 |Drawn by: N154BE
All drawings are to be read in conjunction TEL: 020 8802 3480
with all relevant drawings and speci Oct.2024 8720 P-PE001 Aswathy




KEY :

=3 Site Boundary

ADDRESS :

28 Varcoe Gardens, Hayes

DISCLAIIMER :
For identification purposes only
This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Commitiee
Services pursuant ta section 47 of the
Copynght, Designs and Patents
Act 1928 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides 3 relevant
exception to copynaht

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey
AC0000810857

PLANNING APPLICATION SCALE :
REFERENCE :

1:1,250
79116/APP/2024/2794

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON

RESIDENTS SERVICES
PLANNING SECTION

CIVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, UB8 1UW

PLANNING COMMITTEE : DATE :

Pagle 335 15/01/2025

LONDON




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Address: MINET JUNIOR SCHOOL AVONDALE DRIVE HAYES

Development: An application submitted under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 to vary Condition 2 (Approved Drawings) of planning permission
reference 2297/APP/2021/2704, dated 17-09-2021 (Extensions, remodeling and
refurbishment of the existing Nursery, Infant and Junior Schools) to make
alterations, including changes to hard and soft landscaping, bin storage, and
cycle storage (Part Retrospective and Part Proposed)

LBH Ref Nos: 2297/APP/2024/2171

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 15th January 2025
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 336



AVONDALE DRIVE

DEDL

c2

PROJECT,
OOOOOOOOOOO

AAAAA

oooooo

mmmmm

ooooo




z
N
=
9
2
< i3z
g% € ¢ ¢ < CFh g T
gge € e e e e g ¢ e ¢ ¢ o3
525 < < <€ <€ < < & <€ < éo <€ <€ < < < <
fge
SES < < <€ <€ < < < < < < < 5 <€ <€ <€ < < < < <
23 \ ©
ggz 5\ - < < 3 < 3 S ¢ < < < ’ir‘f_ﬁe ¢ ¢ < < ¢
N 5% < < <€ <€ < < < < < < < ¢« VY ¢ < < < < <€ < <
g ;-g < < < <€ < < < < < < < <€ <€ <€ < < <€ <, < < < €
gé <€ <€ < < < < < < < < <€ < < < < < < < < < <€
i = N
ae - <€ < < < < < < < <€ € < < < < < < < < <€ €
<€ < € € < < < < <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ < < < <€
< <€ ‘Dwé < < < < < < <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ < < €
N w < < e’wo?‘:e < < < < < < < < ¢ < ¢ ¢ ¢ < < <
° < < 'G‘u\é < < <€ <€ <€ <€ < <€ <€ < <€ <€ <€ € € < < <
< < < < < < < < < < <€ <€ < <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ < <€
- < < < < < < < <€ <€ <€ < <€ € <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ € € < <€
>
w < <€ <€ < < < < <€ <€ <€ <€ € <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ < < < <€
ol < < < < < < < < I < < <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ < <€
e
=
N R N o < < < < < < < < < \\}§\\\‘\\\‘\\§&\\\‘\\\é <€ <€ <€ < <
[ < < < < < < 9 P <
P -~ 3 VAN RN NN RARDNNRNDNRDR NN T
o ° <€ < < < < < < o
° ¢ e e ¢ <« DN /RN R NN RN RN NN N RN NN N
- o < < ¢ ¢ < < ¢ I\ N I e SR N X X N XN NN XY
(9]
D S R A AN NN SN AN e NN
AR Y N N AR NN QN R NN QNN DN NN QA
< < € <€ <€ <€ <€ < <
> ~ ¢ e ¢ e e o < NN R QTR RN QN RN QDN RN DN NN QRN
€ < e e e ¢ < A NN NN NN NN NN N N
S R NN AR DR QDN RDQNRDNDN RN QDD RN QD
3 © A R S VAWM AN QNN RN N RN RN N RN N N
€ e e e e SN N NN NN RN NN RN NN
<€ <€ < <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ N N ~ N S
N NN N RN N R RN YD
. © ¢ ¢« F < ¢ ¢ <
o e ¢ R < < ¢ < NN XN N N NN RN NN
%
< < & ¢ < < < N X AN NN
Q
3, S R R N RN AR N RN NN N RN NN
B, —
© AEUER R R S D IR AN SN NN
<€ < < < < < < < N < N <
N R R NN NN RN N
< < < <€ < < < < < <
N ¢ A ¢ 6 ¢ e ¢ o o« N RN RN RN DN QN RN
2 < D T S S Y N NN NN NN QRN NN
3% < 2 S R R Y N NN N NN NN XY
>
“o N <€ <€ < < < < <€ <€ N ‘k&&&\\i N N
<€ € <€ <€ <€ < < < <€ < < N ~ N < <
N XN N X N NN NN N
€ <€ <€ <€ < < < < < <
3 < < < < ¢ ¢ < < < < < NN NN RN N NN N
M < < < < < < < < < < < AN A NN NN
>
z D R R SR S N N NN NN RN N NN RN N
3] ° N S S N N N NN X R NN RN NN RN
© < < < < ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ < < < N N N N
N NN XN NN XN NN
06 < < 3 < < < < <€ < < <
PRF h . . ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ <« o N NN N XN NN NN
‘Eé < < < < ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ < NN NN NN NN RN NN
3 AR R AR AR RN AR DN RN N DRDN RN NN NN NN
AR L S N N R R N I N N N N N N Y
< < <€ < < <€ < €
D \ N A RN N RN WR N R NN RN NN N NN
¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ RN I I N N N SN N N NN
€< ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ <N R I NN NN NN N NN NN
SR SR S N NN A RN RN R RDN NN N RN DN XK
AR R ‘0‘\\}&\\2\\}\\\“‘\\&& NN NN N NN NR
A <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ € <€ <€
o NN DR e SN NN S N e e NN T
< < <€ <€ € <€ < <€ <€
AR IR T I I I N N NN T e e e N NS
< < <€ <€ < <€ <€ <€ .
< < < < € < < < 3 3 < “‘&&\\}&\\t\\?&\\}&&\\}&\\t&&\\&&
< < <€ <€ € <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ < < < \\\}k\\}&&\\}&&\\}
’Q\ ¢ X E%g <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ < <€ <€ <€ < < < < < S
30 %ﬁ’%_é <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ < < < <
= ©
@ € D X < < < ¢ % ¢ < < < < < < < < < < < ¢ <
%,
b inf %ﬂ%e < < < ¢ 0 ¢ < < < < < < < < < < < < <
< < Oég;‘ <€ <€ <€ <€ < <€ <€ < <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ < < < €
=y
< < U‘gégé < < <€ <€ <€ <€ € <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ <€ < < < < <
<€ <€ EGC'é <, <€ <€ <€ <€ € <€ < < < < < < < < <€ <
@ _ < // 4 [ZRNEN 4
O o | //// éé’..rrrme o ) ¢ ¢ < P U S TR T S P
€ ¢ ¢ ¢ «Q ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ // Qg Q < < < < ¢ < < < < < < < < < ¢ ¢
O S /. ==
Z ¢ < < < < < < < < < < < < <€ < <€
Z o < <€ < < < < < 34 A
< < <€ <€ < < < < < < < < < < S
0
kP ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ < 67/ Q =" F N—=—_ ¢
oo = < < < < < < < <
JITE 277 75°CIF" 2 ] < ¢ = . . .
» <€ < s @
o <€ € < <€
<€ <€ <€
o <€ <€
aQ
a
2
~ 3
3/ - - L LT TY T
I cmmmmmmeEhemmememcmmecmmmmme e Bl memmmmm e ——————a- :
CA1-4HE-49-XX-N9N-N P 0] J1aley § 7
r A
°|'5 Seo0
=~ |BEE
9] 5] 8] ¢ 2] 3 - T |5
al oz Rl 2 Rl £ 1387 ¢
== |= o |z FHIN
EEE il 8T
o |8 |2 z |m 32:f 9
ClE| il
(%2} H
= 2 |o - = F s m om @ 3
g 5|8 $533359 532 3 §r smeynr sy 83 32232 % 5
E 2" 5582288 22¢ ¢ 58 885583 88 g8 22 asf 3 :
~ B S =g o35 o= 3 @ 3. = - o E
2= ¢|F N g+swNC 5258537 233 2 §3 g2 50d2 23 28 32 Bsa ° H
IR 2 5 [gEsEse 33388z e g 35 gasgug &8 g8 BhgEL g
s° a §eodizy §35-3832853 S% gfasme 07 o§ fzd s
c 5528 v2& 372529 X387 8 S erpxQo 5& o g 855
c et g 8 2 BEQS 2 @ &
gz |8 Ei%zsEo 853788 8235 ¢ 5 se5v8 §° 3 % isg
o IS ;68zpeo B3¥3sd 958 & " Xo9s T § & §>83
T8 83g,4m Flagss Fag 2" 5@ = 5 S 8
g (R 588854 P 338 938845 24 5 P 5 53
A 5 8B5S age szxa5 © °58 o @ g 8a 38
5 23t 2505 23 S ®
] 25 L anNg o
8 L °°s 2




R-L-3001

‘F

" 0 1 2 5 10m [stock Jauantity [item | __size [Height (cm)[Notes | [Densitymz
Trees
g e ' 3 Acer campestre 10-12Gith  300-350  3x standard (selected standard) clear stem 175-200 RB Counted
4 Sorbus aria 14-16Gith 425600 5 breaks 3x standard (extra-heavy) clear stem 175-200 RB Counted
1 2 Tilia cordata 10-12Gith 300350 3 standard (selected standard) clear stem 175-200 RB Counted
1 B
. N Shewbs Site bounda
1 17 Berberis thunbergii ‘Aropurpurea Nana' aL 1520 Branched min. 3breaks B c 3m2 y
1 36 Cornus sanguinea Mid Winter Fire' 3L C 3m2
1 14 Hebe albicans. a c sm2
15 Hebe 'Great Orme’ a 2030 Bushy, min. 3 breaks c am2 - N
1 15 Hebe s Winder' a 20-30 Bushy, min. 3 breaks c am2 Existing trees to be retained
1 11 aL 3040 Branched min. 3 breaks c 3m2 and protected in accordance
5 aL 20-30 Bushy, min. 3 breaks Cc 3m2 with BS5837 and AIA
1 21 Mahonia aquifolium ‘Apollo’ aL 3040 Branched min. 3 dreaks c am2 Existing treefvegetation o be
1 T Potentilla fruticosa Longacre' 3L c 3m2 d
1 5 Euonymus Emerald Gaiety aL 20-30 c 3m remove:
24 Rosmarinus offcinalis ‘Prostratus’ aL c 3m2
1 ciF Fh 35 23 ‘Sambucus nigra 3L 30-40 Bushy, min. 3 breaks C 3m2 Proposed tree - refer to
T L0 35 cul ; 16 Sarcococca hookeriana var. humilis a c 3m2 schedule for details
< 4 ° ‘Skimmia confusa Kew Green' aL 2030 Bushy, min. 3 breaks c 3m2
4T . < 4 “ 10 [Skimmiajaponica Frucks-albo’ a 2030 Bushy, min. 3 breaks ¢ 3m2
a a hd 4 < 12 ‘Skimmia japonica ‘Rubella’ aL 20-30 Bushy, min. 3 breaks € 3m2 Planting bed, refer to
< . 4 a . 4 10 ‘Symphoricarpos xchenaulti Hancock' L 4060 Branched, min. 3 breaks c am2 schedule and as Q31
a P a 20 Vibumum davidii ER 2030 Bushy, min. 2 breaks c am2
av a 4. 4 v 280
“ a4 < Proposed hedge, refer
a <
to schedule and as
) Hakonechloa macra ‘Aureola’ aL Q31
13 Stipa tenuissima a c am2 } X
22 Amenity grass seeding
Emorsgate EG22 - Strong
Heiacsos lawn grass mixture, or
\C “M ” M waw equivalent at 25g/m?, as Q30
m: e
21 aL c 3m2 Existing grass areas
12 Heuchera micrantha 'Palace Purple’ aL C 3m2 to be retained
30 Polystichum setiferum R c 3m2 e .
14 Salvia officinalis ‘Purpurascens’ 3L ¢ 3m2 Existing planting to
12 Stachys byzantna 3L - . C 3m2 be retained
110
Bark mulch surface to growing
area, laid over geotextile
Elaeagnus xebbingei Hedge 450mm centres, double staggered row
246 Elaeagnus x ebbingei 0L 125-1500m c membrane, 85 028
139 0L 125-150cm C  450cts Tigermulch permeable resin
totel 385 bound chopped rubber surfacing
el Garden Pranting laid around existing trees
30 Bergenia ‘Silberlicht. aL c sm2 i
3L c 3m2 Sports pitch seeding to be
3L Cc 5m2 undertaken by specialist
3L EBLTE contractor. Note: Indicative pitch
positions to Sport England size
= e EG22 = requirements. No line markings
to be provided as part of the
‘Seeding to sports pitches works
Cimbers - o |
9 Hedera helix
9 Lonicera periclymenum

Refer to drawing MIN-UBU-XX-GF-

(e}

Page 339

HENREN

UBU Design LTD
7a Wintex House, Easton Lane
Business Park, Easton Lane,
Winchester, Hants, S023 7RQ
+44 (0) 1962 856 008
studio@ubu-design.co.uk
wwiw.ubu-design.co.uk

PROJECT.

MINET SCHOOL

e

PLANTING PLAN -5 OF 5

o/

;//
A

cuEnT:
MORGAN SINDALL
SCALE: DATE!
1:100@A1 18/11/2021
108 O: DWG HO:
1800 MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-3004
sas oo REV: cor




o - - - i o ooy
AR ELEEE - - @
S L > AN
. - - = e - B
- oy .
E— F o —
- J,Hr_f_‘ [

| Locaton
equipement o oe retained

o

[ ———

e —

Bedant.

e vt o o o e

Key

ite boundary

Existing trees to be retained and
protected In accordance with
BS5837 and AIA

Existing tree to be removed

Proposed tree - exact numbers
required to be agreed with LPA

Planting bed, refer to schedule
and as Q31

Amenity grass seeding Emarsgate
EG22- Strong lawn grass mixture,

2| or equvalent at 25g/m2, as G30

Pedestrian Bitumen Macadam to
engineer's detais

Vehicular Bitumen Macadam, refer
to engineer's detals

‘Surtacing to new entrance area

Bark mulch surface to growing area,
laid over geotextie membrane

Existing table tennis table to be
relocated

Existing polytunnel o be relocated,
with new skin as required

Proposed raised timber plarters,
Recycled mixed plastic aised becs,
supplied by Kedel o equivalert.
Size 2:150.3m height

Existing pergola sructure to

be relocated (subject o conditon
assessment)

Short stay cycle parking,
“Sheffield cycle hoop.

requirements to be agreed with LPA

Proposed
- 2.4m high weldmesh.

Proposed secondary fence
1.8m high

Proposed lower level fence
1.23m high

Proposed mid level fence.
1.5m high

roposed vehicle gate to match
fencing

™1 Proposed vehicle gate to match

Proposed pedestiian gate to match
tencing

Page 340

fencing

Proposed pedestiian gate to match
fencing

Proposed pedestiian gate to match
fencing

Entrancelaccess to school for
pupil and staff

Entrancefaccess to school for
pupll staff, parent and visitors

Existing tarmac

Existing paving to
be retained

Existing artiicialturt
surtacing to be
tained

Existing concrete

B
surfacing to be o be retained
planting to

ined

Existing gravel
surfacing
o be refained

UBU Design LTD
7a Wintex House, Easton Lane
Business Park, Easton Lane,
Winchester, Hants, S023 7RQ
+44 (0) 1962 856 008
studio@ubu-design.co.uk
wwiw.ubu-design.co.uk

PROJECT.

MINET SCHOOL
e

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT PLAN

FOR PLANNING

cuenT.

MORGAN SINDALL
SoaLE oaTE

1:500@A1 10/03/2021
Jo8 1o owG o

1800 MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-0005
s o Rev. P03




NOTE: T g e coprat of UBU Design LTD, gt s

Deton 1D accsp o bk
ham ond tha prior pproval cotmes.

Notional Ste - 7| Notional Ste boundary
boundary - Junior School
infant school

Existing trees
protected in accordance with
855637 and AIA

Existing treeivegetation to be
removed

Key

required to be agreed with LPA

Plariingbed, [~ Newhedge,

refer to schedule bz, fefer to schedule

a Proposed tree - exact numbers

Amenty grass seeding Emorsgate
EG22- Strong lawn grass mixture,

or equivalent at 25g/n, as Q30

to be undertaken by specialist
3 icative pitch positions to Sport
England size requirements. No line markings to be.
provided as part of the works

Pedestrian Bitumen Macadam to

engineer's details

bond with soldier course edge, as

Bark muleh surface to growing ares,

laid over geotextie membrane

Existing polytunnel o be relocated,
with new skin as required

TR Existng pergola [ Proposed bin store
Y. v structure ~Timber close board
S | relocated fence to binstore
. 1.8m height
parking. [ 5] Door barrer, supplied
I 11| ‘Sheffels eycle hoop 1] |preoeeer
aquivalent.
y Ref: BX14/DB. As
N asorzie
. y e fen
2.4m high weldmesh
Colour: Green
= Pr
. fence 2.4m high fence 2.0m nign
levelfence fence 2.4m high
T2m hgh welcmesn Colour
o Green
it new capping
A rail 2.0m high
=] propo
gate to match gate to mateh fencing
fencing
A
=) Progos ropomPeestran
N gate o match gate
fencing fencing
A
| Fropor propedM estion
2 to match fencing gate to match
3 forens @)
2 A .
N 7| Propos Propost
S gate to match pede
P fencing o mate
4 A tenein
sting U
L v gate to refurbished
2 Semi Domed Sheffld
e® Stainless Steel Bollard
©
A schoaltor 750mm high, 104mm

pupl and staff dia, Grade 304 Stainless
Entrance/access to school for Steel with double white
pupll staff, parent and visitors reflective band.

Existing tarmac [ Existing artficial turf
P srtacingto be. surfacing to be
- pre— retained retained

N SEoEET surfacing o be Ixan._a
o - N ot retained
= i Existing rubber Edsting gravel
. IH Grumb surtacing
K- w. i 0 be retained

UBU Design LTD

7a Wintex House, Easton Lane
Business Park, Easton Lane,
Winchester, Hants, S023 7RQ

+44 (0) 1962 856 008

%m studio@ubu-design.co.uk
. ubu-design.co.uk

PROJECT.

MINET SCHOOL

™% GENERAL ARRANGEMENT WITHOUT
TEMPORARY CLASSROOMS

20 50m
3
W T

MORGAN SINDALL

scaiE e
1:500@A1 07/01/2021

oo oo
1800 MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-1000

. o ors




BIN STORE

[

7+

PLAN VIEW. CAPPING STRIP REMOVED FOR CLARITY
SCALE: 1:20

EAVY BRETON BOLT GALVANIZED —HOOK AND BAND HINGES GALVANISED
100MM
0CLEAR OPENING

148

TE LEAE

/

1495 GATE L EAF

/

3000 CLEAR OPENIN

1495 GATE LEAE.

1495 GATE | EAF

M L]

LTI

[TTTTTTTTTTTT

GROUND LEVEL
v

INSIDE GATE DETAIL
SCALE 1:20

NOTE
BIN STORE SURROUND - CLOSE BOARD TIMBER FENCING, 1.68M
HIGH WITH MATCHING GATES SUPPLIED BY JACKSON'S FENCING,
OR EQUIVALENT. TIMBER TO BE SOFTWOOD WITH JAKCURE FINISH
TOPROVIDE 25YEAR LIFESPAN. ALL FITTING TO GATES TO BE
GALVANISED STEEL

GRAVEL BOARD

GRAVEL BOARD

GROUND LEVEL

APPING AND
COUNTER RAIL /‘

POST
125 x 100mm AT

WEATHERED TOPS.

]

o

SO
TIMBER BOARDING

L b | NAIL FIXED TO TIMBER

ARRIS RAIL 100 x 50mm
b FIXED INTO POSTS VIA
B MORTICE AND TENON
g JOINT

150x22mm TREATED
SOFTWOOD TINBER
GRAVEL BOARD WITH

GROUND LEVEL CENTRAL STUMP POST

BIN STORE - 1.8m HIGH TIMBER CLOSE BOARD BIN STORE
SCALE 1:20

ROP BOLT WITH IN GROUND SOCKET,
'SECURABLE WITH PADLOCK

v

- BODX50XSOMM

OSTS SET IN CONCRETE

DETALLS

OARSE AGGREGATE
DRAINAGE LAYER

1.8m HIGH TIMBER CLOSE BOARD FENCE DETAIL
SCALE 1:20

B RALS. no
/«NSZDC;N:ZWMN\

—lI=

pr— Y S—
GROUND LEVEL

FOUNDATION TO ENGINEER'S

INTERNAL VIEW

WOTE: T crmng e cr

sorom o

Page 342

UBU Design LTD

7a Wintex House, Easton Lane
Business Park, Easton Lane,
Winchester, Hants, S023 7RQ
+44 (0) 1962 856 008
studio@ubu-design.co.uk
www.ubu-design.co.uk

PROJECT.

MINET SCHOOL

TmE:

BIN STORE DETAILS

cuEnT:

MORGAN SINDALL

SCALE:

1:20@A1

DATE

30/01/2024

108 O:

1800

WG O:

MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-2008

sTATUS:

PD

e co2




AN
N AL LA 4 )
AT

7 11 metres

PLAN VIEW - NOT TO SCALE - SITING REFERENCE ONLY

Proposed Trough Planters : Railing planter in Dark Grey, 40cm Height, 50cm width, 20cm depth.Suggested supplier: Wayfair - Large Trough Planter, Frostproof
Outdoor Plant Pot, Long Garden Planter with Drainage Holes, Concrete Effect Rectangular Plant Pot https://www.wayfair.co.uk/garden/pdp/hortico-large-
trough-planter-frostproof-outdoor-plant-pot-long-garden-planter-with-drainage-holes-concrete-effect-rectangular-plant-pot

Each planter to have drainage holes, and be filled with a 5cm base of free draining gravel substrate, then fill with suitable compost mix of good quality British
Standard peat free compost, and FSC biochar or water retention granules to aid water retention - use according to manufacturers instructions. finish compost 10 cm
below top of trough and add 5 cm small graded bark mulch for water retention.

Each trough to be planted with alternate Hedera helix and Lonicera periclymenum - 1 x 1 litre pot per trough.

- these must be checked for soil moisture content weekly for for | period and watered until established, then watered weekly spring through summer, more
frequently if periods of no rain fall - minimum weekly through summer and dry periods. Hedera/ vy pruning can be at most times of year to ulate new growth and
retain good shape. Lonicera to be pruned after flowering, late summer. Do not prune in frosts or during drought periods. Top up compost and mulch annually.

EXISTING FENCE

™ 5

EXISTING FENCE
v

m

Proposed Trough Planters : Railing planter in
Dark Grey, 40cm Height, 50cm width, 20cm

0p0 W

depth.Suggested supplier: Wayfair - Large
Trough Planter, Frostproof Outdoor Plant Pot,
Long Garden Planter with Drainage Holes,
Concrete Effect Rectangular Plant Pot

https://www.wayfair.co.uk/garden/pdp/hortico-large-

trough-planter-frostproof-outdoor-plant-pot-long-garden

-planter-with-drainage-holes-concrete-effect-rectangular-

plant-pot

=N
B
|

EXISTING CAR PARK

prox 22|
A 4

e

o.dde

11 metres length

EXISTING WALL

VM ONILSIX3

ELEVATION VIEW EXAMPLE r
SECTION VIEW

[ ——

o1 UBU Desan LTD, s

Besant.

e vt o o o Svanes

Page 343

UBU Design LTD

7a Wintex House, Easton Lane
Business Park, Easton Lane,
Winchester, Hants, 5023 7RQ
+44 (0) 1962 856 008
%mg studio@ubu-design.co.uk

wwiw.ubu-design.co.uk

PROJECT.

MINET SCHOOL

PLANTER FENCE DETAILS

cuEnT:
MORGAN SINDALL

SChLE: DATE
1:10@A1 30/01/2024
Jo8 0: oW o
1800 MIN-UBU-XX-GF-DR-L-2009
s oo Rev: coz




v RN, X g
s Vg™ X [
kg A

{7 ‘ Ly
"”V" Ve /
IO
dl ’ S Q‘
RS

Zﬁ
s
5o a5
"~

0
Y
‘\\I:\ Q

N2 &«‘l S :\;:1

%
*i:\

L&

| ‘\?i\i‘:‘ti‘:‘::iiii:;\f::::E: J s X
,I..l i \

P e i 7

KEY :

=3 Site Boundary

ADDRESS :

Minet Junior School, Avondale Drive, Hayes

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON

RESIDENTS SERVICES
PLANNING SECTION

DISCLAIIMER :
For identification purposes only
This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Commitiee
Services pursuant ta section 47 of the
Copynght, Designs and Patents
Act 1928 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides 3 relevant
exception te copynaht

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey
AC0000810857

CIVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, UB8 1UW

PLANNING APPLICATION SCALE :
REFERENCE :
1:1,250
2297/APP/2024/2171
PLANNING COMMITTEE : DATE :
15/01/2025

Pags

344

HILLINGDON

LONDON




	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	 Planning Committee Report Part 1_ Standard Information
	6 22 Belmont Close, Uxbridge - 79130/APP/2024/1864
	7 72 Harefield Road, Uxbridge - 25767/APP/2024/2484
	8 Harrow and Wembley Society Model Engineers, Roxbourne Park, Eastcote - 22899/APP/2023/2219
	9 140 Fairholme Crescent, Hayes - 57533/APP/2023/3146
	10 100 Exmouth Road, South Ruislip - 42576/APP/2024/2465
	11 38 Varcoe Gardens, Hayes - 79116/APP/2024/2794
	12 Minet Junior School, Avondale Drive, Hayes - 2297/APP/2024/2171
	 Planning Committee Report Part 3_Policy Appendices
	 Plans for the Hillingdon Planning Committee



